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We are a full service communications
provider operating across 18 countries*
in the Caribbean and Latin America.

@oeo

We provide our customers with best-in-class Our offering
Our world-class networks
mobile and mobile data, superfast .broadband, bl our over vt malions
video content and fixed voice services at home, customers to ttalk. text agd
enjoy using daia-enadie
at Work and in the Communlty. applications such as maps,
games and videos

* Retall markets

Within this repert pages 2 to 41 are a Strategic report
pages 48 to 58 are a Directors report and pages 68 to
88 are a Directors remuneration report {ineach case
together with the information incorporated by reference
into such reports) Each report has been prepared in
accordance with and m reliance upon English. company law
In particular the iabilities of the Directors in connection
with each report shall be subject to the imitatians

and restrictions prowded by such law Definitions

of non-GAAP measures are provided on page 83




Performance highlights 2014/15

Revenue

USS$1.8bn

2% Like-for-like improvement
from 2013/14

The income from sales of our products
andservices

Operating cash flow

USS143m

(529%) Fall from 2013/14

The amount of cash we generated to
fund our ongoing operations

Inside thisreport

Overview

2-3
4-5

Our bustness in brief
Chairman’s review

Strategic review

8-17 Chief Executive Officer’s
strategic review

i Our strategic imperatives

13 Our market opportunities
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18-21 Principal risks and uncertainties
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68-88  Directors’ remuneration report

89 Statement of Directors’

responsibilities

EBITDA

USS585m

7% improvement
from 2013/14

Ameasure of trading profit prowides
aguide to our ongoing performance

Adjusted earnings per share*

US4.7c

114% Increase from 2013/14

The amount we earnedin net profit for
eachshare in our Company
*Refer topage 95

Financial review and financial statements

92-99
narrative

100-102 Basis of preparation

103-113 Results for the year

114-131 Operating assets and habilities

132-142 Capital structure and financing

143-158 Other
159-161 Independent auditor'sreport
162-168 Company financial statements

Shareholderinformation

Our shareholders can get useful information

on pages 169 to 171 or online at
WWW CWC Com

Primary financial statements and

Capital expenditure

USS442m

76% Increase
from 2013/14

Our spending on plant, equipment,
software and property for our business

Full year dividend

US4c

0% Change

The return to be paid cut annually to
shareholders per share they held

View our Annual Report online at
WWW CWC com
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Our business in brief

We are a full service communications
provider operating across 18 countries*
in the Caribbean and Latin America.

* Retall Markets

Our business in brief
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Our brands
Panama

The Bahamas
Seychelles
Caribbean

Transforming our business
through the acquisition of
Columbus International Inc.

@ Read more about Columbus on page 9

02 Cable & Wireless Communications

We are the leading telecommunications
operator inmost of the markets we serve
Through increased investment in our
networks, we are delivering best-in-class
services in mobile, broadband, fixed
voice, video services to consumers, and
connectivity and Managed Services to
bustnesses and governments We are

a strong economic contributor to the
countries in which we operate As a major
infrastructure provider, we have an
extensive sub-sea cable network, which
spans more than 42,000 kilometres —
the largest inthe region We partner

with governments provide employment

opportunities and support the economies
and communities through our corporate
sociral responsibility programmes Our

main markets are Panama, The Bahamas
Seychelles and 15 Caribbean markets
including Jamaica, Barbados, Cayman islands
and Trinidad and Tobago

We are geographically focused in the
Caribbean and Latin America with our new
operational hub in Miami Qur Company Is
headquarteredm London and is listed on the
London Stock Exchange

Delivering world class
Business-to-Business and
Business-to-Government

services in our markets

Read more about our Business-to-Business services on pages 13 to 15




Our services

Mobile

We are the leader In

10 out of 16 mobile

markets in which
we operate Through our newly
upgraded network infrastructure
we enable customers to enjoy
leading, always on mobile and
mobile data services to make
calls, send and or receive
messages, and access the
Internet We have 3 8 million
mobile customers

Business solutions

Woe have established a
successful Business Solutions
stand-alone unit focused on
dehvering a broad range of
services for our business and
government customers, from
installing telecoms and IT
systems to managing services
on ther behalf In a number of
markets we also store data
securely for our customers

Broadband

Our high-speed

broadband service

15 a leader in 16 out
of 18 broadband markets that
we serve We are delivering
superfast fixed broadband to
homes, workplaces and public
spaces We will continue to
increase broadband speed and
rehability to our 658,000
broadband customers

Using telecoms services we
heip governments to improve
efficiency and lower the cost
of delivering public services
In areas such as healthcare,
emergency services calling
platforms, CCTV survelllance
and online education There
are opportunities to expand
our work and replicate it n
cther markets

@ Read maore about our business regions on pages 28 to 35

Fixed voice
( @ We are the leading
landline service
provider n 17 out
of 18 markets Our mobile and
fixed hne convergence capability
gives us a strategic advantage,
enabling us to provide customers
with the best network quahty
experience We have 11 million
fixed hne customers

Wholesale solutions

We own the most extensive
sub-sea and terrestrial ibre
optic cable network across the
Caribbean and Latin America
region, enabhng us to serve our
own customers as well as selling
to other telecommunications
operators

Video

We are the leader

in 7 out of 10 video
markets in which we
operate With the acquisition of
Celumbus, we plan to begin
offering video in several more
countries by utilising our
extensive networks and
customer service systems

We now have 460,000 video
customers

Annual Report 2014/15
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Chairman’s review

Sir Richard Lapthorne, CBE
Chairman

04 Cable & Wireless Communications

“Cable & Wireless Communications is

evolving into a more efficient, focused
Group, putting customers at the heart
of our business, served by a more robust
network infrastructure.”

This has been a transformational year for
Cable & Wireless Communications (CWC)

It was a year in which we completed the
refocus of our operation on the Caribbean and
Latin America we successfully established a
new operational hub in Miarm and welcomed
anew management team led by Phul Bentley,
our Chief Executive Officer We launched
Project Marlin, our three-year plan to tnvest
more than U5$1 billion in our networks ta
)mprove customer service and at the end

of the year we completed the US$3 billion
acquisition of Columbus International Inc a
transaction that has accelerated the execution
of our strategy by dramatically expanding our
scale and reach

Cur new approach has begun to show positive
results with early signs of a return to top line
revenue growth after a number of years of
dechne in the region We are evolving into
amore efficient, focused Group putting
customers at the heart of our business, served
by a more robust network infrastructure We
are executing agamnst our vision — to grow
customer relationships and lifetime value by
delivering unparalleled customer expenence
where our customers define excellence’ —
and we have been increasing our investment
in the business to support this strategy The
fundamental way we have reshaped the
business inrecent years has left us with a
financial position and operating platform that
we befieve give us an excellent foundation for
future growth CWC 1s becoming a stronger
Company — better equipped to serve our
customers with better products and services,
accelerating the new strategy we outlined to
you last year

Since taking up office a little over 12 months
ago, our Chief Executive Officer, Phil Bentley,
and his team have built upon the establishment
of the operationat hub in Miami through

introducing a far greater level of operational
rigour The management team has
demonstrated its commitrnent to deliver
growth in revenue mamntain cost discipline
and improve our returns on capital, as well
as beginning to transform the service our
customers will receve

The benefits of our Increased investrnents
along with geographical focus have resulted
inimproved network performance to support
mobile data growth and improved Net
Promoter Scores (NPS) with like-for-tike
revenues Increasing by 2%, reversing the
trend expenenced inrecent years Each of
our business units contributed positively

In addition to financial targets, our semior
management had well-defined personal
objectives concentrated on reshaping the
business and creating a platform for future
growth Moving from our old operating model
of a financial helding company to one of
operational focus through the provision of
greater direction from the Miami operational
hub has streamlined the division of
responsibilities to allow markets to largely
focus on serving their customers, whilst
ensunng operational policies are implemented
N a consistent way

We continue to operate in a fiercely
competitive environment and we still face
challenges from the difficult economies in
several Caribbean markets, intense mobile
competition in Panama and immimnent
hberahsation of the mobile market n

The Bahamas

An essentiat part of the plan is the substantial
increase in the level of investment inthe
business over the next two years This
investment 1s necessary to help us to compete
better and achieve our growth agenda Our
capital expenditure as a proportion of revenue




was higher this year, but the business has
already begun to see the benefit of the
investment through improved revenues

As we continue to accelerate mvestment in
the business, the Company intends to maintain
the dvidend as a core element of shareholder
returns and is recommending a dividend of
US4 cents for the 2014/15 year

Board changes

Following the acquisition of Columbus, we have
three new major shareholders, each of whom
has proposed a Director to the Board 1am
dehghted to welcome three highly committed
Non-executive Directors whe bring with them
both telecoms experience and extensive
personal networks John Risley 1s a Canadian
entrepreneur who co-founded Columbus
Entities ultirnately controlled by him own
approximately 20% of the enlarged CWC
Thad York represents the private office of
John Malone, whe has ultimate control of

an entity that owns 13% John Malone s a
well-respected figure in the worldwide cable
industry Brendan Paddick owns 3% He was a
co-founder of Columbus and as its Executive
Chatrman, led its progress from the start

Perley McBnde was appointed Chief Financial
Officer n June 2014 replacing Tim Pennington
Pertey brings a wealth of experience to the
business having spent most of his career
working for both fixed and mobile telecom
operators as well as technology businesses

Following the completion of the acquisition

of Columbus, we have reduced the number

of Executve Directors to two and with the
transition to Miami completed, Nick Cooper
who has remained UK based, has now stepped
down from the Board Nick has served with
distinction for nine years He has beena
Director since dermerger and has played
aleading role m establishing CWC as an

Our mission:
Connecting Communities
Transforming Lives

independent business and in establishing Miami
as the new operational hub

| also welcome Barbara Thoralfsson as an
independent Non-executive Director who
brings valuable industry knowledge, both from
her time as CEQ of NetCom ASA in Norway and
in her ongoing relationship with Telenor ASA

As the former Columbus shareholders who
received CWC shares are required to vote at
all shareholder meetings in ine with the
recommendation of the Board for aninitial
pertod (subject to certain imited excepticns),
under the Listing Rules and the City Code, the
Directors are subject to additional restrictions,
iIncluding on their ability to trade shares, as
described in more detail in the Directers and
corporate governance report on pages 55
and 56

Our approach

Our infrastructure and services play an integral
role in the communities we serve We always
seek to take an active part \n our community,
through supporting local causes, and being an
employer of choice Together with our new
team members from Columbus we will
redouble these efforts since we are aware of
our soctal responsibilities and the role we play
as acorporate citizen We aim to maintain the
highest standards of ethtcs and good
governance and monitor this closely through
a series of both internal and external controls
We have set out more information on our
approach to Corporate Social Responsibility
and Sustainability on pages 38 to 41 of

this report

The Board has approved this Annual Report
and Accounts as being a fair, balanced and
understandable assessment of CWC's position
and prospects

Thus has been one of the most important
chapters in CWC's long history It has been
supported by alf our team members with
their hard work, dedication, energy and
professionalism

I am confident they will ensure that we
continue to deliver a great service to our
customers and meaningful benefits in the
commueities in which we operate | would like
to express my thanks to them for everything
they have done and the foundations they have
now laid to make the combined Group even
more successful

Sir Richard Lapthorne, CBE
Charrman
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Strategic Review

Find out how we are delivering
our strateqy through increased
nvestment

8-17 Chief Executive Officer’s
strateqic review

" Our strategic imperatives

13 Our market opportunities

16-17 Group KPIs

17 Our performance

18-21 Principal nsks and uncertainties
22-27 Group financial performance review
28-29 LIME performance review

30-31 Panama performance review

32-33 The Bahamas performance review
34-35 Seychelles performance review

36-41 Corporate responsibility and
sustainability

Our year of transformation and
growth was marked by several
major investments. We embarked
on Project Marhn, a US$1 billion
investment-led strategy to upgrade
our networks across the region

in Panama, we made an important
acquisition, acquiring Sonitel, an

IT integration company, in a bid to
strengthen our Business-to-Business
operations. In November 2014,

we announced the US$3 billion
acquisition of Columbus
International Inc. which was
completed on 31 March 2015

06 Cable & Wireless Communications
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We provide seamless
mobile, broadband, video
and voice services with our
next generation network.
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Chief Executive Officer’s strategic review

Phil Bentley,
Chief Executive Officer

A Year of Transformation
and Growth

Inside the strategic review

Our strategy

9 OQur strategy for growth
13 Qur market opportunities
18 Principal risks and uncertainties

Our performance

16 Group KPIs
22 Group financial
performance review
28 Regional performance reviews

08 Cable & Wireless Communications

“In a year of transformation
we are forming a ‘new’ Company,
with a new leadership and a new
culture, putting our customers
at the heart of our business.”

2014 was ayear of transformation and
growth and marked the beginning of a new
chapter for Cable & Wireless Communications
(CWC) We began the year operating out

of our new operational hub in Miami and
ended it with the acquisition of Columbus
International inc

We continue to build on our hew wision and
strategy for the business backed by our
US$1 billion ‘Project Marlin’ investment
programme We began to execute a
performance improvement plan to seize
the opportunities we have identified in
ourindustry and the markets we serve

We completed the sale of our Monaco
Telecom business for US$445 million on

20 May 2014, and through the purchase

of Sonitel in Panama for US$41 million, added
our first acquisition in support of our new
Business Solutions dwision Most importantly,
at the midway point of our fiscal year, we
announced our intention to acquire Columbus
for US$3 billion

I'm pleased to report that the required legal
and regulatory approvals were met and the
transaction closed on 31 March 2015 This
1s a transaction that transforms CWC and

1s one that will accelerate the delivery of
our strategy across the region Columbus

is an outstanding business With our
complementary fixed line and mobte
networks, our focus on prowiding the best
customer service, and bringing together
the skills and capabilities of our team
members, we will be well-placed to better
serve our customers and improve the
Information and Commurnications Technology
(ICT) infrastructure of the communities In
which we operate

We expect the operating synergies tobe
significant, together, the ‘new’ Company
creates the opportunity to invest more,
grow faster and provide an improved
customer experience and most importantly,
a development oppartunity for our people
that neither Company could have achieved
onits own

The transaction will accelerate both our
mabile leadership and our fixed mebile
convergence strategies, enabling customers,
for example to have seamless access to
high-quality wdeo content as they move
between devices and locations The
downloading of video content onto mobile
phones will continue apace n fixed line, the
significant iImprovements n our networks
atong with Columbus’s broadband capabilities
will deliver outstanding online experience,
faster speeds and wider coverage Inwideo,
the transaction brings richer content and
better set-top box capabilities

In terms of Business-to-Business (B2B),

and Business-to-Government {B2G), the
acquisition complements CWC s larger
footprint bringing additional national and
international connectivity capabilities to
better serve multinational customers, as well
as opering up Latin America growth markets
These capabilities are well aigned with our
new Business Solutrons diwision focus

To ensure competition remains as robust

as ever, we agreed to dispose of our 49%
shareholding in Telecommunications Services
of Trinidad and Tobago {TSTT) aswell as
certan overlapping fibre-to-the-home assets
in Barbados




Aside from the corporate activity we have
undertaken, It was pleasing to see revenue
growth for the first time since demerger with
further improverments in EBITDA profit,
underpinned by successful delivery of our
cost reduction programme

In short, we have made good progress in
executing our strategy and we are beginning
to realise the full potential of our business
CWC s becoming a stronger Company —

a genung quad play operator, with strong
market shares in the geographically-focused
and attractive Caribbean and Latin Amenca
markets backed up with significant sub-sea
and terrestnial fibre optic networks

I remain confident about our prospects and
our capabilities to capture these opportunities
to the benefit of customers, team members
and shareholders alike

About Coelumbus International Inc.

“This 1s a transaction that transforms CWC and 1s
one that will accelerate the delivery of our strategy
across the regton*

Our Objeciive O

To grow customer
relationships and
lifetime value by
delivering unparalleled
customer experience,
where customers define
‘excellence.’

The acquisition of Columbus

Since its inception in 2004, Columbus has
built upon its roots as a cable TV operator to a
world-class telecommunications company
that employs more than 3 200 team
members, serving more than 725,000
service subscnbers i over 42 ‘on-net
countnies throughout the Caribbean and Latin
Americaregion Marketed through its ‘Flow’
brand Columbus 1s a leading provider of cable
and broadband enabled services focused on
servicing retall customers in eight countries in
the Caribbean As a leading provider of triple
play services in each of its markets, ‘Flow
focuses on providing its customers with
innovative video and broadband enabled
services that are on par or better than those
offered in most major metropofitan centres
throughout the world

Through its Columbus Business Solutions
{CBS) brand, Columbus offers a
comprehensive range of infermation and
communications technology solutions
including a full swite of cloud-based services
for Small and Medum Sized Businesses
{SMB) large enterprise and government
chents CBS also offers a full suite of
commercial grade triple play services and
value-added telecommunications and IT
services to SMBs Operating under the
Columbus Networks (CN) brand, Columbus
owns and or operates the most advanced
multi-ring configured, sub-sea fibre optic
cable network connecting every major
country and territory in the Caribbean,
Central America and northern South America

We seek to deliver long-
term and sustainable
growth for shareholders
through growing the
lifetime value of our
customer relationships
— with the acquisition of
Columbus we have
refined our strategy to
reflect our enhanced
market positions and
capabilities.

With the acquisttion of Columbus we have
taken a major step towards accelerating
growth in our Company by adding a rapidly
growing retail triple play service provider, the
leading sub-sea wholesale network provider
in the region and a complementary B28

and B2G [T solutions company With its
geographically diverse operations and its next
generation network platform bullt upon the
latest technology by a highly experienced and
entrepreneurial management team, Columbus
propels CWC into the retail quad play business
(advanced video broadband Internet, IP
telephony and data rich mobile} and adds
meaningful scale and reach to our B2B and
B2G businesses We welcome the Columbus
team members to the CWC family - we are
better together

Vision and Strategy

While our vision remains the same — we seek
to deliver long-term and sustainable growth
for shareholders through growing the lifetime
value of our customer relationships — with the
acquistbion of Columbus we have refined our
strategy to reflect our enhanced market
positions and capabilities Last year we
introduced four strategic objectives which
we have now renamed as our operational
goals and have added a iifth — Make the
Company a ‘Great Place to Work’ We set out
in the following pages how we will measure
progress against each strategy as well as the
risks to achievement

Annuzal Report 2014/15 09




Chief Executive Officer’s strategic review continued

Our Business Model

Our business model

is based on providing
customers with
communications,
information and
entertainment services,
at a price which delivers
value to them, while
enabling our Company
to make a fair return
for our shareholders.

Phil Bentley,
Chief Executive
Officer
continued

)

10 Cable & Wireless Communications

Our Operational Goals

1. Grow top 2. Maintain cost 3. Make the
line revenue efficiency and Company
EBITDA growth ‘A Great Place
To Work’

4. Deliver unparalleled customer experience

5. Increase returns on capital

“The acquisition
of Columbus accelerates
our strategy.”

Qur strategic plan continues to include the
four strategic imperatives from 2013/14 and
we have augmented them with an additienal
two, following the acquisition of Columbus

» Drwe to mobile leadership

+ Fixed-mobile convergence

« Video and content leadership

« Grow our B2B and B2G business
« Buld aleading wholesale network
« Make the integration a success

We set cut in the fallowing pages how we will
measure progress agamst each strategy as
measured by five operations goals as well as
the risks to achievement

Investment

We anticipate that our capital
expenditure, as a proportion of revenue,
will be hugher than the historical average
in the coming financial year

Investment

Consistent with our vision and strategy.
2014/15 saw an uphft in our capital
expenditure from US$251 million to
US$442 million, as we delivered the first
year of Project Markn The main areas of
investment focused on

« Mobile networks — We launched LTE in four
markets and HSPA+ 1n all markets Our total
number of HSPA+ sites grew by 110% Our
mobile networks showed improvement
across all parameters with eight netwarks
Judged as ‘best-in-class based on
international benchmarks We have more
work to do in terms of mobile network
performance in our larger scale markets

Fixed networks — We rolled out over one
thousand kilometres of terrestrial fibre
oplic cables across all our markets and
passed ¢ 114 000 homes Traffic onour
fixed netwerks grew 31% as we drove our
fixed-mobile convergence strategy to most
efficiently deliver data to customers We
saw our production cost’ of data fall 38%
measured by cost per gigabit carned’ as
we improved our delivery efficency




Our Strategic Imperatives )

Delivery of our goals is
built upon six strategic
imperatives.

e For more mformation on our strategic
imperatives see pages 14-15

We anticipate that our capital expenditure,
as a proportion of revenue will be higher
than the historical average in the coring
financial year, as we deliver year two of
Project Marlin and commence the first year
of our integration with Columbus This
year's financial performance bears out our
underlying belief that increased investment
and improved service will generate future
revenue and earnings growth

From triple play to quad play

Columbus through its Flow brand — the leading
provider of triple play services in each of its
markets — propels CWC into the retail quad play
business

Drive to Fixed-mobile Video and
mobile convergence content
leadership leadership
Grow our Buildaleading  Make the
B2B and B2G wholesale integration a
business network success

Measuring success

We set out last year a series of goals by which
our performance would be judged In a year
of transformation we have made progress in
these goals

1 Grow top line revenue — Revenue grew 2%
like-for-like at the Group level and delvered
the first year-on-year growth since demerger

2 Mantain cost efficiency and EBITDA
growth — Qur operating costs fell US$15
million or 2% year-on-year while EBITDA
grew by 7% Our operating costs to revenue
ratio fell by two percentage points to 41%
although this remains above our long-term
ambition for the Company The
transformation of our systems and processes
Is a prionty to drive further efficiencies

3 Make the Company a Great Place 1o Work'
- Our employee Net Promoter Score (eNP5),
as surveyed by the ‘Great Place to Work'
Institute had a baselne of 15% Over

2,520 team members partiapated We will
be priontising Investment in our people as
part of creating our new culture

4 Delver unparalleled customer service

— We saw customer loyalty as measured by
Net Promoter Score (NP3) grow by six points
over the year NPS also grew across every
product segment as our investments and
focus began to iImprove customer experience

5 Increase returns on capital — With the
ongoing progress being made on Project
Marlin and following the acquisition of
Columbus, we would expect to see increased
returns on capital

Executive leadership changes

On 23 June 2014 Perley McBride joined
CWC as Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Previously Perley served as CFO at Leap
Wireless International from December 2012
through to May 2014 He has hit the road
running and ss already making a strong
contribution to the business

On 31 December 2014 Jorge Nicolau

stood down as CEO of our Panama business
having worked for Cable & Wireless Panama
for aver 15 years Jorge made an enormous
contribution to our business having
successfully retained and grown market share
despite the entrance of two additional mobile
competitors He retired with our thanks and
best wishes He was succeeded by Agustin de
la Guardia who was appointed on 1 January
2015 Agustin joined us from Motta
International SA where he was Commercial
Executive Vice President of the commercial,
wholesale, distribution and retail operations
of the Motta Group He s passionate about
our customers and our people and s already
making an impact

In a year of transformation, with the
acquisition of Columbus, we are forming
anew Company with a new leadership and
anew culture putting our customers at the
heart of our business John Reid, President of
our Caribbean Cansumer Business, joins from
Columbus to lead our retall businesses John
has over 26 years of telecoms experience
and has been with Columbus for more than
tenyears He brings signthcant industry
knowledge and a strong TV expertise to

the business
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Chuef Executive Officer’s strategic review continued

Our investment plan @

Consistent with our US$442 million invested in Project Marlin
vision and strategy,

2014/15 saw an uplift in +1 65 %

our capital expenditure Data traffic ncreased by 165%

from US$251 million to across all LIME markets in 2014

US$442 million, as we (y

delivered the first year +1 00 (o

of Project Marlin. Our mobile networks in all 13 LIME markets

upgraded to deliver HSPA+ service

+53%

For more information on Investment see Eight out of 15 HSPA+ networks were judged ‘best-in-class’

pages 10-11 performance based on network KPIs
3 John Maduri, President of our Business I have now wisited all the markets which

Phll Bentley’ . Solutions Division (ex Rogers Wireless, Telus)  we operate inand have met the vast
Chief Executive joins fram Columbus to lead our B2B/B2G majority of our team members, who are
Officer businesses in the Caribbean and Latin Amenca  without exception energetic, warm and

. d - a key area of growth for us committed indmduals
continue As aresult of these appointments, Martin Our business has undergone an enormeus
e Roos and Laurie Bowen left the business on amount of change over the past year And

31 March 2015 Both Martin and Launie have  yet, despite this, our team members have
been instrumental in helping set CWC onits demonstrated the highest level of
transformational journey and our success this  commitment to our customers and to the
year They leave with my sincere thanks and Company and for that | say a heartfelt ‘thank
best wishes you' on behalf of all cur shareholders Our

nction of all their hard work
Further additions to our Executive Team success 15 afunction of all t d

include PautlScott President Networks and
Wholesale and Michele English, Executive
Vice President (EVP) Human Resources and
Integration, the Executive Team is completed
by Carlo Alloni, EVP and Group Chief Technical
Information Officer (CTIQ) Belinda Bradberry,
Group General Counsel, Niall Merry, Senior
Vice President (SVP) Commercial, Chris
Dehring, SVP Government Relatigns and
Regulatory Affairs Agustinde la Guardia,

SVP and CEQ Panama and Leon Willlams,

SVP and CEQO Bahamas Telecommunications
Company (BTC)

Finally, | would like to join our Chairman by
thanking Mick Cooper for his tremendous
contribution to our business Nick was
nstrumental in the formation of CWCas a
standalone entity the smooth transition of
our operational hub to Miami, and business
transformation to the Canbbean and Latin
America focused operation Nick has served
with distinction and we wish him well with
the next phase of his career

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer

12 Cable & Wireless Communications




Our market opportunities o

We began to execute

a performance
improvement plan and
deliver our strategy to
seize the opportunities
we have identified in our
industry and the
markets we serve,

1. Strong market positions

With the acquisition of Columbus we
are the leading telecommunications
provider in 10 out of 16 mobile
markets, 16 out of 18 broadband
markets, 17 out of 18 markets where
we provide fixed line services and 7
out of the 10 markets where we offer
wvideo Qur ambition is to be the leader
In every service, In every market

4, Business-to-Business (B2B)

Latin America’s B2B telecoms
market represents a sizable growth
opportunity We have opportunities
to extend our retationshrps with
existing customers as well as
Increasing our current market
penetration The acquisitions of
Columbus and Sonitel provide
greater opportunities to capture
this growth based on our expanded
scale and capabilities

2. Growing demand for data

Global demand for data products
continues to grow Data usage

— whether fixed or mobile — 1s lower
in our markets than in developed
countries but 1s forecast to rise
significantly We have a good
opportunity to increase data
penetration, usage by customers and
monetisation N the markets which
we serve through improved services,
better packages and new applications

5 Wholesale and Carrier

The new business is umiquely placed
to serve the large, growing and
increasingly complex needs of carrier
operators and large multinational
corporations requiring wholesale
access to international bandwidth
within the Caribbean and Latin
America region

3. Fixed-mobile convergence

Our ownership of mobile and fixed
networks, meshed with the
Company's backhaul and mternational
connectivity capabilities, 1s a strategic
advantage which can enable us to
provide customers with the best
network quality experience

6. Synergies and efficiencies

The acquisition of Columbus presents
the opportunity to capture synergies
artsing as a result of capital and
operational overlaps and improve
efficiency by simplifying our processes
and upgrading our systems

Annual Report 2014/15 13




Chief Executive Officer’s strategic review continued

Our six strategic imperatives in detail

1. Drive to mobile
leadership

Mobile devices are becoming ever
more important to enriching
customers’ digital experience We want
to attain leadership in this important
service in every market We will
prioritise investments in data services
and excel in the areas our customers
most value We will strive to provide
the best network performance in each
market and be transparent i our
pricing, while also delivering the latest
smartphones and an improved
customer experience in store, on the
phone and online We will encourage
data uptake by enabling our customers
to freely access Over-The-Top (OTT)
services and by supporting ‘Net
Neutrality’, meaning they will be free
to use unhindered any Internet-based
service so long asit 1s legal

Goals

Qur goal s to grow mobile revenue
by providing the best customer
experience and becoming the first
choice for data services

How we measure success

We will use the Net Promoter Score to
measure whether we are the mobile
leader as judged by our customers
Success will also be measured through
growthin mobile data penetration in
our markets and usage by custormers
on our networks

Associated nisks

« Risk from competitor actmity
« Risk of service disruption

« Technology risk

» Key suppher nsk

2. Fixed-mobile
convergence

Our customers want seamless access
to high-quality communications
services as they move between
devices and locations That can only
be achieved by delivering services
over both fixed and mobile networks
We have a strateqic advantage as our
competitors generally onty operate
either mobile or fixed networks The
acquisition of Columbus will allow us
to accelerate the shift to a single
Internet Protocol standard, improving
our services, particularly fixed hne and
broadband, and delivering our
customers the ‘always on’ services
they desire Programming viewing

at home wvia the mobile phone and
downloading video content onto
mobile devices will be enabled by the
acquisition of Columbus, as will the
replacement of older copper
networks with modern optical fibres

Goals

We want to provide the best value voice
and data propositions in our markets,
leveraging our unigue network assets
to deliver an unparalleled and seamless
experience regardless of content,
device orlocation

How we measure success

Improwving our services will encourage
customers to buy more from us
Converging our netwarks will also
reduce the cost per unit of delivering
data services to our customers

Associated risks

« Risk of service disruption
« Regulatory risk

+ Key synergies nsk

» Technology nisk

+ Key supplier risk

3. Video and
content leadership

Video content 1s at the heart of
customers’ entertanment and home
communications needs Both the
type of content — linear, non-hnear,
streamed, exclusive — and its delivery
- traditional TV, mobile/tablet, online
— are changing with consumers
viewing habits With the acquisition
of Columbus, we are now a major
video player with market leadership

in seven markets today We will invest
to expand our footprint as well as
developing the content and formats
our customers value to increase
customer relevance and loyalty We will
continue to nnovate in our set-top
boxes, encouraging more ‘video on
demand’ and cloud storage uptake

Goals

We want to lead our markets in the
delivery of the unique and compelling
content that our customers value,
whether TV/video, or apps, wherever
our customers are and in the form
they demand

How we measure success

We will measure progress inour
share of the ideo market and in
the numbers of our customers
downloading content onto therr
mobile devices

Associated risks

+ Risk from competitor activity
« Technology risk

For mere information on risk For more information on nsk For moreinformation on risk
seepages 18-21 see pages 18-21 see pages 18-21
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4. Grow B2B and
B2G business

B2B is a fast growing segment in the
telecorns world Customers are locking
to telecoms and increasingly IT products
to transform therr operations and
improve delivery to their own customers
In government, there are sigruficant
opportunities to transform delivery of
public services through technology in
areas such as health and educaton The
acquisitions of Columbus and Sonitel have
broadened both the range of solutions

we offer —~ mowving ‘up the stack’ to more
IT-based services — as well as the number
of markets we serve In B2B and B2G we
have a significantly greater footprint in
Latin Amenica markets with presencein
eight Latin America markets and two
Spanish-speaking Caribbean markets This
increased gecgraphic exposure enables
us to take advantage of the opportunities
presented in these fast-growing markets
Our strategy 1s to manage B2B and B2G as
a single business with customer-centric
solutions for target segments, offering
reliable, and cost-effective services of
both core connectivity, as well as,
increasingly, Managed Services

Goals

We want to drive growth from B2B
and B2G services by managing our
customers’ complex networks and
applications so that they can focus
on serving their customers

How we measure success

By increasing our in-house capabilities
and expertise, we will increase the
recurring revenue and upselling
opportunity from our customers We
will use the Net Promoter Score te
measure customer satisfaction

Associated risks

o Risk from competitor activity
» Risk to business development

For more tnformation on risk For more information on risk For more information on risk
see pages 18-21 see pages 18-21 see pages 18-21

5. Build a leading
wholesale network

Backhaul fibre-optic networks, both
sub-sea and terrestral, are the core
means of transferring ever larger
amounts of data traffic as customers’
usage grows Regardless of the point
of origin — mobile, broadband, B2B or
B2G usage — backhaul networks
ultimately carry all traffic to their
destinations, which are increasingly
international as the Internet breaks
down geographic barriers Our
geographically extensive network -
touching 42 countries throughout
our region — provides us with a
competitive advantage in the delivery
of data services for our consumer,
business and government customers
It also enables us to serve the needs
of the region’s large wholesale and
enterprise customers who need
access to large amounts of quality
bandwidth throughout the region

Goals

We want to create the regien’s leading
integrated wholesale networks to provide
the lowest cost and best experience to
our existing B2B and B2G markets as
well as to serve large international
wholesale and enterprise customers

How we measure success

Through integrated network and service
capabiities, we willimprove the
experence to customers as measured by
the Net Promater Score We will target
increased sales and data volume uptake
by aur customers, as well as ensuring
our geographical reach (measured by
kilometres of fibre laid), better serves
the needs of our regional customers

Associatedrisks

» Risk from competitor actvity
+ Technology rnsk

6. Make the
integrationa
success

The integration of CWC and Columbus
offers an opportunity to fundamentally
address our cost base by mpreving
our efficiency throughout the
organisation We will create a new
business representing "best-in-class’
working practices, processes,
technology and assets across all
geographies to improve business
performance We will drive further
success by creating a new culture

and values for the Company

to motivate and engage our team
members to create a high
performance team culture

Goals

We want to build a ‘new’ company,
successfully integrating CWC and
Columbus, creating a new
performance culture, delivering
synergies and a new operating model
to the benefit of the whole Group

How we measure success

We will undertake regular surveys

of our employees to understand the
success of our initiatives to create a
new culture Ultimate success will be
seen in the delivery of synergies from
the acquisition of Columbus and a
reduction in our joint operating costs

Associated risk

» Risk from business integration
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Chief Executive Officer’s strategic review continued

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

We have a series

of measurable goals —
against which we
expect to be judged

We assess and monitor our Group's
performance against a wide range

of measures and indicators Our Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs) help
our Board and Executive Team to
measure performance against our
strategic priorities and business plans

In ine with our strategic approach
from the current year 2014/15 we
have set down five key measures of
our performance

Our services

Measurement of the percentage
growth or decline of the revenue

Top line revenue
growth

Measured by
Group revenue

This reflects our ability to deliver
sustamnable long-term growth,
aming to encourage innovation and
investment to gain a greater ‘share
of wallet’ from our customers

we received from the key services

we provide.

Mobile

@ 3%

Broadband & Video

@ 2%

Fixed voice

(4%)

Managed Services & Other

@ 20%

16 Cable & Wireless Communications

Business
effectiveness

Measured by
EBITDA

A measure of how we are tmproving
our business operating effectiveness,
focusing on tight cost control

and capturing the value of our
revenue growth

Measurement of our services
as a percentage of total revenue

1. Mobile 53%

2. Fixed voice 20%

3. Managed Services 15%
4. Broadband & Video 11%
5. Wholesale Solutions 1%




How we performed in 2014/15

Customer
service

Measured by
Net Promoter Score {NPS)

We will track customer service
and advocacy through reqular NPS
surveys Impraving NPS delivery

Is & strong indicator of increasing
the ifetime value of our

customer relationships

Financial performance

Team member
engagement

Measured by
“Great Place to Work’
survey (eNPS)

We will track engagement and
motivation of our workforce, and the
ability of our leadership to inspire and
motivate our teams Engaged team
members provide a more engaged
service to our customers

Return on capital
employed
Measured by Economic Profit (net

operating profit after tax minus
a charge for capital employed)

This measure will indicate whether
we are creating value in excess of our
cost of capital and ensures that our
capital investment programme is
focused on delivering sustamnable and
profitable growth

Measurement of key financial
performance metrics and
% change against last year.

Revenue

201415 US$1,753m
2013/14 US$1,689m

US$1.8bn

4% (2% lke-for-like)

Operating expenditure

2014/15 US$710m
2013/14 US$725m

Capital expenditure

2014/15

Uss442m

US$2S1m
USS$442m

(76%)

EBITDA

2014/15 US$585m

2013714

US$546m

US$585m

7%

Non-GAAP measures are reconciled on page 93
For mere information on Group Financial Performance see pages 22 to 27

Operating cash flow

UsS$143m

52%

Adjusted earnings per share

US4.7c

Dividend

US4c 0%

114%
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Principal risks and uncertainties

We recognise that there are risks in
operating our businesses, influenced
by both internal and external factors,
some of which are outside our control.
The Group has a risk management
framework which our business units
and corporate functions utilise to
ensure risks are understood and
mitigated as appropriate.

Principal risks and
uncertainties

)

18 Cable & Wireless Communicattans

We set out a description of the principal risks
and uncertainties that could have a material
adverse effect on the Group and how they are
managed These risks have the potential to
impact our business, its reputation, cash flow,
profits and/or assets However, there may be
other risks that are currently unknown or
regarded as not material

We update the Group risk register on a rolling
12-month basis Actions to manage and
monitor risks are considered on a quarterly
basis by the Group s Executive Team

Our refresh of the Group risk register has
resulted in some changes from the risks
disclosed last year We have summarised
these changes herein

Investors should consider the changes in risk
the nisks reported and other information
provided in this Annual Report

New risks

The acquisition of Columbus and integratton
have introduced new regulatory risks, risks
around integration of team members, risks
related to integration of business activities,
and other risks around integration costs
and synergies

Risks removed

The refresh of our risk register resulted in
the removal of risks related to business
change, joint ventures and associates and
investment risk

We previously reported business risk related
to our revised operating model and transition
to the Miami operational hub to better exploit
available opportunities and realise synergies
At 31 March 2015, the transition to the
Miami operational hub was complete and the
integration between the Group and Columbus
was under way

Our risk related to joint ventures and
associates has been removed as a result

of the acquesition of Columbus Based on
conditions attached to the regulatory
approval from the Telecornmunications
Authonity of Tninidad and Tobago, we have
reclassified our 49% shareholding n TSTT to
be held for sale Additionally, the joint venture
with Columbus (a 27 5% economic interest)
has been unwound as a result of the
acquisition

Finally, we have removed our previously
reported investrment risk as we have
completed the acquisition of Columbus and
completed the disposals of Macau Monaco
& Islands sub-group

Key f Risk trend increasing ‘* Risk trend stable ‘ Risk trend decreasing




Risk and impact

Trend
Strategy impacted

Mitigation

Acquisition and integration

of Columbus
The acquisition of Columbus raises two key risks

Regulatory Risk - White completion of the acquisition
was not conditional upon obtamning regulatory approvals
n junisdictions outside of Barbados Jamaica Trinidad and
Tobago and the USA, there are a number of jurisdictions
n respect of which regulatary notifications and/or
approvals are required The relevant authorities in these
Jurisdictions may impose conditions or decline to give
approval or may seek to otherwise intervene in the
acquisition Thas might result in delays, financial penalties,
suspension or removal of the relevant operating licence
or the imposition of unfavourable conditions in respect
of these junisdictions Additionally, competitors
custorners and other third parties may seek to intervene,
potentially exacerbating any difficulties in the clearance
process It s also possible that following closing of the
acquisition, the combined group may be subject to more
Intensive regulatory scrutiny which may adversely impact
the business

Moreover, 1It1s possible that we will not realise a
maximised value from our divestiture of TSTT due to
the forced nature of the sale (which 1s a condition to
the approval from the Telecommunications Authority
of Trinidad and Tobago) We alsc risk creating a new
competitor in Trimidad and Tobago

L3

Make the integration
d success

Fixed-mobile
convergence

Grow our B2B and
B2G business

Video and content
leadership

Build leading
wholesale network

« We have worked carefully with local counsel in each
market to ensure that the applicable laws and icence
conditions are comphed with

» We have consulted with relevant local stakeholders
to address their concerns, mcluding by offering
commercially sound consurmer protection measures
where appropriate

Integration and Synergy Risk — The integration
process may be complex and difficult to complete and
will raise nisks relating to colleague retention integrating
employee groups, and disruption or fatlures of networks
and services, among others Addrtionally, integration may
take longer than 1s expected, difficulties relating to
integration may arise or we may not achieve anticipated
cost reductions and efficiencies which may affect the
profitability of the combined busmess

» We have established an Integration Management
Office (IMO) and appointed a Cable & Wireless
Executive Team member to lead the integration
project

« The MO is overseen by an Integration Steering
Committee and Governing Board

« Under the oversight of the IMO we have created
several integration teams including Organisation &
Operating Model Human Resources, Procurement
and Supply Chain Network Qperations and
Technology Customer Support and Finance Each of
the integration teams are led by senior management,
who are responsible for ensuring the achievement
of predefined objectives

« We have implemented retention plans to ensure
continuity of key team members

+ We have ongoing programmes of communications
and events to keep team members abreast of our
Integration plans
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Risk and impact

Service disruption

Our networks form part of a country’s cntical national
infrastructure, and therefore we are relied upen on

a daily basis to deliver a bugh quality, resihent service
Disruption to our network and IT systems from events
such as hurricanes and other natural disasters, fire,
security breaches or human error could damage our
reputation and also result in a loss of customers or
financial claims

Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Trend
Strategy impacted

¥

Drive to maobile
leadership

Fixed-mobile
convergence

Mitigation

We have increased our capital investment under
Project Marlin, our three-year plan to invest in our
networks and improve the reliabiity and resihence
of our networks

We completed our acquisition of Columbus, which
has accelerated the execution of our strategy and
wilt support our ability to deliver greater network
restlience and capacity to improve the overall
customer experience

All our businesses have business continurty policies
and major iIncident managerment plans in place which
we continue to review to ensure that they remam up
to date

We also have insurance coverage where
commercially suitable to do so in order to mitigate
the effects of these rnisks

Competitive activity

We continue to operate in a fiercely competitive
environment Competitor activity and new market
entrants could through a combination of aggressive
pricing and promotional actwity, reduce our market share
and margins Our mobile monopoely In The Bahamas has
expired as such some loss of market share and increased
price pressure is inevitable The strength of our ability

to provide triple and quad play offerings are being
challenged by our competitors’ attempts to expand their
capability inour markets Failure by the cormbined Group
to compete effectively could have a significant adverse
effect on revenues, profitability and cash flow

-

Drive to mobile
leadership

Grow our B2B and
B2G business

Video and content
leadership

Build leading
wholesale network

We are increasing our capltal Investment to improve
customer experience

Qur commergial capability 1s being strengthened
through our Miami operational hub

We have been preparing for the hberalisation of the
Bahamian mobile market since we acquired BTC to
ensure we are well placed to compete

We engineer our customer propositions based on
our strengths retative to competitors — in particular
our ability to deliver triple and quad play in many
markets

Regulatory risk

We need to comply with alarge range of regulations and
licence terms which govern our operations across the
multiple legal jurisdictions in which we operate In
particular we are rehant on Governments and Regulators
for access, on mutually beneficial terms, to spectrum
both for existing and for next generation mobile services
We are also impacted by key regulatory decrsions relating
to priaing such as the determination of termination rates
Failure to comply with regulations or adverse regulatory
decisions could impact the value of our Investments
result in fines or restrict the ability to operate or provide
new services to our customers

1

Fixed-mobile
convergence

Grow our B2B and
B2G business

Build leading
wholesale network

We actively laise with regulators to encourage
a posttive working relationship based upon open
dialogue

We continuously monitor developments inthe
regulatory environment for all our businesses

Regular reports are made to the Executive Team
on regulatory risks

We employ local team members who are
experienced inlocal laws and regulations

In connection with securing regulatory approval for
the acquisition of Columbus we agreed to dispase
our 49% stake n TSTT

Business development

The devetopment of mobife data pay TV and our B2B/
B2G capabilities together with other sources of revenue
growth fail to perform as anticipated This could result in
the Group falling to mobilise into new busmess knes in
sufficient time to offset the structural dechine in
traditional voice revenues experienced across the
telecoms industry Faillure to achieve profitable revenue
growth will lead to a reduction in future profitability and
cash flow

\ 4

Grow our B2B and
B2G business

Video and content
teadershrp

Our commercial capability 1s being strengthened
through cur Miarmi operational hub and the
acqusition of Columbus provides us with new
opportunities to develop nnovative products that
appeal to our combined customer base

« We ensure focused attention on marketing and

product development activities and are increasing
our work to cross share initiatives

We focus closely on the pricing of new services to
ensure the Group achieves the required return

Economic conditions

The challenging economic environment in some of aur
major terrtores and the importance of overseas tounsm
to the economies of some countries could continue to
suppress government and consumer spending impacting
our profitability and cash flow

¥

We continue to monitor key economic indicators
(which have improved over the past year) and remain
prepared to take action to address any indicators of
deteriorating economuc conditions in our markets

We continuously seek to improve efficiency and
reduce costs in order to best meet customer price
expectations
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Risk and impact

Political risk

A change in the pohtical environment could lead to
changes in law, government policy or attitudes towards
foreign investment This could have an adverse impact
on our business operations, Investment decisions

and profitability

Trend
Strategy impacted

o

Mitigation

We have a unique position In key markets such as
Panama and The Baharmas in that local Governments
are significant investors in our businesses

We monitor political developments in both existing
and potential markets closely

We actively haise with governments and opposition
parties to encourage a positive working relationship
with open communication at senior levels

We aim to contnbute positively to the social and
economic development of the communities where
we gperate

Network and data security

We carry and store large volumes of confidential perscnal
and corporate data Unauthorised access to sensitive
data by third parties or employees could have an adverse
effect on the Group s business, its reputation and expose
the business to litigation

o

The Group has information security procedures
and controls in place which are regularly reviewed

» Remedsal action plans are implemented where

necessary

We conduct third party data security reviews as
required

Technology

New technology developments may render our existing
products, services and supporting infrastructure
obsolete or non-competitive As a result this may require
the Group to increase its rate and level of investment in
new technologies which affect cash flow and prafit
Concerns are occasionally expressed that mobile phones
and transmitters may pose iong-term health nsks which,
if proven, may result in the Group being exposed to
hitigation

-

Drive to mobile
leadership

Fixed-mobite
convergence

Video and content
leadership

New technology developments are under constant
review and new technologies are introduced when
appropnate

We continue to keep abreast of the latest research
on the potential health risks of mobite phones and
transmitters

Key supplier risk

The Group i1s reliant on a refatively small number of key
suppliers A number of key operational functions are
outsourced to third parties There s a sk that such
contracts fall to deliver the required operational
mprovements and/er financial savings exposing us to
financial or reputational sk Business continuity could be
impacted in the event that one of our key suppliers fal

©

Drive to mobile
leadership

Fixed-mobile
convergence

Video and content
leadership

We conduct due diligence procedures on suppliers
to ensure they meet our requirements

We have comprehensive contracts in place with
suppliers to define the services supplied and the
standards expected

Governance processes are In place to review the
performance of our suppliers

Health and safety

The Group operates equipment across many
geographically dispersed network and cell sites in the
countries in which we operate We are currently
rationalising and decommussioning certain of our sites
and equipment as part of our network upgrades and
ntegration projects Due to the age of the sites and
equipment there s aninherent risk in this project that
may cause harm to our employees, contractors and
members of the public

In the absence of proper operational and access
safeguards this equipment could cause harm or even
death to our employees contractors and members of
the public We could also suffer consequential cniminal
prosecutions fines and reputaticnal damage

L

Periodic reporting to the Executive Team and the
Board on health and safety standards across the
Group and any incidents experienced

Incident reports performed for sigmficant health and
safety events

Increased focus on managing health and safety risks,
particularly in the Canbbean

Investment to upgrade our network in the
Caribbean, retire legacy equspment and rationalise
property locations

Maintenance of insurance cover for employer’s
hability
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Group financial performance review
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“l am pleased with the Group’s
financial performance in what has
been a transformational year for CWC.
We have achieved growth in both revenue
and profitability as we begin to see the
benefits of accelerated investments
made through Project Marlin.”

R Perley McBride, Chief Financial Officer

Group revenue in the 2014/15 financial year
grew by US$64 million or 4% (US$39 million
or 2% excluding Sonitel and adjusting for
currency movements) This represents the
Group's best revenue growthn five years
We saw growth across our Mobile B2B/B2G
and video hines of business as well as some
encouraging stgns for our Fixed Voice business
as we refreshed tariffs and intreduced
nnovative products to make the category
more relevant for our customers Broadband
performance was disappointing with 1%
growth but we are cptimistic that the
acquisition of Columbus will address the
challenges we face, in particular in terms

of faster network speeds

Moblle network mprovements through
Project Marlin investments in HSPA+ and LTE
have contributed to mobile data growth of
US$48 milien Traffic on our mobile networks
grew 39% n the year and across our Group
and 44% of our customers now have a
srartphone With the launch of a number

of value added services we also beganto
broaden our mobile data offering beyond pure
connectity and we added some 560,000
new data plans (1 6 milion in total)

We continue to exercise cost discipline in

all areas of the business and the initiative to
Cost out programme to reduce our run-rate
operating costs by US$100 million by the end
of 2014/15 was achieved with ¢ 800 team
members exiting the business over the two
years in additien to our exiting non-core
property assets, and investing to reduce
power consumption As we Integrate our
business with Columbus we will look to drive
further process efficiencies

In the second half, we generated EBITDA of
US$308 million which was up 11% on first half
and 10% on the second half of the prior year
{proftabiity is typically weighted towards the

CUSTOMER TESTIMONIAL ®

B2B customer - Jamaica

“We keep connected with our customers
while travelling We can make and receive
calls from anywhere 1 the world using
a laptop, computer, tablet or smartphone
Our Softphone calls are billed at the
local rate so our roaming charges are
greatly reduced *

Fitzroy Themas, Keisha Ryman and Dwight
Chang, Red River Ltd

Read more about our strateqy on pages 7-9

second half) This performance represents
growing momenturm across our business
which we aim te continue

Panama

Our Panama business mamtained its mobile
market share of greater than 50% and
delivered a 4% nise i revenue driven by
mobile data and subscriber growth
outstnpping lower ARPU EBITDA was up
1% on a reported basts, but dechned by 1%
adjusting for the acquisition of Sonitel as
operating costs increased by 5% due to huigher
marketing spend as we launched improved
broadband services and a revamped video
offering while there was alsc an increase in
the minimum wage of up to 15%




Highlights

Group revenue
Group revenue of US$1 8 billion
up 4% reflecting strategic progress

Group EBITDA
Group EBITDA of US$585 million
up 7%, EBITDA margin increased
by 1ppt to 33%

Acquisition of Columbus International inc
The acquisition of Columbus was completed
on 31 March 2015 Below we present a

Cost reduction
US$100 million cost reduction
plan completed, ¢ 800 FTE
reductions over two years

Project Marlin

US$442 million Project Marhin
capex investments have improved
network performance

Acquisition of Columbus
Acquisition of Columbus completed
on 31 March 2015, integration
under way

summary income statement of the combined
Group for the year ended 31 March 2015

Consehdated

cwC Combaned CWC  Proportipnate

ussm (consolidated) Columbus? Group (proportionate) Combined Group
Revenue 1,753 598 2,351 1,194 1792
EBITDA? 585 255 840 373 628
Capex (442) {191} (633) N/A N/A

1 EBITDA s defined as earmings before interest tax depreciation and amortisation net other operatingand

non-aperating income and expense

2 Columbus summary income statement amounts are derived from the 31 December 2014 audited consolidated

financial statements

Caribbean

In the Canibbean, our Jamaica business
continued to attract new mobile subscribers
{up to 107,000 or 15%) and gain market
share, leading to 19% revenue growth

(30% at constant currency) Our investments
in networks and our Upgrade Caribbean’
programme led to a 10% increase in LIME
mobile revenue with HSPA+ speeds now
provided across the region, albeit with
challenges in broadband, due to delays in
fibrerollout Total reported revenue grew
3% year over year

The Bahamas

In The Bahamas, revenue performance
declined 2% as we prepared BTC for the
advent of mobite competition by reducing
prices and updating roaming agreements
whilst also being impacted by the introduction
of VAT We continue to anticipate that a new
mobile operator will enter the Baharmian
market before the end of this calendar

year which will further adversely impact
performance in 2015/16 Our agreement to
transfer 2% of our shares in BTC to the newly

formed charitable BTC Foundation during
the year, cemented our partnership with the
Government of The Bahamas and will ensure
investment in good causes for the benefit

of The Bahamian people

Seychelles

Following a strategic review and discussions
with the Government, the Seychelles business
has returned to continuing operations as we
have no plans to divest the asset in the near
term We therefore no longer consider the
business to be held for sale

Strategy

While our vision remains the same — we seek
to deliver long-term and sustanable growth
for sharehclders through growing the hfetime
value of our customer refationships — with the
acquisition of Columbus we have refined our
strategy to reflect our enhanced market
positions and capabilities Our strategy 1s
expected to deliver in the three years to

31 March 2018

Earnings per share
Significant growth in adjusted
earnings per share to US4 7 cents
driven by US$55 million lower
(interest cost

Final dividend
Recommended final dwvidend
per share of US2 67 cents,

full year dvidend per share of
US4 cents (2013/14 US4 cents)

CUSTOMER TESTIMONIAL .

B2B customer - Jamaica

“In our business we can't miss a beat Qur
fibre-based solution delivers exceptional
performance and rehability for mission-
critrcal apphications This service enables
us to explost the full potential of global data
transferin real time ”

Ian McNaughton, Barnta Investments Ltd

Read mare about our strategy on pages 7-9
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Group financial performance review continued

R. Perley McBride
Chief Financial
Officer continued

Qo
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Annual mid to high single digit revenue
growth and sigmificant EBITDA growth,

Run-rate operating cost synergies of

US$85 million and total capex synergies

of Us$145 million,

2015/16, and

Following completion of Project Marlin,
capital intensity 1s expected to fall to

¢ 14% of revenue in the year ending
31 March 2018

Qutlook

Overall economic growth prospects inour
markets remain generally positive with some

variability on a country-by-country basis

Latin America countries such as Panama and
Colombia have relatively robust forecast GDP
growth rates of 6% and 4% respectively while

in our Caribbean markets there are lower
growth rates as the region continues to

expernence a more modest pace of recovery
following the previous economic downturn

Although we face increasingly competitive
conditions within some markets, for example
with the introduction of mobile competition
in The Bahamas later this year, we expect to
continue making good progress Ingrowing

our revenue and reducing ouwr cperating

cost base In addition, we expect to benefit

from revenue, operating cost and capital
expenditure synergies following our
acquisition of Columbus With increasing

traffic over our networks, improved service

rehability, positive NPS momenturm and a

more diversified set of products and services
to offer our customers, the decisions we have
made to Invest in our Infrastructure and our

people position us well to capitalise on
posttive growth trends tn our industry

EPS accretion from 2016/17, dilutive in

CUSTOMER TESTIMONIAL .

B2B customers - Jamaica

“With the many services we offer to our
customers, we wanted a reliable and
affordable solution for our calhing needs
Keepingintouch via LIME's Closed User
Group s d cost eflective way of
communicating by mobile, sowith LIME
there’s one less thing to worry about ”

Ruta Hhilton, Canta Jamaica Ltd

@ Read more about our strategy on pages 7-9




Group financial performance summary

Analysis of Group results

Restated"
Full year Full year
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2015 2014 %
UsSSm Ussm change
Revenue 1,753 1,689 4?
Gross margin 1,295 1,271 2
Operating costs (710) (725) 2
EBITDA' 585 546 7
Depreciation and amortisation (256) (235) 9
Net other operating {(expense)/income (20) {(15) (33)
Joint ventures and associates 12 5 nm
Total operating profit before exceptional items 321 301 7
Exceptional expense (231) (241} 4
Total operating profit 920 60 50
Finance ncome 26 6 rm
Finance expense (84) (139) 40
Exceptional finance expense (37) (25) (48)
Gain on sale of businesses 4 - nm
Loss before tax (4)) (98) nm
income tax {32) (32) nm
Net loss from continuing operations (33) (130 nm
Net profit before exceptional items 202 117 73
Net profit from discontinued operations 8 76 (89)
Gan on disposal of discontinued operations 346 1,005 (66)
Profit for the year 321 951 (66)
Net profit attributable to
Owners of the Parent Company 253 859 (71)
Non-controlling interests 68 92 (26)
EPS (38)c (84)c 55
Adjusted EPS* 47c 22¢ nm
EBITDA' 585 546 7
Cash capital expenditure (442) (251 (76)
Operating cash flow? 143 295 (52)
Customers {(000s)*
Mobile 3,820 3,550 8
Fixed 1,061 1,073 (1)
Broadband 653 379 72
TV 438 66 nim
Total customers 5,972 5,068 18

* The results have been restaled for the classification of Monace In discontinued operations and for Seychelles within conuinuing operations
1 EBITDA s defined as earnings before interest Lax deprecalion and amoruisation net other aoperating and non-operating income/expense and exceptionalitems A reconciation

of (his non-GAAP measure Lo Lotal operating prefitis provided on page 93

Like-for-lke revenue excluding the impact of Sonitel and currency movements up 2%

Operating cash flow 1s defined as EBITDA less cash capital expenditure

Adjusted EPS 1s before exceptional items gains/{losses) on disposals amor tisation of acquired intangibles foreign exchange gams/{losses) on financing activities and transaction
costs Areconciliation of this non- GAAP measure 1o ordwary EPS 1s provided on page 93

5 Year ended 31 March 2015 customer numbers include Columbus customers but nat the associated Columbus annual results

STV N

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure in the year was US$442 million, 76% higher than fast year, representing 25% of revenue as we accelerate nvestment

following commencement of Project Marlin

Mobile investments, 41% of the total balance sheet capital expenditure, accounted for the majority of expenditure as we continue to upgrade
our netwark in all regions The next largest investment areas was n fixed networks, 29% of the total where fibre upgrades, 2,300km roll out
and ¢ 114 000 additional homes passed provided our customers with a leading high-speed broadband experience We also made capital

investments to Increase our range of Managed Services solutions, launching with our Disaster Recovery as a service product recently

recognised In the Gartner Magic Quadrant and being recognised by Avaya as ther Central America and the Canbbean Mid-Market Partner

of the Year

Annual Report 2014/15
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Group financial performance summary continued

Group cash flow ~ based on our management accounts

Restated*
Full year Full year
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
LiSSm ussm
EBITDA' 585 546
Cash capital expenditure {442) (251}
Operating cash flow before exceptional items 143 295
Movement in working capital and other provisions (14) 5
Net investment income? 4 10
Underlying free cash flow 133 310
fixed charges
Income taxes paid (52) (54)
Interest paid (82) {(122)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (86) (72)
Underlying equity free cash flow (87) 62
Dividends paid to shareholders (104) (100)
Net cash flow before one-off items and exceptional items (191) (38)
Penstons, non-recurring iterms and exceptionals
Cash exceptionals (58) (1303)
Pension payment (52) -
Proceeds on Issue of shares 176 -
Acquisitions and disposals (431) 1,297
Premium for US$500 million secured bond redeemed February 2014 - (19)
Panama and Jamaica concession renewals and spectrum purchases {14) (114)
Cash flow from discontinued operations? - 55
Net cash flow after one-off items and exceptional items (570) 1,051
Net cash within assets dispesed 41 (165)
Net proceeds/(repayments) from borrowings 724 (976)
Net cash flow 195 (90)

* The resufts have been restated for the classification of Monaco in discontinued operations and for Seychelles within continuing operations

1 Earnings before interest tax depreciation and amortisation net other operating and non-operating income/(expense} and exceptional tems

2 Includes dividends received from joint ventures of US$mil in 2014/15 (US$4 milionn 2013/14)

3 Monaco Telecom dividend paid ta minonty mterest of US$30million in 2013/14 has been reallocated to dividends paid to non-controlling interests but for IFRS purposes
15 ncluded in acquisitions and disposals

4 The Group cash flow 1s derived from management accounts and presentation and classification of items differs from the statement of cash flows on page 98

Cash flow

The Group generated operating cash flow before exceptional items of US$143 miflion for the year ended 31 March 2015, 52% lower than the
prior year as capital expenditure accelerated under Project Marlin There was a US$14 milion working capital cutfiow during the year with
improvement In Panama Government receivables during the second half Net investment incomne primarily comprised of interest oncash
balances with US$nil dvidends received from our TSTT equity investment (US$2 million in 2013/14)

Fixed charges

We paid US$52 million relating to income tax In the year, US$2 million lower than the prior year primarily due to changes in the taxation rate in
Panamma and lower tax payments in LIME Interest paid on our external borrowings at US$82 million was US$40 mithon lower than the prior year
driven by the redemptton of the US$500 million 8 625% secured bonds due 2017 in February 2014 We paid dividends to non-controlling
interests of US$86 milion in the period, which was US$14 million higher than the prior year due to tinung of dividends from Panama

Underlying equity free cash flow of US$(B7) million was U5$149 million lower than the prior year

Non-recurring items and exceptionals

The net cash outflow included US$58 million for exceptional items related to restructuring programmes primanly in LIME and the Centre as we
estabhshed our Miami operational hub Acquisitions and disposals for the peniod include the US$708 million cash consideration and fees refated
1o the acquisition of Columbus, and a payment of US$39 million for the acquisition of Grupo Sonitel, offset by proceeds of US$445 million for
the sale of Monaco Telecomn less cash deconsohdated upon the disposal and US$16 5 million from the sale of our minonty shareholding in
Solomon Telekom We also made a US$14 million payment related to our icence extension and additional spectrum agreement in Jamaica

26 Cable & Wireless Communications




Pensions
We made a U$$52 million cash contribution to the Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund in the period and do not anticipate any further top-up
paymeats until H1 2015/16 per the existing agreement wath the Trustees of the fund

For further information on our defined benefit pension scheme including the outcome of our actuarial funding valuation please see note 3 10

Equity Issuance

On 6 November 2014, the Company issued an additional 252,812,284 new shares (9 99% of the 1ssued share capital excluding treasury shares
immedrately prior to the issuance) The net proceeds of US$176 millon were used to finance part of the cash consideration for the acquisition
of Columbus

Debt

As part of the acquisition of Columbus, we raised financing comprised of US$390 millon secured and US$300 mdhon unsecured term loans
maturing on 31 March 2017 Additionally we replaced our US$487 million revolving credit faclity with a new US$570 million revolving credit
faciity (RCF) that matures in five years from the acquisiticn of Columbus closing date

Consolidated net debt as at 31 March 2015 was U5$2 366 rmillion with proporttonate net debt of US$2,263 milhon representing 3 6x
proportionate EBITDA, combined with the Columbus business for the year ended 31 March 2015 Our target leverage for the Group s 2 5x to
3 Ox proportionate net debt to proportionate EBITDA

Faollowing the acquisitsion of Columbus, the debt profile of the Group has changed sigmificantly due to the new financing of US$69C milien and
assumed existing Colurnbus debt of US$1,250 milllon Management are focused on ensuring the Group maintains appropriate compliance with
covenants included within the relevant financing agreements, reviewing key ratios relating to leverage and gearing and monitoring operational
cash flows

Transactions

Disposal of Monaco Telecom

On 20 May 2014, the Company completed the disposal of Compagnie Monegasque de Communication SAM (CMC), which was the holding
company for the Company’s 55% stake in Monaco Telecom S A M (Monaco Telecom) At compietion, the Company received consideration of
€321,788,000 (US$445 million) on a cash and debt free basis In addition, the Company received €6 2 million (US$8 6 million} relating to the
estimated cash debt and working capital at completion

Reduction in holding of The Bahamas Telecommunications Company

On 24 July 2014, the Company completed the transfer of 2% of its 51% holding in BTC to The BTC Foundation, a charitable trust dedicated to
investing in projects for the benefit of Bahamians The 2% shareholding 1s not entitled to any voting rights and therefore the Company has
retained majority voting rights in BTC as well as remaining the fargest overall shareholder The Company will maintain management and Board
control of the business

Acquisition of Grupo Sonitel

On 12 September 2014, Cable & Wireless Panama completed the acquisition of Grupo Sonitel for US$36 million plus contingent consideration
of up to an additional US$5 million Grupo Scnitel operates SSA Sistemas, a provider of end-to-end managed IT solutions and telecoms services
to business and government customers in Panama, as well as in El Salvadar, Nicaragua and Peru, and Sonset, a provider of IT solutions and
services to Small and Medium Enterpnse (SME) customers in Panama Logistica, an IT hardware reseller and a small number of other non-core
Grupo Somitel companies were not included as part of the transaction

Disposal of Solomon Telekom
On 24 October 2014, the Company completed the divesture of its 32 577% shareholding in Solomon Telekom Company Limited (Soltel) to the
Solomen Islands National Provident Fund Board for total cash proceeds of approximately US$16 5 milion

Acquisition of Columbus International inc

On 31 March 2015, the Company completed the purchase of 100% of the equity of Columbus International Inc , a leading privately-owned
fibre-based telecommunications and technology services provider operating i the Caribbean, Central America and the Andean regicn,

for a consideration comprising US$708 million in cash and 1 558 mithon CWC shares
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Performance review LIME

LIME
Operational review
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“LIME has seen a significant turnaround

in the past year, with growing revenues
and lower operating costs. This is the
result of major investments, process
efficiency, improved network
performance and new innovative
products. We have executed the
turnaround plan articulated last

year which has improved customer
experience and strengthened LIME’s

market position.”

Martin Roos, CEQ, LIME Caribbean

Last year we started work on a turnaround
plan for LIME This year saw the plan start to
deliver Revenue growth returned and EBITDA
margin moved from 25% to 34% The
improvement was driven by significant
network improvements, stronger customer
experience afresh new approach to
marketing and cost reduction initiatives

LIME made sigmficant investments in mobile
and fixed networks In mobile, LIME launched
HSPA+ in seven of our 13 markets and
completed HSPA+ capacity upgrades in all
islands We also successfully launched LIME's
second LTE network in Antigua and Barbuda
For our fixed networks, we accelerated our
transition to fibre Island-wide fibre and VDSL
deployments were completed in Barbados
and Cayman, enabling 100MB speeds and an
improved IPTV experience Extensive fibre
upgrades were delivered in Turks and Caicos,
The British Virgin Islands and Anguilla giving
customers a six-fold increase In speed

The new networks, combined with other
operations and maintenance improvements,
resulted in a ¢ 5% reduction in network
downtime due to major faults

Qur mabile networks in all 13 LIME markets
upgraded to delver HSPA+ service

Based on the investments and improved
customer experience, we launched a region
wide marketing campaign under the theme
‘Upgrade Carbbean’ This included a complete
upgrade of the visualidentity bringing
consistency throughout the islands We also
launched a new website, new store, look and
feel, new livery and new high-quality imagery,
all managed through a new highly advanced
digrtal asset management system

The campaign resulted in LIME receiving an
unprecedented 16 ADDY awards at the
annual industry awards run by the American
Advertising Federation We also increased our
social media engagement and achieved top
rankmngs in customer engagement surveys

CUSTOMER TESTIMONIAL o

B2B customer

“Global Cannect has improved our critical
application’s performances as well as our
abilily to monitor our WAN infrastructure

Qur outage ime hasbeen minimal and
service performance s excellent Rubts has
been using the selutron for overthreeyears
and 1ithasreduced support tme1n terms of
man hours required to resolve 1ssues which
resultin reduced support cost for our
company”

Mark A (Peter) Bentham, Information
Technology Manager at Rubus Eastern
Caribbean SRL

@ Read more about our strategy on pages 7-9




LIME
Financial review

40% growth in EBITDA

11% growth in mobile subscribers

Year Year
ended ended
31 Mar 31 Mar %
2015 2014 change
Subscribers (000s)
Mobile’ 1,328 1,198 11%
Broadband 224 218 3%
v 27 24 14%
Fixed 578 580 0%
ARPU (US$)?
Mobile 195 207 -6%
Broadband 357 374 -5%
TV 239 247 -3%
Fixed 284 296 -4%
Revenue (US$m) 709 691 3%
LFL revenue 709 677 5%
EBITDA {(US$) 238 170 40%
Proportionate
EBITDA 211 150 1%
Margin % 34%  25%  Yppt

1 Active subscribers are defined as those having

performed a revenue-generating actaity inthe
previous 60 days Historic subscriber numbers have
beenrestated ta exclude subscribers with credit
balances but no activity in the proceeding 60 days

N

excluding equipment sales

ARPU Is the average revenue per user ina month

We started a more systematic method by
measuring customer sentiment this year,
introducing Net Promotor Score (NPS)
measurements, to track the kkelihood of
customers recommending LIME The NPS
results over the year showed improvement
across all markets except Dominica, Grenada
and St Vincent and the Grenadines, either
closing the gap, or surpassing our
competitors’ results Jamaica showed
exceptionally strong NPS scores, evidence of
the positive change in our market position and
our Jamaican turnaround

Improved network perfarmance and customer
experience won us 130 000 more mobile customers

with improved network performance and
customer experience we won an extra
130,000 mobile customers during the year
by focusing on driving affordable, high-value
smartphone sales, alongside new data plans
talored to customers’ needs HSPA+
smartphones now represent 73% of handset
sales and smartphone penetration among our
customers has almost doubled Tofurther
drive data growth we launched a self-service
application that s also a sates channe! for
mobile data and roaming plans These
initiatives have substantially mcreased our
mobile data revenue and underpinned a data

average revenue per user (ARPU) increase of
16% We slowed down the decline in fixed
telephony revenue by introducing new value
propositions for international and local traffic
Customers are retaining their fixed ling, the
dechne of our fixed custorner base was flat
year over year

Qur strategic focus on business and
enterprise segments began to show results
We protected our market position, winning
back customers and securing significant new
contracts The year also saw areturn to
corporate acquisitions after a four-year break,
with the acquisition of a wireless broadband
operator in Jamaica and a mobile operator in
Turks and Caicos Islands

CWC's proportionate ownership of LIME
EBITDA 1s 89% for the year ended
31 March 2615

CUSTOMER TESTIMONIALS .

MyLIME Self Service App

“Great app? This app has madeateasy for
me to keep track of everything and buy
plans lam loving 1t Way to go LIME!” -
Shadina Williams, LIME Customer on
GooglePlay reviews

“As soon as 1 opened the app Iloved that it
showed my balance and thatI can top up
through the app It also works fast
Awesome " - Jey Blessed, LIME Customer
on Google Play reviews

“Greatapp Lovethe app Userinterfaceis
simple and shows me exactly whai I need
to see Also much easier to top up and
actwvate data plans ” - Jason Cayenne,
LIME Customer on Google Play reviews

Read more about our strategy on pages 7-9
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30 Cable & Wireless Commurucations

“We increased our focus on the B2B
segment with the acquisition of Sonitel,
one of the leading IT integration companies
which perfectly complements our Telco
solutions and provides a new portfolio
of opportunities in that very important
segment of the market.”

Agustin de la Guardia, CEQ, Panama

Qur Cable and Wireless Panama business
{CWP) had another solid year of revenue
growth, as demand for our mobile data
services grew rapidly and we made good
progress with our broadband and TV services
We increased our focus on the B2B segment
with the acquisition of Sonitel, one of the
leading IT integration companies which
perfectly complernents our Telco solutions
and provides a new portfolio of opportunities
in that very important segment of the
market Additionally, Sonitel has operations

in Peru, El Salvador and Nicaragua, expanding
our geographical footprint in the Latin
America region

In order to maintain our leadership position In
the mobile market and the pace of iInnovation,
we recently launched our LTE mobile network
- the first for Panama This cutting edge
technology will mprove data experience for
all our customers

We also introduced the innovative Prepaid
Satellite TV which has been generating very
good results allowing CWP national reach and
flexibiity without the need to build a network

CWPanama launched MowlCash' a mobile money
service

In May 2014, we launched a mobile
money service, ‘MowlCash’, and we have
also complemented this wath strategic
partnerships with the Metro systems
nationwide, allowing them the facility to
accept payments using this service

We also continued our strong support of
community projects including our tenth
annual National Oratory Contest, a public
speaking competition targeting thousands
of high school students

We were recogrised by the ‘Great Place To
Work’ Institute for maintaining a high levet of
engagement among our team members and
for having a dynamic and productive culture

CUSTOMERTESTIMONIAL .

“We were looking for a rehiable
communicattons provider capable of
helping us to sausfy our operating and
customers’ needs Cable & Wireless
Panama’s reputation, along with their
comprehensive proposal, gave usthe
sophisticated product effering which met
our expectauens After consuilation with
our executive and technical teams, there
was no doubt that we were making the
nght decision We are confident that
our guests will have access to the best
communications network and technology
whilestayingwithus "

Kathya Vega, Corporate General Manager
of VC Hotels Group, owner of the new
RamadaPanama Centro, Panama City

Read more about our strategy on pages 7-9




Panama
Financial review

30% growth in TV subscribers

10% growth in revenue

Year Year
ended ended
31 Mar 31 Mar %
2015 2014 change
Subscribers (000s)
Mobile' 2,087 1961 6%
Broadband 132 LY 1%
TV 56 43 30%
Fixed 366 372 -1%
ARPU (US$)
Mcobile 139 147 -5%
Broadband 292 288 2%
TV 337 336 0%
Fixed 241 252 ~4%
Revenue (US$m) 636 576 10%
LFL revenue 592 576 3%
EBITDA (US$m) 241 239 1%
Proportionate
EBITDA 118 117 1%
Morgin % 38% 41% -3ppt

1 Active subscribers are defined as those having

performed a revenue-generating activity inthe

previous 60 days (FY 201472015 restated)

2 ARPUs for 2014 restated for reclassified business
revenue for Managed Services to broadband and

fixedline

Revenue at US$636 million was US$60 million
higher than the prior year, with US$44 milhon
of this growth in the Managed Services
segment due to the acquisitton of Sonitel in
September 2014

Mobile revenue at US$351 million was up
4% against prior year with subscribers up

by 126,000 dniven by prepaid activations,
including data plans as we launched new
products such as day passes and cap
boosters Data revenue was up 25% agamst
the prior year, more than offsetting an 8%
decline In voice revenue Data penetration
of our customer base increased by 13
percentage points in the year to 52% as a
greater vanety of data plans stimulated both
prepad and postpaid usage Mobile ARPU
was lower than prior year, due to lower rates
as a result of competitive pressures, lower
roarming trafic and voice substitution

Broadband revenue grew U5%2 mullion against
the prior year, as subscribers were up 1% and
ARPU higher at US$29 2 TV revenue was
US$3 million, 16% better than prior year,
primarnly due to a 30% increase In subscribers
During the year, we also launched a prepaid,
Direct To Home (DTH) TV product, which
enabled us to access customers in more
remote areas of the country

Fixed voice revenue of US$106 million was
6% below the prior year as competitive
pressure led to a reduction in national traffic
as substitution to mobile continued Cur trple
play offering reduced the impact of this
substitution with 82% of our customers
taking mare than one fixed service from us

Managed Services and other revenue
grew 5% excluding the impact of Sonitel
As1s common in the first year of a new
government there were delays in the
awarding of contracts but we expect this
to change during the next fiscal year

Gross margin at US$413 millicn was up 5%
on the prior year and 65% as a percentage
of revenue

Operating costs were up 11% aganst the
prior year This was primarily due to the
inclusion of Sonitel s cost base, increased
advertising spend as we launched improved
broadband services and revamped our TV
offering, executed brand unification within our
consumer businesses, iIncreased marketing
spend and increased the minimum wage of up
to 15%, due to restructuring costs However,
we (mplemented programmes focused on
increasing productivity which partially offset
these factors

The resulting EBITDA of US$241 million was
1% better than the prior year on a reported

basis with a margin of 38% as a percentage

of revenue

CWC's proportionate owinership of Panama
EBITDA for the year ended 31 March 2015
was 49%
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“This year we delivered a total of

107 new LTE sites to increase mobile
coverage throughout the islands and
offer better speeds to help grow
mobile data penetration.”

Leon Williams, CEQ, BTC Bahamas

Preparation for mobile competition
adversely impacted our revenue and EBITDA
performance Revenue was down 2%
year-over-year while EBITDA declined by 5%
driven mamnly by decrease in prepard cellular
revenue as the business introduced a more
competitive pricing strategy which impacted
Average Revenue Per User (ARPU) However
the prepaid cellular revenue decrease was
offset, in part, by increases in fixed voice

Fixed line revenue was up by 9% year-over-
year despite the international downward
trend The introduction of Home Phone Plus,
an improved value proposttion for fixed ine
customers, offered local calling to the Family
Islands with package bundles that provided
the lowest rates for international calls to the
United States and Canada Supported by
awinning retention strategy, we had minimal
churn and matntained market share of 81%
amidst fierce competition

Broadband performance was flat year-over-
year Our direct marketing approach and
anew value propositicn assisted in growing
the subscriber base by 12% Continued
improvement in this area will be a key focus
for the business in the new fiscal year and
we will continue to invest in upgrading our
network to faciitate faster data speeds

Under our successful ‘Upgrade Bahamas'
programme we have invested U$$29 million
N LTE Qur 107 new LTE sites have resulted in
increased data penetration and improved
customer satsfaction The ‘Upgrade Bahamas
programme also included the revitalisation of
the BTC brand general improvements to our
network greater emphasis on customer
service the rebranding of our retail stores,
vehicles and offices We have also added

22 new franchise retall stores to meet our
growing customer needs, underpinning our

strategy of placing our customers at the heart

of what we do, and expanding our retail
footprint to 59 service locations

BTC s also preparing a quad play offering with
the introduction of TV to drive new revenue
streams We began beta testing in Birmini last
Cecember and i Long Island, Cat tsland,
Inagua and Andros in February and March
2015 respectively We had positive consumer
response from all the islands IPTV will be
akey productin BTC's future customer
retention and growth strategies

Additionally, we continue to Innovate with
the launch of the ‘MyBTC’ application and
other self-service products such as, ‘six
ways to pay' to satisfy consurner dermand
and convenience

CUSTOMER TESTIMONIAL .

B2B customer

“Global Connecet has so far been the fastest,
most stable, rehable and easiest of all
installations We have been using the
solution for more than three years and
have seen immedate results in the speed
ofconnection The difference between our
operations before Global Connectand
afteris hke night and day Thereis an
instant smile on our custorners’ faces as
they experience how quickly applications
are loaded now ‘The solution has even
generated a cost reduction on our
monthly bills "

Clayton Rolle, IT Manager Infrastructure
atthe Department of Information
Technology, Government of The Bahamas

@ Read more about our strategy on pages 7-9




The Bahamas
Financial review

9% growth in broadband subscribers

16% growth in fixed voice ARPU

Year Year
ended ended
31 Mar 31 Mar %
2015 2014 change
Subscribers (Q00s)
Mobile’ 318 308 3%
Broadband 25 23 9%
Fixed 99 103 ~4%
ARPU (US3)?
Mobile 613 661 -7%
Broadband 513 643 -20%
Fixed 402 347 16%
Revenue (US$m) 348 354 -2%
LFL revenue 348 354 -2%
EBITDA (US$m) 122 128 -5%
Proportionate
EBITDA 60 65 -8%
Margin% 35% 36% -1ppt

1 Actwe subscribers are defined as those having
performed at revenue-generating activity in the
previous 60 days Historic subscriber numbers have
been restated to exclude subscribers with credit
balances but no actiity in the proceeding 60 days

2 ARPU s the average revenue per user per month
excluding equipment sales

Qur direct marketing approach grew the
broadband subscriber base by 9% and attracted
key investments in Managed Services

Community development is also big on our
agenda, and for over 20 years, we have
actwvely supported the advancement of
Bahamians through the development of
several nation-building imtiatives This year
we invested over US$2 million in support of
culture, education, health, youth sports and
humanitanian efforts Major national events
such as the IAAF World Relays and the first
Bahamas Junkanoo Carnwal are under the title
banner of BTC

Social media continues to play a vital role in
our strategy and just over one-third of the
country’s population or 101,000 fans — the
largest in The Bahamas - are a part of our
social media network

This has been a good year for BTC, but we
have much more work to do We will continue
to make improvements i our network to
meet the needs of our customers and prepare
for increased competition

CWC's proporticnate ownership of BTC's
EBITDA for the year ended 31 March 2015
was 49%

CUSTOMER TESTIMONIAL .

B2B customer

The Myers Group of Companies, a fast food
and finu diming restaurants group based
tn Lhe Bahamas, sawimmediate changes
to their operations once they started

using Global Connect “We saw changes
instantly, the internetservice stayed up,
we had faster speed connection, there 1sno
congestion and no need to be troubled
when the power goes out, feeling that the
service will drop - those days are gone Qur
entire day-to-day process has improved

In the past, each store had its own network
with internet and this was neither eficient
nor praductive Now, we have curown
privateinternet network thatis not shared
with the entire neighbourhood AllIcan
sayis Wow?

George K Sands,
IT Manager for The Myers Group

@ Read more about our strategy on pages 7-9
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“We recorded our tenth consecutive
year of top line growth. We consolidated
our position as the leader in mobile,
broadband, internet and fixed voice.”

Charles Hammond, CEQ, Seychelles

Seychelles remains part of our cantinuing
operations and performed well during the
financial year We are expanding and
enhancing our network capacity and reliability
to provide faster data services We are
making a positive impact every day by being
one of the most valued and respected
organisations In our community

Over the period, the Seychelles Rupee
devalued by 10%, however, we recorded

our tenth consecutwve year of top ine growth
at constant currency We consolidated our
position as the leader in mobile, broadband,
internet and fixed voice

We were awarded an IPTV licence and will
launch services at the end of the first half

of calendar year 2015 Our goal Is to be the
market leader in the provision of media and
entertainment services within three years of
our launch of the IPTV service Today, about
S0% of our business contribution comes from
roaming and internatiocnal voice tnterconnects
The emergence of our IPTV service will help
to reduce our reliance on this declining
revenue stream

With the growing demand for data and video
service on fixed and mobile platforms, we
invested Lo expand capacity i our fixed and
mobile networks We also invested in security
and back-up platforms to keep our networks
data and customers’ data safe

We introduced self-service tools such as
‘Cable Kiosk' freestanding machines with
touch screens that enable customers to buy
consumer products and services and to settle
therr bills at their convemience Qur online
web payment service was also launched with
alocal bank this year

Our services are used exclusively by more
than 85% of the resorts and hotels i
Seychelles We strengthened our position

by upselling on internet services and winning
the contracts of two new hotels this year
We introduced hosting services and
developed our national and international
managed lease line services

QOur commitment to our community remains
as strong as ever We signed an extenston to
an existing Memorandum Of Understanding
(MQU) to provide free broadband services
to all Government schools in Seychelles This
programime I1s now In its tenth year

Mcbile data services revenue was up 7% on
the prior year at constant currency wath the
launch of our LTE network with imited sites

CUSTOMER TESTIMONIAL .

“Fregate Island Private 15 one of the most
luxurious privateislands in the world,
dehvering extraordinary service to our
exceptional clients We needed toalign our
business with the most rehabie network
and best partner available for world-class
support 1in gur unique remote location
This1s whywe utihise Cable & Wireless
Seychellesexclusively "

Wayne Kafcsak, Managing Ditector,
Fregate Island Private, Seychelles

@ Read more about our strategy on pages 7-9




Seychelles

Financial review

8% like-for-like revenue growth

4% increase mobile subscribers

Year Year
ended ended
31Mar 31 Mar %
2015 2014 change
Subscribers (000s}
Mobile' 87 83 4%
Broadband 7 7 0%
Fixed 17 17 0%
ARPU (US$)?
Mobile 285 309 -8%
Broadband 1302 1266 3%
Fixed 364 435 -16%
Revenue (US$m) 52 53 -2%
LFL revenue 52 48 8%
EBITDA (US$m) 19 20 -5%
Proportionate
EBITDA 19 20 -5%
Margin % 37% 38% -lppt

1 Actve subscribers are defined as those having performed

a revenue-generating activity in the previous 60 days
2 ARPU 1s average revenue per user per month excluding

equipment sales

Revenue at US$52 millon was 2% down on
prior year as the Seychelles Rupee declined
by 10% against the US Dollar At constant
currency revenue would have increased

by 8%

At constant currency, mobile revenue at
US$29 million increased by 4% on prior year
(a decline of 6% at prevailing exchange rates)
as demand for mobile data usage increased,
it was offset by a drop in mobile voice actiaty
We experienced 7% growth in mobie

data revenue The growth in data usage 15
expected to continue as our customer value
propositions become more attractive in the
coming year and our LTE network extends to
cover over 50% of subscribers Total number
of subscribers increased by 4%

Broadband revenue increased by 10% the
prior year to US$11 million, driven mainly by
the business customers At constant currency,
broadband waouild have nsen by 22% The
Broadband ARPU improved by 3% (12% at
constant rates) reflecting successful upselling
of higher bandwidth capacities We have now
established the business as the number one
choice for Managed Services and
Government customers in the country

Fixed voice showed a larger decline at 11%
(flat at constant currency) on prior year
Average Incoming voice termination rates
were lower than in the prior year as a larger
propartion of vaoice calls continue to migrate
towards the Internet

Managed Serwices and other revenue grew
by 33% to US$4 million as the company
entered the hosting and international MPLS
businesses

Gross margin was maintained at 84 6% but
fell by US$2 million to US$44 million resulted
from the weaker Seychelles Rupee

Operating costs decreased by 4% to
US$25 miflion At constant currency,
operating costs would have mcreased by
4% mainly because the company recorded
significant foreign currency revaluation
gains n prior year of US$1 muillion

EBITDA decreased 5% to US$19 million

(12% or US$2 million more at constant
currency) The EBITDA margin decreased by

1 percentage point to 36 5% when compared
tc prior year

CWC's ownership of Cable and Wireless
Seychelles EBITDA for the entire financial year
was 100%
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We set standards of good
governance — operating in
ethical and responsible ways.
Through our corporate social
responsibility programmes we
positively impact the lives of the
people we serve, with particular
emphasis on making a difference
through education, community
development, sports, culture,
health, among other areas

of focus
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Corporate responsibility and sustainability continued

Recognised for solid governance

and social responsibility...

For our efforts In meeting globally recognised
standards of good corporate responsibility in all its
facets, we were named a continuing member of the
FTSE4GOOD Index for the 14th consecutive year,
since its inception In 2001 We have consistently
satisfied their stringent critenia which objectively
evaluates the corporate social responsibility of
globally competitive businesses

We are proud of our efforts to:
reduce our carbon footprint

maintain good supply chain labour
standards

observe world class standards
of human and labour rights

promote ethical behaviour
counter bribery

contribute to the social and economic
sustainability of the markets we serve

38 Cable & Wireless Communtcations

Connecting Communities...

Transforming Lives in Action

From community fish fries, carmivals in

city centres, free broadband in schools
telemedics in hospitals, CCTV in capitals

to providing school supplies for tomorrow's
leaders our corporate social responsibility
footprint spans every market we serve —
Connecting Communities  Transforming
Lives Qur brands are interwoven into the
fabric of the regions we operate and our
team members are local ambassadors who
volunteer their time on and off the job making
us part of the tapestry of our markets

Qur year-long initiatives culminated at
Christras, whichis big in the Caribbean,

and it provided us with anideal opportunity
to touch many hves In Anguilla, we partnered
with the Tourist Board to supply Christmas
baskets chock-full of ingredients for
wholesorme Christmas breakfast and dinner
for over S0 families The children were
delighted to receive special gifts from the
LIME team members

Antigua shared a Christmas Giit with
unsuspecting unsung heroes representing
awide cross sectton of the community
mncluding teachers, nurses, and rehgious
leaders

In Barbados, some 57 kids from several
Children’s Homes experienced the most
wonderful time of the year shopping with
team members to purchase basic personal
itemns such as shoes, clothing and not
surprnsingly — toys

‘Kids from one to 92" enjoyed the season,
courtesy of the Cayman Islands Motorcycle
Associatton, in partnership with LIME Cayman
We hosted a Toy Drive for the kids and feted
over 100 senior citizens

Qur team members coordinated and served
meals at a special treat for 100 elderly and
disadvantaged persons in St Patrick, Grenada

In Jamaica, over 600 homeless persons were
fed and provided with medical care, as the
LIME Foundation teamed up with the Council
for Voluntary Social Services

LIME St Kitts & Newvis partnered cnce again
with Feed the Poor Ministries to provide over
100 persons with a three-course lunch
prepared by an acclaimed local chef

Our team members in St Lucia hosted two
Christmas luncheons where they fed and
entertained over 100 persons

For the 15th consecutive year team
members in St Vincent and the Grenadines
hand delivered care packages to needy
recipients across the island touching
several communities

Turks and Caicos held a serior citizens” gala
an event that Is always hughly anticipated on
theistand While alf these activities reflected
our charitable acts during the special season
of ghving, we were active throughout the year
making an impact on our communities

In the British Virgin Islands, our LIME SMART
prograrmme which focuses on education,
culture and performing arts, adopted the
Enis Scathffe Pnmary School and joined the
1000 Bock Club to promote reading We
also support health care as our LIME 4 LIFE
health and wellness initiative includes major
partnerships with the BVI Cancer Society and
the BVI AIDS Foundation

LIME’s generosity extends to state homes
for the hemeless and persons with disabilities
in Dominica We also adopted the Roseau
Primary School and supported Operation
Youth Quake, a programme targeting
marginahsed youth




In Jamaica the work of the LIME Foundation
1s well recognmised From their popular annual
6K Run which raises funds for a variety of
charitres, LINK s — community internet access
points — across several parishes scholarships
bursaries for needy children Web Design
Summer Camps, environmental projects,

and Internet In schools, to the funding of over
18 schools to participate In the Penn Relays
in Washington DC, we impact lives and make
dreams come true For the past five years we
have staged the reqion’s biggest ‘Back-to-
School Initiative In Jamasca dubbed LIME
Skool Aid This US$2 million event touches
the lives of over 30 000 persons annually

The Human Entrepreneurship and Assistive
Resource Technologies (HEART) project

- amulu-faceted revolutionary ICT project
designed to positively impact the lives of
thousands of Antiguans and Barbudans-is
making a ssgnuficant difference Still in Antigua
we have for more than 29 years, maintained
our long standing sponsorship of the LIME
Caribbean Secondary Examination Council
(CSEC/CXC} Awards

LIME partnered with the Federal Government
of St Kitts & Newis and the Eastern Caribbean
Telecommunications Autharity (ECTEL) to
astablish GoSKN EDUNET an e-learning
facility across eight public high schools, all
powered by LIME’s technology

in all these markets we help to close the
digital divide and support education through
our free internet i schools programme

In The Bahamas BTC continue to support
Bahamian communities youth sports and
culture We are the US$1 million title sponsor
of Bahamas Junkanoo Carnival and also
sponsor of the IAAF/BTC World Relays
Bahamas and the Future Leaders Conference
We also support the annual Health and

Wellness Forum among other community
development projects

We are also supporting Bahamians through
the BTC Foundation which s a charitable
trust, established in 2014 Its 2% shareholding
was transferred from Cable and Wireless
Communications (CWC) As a non-voting
shareholder, the Foundation will recerve

2% of BTC s dvidend payments The BTC
Foundation which s adrministered by a
trustee nominated by The Bahamian
Government, witll use the dividend payments
to further charitable purposes in The Bahamas
for the benefit of Bahamians

Cable and Wireless Panama (CWP) is listed
among Panama's top three Most Admired
Companies and a Great Place to Work’

We are recognised as proud supporters of
community development contributing
sigruficantly to society through corporate
gwving, sponsorships, and employee volunteer
intiatives We contnbute to programmes that
are consistent with our values and help to
improve education, narrow the digital divide,
provide equal access to telecommunications,
as well as promote sports, health local culture
and environment

Each year we stage the National Oratory
Contest, a popular public speaking
competition, endorsed by the Ministry of
Education, which attracts over seven hundred
thousand students from all across the nation
This event has becorne an integral part of the
cultural and educational fabnic of the Panama

Work in bridging the digital divide across
Panama has been ongoing for the Cable &
Wireless Panama Foundation since 2003,
when we embarked on the free Internet
classrooms across the country

Left
Cable and Wireless Panama (CWP) tree planting
environmental project

Below

Once again, CWP emerged among Panama's top
three Most Admired Companies and a Great Place
to Work

This year, the Cable & Wireless Panama
Foundation continued to expand the reach
of technology to different areas of Panama
The Arnulfo Anas School where more than
300 students have access to a high speed
broadband Internet equipped facility, 1s one
of the most recent beneficiaries We mstalled
a satelite technology pay phone service in the
Indian reservation of Coronté providing fixed
portable, and mobile Internet access Itis

the only means of delivering access to
telecommunications across the population

1n this remote area

Our social telecoms services helped local
government to improve delivery of public
services We implemented a new electronic
document management platform at the
National Registry of Panama This project
included the development and configuration
of new software and telecommunication
solutions that will positively impact legal
security and transparency as well as improve
the World Bank Group’s Doing Business index
that indicates how Panama 1s progressing
towards achieving more economic efficiency
and greater ease of doing business

We are cornmitted to further strengthening
our community mvolvement as we join forces
with Columbus to make an even bigger, more
impactful contribution to nation-building In
every market we serve
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Corporate responsibility and sustainability continued

Above

We are part of the wibrant Caribbean & Latin
America culture and our sponserships power
the passion of our customers at several marquee
events including carnivals and other cultural
festivals across the region

Right

Our anticipated annual back-to-school programme
LIME Skool Aid in Jamaica has become a national
event rnpacting more than 150,000 beneficianes

over the past five years since its nception Here
happy recipients show off their gifts

150,000+

Lives impacted by LIME Skool Aid
in Jamaica since its inception five

years ago
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Ethics in Business

As a continuing member of the FTSE4Good
Index Series and Transparency International’s
Business Integrity Forum, we are committed
to maintaining high standards of ethical
behaviour in all our markets We operate faurly
and with integrity and ensure our team
members are aware of, and act in accordance
with our Code of Conduct as well as our
Anti-Bribery Policy

We updated our Anti-Bribery Policy in 2013
to ensure full compliance with the US Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act, as we made the
transition to establish our operational hub

in Miami

The Board and Executive Team are responsible
for communicating, implementing and
monitorng adherence to our Code of
Conduct It 1s a mandatory requirement that
each team member in all our business units
reads and signs the Code of Conduct, which
includes specific policies covering gifts and
hospitality As a priority, we also conduct
refresher training for team members to
ensure full comphance with our Anti-Bribery
Policy and Code of Conduct

Third party suppliers, joint venture and
other business partners are also required to
operate within the parameters of our Code
of Conduct and Anu-Bnibery Policy

Our internal audit team reviews the
implementation and momtoring of the
Anti-Bribery Policy within the business units
as part of the annual mternal audit plan

We maintain tamely reviews of our business
Integrity risks and ensure appropriate
mitigation procedures are in place

Cable & Wireless Communications

Focus on our People

with the acquisition of Columbus International
Inc and the subsequent merger of our two
businesses, we are in the process of
transforming intc cne combined Group with
anew leadership team and culture Asa
matter of priority, we have placed renewed
emphasis on our customers as well as our
most Important asset — our people

As at 31 March, 2015 (including the
Columbus Group) 3,597 of the Group's
employee base of 8,073 were female At the
senior management level there were 88
females or 32% from a total of 276 There
were two female directors serving on our
Board out of a total of 11 Directors We
remain committed to ensuring that regardless
of their gender, our employees have equal
access to opportunities for career
enhancement on the basis of merit




We are proud of our employment practices
and our track record of adhening to the
tenets of globatly accepted standards of
diversity, equal opportunity inrecruitment,
development, remuneration and
advancement Our employment policies also
comply with local requirements within our
markets and are aligned with relevant
standards on the employment, training and
career development of disabled people

Employee communication and engagement
remain high on our agenda Over the past year
Phul Bentfey led 23 Team Talk Live! sessions

in 12 countries with more than 2,100 team
members These face-to-face, interactive
team engagement sesstons created
opportunities for open and honest discussions
about business performance, the acquisition
of Columbus employee Net Promoter Score
(eNPS)} voting for our values and general
feedback about our business

We support the Universal Declaration of
Human Rights and the International Labour
Orgarusation Core Conventions and we seek
at all times to operate our businesses In
comphance with them

Health and safety remamn of paramount
importance tous We continue to place
particular emphasis on improving the health
and safety practices of our team members
who carry out network infrastructure and
fieldwork actwities, which present a greater
health and safety risk than other areas of
our business

Environment

Work continues on improving our
environmental performance across the Group
The operation and ternperature regulation of
our communications network equipment
continues to be the principal source of our
power consumption, and consequently, our
environmental impact Over the past year we
have continued to develop and iImplement
green initiatives This included, for example,
the replacement of legacy air conditiorsng
units in The Bahamas business with new solar
assisted units which are expected to reduce
aw conditioning electricity usage in those sites
by as much as 50%

We have assessed our carbon footprint to be
119 974 tonnes of CO,e based on our Scope
1, 2 & 3 greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions, as
compared with 119,549 tonnes of CO,e for
the 2013/14 reporting peniod Our electricity
consumptton was 181 million kilowatt hours
(kwh) this year as compared with 175 milton
kWhin 2013/14 and our fuel usage was
33,654 megawatt hours (MWh) as compared
with 39 366 MWhn 2013/14

Ermissions and electricity consumption for
2014715 reporting period are relatively
consistent with 2013/14 with asmall
increase tin both items driven by the
acquisition of Sonitel, resulting in a change

in the profile of sites measured Additionally
LIME carried out significant office clean out
activities as part of its site rationalisation
project generating a matenal ncrease in
landfilled waste, and a consequent increase
in carbon emissions for the Canbbean region
Our Scope 1, 2 & 3 GHG emisstons constitute
68 44 tonnes CO,e per million US dollars of
revenue as compared with 63 83 tonnes
CO,e per mullion US dollars of revenue in
2013/14

We continue to work on reducing travel
through the use of videoconferencing and
other technologies and ways of working,
though business travel remains necessary to
some extent due to cur gecgraphical spread
and the importance of interpersonal relations
inour business Our travel emisstons this year
were 2,857 tonnes CO,e as compared with
4,370 tonnes CO,e last year The principal
reason for this reduction was the
establishment of our operational hub in
tMiami, which has located our hub team
members closer to our operating businesses
and reduced the travel distance required to
visit our markets These travel emissions
constitute 163 tonnes CO,e per millon

US dollars of revenue as compared with

2 3 tonnes CO,e per million US dollars of
revenue In 2013/14

The emissions we have reported on, cover all
emission sources required under the
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic report and
Directors’ reports) Regulations 2013 The
method we have used to calculate GHG
emissions is the GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard (revised
edition), together with the latest emission
factors from recogruised public sources
including, but not limited to the Department
for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (Defra)
the International Energy Agency {IEA), the US
Energy information Administratson (ElA), the
US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
and the Intergovernmental Panel on Cimate
Change (IPCC)

Privacy and Security

Pratecting our customers' and team
members’ data s of primary importance to us
We continue to work hard to build security
measures and protection into all of our
business processes and practices which
involve the processing of personal data and
confidential information to ensure comphiance
with local leqislatwe or regulatory
requirements This means raistng awareness
through training our team members on data
privacy and data protection and working with
our external partners to ensure robust
measures are in place In countnies where we
operate which do not yet have any legislative
or regulatory regime to specifically address
data protection and data privacy we take

a best practice approach in ine with the

EC Directive 95/46/EC on protection of
individuals with regard to the pracessing

of personal data and on the free movement
of such data At the same time we monitor
existing and incorming legislation within the
Junsdictions where our businesses operate
and work with the local teams to adapt our
practices as appropriate \We have updated
all of cur Information Secunty Policies based
on international standards to apply across all
regions in which we aperate and will update
these annually Our Global Data Privacy Policy
also helps to drive the appropnate behaviour
with regards to secure handling of customer
and employee data

We continue to work hard on increasing the
scope of our pre-contract assessments of
all external partners who process our team
members and customer information These
assessments include checking our partners’
practices and certifications with regards to
data security and privacy protection

Additionally, we seek to iImpose contractual
obligations on our partners to ensure they
implement and maintain appropriate data
security measures at each stage of a project
Iife cycle

We now have a dedicated tearnn place
equipped and ready to respond to cyber
security threats who are able to identify
and address system vulnerabilities across
the busmess

Strategic report

The Strategtc report (which 1s comprised
of the Overview and Strategic review set
out on pages 2 to 41) together with
information incorporated by reference
into each review has been approved by
the Board and signed on tts behalf by
order of the Board

Clare Underwocd

Company Secretary
19 May 2015
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Our quad play offering:

Always on connectivity to
satisfy growing customer
needs
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Governance

In this section we introduce
the Board and explain how our
business i1s governed properly
and responsibly

44-47 Board of Directors

48-58 Directors’ and corporate
governance report

59 Independent Directors’ report
60-65 Audit Committee report
66-67 Nomination Committee report

68-88 Directors’ remuneration
report

89 Statement of Directors’
responsibilities
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Board of Directors

“The Board has seen significant change within the year.
Perley McBride was appointed as Chief Financial Officer in
June 2014, and we welcomed our four new Non-executive
Directors — Barbara Thoralfsson, Brendan Paddick,

John Risley and Thad York — who each bring extensive
experience of the telecoms industry”

Sir Richard Lapthorne CBE, Chairman

Board of Directors e e 8 8 e 8 e e e e e

Reporting Committees

Audit Committee Nomination Committee Remuneration Committee
« Review and monitor financial results » Review composition of and succession to the Board and + Recommend and review the
and controls, business aperations and recommend appo:intments remuneration policy
management of risks « Ongoing assessment of the overall balance and + Rewview the design and policy of share
» Assist the Board n confirming that the performance of the Board incentive plans
Annual Report and Accounts are far, « Ensure the balance of the Board and its Committees are » Review performance conditions and
balanced and understandable in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code measures
+ Rewiew and approve interna! audit and « Approve amendments to service
review and monitor independence and contracts
performance of the external auditor

Chief Executive Officer

Executive Team 0606666686868 86

Attend to Group operational matters « Meetings are held on a monthly basis

Phil Bentiey .

Perley McBride « Manage the performance of the Group

JohnReid » Develop and execute the strategy of the Group

John Madun » Putn place strong functions across the Group so as
Paul Scott to ensure consistency 1t al our markets and hrghest
Carlo Allor standards are mamntained

Michele English » Report to the Board on alirelevant matters under, and
Belinda Bradberry operate withun, the Delegation of Authonity Framework
Ntall Merry

Agustin de la Guardia

Leon Willams

Chnis Dehring
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Sir Richard Lapthorne, CBE
Chairman, Chairman of the
Nonunation Committee

Sir Richard Lapthorne s Charman of
the Company having been Chairman
of Cable and Wireless plc since
January 2003, and s also Chairman
of the Nommation Committee

Richard s also Chairman of the
PwC Public Interest Body, and a
Non-executive Director of Sherntt
International based in Toronto

Between June 2009 and April 2010,
he was Chairman of the McLaren
Group From 1996 to May 2003
Richard was Chairman of Amersham
International plc {now GE Healthcare)
hawving joined its Board as a Non-
executive Director in 1989 He was
Finance Director of British Aerospace
plc from July 1992 and Vice Chairman
fror April 1998 until his retirement
n 1999 From March 2012 until
October 2013 he served as Charman
of the Foresight Group on UK
Manufacturing

Richard was also a Trustee of

Tommy s Campaign until January
2014 Non-executive Charman of
New Look Group and Morse plc until
November 2007 and February 2008
respectively and Her Majesty the
Queen s Trustee at The Royal Botanic
Gardens Kew until his retirernent in
September 2009

Phil Bentley
Cheef Executive Officer

Phil Bentley was appointed Chuef
Executive Officer of the Company
on 1 January 2014

Between 2007 and 2013 Phil was
the Managing Director of British Gas,
the UK s largest energy and services
business and was on the Board of
Centrica Plc from November 2000 to
June 2013, having served as Group
Finance Director from 2000 to 2004
and Managwmg Director Europe from
2004 to 2007

Prior to that he was Finance Director
for Diageo Plc s spinits division and
Group Treasurer He also served

In several senior Internationat
management roles dunng a 15-year
career at BP Plc and lived and worked
in Ching, Egypt, France and the USA

Phil was previously a Non-executive
Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee of iIMI Plc between 2012
and 2014, and was a Non-executive
Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee of Kinghsher Ple between
2002 and 2010

Phil holds a Master s degree from
Oxford University and received his
MBA from INSEAD Fontainebleau

° Denotes membership of Audit Committee

° Denotes membership of Normination Committee

o Denotes membership of Remuneration Coammittee

Committee membership shown as at 31 March 2015

R Perley McBride
Chief Financial Officer

R Perley McBrde was appotnted
as Chief Financral Officer of the
Campany in June 2014

Between December 2012 and May
2014 Perley served as Chief Finanaial
Officer at Leap Wireless International
(which operated the Cricket
Commurnications mobile brand)

He was part of the executive team
that led the business throughits
acquisition by AT&T Inc, which
compfietedin March 2014

Prior to Leap Wireless, he served as
Executive Vice President of Finance
at the Weather Company between
2010 and 2012 Pror to that, he
served n several senior financial
management roles at Frontier
Communications (formerly Citizens
Communications) between 199% and
2010 and also between 1994 and
1997 He also worked in the inance
department at Sprint Corporation
early in his career

Perley holds a Bachelor of Science
degree from Mount Allison University
in Canada and has an MBA from the
University of Houston

Sumon Ball

Jownt Deputy Chairman, Senior
Independent Director, Chairman
of the Remuneration Commuttee

Simon Ball1s a Mon-executive
Director of the Company having
previcusly served as a Non-executive
Director of Cable and Wireless plc
since May 2006

Simon 1s also the Joint Deputy
Charman, Senior tndependent
Director Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit and Nomination
Committees Simon became
Charman of the Rermuneration
Committee on 1 June 2012 having
previously been the Chairman of the
Audit Committee

He s also a Non-executive Director
of Allied Insh Bank plc, Non-executive
Director of Commonwealth Games
England and Chairman of Anchura
Group Ltd

Previously Simon was Group Finance
Director for 31 Group plc until
November 2008 and was Non-
executive Director and Chairman of
the Audit Committee of Tribal Group
plcuntil May 2014 He also helda
series of semor finance and
operational roles at Dresdner
Kleinwort Benson, served as Group
Finance Director for the Robert
Fleming Group and was Director
General Rinance for the Department
for Constitutional Affairs

Annual Report 2014/15 45




Board of Directors continued

John Risley
Jowint Deputy Chairman,
Non-executive Director

John Risley was appointed as

a Non-executive Director of the
Company on 31 March 2015 and
serves as the Joint Deputy Charman
and a member of the Nomination
Committea

John s the founder and Director of
Clearwater Seafoods Incorporated
2nd also President of Clearwater Fine
Foods Incorporated John also served
on the Board of the Columbus Group
from 2004 Persona Communications
from 2002 to 2004, and Cable
Bahamas from 2005 to 2010 In
addition, John was the founder of
Ocean Nutritton Canada and serves
as a Director of numercus private and
public companies including
Clearwater Seafoods Limited

Johnsits on the Board of 2 number of
chanitable orgamisations He s Chair
of Futurpreneur Canada and co-Chair
of the Capital Campaign for the
Nature Conservancy He regularly
engages in pubic pohcy debate 15
Chairman of the Atlantic Institute of
Market Studies a member of both
the World Presidents Organization
and The Chuef Executives
Orgamzation, and 1s 2 Director of the
Canadian Council of Chuef Executives

Johnis a graduate of Harvard
University s President s Program In
Leadership Further achievements
include being named an Officer of
the Order of Canada and being
inducted nto the Nova Scotia Jumior
Achievemnent Busingss Hall of Fame in
1997 He has also received numerous
awards, including Atlantic Canadian
Entrepreneur of the Year and a
Canada Award far Business
Excellence in Entreprenaurship

Mark Hamhin
Non-executive Director

Mark Hamhn has been a Non-
executive Director of the Company
since his appointment on 1 January
2012 and s a member of the Audit,
Nomination and Remuneration
Commuttees

Mark 1s a Chartered Clirical
Psychologist He established a
Managerment Consulting firm with
offices in Washington, Johannesburg
and London n 1990 and for the last
15 years has been the Charman of
the Organtsation Resource Group
which includes compames focused on
property software and consulting

Mark I1s a senior adviser to the boards
of global businesses in many areas
such as strategy, culture and
corporate change programmes in
international markets Clients include
those from the finance aerospace
electricity generation, utiities,
airline, pharmaceutical defence and
telecom industnes His models of
transformation and change are used
by practitioners around the world to
enable the successfulimplementation
of strategy

Born i Johannesburg, he 1s involved
with a number of chanities in Africa
some aimed at creating additional
income for subsistence farmers and
ther families and others establishing
hfe skills education centres for young
people Mark s the President of
Wedmore Opera a community-
based music performance charity

In Somerset
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Brendan Paddick
Non-executive Director

Brendan Paddick was appainted as
a Non-executive Director of the
Company on 31 March 2015 and
serves as a member of the
Normination Committee

Brendan founded the Columbus
International group of companies in
2004 and served on the Board as
President and Chief Executive Officer
from inception He was also the Chief
Executwe Officer of all Columbus
operating subsidiaries Brendan
currently serves on the Board of
Clearwater Seafoods Incorporated

From 2005 to 2012 Brendan served
on the Board of the Caribbean Cable
Television Cooperative and 1s a past
Charr of the Board of the Carbbean
Cable & Telecommunications
Association Prior to founding
Columbus, Brendan was President
and Chief Executive Officer of
Persona Inc and Persona
Commurications Inc from 1992 ta
2004 Brendan was a member of
Industry Canadas National Broadband
Task Force in 2001, a government
initiative to shape the country srall
out of broadband access andin
2006, he was appointed Honorary
Consul for Canada to The Bahamas by
the Canadian Department of Foreign
Affars and International Trade - he
was subsequently reappointed in
2009 and 2012

Brendan graduated with a Bachelor
of Commerce degree from Memorial
University of Newfoundiand, where
he also received his MBA He served
as a Member of the Board of Regents
of Memorial University for six years
In 2013, he was named Memeral
University s Alumnus of the Year
Brendan is also a graduate of the
Advanced Management Program

at Harvard University

Alson Platt
Non-executive Director

Alison Platt was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the
Company on 1 June 2012 and1s

a member of the Audit, Nominatton
and Remuneration Committees

Alison 1s Chief Executive of
Countrywide plc, having been
appointed to the role on 1 September
2014 Previous to this Alison was

a Managing Director at Bupa
responsible for International
Development Markets She took

up this post in October 2012 having
previously held a number of senior
posts across Bupa including Chief
Operating Officer of its UK private
hospitals business Deputy Managing
Director in its UK insurance business
and latterly Managing Director for its
businesses in the UK Europe and
North America Before joining Bupa
Alison held a number of key positions
in British Arways

Alson was Chair of Opportunity
Now which seeks to accelerate
change for women in the workplace
from May 2009 until Aprid 2013 She
was also Non-executive Director of
the Foreign & Cormmonwealth Office
between 2005 and 2010 andinthe
2017 New Year Honours she was
appointed a CMG for her services

to the Board of the FCO




Barbara Thoralfsson
Non-executive Director

Barbara Thoralfsson was appointed
as a Non-executive Director of the
Company on 7 January 2015 Barbara
15 also a member of the Audit
Nomination and Remuneration
Committees

Barbara has extensive experience

In the telecoms industry having been
CEQ of NetCom ASA Norways
second fargest mobile network
operator, between 2001 and 2005
and a Non-executive Director of
Tandberg ASA, a leading global
supplier of video conferencing
systems from 2006 until 2010 Since
2009 Barbara has also served as a
Non-executive Director of Telenor
ASA, aleading mobile operator in
Scandinavia, Eastern Europe and Asia
however, she 1s due to step down
from this appotntment in June 2015

She has been an Industnal Adwviser
to EQT Private Equity Partners since
2007, serves as a Non-executive
Dwrector on the Boards of SCA AB,
Hilts AG and ColArt Holdings Ltd

and has been an owner of Flerming
Industrer AS investing in
Scandinavian small cap companies
since 2006

Previously, Barbara was CEO of
Midelfart & Co AS, from 1995 to
2000 after holding senior positions
in sales and marketing from 1988
to 1995 Barbara has also served as
a Non-executive Director on the
Boards of Electrolux AB Orkla ASA,
and Stokke AS as Chairman of SATS
AB from 2005 to 2006, and sat on
the Adwvisery Council for SOS
Children s willages

Barbara has an MBA in Marketing and
Finance from Columbia University in
New York and a BA in Psychology
from Duke Uriversity in Durham
North Carolina

lanTyler
Non-executive Director,
Chatrman of the Audit
Commuittee

lan Tyler has been a Non-executive
Director of the Company since his
appontment on 1 January 2011

On 1 June 2012, lan was appointed
Chairman of the Audit Committee lan
1s also a member of the Remuneration
and Nomination Committees

lans a Chartered Accountant and
was the Chief Executive of Balfour
Beatty pic from January 2005 to
March 2013, having joined the
company In 1996 as Finance Director
and then becorming Chief Operating
Officer in 2002

From 1991 to 1996 lan held various
senior financial positions within
Hanson PLC lanis a Non-executive
Chairman and Chairman of the
Nomination Committees of Bovis
Homes Group PLC and Carrn Energy
PLC Non-executive Chairman

and Chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committees of
Al Noor Hosprtals Group Ple, and

a Non-executive Director of BAE
Systems plc

tan 1s also Chairman of CRASH the
construction and property industry
charity for homeless people around
the UK, and serves as a Crown
Representative for the Cabinet Office

Thad York
Non-executive Director

Thad York was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of the
Company on 31 March 2015 and
serves as amember of the
Normination Committee

Thad s the President, General
Manager, and Director of numerous
geographically diverse and various
personal and business entities
controlled by John C Malone

Prior to hus current roles, Thad held
senior positions at
Telecommunscations ing { TCI') and
TCl International, that ranged from
operations to finance in TC s cable
TV business He started in the cable
television business as an Instalter for
TCl while attending college

Thad graduated from the University
of Wyonming with a degree in Finance
and received his MBA from the
University of Denver
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Cable & Wireless Commurnications

Dear Shareholder,

This has been a transformational year
for Cable & Wireless Communications
Our Miami operational hub i1s now
established, with our main central
services having relocated. The London
Headquarters 1s maintained, but has also
moved location to a smaller office In
central London We have also sold our
Monaco business and acquired both
Columbus International Inc. and Grupo
Sonitel, S A during the year, both of
which have strengthened our focus on
the Caribbean and Latin America region

The Board has changed sigmficantly since January 2014 Phd Bentley
joined us in January 2014 as Chief Executive Officer, and having been
with us for over a year now has proved lhimself to be a talented and
energetic CEO who has achieved a huge amount singe his arrival
Perley McBride joined the Board i June 2014 as Chief Financial
Officer, and has brought with him a wealth of experience In January
2015, Barbara Thoralfsson joined as an additional Non-executive
Director Barbara brings extensive experience of the telecoms
industry which will enable her to make a valuable contribution to the
Board, and as a Cuban American who grew up in Miarmi, she also has a
strang connection with our target region As a result of the acquisition
of Columbus International In¢ which completed on 31 March 2015
John Risley, Brendan Paddick and Thad York also joined the Board as
Non-executive Directors Each brings many years of expenience in the
telecoms industry within the Canbbean and Latin Amenca region We
welcome each of the new Directors to the Board and look forward to
working with them and the expernence and insight they bring with
thermn Each Director, including existing Directors will be put forward
for election or re-election at the forthcorming Annual General
Meeting Finally Nick Cooper, who has served as Corporate Services
Director since demerger in 2010 and provided valuable continuity for
the Company during a period of unprecedented change, stepped
down from the Board on 31 March 2015

The core purpose of the Board 1s to set the Group's strategy to deliver
sustamable profitable growth over the long term for the benefit of all
stakeholders Our strategy to deliver this growth s founded on the
belief that we must grow our custormer hfetirme value by delivering a
‘best-in-class customer expertence This cannot be achieved without
the nght people, processes and infrastructure to take advantage of
opportunities and manage risks During 2014/15, we launched Project
Marhn, a sagmificant capital investment programme to help achieve our
strateqic imperatives The progress to date on each of our strategic
imperatives along with Project Marlin is provided in detail in pages 8 to
35 In addition to this we also announced the acquisition of Columbus




during the year This 1s a transformational transaction for the
Company and will create an enlarged Group with greater regional
presence, scale and scope with assets and capabilities that the Board
beleves will renforce and accelerate the realisation across each of
CWC s six areas of strategic focus as described in the Strategy
section in this report The acquisition will also strengthen the
management team with highly skilled, experienced and
entrepreneurial personalities focused on customer experience
excellence and sharehotder value creation

We have continued our engagement with major shareholders and
governance bodies throughout the year The maim instances of this
were n respect of both the Drectors’ remuneration policy earlier in
the year and the acquisttion of Columbus The discusswons on both
occasions were highly constructive and we will continue to engage
with shareholders regarding key Issues in the future Further details
are given in respect of both the Directors’ remuneration policy and

the acquisiion within the Dwectors’ remuneration report and Strategtc
report respectively

As part of our ongoing commitment to good corporate governance
a full evaluation of the Board commenced in January 2015 The
evaluation was facilitated by Independent Audit, and the process
consisted of one to one nterviews with the Board, senior
management team and external advisors Conclusions and
recommendations will be discussed at a forthcoming Board meeting
and findings of this evaluation will be reported onin the 2015/16
Annual Report and Accounts

Sir Richard Lapthorne, CBE
19 May 2015

Compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code

This report sets out how the Company applied the principles of the UK
Corporate Governance Code 2012 (the Code) and the extent to which
the Company comphed with the prowisions of the Code in the year to
31 March 2015 Throughout the year the Group has applied the main
principles of the Code as described in pages 48 to 54 except for
provisson C 3 7 in respect of putting the external audit contract out

to tender at least every ten years An explanation in respect of this
prowvision is given in the Audit Committee report on page 60

The Board believes that this Annual Report and Accounts, taken as
awhole, reflects a far balanced and understandable review of the
Company, and presents a comprehensive and impartial view of the
Group's business Further information on this requirement can be
found on page 54 of the Corporate Governance Report The Board
also beleves that the report provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s performance, business model
and strategy We believe that the disclosure on the Group’s strategy
and business mode! set out on pages 2 to 41, and the key performance
indicators that we use to measure both financial and non-financial
performance (and to set performance-related remuneration for semor
executives), meet this requirement The Code 1s available on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website www frc org uk

The acquisition of Columbus

Following completion of the acquisition of Columbus the Takeover
Panel considers that the Directors from time to time (and their close
relatives) will be deemed to be acting in concert with the Principal
Vendors and the Ultimate Controllers {in each case, as defined and
further described in the circular to shareholders dated 19 November
2014) This has required CWC to put in place various arrangements
which include regulating the holding of shares by Directors and
ensuring the continued independence of the Company in accordance
with the Listing Rules, which are summarised in more detail below
on pages 55 to 56

Board membership, balance and ndependence
Biographies of the current Directors, including details of their
Committee memberships are shown on pages 45 to 47

The Board currently comprises the Chairman, two Executive Directors,
and eight Non-executive Directors Having reviewed the position

of each Director indwidually, the Board considers five out of eight
Non-executive Directors (Simon Ball, Mark Hamilin, Alison Platt,
Barbara Thoralfsson and lan Tyler) to be independent in both character
and judgement The remaining three Non-executive Directors
{Brendan Paddick, !ohn Risley and Thad York) are considered nen-
independent as they have been nominated to the Board by the
Principal Vendors of Columbus Collectively, the Non-executive
Directors contribute to an effective Board with a strong mix of

skills and business experience, including recent financial, strategic,
operational and retail experience, gained in a variety of geographic
areas As they all occupy or have accupied senior positions each
contributes significant weight to Board decisions

The Non-executive Directors are initially appointed for a three-year
term with an expectation that they will continue for a further
three-year term

Mark Hamlin's initial three-year term came to an end on 31 December
2014 The Board considered his reappointment for a further three-
year period The reappointment of Simon Ball for a further one-year
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period was also considered in February 2015 Simon has been

a Director of the Company since demerger in March 2010, and prior
to this served as a Non-executive Director of Cable and Wireless plc
from 1 May 2006

Having reviewed bath Mark’s and Simon’s contributions to the Board
the Board considered their knowledge and skills to be invaluable to the
Company The Board considered both Directors to be independent in
character and judgement and as such, the Board approved their
re-appointment

The terms and conditions of appointment of the Non-executive
Directors, which set out the time commitment expected of them,
and the service contracts for Executive Directors are available for
inspection by shareholders at our registered office during normal
business hours and at our Annual General Meeting (AGM)

All Directors have access to the advice of the Company Secretary as
well as appropnate training and briefings on matters including
corporate responsibility and sustainability, ethics, health & safety,
governance matters and specific aspects and implications of the
acquisition of Columbus Additionally, any Director may take
independent professional advice on any matter at the Company's
expense in the furtherance of their duties

Specific Role of Individual Members of the Board and the Company Secretary

Director Responsible for

Sir Richard
Lapthorne, CBE'
Chairman .

+ overall operation and governance of
the Board,

providing leadership of the Board to
ensure that the Board satisfies its duties
and responsibilities

» setting of the agenda for the Board,
ensuring that the Board receives clear,
timely and accurate inforrmation,
facilitating the contribution of the
Directors, and

ensuring that the Company maintains
effective communication with
shareholders and cther stakeholders
(shared responsibility with the Sentor
Independent Director)

Phil Bentley -
Chief Executive Officer

developing the strategy for
recommendation to the Board, and

« leadership of the business and managing
it within the authonities delegated by
the Board

meeting shareholders on request and
acting as the designated pont of contact
far shareholders to raise any concerns
where contact through the normal
channels of the Chairman or Executive
Directors Is mappropriate

« bringing to the attention of the Board the
matters raised by major shareholders, and
ensuring that the Company maintains
effective communication with
shareholders and other stakeholders
(shared responsibility with the Chairman)

Simon BallP .
Seror independent
Director
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Specific Role of Individual Members of the Board and the Company Secretary

Director Responsible for

Clare Underwood
Company Secretary?

+ ensurnng that good quality corporate
governance 1s embedded and followed
within the Company, along with the
mplementation of efficient company
admunistration,

» acting as a confidential sounding board to
the Chairman and other Directors,

s providing advice In relation to Board
delberations and decision making, and

« ensuring compliance with developments
in kegislation, regulation and governance

1 The commitment of the Chairman as a Non-executive Director of Sherritt
International a company listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange and as Chairman of
the PwC Public Interest Body are noted on page 45 The Board considers that these
appointments are not a constraint on bus agreed time commitment to the Company

2 The commitment of the Senor independent Director as a Non-executive Director
of Allied Insh Bank plc and of Commonwealth Games England and as a Chairman
of Anchura Group Limited are noted on page 45 The Board constders that these
appointments are not a constraint on his agreed time commitment to the Company

3 During the year both Belinda Bradberry and Nick Cooper acted as joint Company
Secretary with Clare Underwood and since 11 May 2015 Clare has been the sole
Company Secretary

Role of the Board

The Board is responsible for the Group's corporate governance system
and 1s committed to maintaining high governance standards In order
to progress the objectives of the Group, the Board meets on aregular
basis and I1s responsible for organising and directing the Company and
the Group in a manner that promotes the success of the Company and
15 consistent with good corporate governance practice To enable the
Board to function effectively, full and trmely access to all relevant
information 1s given to the Board

The key policies and practices of the Company and the Group are set
out in this report as well as in the reports of the Audit Committee on
pages 60 to B5, the Remuneration Committee on pages 68 to 88
and the Nomination Committee on pages 66 to 67 Furthermore,
our independent Non-executive Directors have prepared a report
describing corporate governance and behaviours of the Board on page
59 and detalls of significant shareholdings and rights, obligations,
powers and procedures under the Company’s Articles of Association
(the Articles) are set out in the statutory information on pages 56 to
58 Together, these reports provide shareholders with an insight inte
how our Board and senior management seek to manage the business
to create and deliver long-term success for the Group

Formal mmutes recording decisions of all Board and Commuttee
meetings are prepared and circulated to each Director as appropriate
If a Director objects to a particular proposal, this is recorded in the
minutes of the relevant meeting During the period under review there
were no such objections

There is a formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board which
includes

« Strategy and management

Approval of long-term objectives and strategy extension of Group
activities mito new business or geographic areas, any decision to cease
to operate any matenial part of the Group's business, review of Group
performance and the approval of annual budget




« Corporate governance

Annual formal reviews of its own performance, a review of Group
corporate governance arrangements, recetving reports on the views
of shareholders and determining the independence of Non-executive
Directors

+ Financial reporting

Approval of announcements of interim and final results, Annual Report
and Accounts, approval of dividend policy and approval of significant
changes in accounting policies and practices

« Board membership and other appointments

Changes to the structure, size and composition of the Board,
membership and chairmanship of Board Committees, ensunng
adequate succession planning, appeintment of the Senior Independent
Director and the appointment or removal of the Company Secretary

« Remuneration

Determining the remuneration policy for the Directors and other
senior executives and the introduction of new share incentive plans or
major changes to existing plans to be put to shareholders for approval

« Delegation of authority

The dvision of responsibilities between the Chairman and the

Chief Executive Officer and receiving reports from Board Committees
on thetr activities

« Contracts/expenditure
Approval of all sgnificant contracts and expenditure and all
investments or disposals in shares in which the Group holds an interest

« Internal controls

Recewving reparts on and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk and control processes to support its strategy and objectives and
assessing these annually

Other specific responsibilities are delegated to the Audit, Nomination
and Remuneration Committees, each with clearly defined terms of
reference Each Committee reviews their terms of reference annually
to ensure that they remain appropriate and effectve

Fufl details on matters reserved for the Board and the terms of
reference of its Committees can be found on our website at
WWWCWC COM

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly and there were eight meetings dunng the
year There are a number of informal meetings held throughout the
year and as part of the annual corporate governance programme, the
Independent Directors meet once a year to discuss any relevant,
governance matters The Non-executive Directors also meet with the
Charrman present and with the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
present This balance of formal and informal meetings throughout the
year creates an environment that encourages chzllenge the shanng of
mformation innovative thinking and open communication

Details of Directors’ attendance at scheduled Board meetings are
shown in the table below

Members Meetings attended
Chairman
Sir Richard Lapthorne, CBE 2080008080 7/8*
Chief Executive Officer
Phil Bentley 20000000 8/8
Executive Directors
Nick Cocper? 200000 0Q0FO 8/8
Perley McBride? 90000080 77
Non-executive Directors
Simon Ball 0000008080 7/8*
Mark Hamlin 20000000 8/8
Brendan Paddick? 0/0
Alison Platt [ 2 1111 ] 16 7/8*
John Risley? 0/0
Barbara Thoralfsson® [ o] 1/2
lan Tyler *00000OO 8/8
Thad York? Q/0

1 Nick Cooper stepped down from the Board on 31 March 2015

2 Perley McBride was appointed to the Board with effect from 26 June 2014

Brendan Paddick John Risley and Thad York were appointed to the Board with effect
from 31 March 2015

4 Barbara Thoralfsson was appointed 10 the Board with effect from 7 January 2015 and
was unable to artend a schedufed meeting as a result of a prior engagement which was
n ptace before joining the Comparny

The frequency of meetings increased in the latter part of 2014 due to the oversight
required by the Board for the acquisition of Columbus As a result some meetings were
arranged at short notice and not all Directors were able to attend

w

Board Committees
The reports of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees
are set out on pages 60 to 65, 66 to 67 and 68 to 88 respectively

Integration Committee

An Integration Committee was established as part of the acquisition of
Columbus International Inc This Is not a committee of the Board, but
one which oversees the whole integration process, and provides
regular updates to the Board on the progress, and aspects of the
integration of the two businesses

The members of the Integration Commuttee are Sir Richard Lapthorne,
Phil Bentley Mark Hamlin, Brendan Paddick, John Risley and Thad York

One of the complexities iInvolved in the acquisition of Columbus 1s the
strategic imperative of integrating a talented group of executives
from both Columbus and CWC, and creating a unified team with

a shared culture which is key to the success of the acquisition as a
whole It was agreed by the Board that as Mark Hamlin has unique
capabilities and expernence in this area having led similar projects for
multinational companies in complex environments over many years,
together with his acquired experience of CWC and its culture and
history he 15 uniquely qualified to support CWC on the integration
project Inorder to provide this support Mark has agreed to act as
Alternate Chair of the Integration Committee
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Improving Board effectiveness/Continuing development
inducticn

On appaintment, the induction of new Board members 1s undertaken
by the Company Secretary at the request of the Charman who
retains responsibility for the induction process The induction
inctudes the provision of information about the Company details of
procedures, governance issues Directors’ responsibilities the role
of the Board, the matters reserved forits decision, and the terms of
reference of the principal Board Committees The programme also
includes meetings with semor management and key advisers and
meetings with major shareholders are arranged on request

Professional development
The ongoing training and development programme for the
Directors includes

« Regular visits to the overseas business units to meet the local
teams During the year, this ncluded three overseas Board visits
(to Barbados, Jamaica and Miarmi) enabling the Board to meet with
local senior managernent and to obtain an enhanced and more
in-depth knowledge of the business operations

« Governance updates from external adwvisers or via the Company
Secretary’s report

During the year, presentattons given to the Board included

« Corporate governance aspects arising from the acquisition of
Columbus including the concert party, financing and banking
imphcations

« Deep-dive presentations from both the Barbados and Jamaican
business units regarding their business political and economic
environment trading and performances, along with onsite visits
to stores and technology sites

+ In-depth traning sessions on both TV and B2B aspects of the
businesses

In addition individual training requirements are agreed and arranged
with Directors, as required

Performance evaluation

In accordance with the Code, an external evaluation of the Board takes
place at least every three years Independent Audit Limited, which has
no other connection with the Company or Group, were engaged to
undertake an externally faciitated Board evaluation during this
financial year

The first stage of the review involved Independent Audit engaging
with the Chairman and the Company Secretary to set the scope

and context for the evaluation Interviews were conducted with all
members of the Board, senior management and external advisers

by two partners from Independent Audit All interviews were held

on an ndividual anonymous basis addressing the performance and
effectiveness of the Board, Board Comrmittees, Charman and
indiidual performance of the Directors The anonymity of all
respondents was ensured throughout the process in order to promote
the open and frank exchange of views

The results will be discussed at a Board meeting in June 2015, and will
be reported onin the 2015/16 Annual Report and Accounts
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Directors

Re-election

The Company complies with the Code which specifies that all
Directors of FTSE 350 companies shouid be subject to annual
re-election by shareholders The Board is satisfied that each Director
continues to be effective and tc demonstrate commitment to their
role All Directors will stand for election or re-election at the 2015
AGM As explained below on page 55, a dual voting procedure in
respect of the election or re-election of the independent Directors
will be implemented at this year's AGM

Directors’ interests

The remuneration of the Directors and interests of the Directors
and their connected persons in the shares of Cable & Wireless
Communications Plc, along with details of their share awards,
are contaned inthe Directors remuneration report set out on
pages 68 to 88

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Articles include provisicns covering Directors’ conflicts and allow
the Board to authorise a matter that would otherwise iInvolve a Director
breaching his duty to avord conflicts The Company has procedures in
place to deal with a situation where a Director has a conflict of interest
including the disclosure by Directars of any such conflicts and the
imposition of hmits or conditions by the Board when considening and
authonising any conflict, if they think this s appropriate No Director had
a matenal interest in any significant contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries during the year For further information refer to

note 5 6 of the consolidated financial statements

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has granted indemnities in favour of its Directors
against personal financial expasure that they may incur in the course
of therr professional duties as Directors of the Company and/or any
subsidiaries {as applicable) These indemnities are qualfying third-
party indemnity provisions for the purposes of the Companies Act
2006 (the 2006 Act) They were granted on appointment of the
Directors and are still in force Officers of wholly owned subsidiary
companies within the Group have also been granted indemnities

Powers of Directors

The powers of the Directors are determined by UK legislation and
the Articles As provided in the Articles the Directors may exercise
all the Company’s powers provided that the Articles or applicable
legisiation do not stipulate that any such powers must be exercised
by the members The Directors have been authorised to 1ssue and
allot ordinary shares, pursuant to Article 12 The powers under
Article 12 are referred to shareholders at the AGM for renewal

Appointment and replacement of Directors

The rules about the appointment and replacement of Directors are
contained in the Articles, including the rules for who is eligible to be
elected as a Director and the procedure to be followed to nominate
such persons

The Articles provide that Directors may be appointed by an ardinary
resolution of the members or by a resolution of the Directors,
provided that, in the latter instance, a Director appointed in this way
retires and stands for electionat the first AGM following his appointment




The Company’s members may remove a Director by passing an
ordinary resolution for which special notice has been qiven Any
Director will automatically cease to be a Director if (1) they resign,
(u) they offer to resign and the other Directors accept that offer

(m) all the other Directors (being at least three) require it, (v} they
are suffering from mental ill health and the Directors require them to
cease to be a Director, {v) they have missed Directors meetings for
a continuous period of six months without permission and the other
Directors resolve that they shall cease to be a Director, {vi} a
bankruptcy order 1s made against them, or they make an arrangement
or composition with their creditors, (vin) they are profubited from
being a Director by law, or {vin} they cease to be a Dwrector under
tegislation or are removed from office under the Articles

Shareholder engagement and communication

As part of our commitment to reqular dialogue, meetings have been
held between the Executive Directors and shareholders to discuss any
1ssues they wished to raise during the year The Chairman and the
Senior Independent Director are responsible for ensuring that the
Company maintains effeclive communucation with shareholders and
other stakeholders The Company intends to continue this practice

Ahead of the 2014 AGM, and to take into account the new
requirement to approve a Remuneration Policy and framework, Simon
Ball sent letters to the Company's top 20 shareholders at the time to
offer meetings to discuss the proposed Remuneration Policy Meetings
and further discussions were then held with shareholders who had
requested it, where the proposals were explained in detall Feedback
was taken from shareholders, reported back to the Board, and
appropriate amendments were made to the Remuneration Policy and
framework ahead of the AGM

AGM

The AGM will be held at 17 00am on Tuesday 21 July 2015 at the
Hilton Hotel Paddington 146 Praed Street London W2 1EE Details
of the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM are given in the Notice
of Meeting a copy of which can be downloaded at www cwe com/
investor-relations The AGM provides the Board with an opportunity
to spend time with our private shareheolders The Board will be
avallable for sharehalders to speak to before the meeting The
Charman and Chairs of each of the Committees will be avalable to
answer shareholders’ questions during the meeting

Diwvidends

The Directors recommend a final dwvidend of US2 67 cents per
ordinary share payable on 7 August 2015 to ordinary shareholders

on the register at the close of business on 29 May 2015 Ths final
dividend together with the intenim dividend of US1 33 cents per share
pad by the Company on 8 January 2015, makes a total devidend
payment to shareholders of the Company of US4 cents per ordinary
share for the year ended 31 March 2015

Internal Controls

Internal control, risk management and financial reporting

The Board is responsible for the Group s system of internal control and
for reviewing its effectiveness on a continual basis The Group's system
of internal control is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the
nisk of fallure to achieve business objectwves and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute, assurance against matenal misstaterment
or loss The concept of reasonable assurance recogrises that the cost
of control procedures should not exceed the expected benefits

The Group operates a risk management process under which the
regional businesses identify the key nisks to their plans their likelthcod
and smpact and the actions being taken to manage those risks and the
effectiveness of steps taken to mitigate them The risk register 1s
presented to the Audit Committee on a rolling 12-month basis The
principal nisks identified by the Group are set out on pages 18 to 21

The Executive Directors report to the Board, on behalf of
management, stgnificant changes in the Group’s businesses and the
external environment in which 1t operates In addibon, they provide
the Board with monthly financial information, which includes key risk
and performance indicators The Group s key internal control and
monitoring procedures include the following

+ Financial reporting each year, an annual budget 1s agreed and
approved by the Board At each Executive Tearn meeting and
each Board meeting, actual results are reviewed and reported
against budget and, when appropnate revised forecasts Senior
management within our businesses are required on a quarterly
basis to certify comphance with the Group s financial reporting
requirements

« Investment appraisal the Group has clearly defined policies for
capital expenditure These include annual budgets detalled
appraisal and approval processes

+ Monitorning systems internal controls are monitored through a
programme of internal audits The Internal Audit function reports
to the Audit Committee on its examination and evaluation of the
effectiveness and adequacy of systems of internal control Any
improvements required are identified management actions
assigned and implementation timescales agreed, progress against
these actions 1s monitored on a menthly basis and reported to the
Audit Commtrttee

« Financial and non-financial controls the Group has dedicated
resource to embed processes and controls across the businesses
It operates a number of self-assessment exeraises which include
quarterly and annual processes to certify compliance with key
financial and nen-financial controls via the Business Assurance
Checklist (BAC) The BAC requires management to assess and
certify the effectiveness of its fundamental controls over all aspects
of its operations The Group 1s committed to a process of continual
improvement in the effectiveness and efficiency of the internal
control environment

» Whistie-blowing the Group operates an Ethics Helpline whichis
administered by an independent third party and 15 available to all
employees

Effectiveness of internal controf

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control systems
in operation dunng the financial year in accordance with the revised
Turnbull gmdance These systems included financial, operational and
compliance controls, along with risk management The processes as
set out above have beenn place for the year under review and up to
the date of this Annual Report and Accounts Where appropriate
necessary action has been or is being taken to remedy any fatlings and
weaknesses identified as significant during this review

The responsibility for internal control procedures within our
subsidiaries rests with the senior management of those operations
We monitor our investments and exert our influence through Board
representation where possible
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During the year, several aspects of the business have been reviewed
and actions taken to help strengthen our system of control,
transparency and governance These have included

« Code of Conduct and Anti Bribery Policy — both of which have been
reviewed and updated m light of the restructuring of the Group
These have been communicated to all employees, and training has
been refreshed

= Establishment of a Miami operational hub - our Miami operational
hub has now been established and departments such as accounting,
legal, treasury and procurement having been refocated has helped
to streamline the division of responsibllities to allow markets to
focus on serving customers

Farr, balanced and understandable requirements

The Board has responsibility for ensuring compliance of this Annual
Report and Accounts with all elements of regulatory and governance
best practice One of the key governance reguirements is that the
Annual Report and Accounts taken as a whole 1s fair, balanced and
understandable The Directors confirm that they consider the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is farr, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's perforrnance, business modet and
strategy The following processes were adopted to assist the Board
with reaching this conclusion

«» Early preparation by management of a checklist of all reporting
components of the Annual Report and Accounts and how the
requirements have been met This is adopted by the Disclosure
Commuttee and used in reviewing the Annual Report and Accounts
befare submussion to the Audit Committee

Full review and venfication of the Annual Report and Accounts by
the Disclosure Commuttee, key stakeholders within the Company,
the external auditor, and legal adwisers to ensure consistency and
accuracy in presentation

+ Agree the main areas of focus both for the Company and investors
when drafting the Annual Report and Accounts to ensure all aspects
are thoroughly considered, and key messages are communicated in
aconsistent, fair and balanced manner

A full presentatton by the Disclosure Committee to the Audit
Commuittee on a biannual basis detailing how the Company has
reported on the business, and what considerations have been given
to the reporting requirements

The final draft of the Annual Report and Accounts is reviewed In
detail by the Audit Committee before it 1s submitted to the Board
for consideration and final approval

Auditor

So far as the Directors are aware, there s no relevant audit
mnformation (as defined in Section 418(3} of the 2006 Act) of which
the auditor KPMG LLP, 1s unaware and the Directors have taken all
reasonable steps to ascertain any relevant audit information and
ensure the auditor 1s aware of such information

Other information

Directors’ report and matters set out in the Strateqic report

The Directors report comprises pages 48 to 58 (inclusive of the
corporate governance section) and the other information in this report
that is relevant to and whichis incorporated by reference into the
Directors report Pages 2 to 41 inclusive consist of a Strategic report,

54 Cable & Wireless Communications

through which the Board seeks to present a balanced and clear
assessment of the Group's activities, position and prospects The
Group’s results for the financial year are shown in the consolidated
income statement on page 92

In accordance with section 414C(11) of the 2006 Act, the Board has
chosen to set out in the Strategic report those matters required to be
disclosed in the Directors’ report which it considers to be of strategic
importance to the Company, as follows

« Likely future developments of the Company (throughout the
Strategic report}

« Greenhouse gas emissions (page 41)

+ Research and development actwities (throughout the Strategic
report)

» Employee communication (page 41)
Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9 8 4R

The relevant information required to be disclosed by Listing Rute
9 8 4R can be located as set out below

Listingrule Descriptson of Listing Rule Reference in Report

984(1)  Astaternent of any interest Note 41 of
capitalised by the Group during the financial
the year statements'

98 4{4) Details of any long-termincentive  Directors’
scheme as described n LR 9 4 2R (2) remuneration

report

98 4(7) Detalls of any allotments of shares  Note 410 of
by the company for cash not the inancizl
previously specifically autherised statements?
by shareholders

98 4(10) Detalls of any contract of Directors’ and
sigruficance with the company in corporate
which a director has a material governance report?
interest or a contract between
the company and a controlling
shareholder

984{12) Details of any arrangement under Notes 4 12 of
which a shareholder has waved or  the financial
agreed to waive any divedends statements*

98 4(13} Details of where ashareholder has  Notes 412 of
agreed to wave future dividends the financial

staternents®

98 4{14) Informationrequiredby LR9 2 2AR  Dwectors’ and

(2)a)

corporate
governance report?

-

Please refer to page 132 of the financial statements

2 The company issued 252 812 284 new ordinary shares { Placing Shares ) of US5 cents
eachn the capital of the Company on 7 November 2014 These were placed by
Deutsche Bank AG London Branch (acting as lead manager and bookrunner) at a price
of 45 pence per Placing Share The Placing Shares 1ssued represented 10% less one
share of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company prior to placing Please refer
to page 139 of the financial statements

Please refer to pages 55 and 56

The Cable & Wizefess Communication Share Ownership Trust (the Trust ) waived its
rights to dividends held in the Trust with the exception of those held by Directors under
the deferred annual banus plan Please refer to page 142 of the finangial statements

5 Seeprevious footnote

o




The acquisition of Columbus

Following completion of the acquisitron and owing to the voting
arrangements between the Company and the Principal Vendors

(as defined and further described in the circular to shareholders dated
19 November 2014), which, subject to certain imited exceptions,
require all voting rights on the consideration shares issued to the
Principal Vendors to be exercised and all votes cast in line with the
recommendation of the Board for aninitial period, the Takeover Panel
considers that the Directors from time to ume {and therr close
relatives) will be deemed to be acting In concert with the Principal
Vendors and the Ultimate Controllers {as defined and further
described in the aircular to shareholders dated 19 November 2014)
(together, the ‘Concert Party’} The Concert Party holds
approximately 36% of CWC's share capital {(excluding treasury shares)

When any person acquires an interest in shares which (taken together
wath shares in which persons acting in concert with him are interested)
carry 30% or more cf the voting nights of a company which is subject
to the City Code and the Listing Rules certain requirements are
triggered, including

= Therequirement under Rule 9 of the City Code to make a
mandatory offer 1o all the other shareholders to buy their shares
both on imitially acquiring the interest and where therr shareholding
subsequently increases

« The requirements under the Listing Rules designed to ensure the
independence of the company from any person who exercises or
controls on their own or together with any person with whom they
are acting in concert 30% or more of the votes able to be cast on
all or substantially all matters at a general meeting (the ‘controling
shareholders’

Takeover Panel - Rule 9

On 5 December 2014, the Company’s independent shareholders
approved a waiver of obligations ansing under Rule 91 of the City
Code (the ‘Whitewash ) The effect of the Whitewash was to wave the
obligation which would normally oblige a member of the Concert
Party to make a mandatory offer to all other shareholders to acquire
therr shares following the acquisition of certain shares in the Company

The Whitewash permits up to the following numbers of interests in
shares to be held by the Concert Party without a mandatory offer
obligation under Rule 9

Maximum interest  Percentage of 1ssued

Warver n CWC shares  share capital of CWC
Waiver In respect of theissue 1,575,708,553 3632
of consideration shares
Waiver in respect of existing 12381422 029
award under the Performance
Share Plan
Waiver in respect of further 50,000,000 115
awards under the CWC Share
Plans
Walver in respect of CWC 15,000,000 035

Shares acquired by Directors to
meet shareholding requirements

Maxsmumnterest  Percentage of issued
Waiver n CWC shares  share capital of CWC

10,000,000 023

Waiver In respect of CWC
Shares acquired by Directors in
proportion to the amount that
they would otherwise have
received through the dividend
reinvestment plan

Total 1,663,089,975 3834

The Consideration Shares were issued on completion of the acquisition
on 31 March 2015 Since that date no further shares have been
acquired by any member of the Concert Party under the terms of the
Whitewash

Listing rules — controlling shareholder

In addition, CWC s required to enter into relationship agreements with
the Principal Venders and all existing and any new Directors to ensure
that its controlling shareholders comply with the provisions of the
Listing Rules which are intended to ensure the independence of the
Company from its controlling shareholders These agreements (which
were entered into on 31 March 2015) include the necessary
independent undertakings This inciudes

« Any transactions and arrangements between the Company and the
controlling shareholder will be conducted at arm’s length and on
normal commercial terms

« Neither the centrolling shareholder nor any of its associates will take
any action that would have the effect of preventing CWC from
complying with its obligations under the Listing Rules

« Neither the controlling shareholder nor any of its associates wili
propose or procure the proposal of a shareholder resolution which s
intended, or appears to be intended to circumvent the Listing Rules

With effect from the 20116 AGM CWC 15 also required to have in
place procedures to allow dual voting on the election or re-election
of the independent Directors, approval being required from both the
shareholders as a whole and the independent shareholders (being the
shareholders other than the controlling shareholders), and to include
additional information in the notice of meeting in relation to the
independent Directors As part of the Company’s commitment to
good corporate governance, the Board has decided tc implement
such dual voting arrangements at, and from, this year's AGM

CWC will report on compliance with the relationship agreements in
next year s Annual Report and Accounts

Put Option Deeds

As explained in the crcular to shareholders dated 19 November 2014,
as part of the acquisition the Company entered into lock-up and put
option agreements { Put Option Deeds ) with the Principal Venders i
respect of the consideration shares i1ssued on completion which
{(among other matters)

« Enable each Principal Vendor to either (1) require the Company to
purchase for cash up to a certain number of its consideration shares
each year from 2016 to 2019 inclusive for the notional 1ssue price
of US$0 734917 cents per share, or (u) sell up to that number of
consideration shares each year from 2016 to 2019 in the market
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(subject to orderly market arrangements with CWC) Speaific
shareholder authority for such purchases was obtained at the
general meeting held on 5 December 2014

« Grant a night to the Principal Vendors to nominate one director
each to the Board, subject to recommendation by the Nomination
Committee The initial three nominations were agreed at completion
being, John Risley, Thad York and Brendan Paddick

« Restrict the ability of the Principal Vendors to otherwise sell the
consideration shares during the period covered by the options

At the general meeting held on 5 December 2014, shareholders
granted authority to the Directors to allot, in addition to any other
authority conferred on the Directors, including at last year’s AGM
shares up to an aggregate nomimal amount equal to US$100 000 000
(representing 2,000,000,000 CWC shares of US$0 05 each) This
authority ts to enable the Company to allot new shares (if required) to
fund its payment obligations under any options exercised under the
Put Option Deeds The current intention of the Directors s to cancel
all shares bought back following the exercise of a put under a Put
Option Deed to mimimise any dilution to shareholders This authority
expires on 5 December 2019

Political donations and expenditure

The Company does not make and has no intention of making
donations to what are generally regarded as political parties within the
European Union As a precautionary measure and in ight of the wide
defimtions of European Unton political orgarusations for the purposes
of the 2006 Act aresolution was passed at the 2014 AGM permitting

Share tnformation
Company’s shareholders

the Company to make political donations and incur political
expenditure for a penod of four years ending on the earlier of the
2018 AGM or 24 July 2018 During the year, the Company did not
exercise its authonty granted to it at the 2014 AGM to make political
donattons within the European Union In aggregate, the sum of US$0
{US$0 restated for 2013/14) was made to non-EU political parties by
non-EU subsidiary comparwes during the year

Employee communication and disabihity

The Group communicates with employees in many ways, including
regular briefings by management, newsletters, emails, Team Talk Live!
events, webcasts and intranet sites These communications help to
achieve a comrnon awareness among employees of the financial and
operational performance of the Group As described in the Corporate
responsibility and sustainability section {'Focus on our People’) on
page 40, this year we have increased our employee engagement
across the Group by implementing Team Talk Live! events, measuring
employee engagement through the ‘Great Place to Wark’ surveys and
engaging on cultural and employee refated impacts ansing from the
acqusition of Columbus

Also, as described in that section our employment policies comply
with local requirenents and relevant statutes In particular, full and farr
consideration with regard to employment and training is given to
apphcants with disabilities and career development Is encouraged on
the basis of aptitude and ability It 1s Group policy to retain employees
who becomne disabled while in its service and to provide specialist
training where appropriate

As at 31 March 2015 and the date of this report, the Company had been notified of the following substantial heldings of voting rights in the
1ssued share capital of the Company in accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules

As at 31 March 2015 As at 19 May 2015

No of % of Nature of No of % of Nature of

ordinary shares voting nghts halding  ordinary shares voting rights holding

CVBI Holdings (Barbados) Inc! 788,549,081 18 18% Direct 788,549,081 18 18% Direct
Columbus Holding LLC 575,096,759 13 26% Direct 575,096,759 13 26% Direct
Orbis Holdings Limited 394,716,275 910% Indirect 390,365,353 9 00% Indirect

Contract for

Quantum Partners LP 113,183,156 407% Difference N/A below 3% N/A
Gamco Investors, Inc 165,409,680 370% Direct 165,409,680 370% Direct
Invesco Asset Management Ltd 139,872,700 322% Indirect 171,330,454 394% Indwect
Brendan Paddick 136,077,710 314% Dwect 136,077,710 314% Dwect

1 The combined sharehotding of CVBI Holdings (Barbados) inc and Clearwater Holdings (Barbados} Limited  both ultimately controlled by John Risley 1s 846 355 136 {19 57%)

Share capital

The called-up share capital of the Company, together with details of
shares allotted dunng the year, are shown in note 4 10 to the Company
financial statements

252,812,284 new ordinary shares were i1ssued on 7 November 2014
pursuant to a placing exercise led by Deutsche Bank AG London
Branch, as lead manager and bookrunner, in order to help fund

the acquisition of Columbus International Inc Subsequently, on

31 March 2015, 1,557,529,605 new ordinary shares were 1ssued
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to the Principal Vendors as consideration in connection with the
acquisttton of Columbus

In addition, at the general meeting held on 5 December 2014,
shareholders granted specific authornity to the Directors to allot
new ordinary shares in connection with the rollover or satisfaction
of awards under Columbus’ share schemes and/or other
arrangements considered desirable to iIncentivise persons holding
awards under those schemes up to an aggregate nominal amount




of US$6,500.000 As at 19 May 2015 no shares had been 1ssued
under that authority

Details of the Relationship Agreements which were entered into on
31 March 2015 between the Company and members of the Concert
Party ansing from the acquisition of Columbus International Inc can
be found on pages 55 and 56

Further details on the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 4 10 to the Company financial statements on page 140 and are
incorporated into this report by reference

Existing authonity to purchase own shares and treasury shares

At the 2014 AGM, the Company was authorised by shareholders to
purchase up to 252 mdiion of Its own ordinary shares, representing
approximately 10% of its 1ssued share capital {excluding shares held
In treasury) as at 9 June 2014 The Company did not exercrse such
authority during the year and the total number of shares held in
treasury as at 31 March 201515 137,488,873

At the general meeting held on 5 December 2014, shareholders
granted specific authonty to the Directors to purchase up to

1557 529,605 CWC shares (betng the consideration shares issued

by the Company in connection with the acquisition of Columbus) under
the Put Option Deeds This authority expires on 5 December 2019

The Board does not intend to seek shareholder approval at the
forthcoming AGM on 21 July 2015 to make additional market
purchases of its 1ssued share capital

Exercise of rights of shares in employee share schemes

The Trustees of The Cable & Wireless Communications Share
Ownership Trust (the Trust) exercise the voting rights on shares held
in the employee trust in accordance with therr fiduciary duties as
Trustees, which include the duty to act in the best interests of the
beneficianes of the Trust

Rights and obligations attaching to the ordinary shares

The following section summarises the nghts and obligations in the
Comnpany’s Articles relating to the ordinary shares of the Company
The full Articles can be found on the Company’s website

WWW CWC com

Amendment of Articles The Articles may be amended by a special
resofution of the shareholders passed at a general meeting of the
Company

voung Each share {other than those held in treasury) allows the holder
to have one vote at general meetings of the Company on votes taken
onapoll Proxy appointment and voting instructions must be receved
by the registrars at least 48 hours before the time appointed for the
holding of a general meeting or 24 hours before a poll if not taken on
the sare day as the meeting (in each case subject to the Directors
discretion to specify that the time penods exclude any part of a day
that 1s not a working day)

Divnidends The Company’s shareholders can dectare dividends by
passing an ordinary resolution, but the payment cannot exceed the
amount recommended by the Directors The Directors may also pay
interim dividends without shareholder approval If they consider that
the financial position of the Company justifies it The Directors may
operate dmvidend reinvestment plans or, subject to shareholder
approval, operate scrip schemes or pay dividends by distnbuting

assets Nodividend carries a rnight to interest from the Company
If dnidends remam unclaimed for 12 years they are forfeited by the
shareholder and revert to the Company

Partly paid shares The Company has a lien on all partly paid shares
(and dividends}, which has priority over claims of others to such shares
covering any money owed to the Company for the shares The
Directors may sell all or any of such shares where (i) the money owed
by the shareholder 1s payable immediately, (1} the Directors have
given notice demanding payment, stating the amount due and that
the shares will be sold on non-payment, and (i) the money has not
been paid within 14 clear days cf the service of the notice

The Directors may make calls on shareholders to pay any money which
has not yet been paid to the Company for their shares If acallis
unpaid, the shareholder will be liable to pay interest and all expenses
incurred by the Company as aresult of non-payment if the call
remains unpaid for 14 clear days after the date of a notice Inaddition,
failure to comply with any such notice may result in forfeiture of any
share which 1s the subject of the notice, Including any unpaid dividends

The Directors may decline to register the transfer of any shares that
are not fully paid provided that such refusal does not prevent dealings
from taking place on an open and proper basis

Sanctions Unless the Directors decide otherwise, a shareholder shall
not be entitled to vote at any general meeting of the Company or at
any separate general meeting of the holders of any class of sharesin
the Company or exercise any other nght conferred by membership in
relation to general meetings if the shareholder has not paid all
amounts relating to those shares which are due at the tme of the
meeting, or If the shareholder 1s given a notice following a fallure by
that shareholder or someone who appears to be interested in the
shares to comply with a notice under section 793 of the 2006 Act
Further, if a shareholder holding 0 25% or more of the 1ssued shares of
a class (excluding treasury shares) or interested person is n default of
a section 793 notice, the Directors may also state in the notice that (1)
the payment of any dividend shall be withheld () the shareholder shall
not be entitled to elect to receve shares in place of dividends
withheld, and (11} the transfer of the shares held by such shareholder
shall be restricted

Certificated shares The Company can sell any certificated shares at
the best price reasonably obtainable at the time of the sale f ()i a
period of 12 years at least three dividends have become payable and
no dividends have been claimed (») the Company has pubfished a
notice after the 12-year period stating that it intends to sell the
shares, and () during the 12-year period and for three months after
the notice, the Company has not heard from the shareholder or any
person entitled to sell the shares

The Directors may decline registration of certificated shares if (1) a
share transfer form s used to transfer more than one class of shares,
{n} transfers are in favour of more than four joint holders, or (u) the
share transfer formis not delivered to the office, or such other place
decided on by the Directors, accompanted by the share certificate
relating to the shares being transferred (unless the transfer s by a
person to whom the Company was not required to, and did not, send a
certificate) and any other evidence reasonably asked for by the
Directors to show entitlement to transfer the shares

Uncertificated shares The Cirectors may decline registration of
uncerttficated shares if the transfer is in favour of more than four joint
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holders or otherwise in accordance with the Uncertificated Secunities
Regulations 2001

Interests in shares Except where express rights are given, the
Company will only recogrise a current and absolute nght to whole
shares The fact that any share or any part of a share, may not be
owned outright by the registered owner is not of any concern to the
Company

US Holders The Directors may require a shareholder or other person
appearing to be interested in shares, to disclose information relating to
the ownership of such shares or to show that such shares are not held
by a US Holder (defined in the Articles as being (1} persons resident in
the US who hold shares in the Company and () persons who appear to
the Directors to fall within sub-paragraph (1) of the defimbion of a US
Holder} The Directors may require a US Holder to sell their shares to
somecne who is not a US Holder, falling which, the Company may
effect a sale of such shares on the US Holder’s behalf

Disputes Any disputes between a shareholder and the Company and/
or the Directors arising out of or in connection with the Articles shal
be exclusively and hnally resolved under the Rules of Arbitration of the
International Chamber of Commerce, as amended from time to time
In accordance with the Articles

Change of control

The Group has a number of contracts that are subject to change of
control clauses These primanly relate to financing faciites, bonds,
licences and operating agreements

Under the Group's U$$570 militon revolving credit facility agreement,
on achange of control the lenders are not obliged to fund any further
sums and, if the majority lenders require, on not less than 10 days
notice, the faciity can be cancelled and all outstanding loans, together
with related charges, become immediately due and payable

Under the terms of the 2017 US$390 million secured term loan and
the 2017 US$300 millon unsecured term loan, any lender may
require, on not less than 10 days’ notice, the repayment of any
outstanding loans, together with related charges, whereupon such
outstanding amounts become immediately due and payable

Under the terms of the US$400 millicn 8 75% 2020 senior secured
notes and the US$1 25 billion 7 375% senior unsecured noted
(together, the Notes) 1f a change of contrel event occurs, each holder
of the Notes will have a night to require the repurchase of all or any
part of their Notes at a redemption price equal to 101% of the
pnncipal amount of the Notes purchased, together with accrued

(but unpaid) Interest

A number of the Group’s operating hcences and shareholders’
agreemants include change of control clauses which may be triggered
by the sale of all or a controlling stake in a business, or certan types
of restructuring
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In the event of a change of control, these clauses may require
consideration to determine their mpact on the Group At present,
nisks arising from a change of control are not considered to be
significant The Group will take appropriate action to mitigate any risks
arising from these events should they occur Change of control
provisions in relation to Directors’ service contracts are explained in
the Directors’ remuneration report on page 73 and 74

Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to
affect its future development, performance and position are set out
in the Strategic report on pages 2 to 41 including the Group Financial
perfarmance review on pages 22 to 27 The financial position of the
Group, its cash flows hquidity position and borrowing facilities are
described in the financial statements on pages 93 to 97 Further, notes
47, 410and 4 11 to the consolidated financial statements include the
Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing its capital, its
financral sk managerment objectives, details of its financial
instruments and hedging activities, and its exposure to credit and
hquidity risk

The Directors believe that the Group’s geographic spread, robust
monitoring and forecasting processes leave it well placed to manage
its business risks in the current economic conditions In addition, the
Group's forecasts and projections taking inta account possible
changes in trading performance which could be reasonably
anticipated, indicate that the Group 15 able to operate within the level
of its current avallable facihties A formal process for monitoring
compliance with debt covenants is also in place Further information
on debt can be found in note 4 3 to the consohdated financial
statements

After reviewing budgets and other longer-term plans and making
enquiries the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable
future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis In
preparing the financial statements

[ Urctsso®!

By order of the Board

Clare Underwood
Company Secretary
19 May 2015




Independent Directors’ report

Thelast 12 months has seen a period of exceptional change far CWC,
which has required very close oversight by the Board, both at formal
Board and Board Committee meetings and in numerous additional
discussions throughout the year

Alongside the continued exercising of appropriate corporate
governance for the business, two 1ssues have dominated the Board
agenda — the ongoing transformation of the Company’s operating
model, and specifically the transfer of its operational hub from Landon
to Miam, and the acquisition of Columbus International Inc which
completed on 31 March 2015

Consistent with plans outlined by Phil Bentley at last year's AGM,

the Company’s cperational hub in Miamiis now largely established,
creating a new base for our Executive Tearn, and providing a range of
key support services and expertise including Finance, Legal, Treasury
and HR to our front line operations With more than 170 people now In
post, close to our businesses and more importantly our customers,
this 15 already having a significant positive impact on our operational
effectveness

As Miarmi and the new operating model has become more fully
established, there has been a substantial scaling down in the size of the
team in London, and a significant amount of change i personnel at every
level, ncluding amaong the Independent Directors and senior executives
To enhance our focus on operational issues, Barbara Thoralfsson
joned the Board in January 2015 With her experience as CEO of
Netcomn ASA and as a Non-executive Director of Telenor SA, Barbara
has already brought much welcomed additional industry expertise and
nsight to the Board discussions The Independent Directors have been
delghted with the appointment of Perley McBride as CFO to replace
Tim Pennington who left the Group in June 2014 More recently, Nick
Cooper, Corporate Services Director since the creation of CWC, stood
down from the Board on 31 March 2015 Nick has offered essential
continuity at Executive Director level since the departures of Tony
Rice and Tim Pennington and the Independent Directors would ke

to record expliatly their appreciation for the role he has played

The shift in the geographic centre of grawty of the Group and the
changes in personnel, while executed for the long-term benefit of the
business, have naturally given rise to a raised operational risk profile
during the transition period The management of these nsks has been
a key area of focus for both the Independent Directors and executive
management in terms of establishing essential relationships and
overseeing the detailed execution of the new operating mode!

Turning to the acquisttion of Columbus, this has brought yet more
challenge to an already busy agenda, but represents a potentially
transformational event for CWC Detalled work on the transaction
began in the summer of 2014 and has continued intensively since
that time requiring each of the Independent Directors to address the
specific operational, capital markets and regulatory risks attaching to
the transaction Speafically, Mark Hamlin has performed a wital role
during the process by spending a substantial amount of time meeting
with senior executives from Columbus who were earmarked for the
sentor tearn and providing insights to the Board as a whole as to their
capabilities and sutability o lead elements of the combined business
post acquisition Mark has also agreed to serve as a member of

a newly formed Integration Commuttee which has been set up to
oversee the tntegration of the two businesses and the synergy
capture associated with it Our people will be the key determinant of
the success of the merger and Mark’s suppert during the integration
process 1s of great comfort to the Board and vital for the success

of the project as a whole

On completion of the transaction, John Risley Brendan Paddick and
Thad York joined the Board on 31 March 2015 The introduction of
John, Brendan and Thad brings welcome additional expertise and
insights into each of the Columbus businesses the regien in which we
operate and the industry generally As with the previously referenced
personnel changes, it will bring further change to the dynarmics of the
Board which, as it focuses on the newly enlarged business will require
the Board to demonstrate continued flexibility and adaptability to
support the new Cable & Wireless Executive Team effectively

Turning now to the four questions posed annually as part of the
Company’s approach te measuning effective corporate governance

1 What 1s the quality of the relationship between the Chairman
and the Executive Directors?

with the appointment of both a new CEQ and CFO over the past

18 months, the establishment of new relationships between Executive
and Non-executive Board members has been a key feature of
2014/15 Combined with the relocation of the Group Executive hub
to Miami, whilst the Chairman and the majonity of Non-executives
were predominantly based in the UK, this has created challenges in
establishing close working practices To address these, the Boards
holding more meetings in the region than previously, extending those
vistts to incorporate meetings with the wider local management
teams, and the Charrman and CEQ have revisited some of their
processes to help embed a healthy and productive relationship Nick
Cooper's presence throughout the year has helped the Chairman to
mamtain the Company's existing corporate routines and compliance
structures, despite the significant changes n personnel

2 How open are the Executive Directors with the Board?

The nature of the operating model and transaction agenda has
necessitated close contact between the Executive Directors and

the Board on a collective and anindvidual basis throughout the year
The Independent Directors have particularly appreciated the CFO's
communication style around the refinancing of the enfarged business
following the acquisition of Columbus and the manner in which the
CEO dealt with regulatory and stakeholder considerations in our
markets

3 What s the wisibility of the checks and balances between the
Executive Directors?

Maintaining the nght checks and balances through a penod of such
significant senior management and operational change has provided
challenges The previous CEQ/CFO team had worked together for
anumber of years and their check and balance routines were well
established Our new CEQ and CFO bring different culiural and
ndustry expenence, and the refining of checks and balances through
the year has required changes in approach by the Chairrman,
Executives and the Independent Directors, who in turn have relied
on Nick Cooper to provide continuity through that process

4 Have questions asked by the Independent Directors in Board
and Committee meetings been appropriately addressed?

The Independent Directors are satisfied that questions have been
answered In a considered and effective manner throughout the year
ended 31 March 2015 and are satisfied that the corporate governance
controls of Cable & Wireless Communications

Simon Ball
Senior Independent Director
18 May 2015
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Audit Committee report

Ian Tyler
Audit Committee Chairman

| am pleased to present the Audit Committee report for the year
ended 31 March 2015 The key elements of focus of the Audit
Committee (the ‘Committee’) include financial reporting, internal
control policies and procedures for the dentification, assessment and
reporting of risk and that these remain effective The Committee
devotes significant time to each of these elements The Committees
agenda for the year ended 31 March 2015 has included the usual
review of our financial results and controls, our business operations
and the management of risk

One of the core requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code
2012 (the Code) is for the Annual Report and Accounts to provide 2
fair, balanced and understandable assessment of the Group's position
and prospects Inline with the responsibiity of the Committee
pursuant te the Code, the Committee has also assisted the Board in
confirming that this requirement has been met and that the Annual
Report and Accounts provides the imformation necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group s performance business model

and strategy

During the year, Perley McBride was appointed as the new Chief
Financial Officer The Committee 1s pleased to report that there was
a smooth transition between the departure of Timn Penrington, and
the appointment of Perley
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“The Audit Committee remained
focused on the integrity of the
Group's financial reporting, the
effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems, as
well as reviewing and assessing the
banking and financial arrangements
ansing from the acquisition of
Columbus International Inc”

Audit Committee membership
The Committee i1s compnised solely of independent Non-executive
Directors

Members Audit Committee meetings attended

lan Tyler (Charrman) 2000 4/4
Sinon Ball 2000 4/4
Mark Hamlin o°00® 444
Alison Platt 0000 4/4
Barbara Thoralfsson' o] 0N

1 Barbara Thoralfsson joined the Board on 7 January 2015 Barbara was unable to
attend the scheduled March 2015 Audit Committee meeting due to a prior
engagement which she had before joining the Company

The Board has satished itself that at least one member of the
Cormmittee has recent and reievant finanaial experience, along with

a broad commercial knowledge and is confident that the collective
expenence of the members enables them to act as an effective Audit
Committee The Commitiees also satisfied that it has the experiise
and resource ta fulfil its responsibilities effectively including those
relating to nisk and control

Meetings

The Commuttee held 4 scheduled meetings during the year ended
31 March 2015, which were held at key times within our reporting
and audit calendar

The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Group Financial Controller
Head of Internal Audit and representatives from KPMG LLP (KPMG),
the Company’s external auditor, are invited to attend all Cornmittee
meetings In May and November when the full year and half year
results are considered the Chairman is also invited to attend




The agenda for meetings ts prepared by the Committee Chairman in
conunction with the Chief Financial Officer, Group Financial Controller
and the external auditor Each scheduled meeting includes a private
session attended only by Committee members, the external auditor
and Head of Internal Audit, to provide an opportunity for open
dialogue and feedback from the Committee and auditors without
management present At each meeting the Committee then receives
reports from the Chief Financial Officer, the external auditor and the
Head of Internal Audit, together with biannual itigatton reports The

meetings of the Committee investigate the key accounting, audit and
risk 1ssues that are relevant to the Group The muxture and experience
of its members assists in providing a challenging environment in which
these jssues are debated The table below detalls the key matters

on the agenda throughout the year In addition to these matters,

the Commuttee has also reviewed and considered aspects of the
acquisition of Columbus, especially in respect of the inancing and
debt arrangements

Financial Reporting

Internal contro! and compliance  External Auditors

Governance and other matters

May « Fullyear results « Littgation Report « External Auditor « Compliance with UK Corporate
» Annual Report + Going concern review independence Governance Code
« Prehminary Results + Internal Control « Full year external audit » Review of professional fees
Anncuncement Framework Review report « Disclosure Committee Review
September « External Auditor Plan » Accounting Palicy Review
« External Auditor
Evaluation
« Audit Tendering
November « Interim Results « Litigation Report o Half Year External Audit  « Acquisition update and
Announcement + Going concern review Report financing

+ Internal Audit and Risk

Update

Treasury Review
+ Tax Risk Review

March « Insurance Update

« Audit strategy (including Acquisitron update including

+ Risk Management
Framework Review
+ Internal Audit Evaluation

impact of the acquisition
of Columbus)

financing arrangements and
impact on year end
Terms of Reference Review

« Internal Audit Plan

Non-Audrt Fees Policy Review

Role of the Committee

The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility for
overseeing the financial reporting, internal risk management and
control functions and for making recommendations to the Board In
relation to the appointment of the Company's external auditor The
Committee meetings take place prior to Board meetings and the
Cormmittee Chairman reports to the Board, as a separate agenda item,
on the activities of the Comnmuttee and matters of particular relevance
for approval by the Board

The Terms of Reference set out the authority of the Committee to
carry outits duties

The principal duties of the Committee include

« Tomonitor the integrity of the financial statements and
announcements relating to inancial performance, and review
significant judgements contained in them

To review and momitor the effectiveness of internal controls internal
audit and nsk management systems

Toreview and approve the internal audit programme, ensuring
adequate resources and co-ordination with external auditor

Tomonitor the financial reporting process and the effectiveness of
the statutery audit of the Annual Report and Accounts

To review and monitor independence and perforrmance of the
external auditor, recommend 1ts appointment reappointment and
removal to the Board as appropriate and develop palicy in relation
to the provision of non-audit services

» To monitor resources of the financing team to help ensure they
are adequate

The Commuttee undertook a review of its objectives and terms
of reference during the period and the full terms of reference are
available at www cwc com

Main activities of the Commuttee during the year

Financial reporting

The Committee reviewed the half year and full year financial statements
with management and the external auditor with particular focus on

« The appropriateness of the Group's accounting policies and
practices

« Comphance with financial reporting standards and relevant financial
and governance reporting requirements

« Material areas in which significant judgements have been applied or
there has been discusston with the external auditor

« The nature and discfosure of exceptional items

+ Whether the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is farr,
balanced and understandable and provides the infarmation
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s performance,
business model and strategy

« Any carrespondence from regulators in relation to cur financial
reporting
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Audit Committee report continued

The significant 1ssues considered by the Committee in relation to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 are set out Inthe
following table, together with an explanation as to how the Committee addressed each issue

Significant issues

How the Committee addressed these issues

Acquisition Accounting (see accounting policy 5.1.3, critical accounting estimates and

judgements 5.2.7 and note 3.11)

On 31 March 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of
Columbus for an imitial consideration of US$2,121 million
(including the fair value of the put options - see Note 3 11) There
were also anumber of smaller acquisitions completed during
the year

Judgement s requuired 1n assessing the consideration transferred
mcluding the methodology used for valuing the shares and put
opuions as partof the acquisition There was also significant
judgementn valuing the identifiable Property, Plant and
Equipment (PPE) and intangible assetsand acquired assets

Given the close proximity to vear end of the acquisition of Columbus,
the acquisition accounting 1s preliminary and will be updated
dunng the 12 month period of FY 2015/16 to allow finalisation

of the acquisition accounting valuation and analysis exercise

Management worked with external valuation consultants to assist
with the methodology for the consideration transferred in relation
to shares and put options

The methedology and judgements were discussed with the
Commuttee in relation to the valuatien of the share consideration
transferred and the put options that were fair valued as part of
the acquisition

In relation to the preliminary fair value adjustments identified by
the external valuation consultants forintangible assets and PPE,
key assumptions included discountrates, growth projections and
plans for the acquisition were debated with the Commuttee

Following consideration and after receiving satisfactory responses
to the questions raised by Committee members, the Committee
agreed with management’s initial acquisition accountng

Impairment of gopodwill, PPE, intangibles and assets held for sale (see accounting policy
5.1.5, critical accounting estimates and judgements 5.2.1 and note 3.4)

‘The Group has recognmsed anumber of impairment charges1in
respect of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), primarilyin the
Caribbeanregion, in current and previcus years Assessment of
the carrying value, which necessitates making projections of
future cash flows, 1s subjective and requires significant judgement

‘The impairment recognised in the current year relates to
technology advancements in the Caribbean from upgrades
undertaken as part of Project Marlin and from the acquisition of
Columbus where certain infrastructure and networks in the
overlapping markets are redundant
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The Committee considered the carrying value of all the Group's
non-current assets Whilstit was clear that there was sigmficant
headroom in the valuations of goedwill, attention was focused
on Canbbean PPE and the carrying value of the Group's equity
investment in Teleccommunications Services of Trinidad and
Tobago (TSTT)

Management discussed with the Committee the impact of the
acquisition of Columbus on the overlapping markets within the
Caribbean Keyassumptions for this analysis include discount
rates and plans for the businesses The Commuittee was presented
with analysis of valuations performed by management on the
impatrment and discussed the findings with management

In relation to TSTT, there was a reclassification for investment

m associate to equity investment dunng the year due to the
conditions attaching to the regulatory approval obtained from

the Telecommumnications Authonty of Trimidad and Tobago for the
acqusition of Columbus which requires the Group to divest ofits
interest 1in TSTT The Commuttee was presented with an analysis of
valuations performed by management in respect of the Group’s
mvestment in TSTT Key assumptions, including discount rates, the
impending divesture process, EBITDA multiples and recent market
transactions were debated The report of the external auditor also
provided analysis including the sensiivity of headroom calculations
to changes1n key assumptions

Following consideration and after receiving satisfactory responses
to the questions raised by Committee members, the Commttee
agreed with management’s proposal that an impairment charge
was necessary for Caribbean PPE but ho impairment charge was
necessaryinrelation to TSTT




Sigmficant issues

How the Committee addressed these 1ssues

Valuation of trade receivables and accrued income (see accounting policy 5.1.4, critical
accounting estimates and judgements 5.2.2 and 5.2.3 and note 3.1)

At US$330 million, trade receivables represent a significant asset
Accrued income, at US$84 mullion, represents contractual revenue
recogrused in advance of billing Assessing the recoverability of
these amounts requires a high degree of judgement and analysis

Ateach meeting, the Commattee receives detatled reports

from management analysing the ageing trends across different
categories of receivables and accrued income 1n the business

The Committee considered the coverage provided by the
provisions proposed by management and the residual balances
outstanding at 31 March 2015 Included in the trade recevables
balance was the addition of Columbus recervables Having
examined the informauon provided, the Committee discussed
with management the recoverability of any unprovided balances,
particularly those owed by governments

As a key focus of the external audit, KPMG also provided the
Committee with their analysis and conclusions on recoveramlity
Having considered all the information presented, the Committee
satisfied themselves as to the recoverability of trade recervables
and accrued income recognised in the accounts

Revenue recognition (see accounting policy 5.1.14, critical accounting estimates and

judgements 5.2.3 and note 2.1)

Judgement s required in assessing the apphication of revenue
recogmtion principles Thisincludes the allocation of revenue
between multiple deliverables, such as the sale of a handset or set
top box together with an ongoing service contract in a bundled
package or management services contracts that have complex
contractual arrangements

The Group has well developed internal accounting revenue
recognition guidance govermngthe services and products sold

1n our operating units These policies comply with IFRS and are
updated annually, reviewed by the external auditor and approved
by the Commuttee All operatingunuts are required to comply with
these policies and provide periodic sign off on complhiance

The Commuittee received reports from both management and the
external auditor which discuss the accounting treatment apphed
torevenue contracts

Following these reviews the Commuittee was satisfied that the
Group’s criteria for revenue recognition had been met

Disclosure Committee

To assist the Committee with the above, responsibility for identifying
and considering disclosure matters in connection with the preparation
of all market releases contaning matenal finanoial and other price
sensitive information has been delegated to a Disclosure Committee
This committee comprises members of senior management from
finance, legal, company secretarial, nvestor relations and
communications

During the preparation of the Annual Report and Accounts, the
Disclosure Committee obtains certifications from contributors prior to
the document’s review by the Comrmittee and approval by the Board

The Board receives an update from the Disclosure Committee in
advance of each meeting as part of the Company Secretary’s Report
The Committee reviews the workings of the Disclosure Commuttee on
an annual basis Meetings of the Disclosure Committee were
scheduled during the year to consider and review the preparatron of
the Annual Report and Accounts to enable the Committee to assist

the Board in makmg ther statement confirming that the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as awhole, 1s fair balanced and
understandable Additional meetings were scheduled te consider and
review the market announcements which were necessary as a result
of the acquisition of Columbus

Internal control

A review of the Company s system of internal controls and how they
are implemented by the regional business uruts was undertaken The
Committee was focused on the need to promote improverment of
internal controls and devoted time in each meeting to do this 1n
order to discuss progress and action plans in place to improve the
effectiveness and efficiency of the internal control environment,
particularly in parts of our Canbbean business the Committee found
it useful to have representatives of Group Executive management
internal and external auditors and representative of local
management teams attend perodically
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Audit Commuittee report continued

The acquisition of Columbus was completed on the final day of the
financial year As such, the scope of the Committee’s evaluation of the
system of internal controls of the Group excluded consideration of the
system of internal controls at Columbus International Inc

Risk management

A review of the nsk management framework process and its
implementation was undertaken The Committee received reports on
the Group’s sk management process, changes to significant risks at
an operational and Group level and how these are managed

In addition, the Committee reviewed the status of Group hitigation at
the half year and full year and also undertook a review of tax strategy
and risk, tax and treasury policies and Group Insurance cover

Internal audit

Internal Audit 15 led by the Head of Internal Audit, supported by a team
of in-house auditors based in the US and Jamaica, and supplemented
by a third party to provide specific skills as required During the year,
the Committee approved the internal audit plan The scope, extent
and effectiveness of the plan was then momtored and reviewed
throughout the course of the year

At each meeting, the Committee received an update on snternal audit
activities, progress against the internal audit plan, the results of any
unsatisfactory audits and the action plans to address these areas

The Committee also reviewed the effectiveness of the in-house audit
team, the co-source arrangements taking into consideration the
transfarmational activity during the year and the change in Head of
Internal Audit Peniodically the Committee Charman meets separately
with the Head of Internal Audit which provides further opportunity to
explore mternal audit findings

Whistle-blowing

The Company provides an Ethics Helpline which 1s administered by an
independent third party and s availlable to all Group employees viaa
web-portal or by telephone This provides a mecharusm for employees
to raise concerns where they either do not feel comfertable raising the
matter with local management or they are not satisfied with the local
management response A report on the use of the whistle-blowing
hothne s provided at each Committee meeting

External audit

Audit effectiveness

The Committee places great importance on the quality and
effectiveness of the external audit Whilst important for any company,
the Committee believes this is of particular concern given the Group's
geographic spread The Committee receives a detaled audit plan at
the start of each audit cycle which includes the external auditer s
assessment of key audit nisks These risks are tracked throughout the
year and used to test management assumptions in these areas

Audit quality 1s assessed throughout the year by reference to the
quality of the reports received by the Commuttee, the calibre of senior
members of the audit team and the level of challenge provided to
management Specific importance was placed on the evolution of
KPMG s planned audit approach to incorporate the impact of the
acquisition of Columbus including acquisition accounting and financing
in addition, the annual assessment of the performance of the external
auditor was undertaken at the September Committee meeting

This comprised
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« Asurvey of Committee members and key colleagues, both financial
and non-financial involved in the audit

» Analysis of KPMG's capabilities and independence

« Review of the results of independent quality reports on KPMG and
other audit firms

« Discussions with KPMG, sentor management and Internal Audit

To assess the effectiveness of the external auditor, the Commuttee
reviewed

« Areport outhning KPMG'’s response to the annual assessment and
the specific measures planned to ensure a continual improvement in
the external audit

» The arrangements for ensuring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity

+ The external auditor’s fulfilment of the agreed audit plan and any
vanations from the plan

The rabustness and perceptiveness of the external auditer in their
handling of the key accounting and audit judgements

+ The content of the external auditor’s reporting on internal control

This process allows the Committee to monitor and assess the
perfarmance of the external auditor and informed the Committee’s
recommendation to the Board for the reappointment of KPMG

Auditor ndependence

KPMG was appointed as auditor of the Company during the financial
year 2009/10 and alsc acted as auditor of Cable and Wireless plc from
1991 There are no contractual obligations restricting the Company's
choice of external auditor

The Committee has established policies to maintain the independence
of the external auditor and its personnel and to govern the provision
of audit and non-audit services provided by the external auditor and
its associates Permitted and prohibited services are clearly identified
along with the processes to be followed for the approval of all audit
and non-audit services All engagerments with an expected fee in
excess of US$250,000 requtre the prior approval of the Committee
Chairman and to be reported to the Committee

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Committee approved fees for
audit services of US$3 5 million, together with fees for audit-related
regulatory reporting of US$0 4 million and non-audit work of US$1 O
rmilion The nature of the services provided 1s set outinnote 2 3 2 to
the consolidated financial statements There 1s no imitation of hability
in the terms of appointment of KPMG as auditor to the Company

In line wath ethical standards published by the Auditing Practices
Board, the external auditor 1s required to rotate the audit engagement
partner responsible for the Group audit after a maximum pertod of five
years Accordingly, Peter Meehan rotated off the engagement
foltowing the conclusion of the 2013/14 audit and after discussions
with the Charrman and other members of the Committee John
Edwards succeeded Peter Meehan as the audit engagement partner
responsible for the 2014/15 audit

Audit tendering
During the year, the Committee considered the Group's position on Its
audit services contract with KPMG taking into account the Code, the




EU Audit Regulations 2014 and the Statutory Audit Service Order
2014 1ssued by the UK Competition and Markets Authonity, and the
Guidance for Audit Committees 1ssued by the Financial Reporting
Council In the context of tendering the external audit contract at
least every tenyears

KPMG has been the auditor of the Group since the demerger from
Cable & Wireless Worldwide Plc in 2010 and also prior to this The
Group has not undertaken an audit tender in the last ten years During
the year the Committee considered the appropriateness of a tender
process, and in doing so, consideration was given to

() The sigrficant transformation currently angoing across the Group
from the refocus on a single geography in the Caribbean and Latin
America, and the establishment of the new operational hub in
Miarmi, and to come as a result of the acquisition of Colurnbus
International Inc

(1) The performance of KPMG and the findings fram the annual
auditor effectiveness assessment, and

() Anaudit partner rotation which took place in May 2014

The Committee concluded that a tender during the year ended

31 March 2015 was not In the Group's interest in particular due to the
fundamental changes to the business The Board has therefore
accepted the Committee’s recommendation that KPMG should be
retained for the financial years ended 31 March 2015 through

31 March 2017 to help provide stability with the evolution of the
Group The Committee will continue to reconsider its position annually
inight of the guidance and regulations pursuant to which the
Company would be required to rotate its auditor before the AGM

Iin 2021

This report should be read in comunction with the Directors and
corporate governance report on pages 48 to 58

lan Tyler
Chairman Audit Committee
19 May 2015
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Nomination Committee report

“The Nomination Committee 1s proud
that the Company has been able to
attract people of the calibre and skill
of Perley McBride as Chief Financial
Officer and Barbara Thoralfsson as
a Non-executive Director to join the
Board. We have great confidence In therr
vast experience to help guide the Group
through a time of significant change”

Sir Richard Lapthorne, CBE Role of the Committee

. . . » Review the composition of, and succession to, the Board
Nomination Committee Chairman
» Undertake formal and ngorous review of Board member candidates,

particularly taking into consideration the expenence, skills and
knowledge of the individuals

« Recommend to the Board the appointment of Executive and
Non-executive Directors

« Ongoing assessmenit of the overall balance and performance of
the Board

» To ensure that the balance of the Board and its committees s
consistent with good corporate governance and complies with the
mirimurn requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code

The Terms of Reference set out the prinaipal duties of the Committee
in full, Including its authority to carry out these duties These can be
found at www cwe com
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Meetings

The Nomination Commuttee met on three occasions during the period
1 Aprit 2014 to 31 March 2015 The attendance of each Committee
member is noted in the diagram below

Members Nomination Committee meetings attended

Members

Sir Richard Lapthorne, CBE 00 3/3
Simon Ball [ 11 3/3
Mark Hamlin o0 3/3
Brendan Paddick’ 0/0
Alison Platt o000 3/3
John Risley' 0/0
Barbara Thoralfsson? o] 01
lan Tyler o0e® 3/3
Thad York? 0/0

1 Brendan Paddick tohn Risley and Thad York were appointed to the Board with effect
from 31 March 2015 and therefore did not attend any scheduled meetings during
the year

Barbara Thoralfsson was appointed to the Board with effect from 7 January 2015 and
was unable to attend a scheduled meeting as a result of a prior engagement that was
in place before joining the Company

(%)

Main activities during the year

Appointment of the Chief Financial Officer - following the
appointment of our new Chief Executive Officer, Phil Bentley, the
Committee began to consider the experience and skills needed of

a Chief Financial Officer to complement our new strategic direction
Russell Reynolds Associates, an external recruitment agency that has
no other connection with the Company undertook a global executive
search, having been briefed in full by the Committee regarding the
qualities they were expecting of the short-listed candidates The
agency identified two preferred candidates, and after conducting

a thorough review of both the Committee recommended Perley
McBride to the Board The Committee was in full support of Perley’s
appointment due to his strong attributes and extensive knowledge of
the sector and financial experience Perley then met with the Directors
and was subsequently appointed to the Board with effect from

26 June 2014

Appointment of a Non-executive Director — the Committee
considered the need to strengthen the Board further by the
appointment of an additional Non-executive Director, particularly
during a time of change Barbara Thoralfsson was recommended to
the Board by Alison Platt who had been impressed by Barbara's sector
experience and cultural background Following separate meetings with
the Chawman Alison Platt, ian Tyler and Nick Cooper the Committee
recommended the appointment of Barbara, as it was felt she would be
a positive addition to the Board due to her knowledge and experience
of the telecoms sector Barbara was subsequently appointed to the
Board and the Audit Nomination and Remuneration Committees on

7 January 2015

As a result of the acquisition of Columbus, Brendan Paddick, John
Risley and Thad York were appointed as Non-executive Directors on
31 March 2015 after approval by the Board

In addition to the work by the Committee on appointment of
Directors, and ahead of the acquisition of Columbus International Inc,
Mark Hamlin undertook extensive research on behalf of the Board,
mostly with regard to the Columbus executives to ensure that on

completion of the acquisition of Columbus, the incoming Cable &
Wireless Executive Teamn had the necessary skills and ability to
perform therr new roles within the Company effectively

Board diversity

The Board continues to be supportive of Lord Davies’
recommendations on board diversity The Board understands the
importance of diversity, including gender and recognises the
importance of women having greater representation in senior roles as
evidenced by the appointment of Barbara Thoralfsson, and the various
appointments of women to semor executive roles throughout the
Company as a whole The Board remarms resolute in 1ts policy that the
search for Board candidates will continue to be conducted, and
appointments made, with due regard to the benefits of diversity on
the Board Where appropriate, specialist search consultants will be
engaged to assist in the search for suitable candidates However, all
appointments to the Board are ultmately based on merit, measured
against objectwve critenia and the skills and experience the individual
can bring to the Board taking into account a number of factors
including the existing size of the Board, the balance of Executive and
Non-executive Directors, as well as the existing skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity already represented, and the likely future
requirements Assuch the Board does not consider that it 15
necessary to set any formal measurable objectives in relation to
diversity at this juncture

The composition of the Board, including the balance of skills,
independence knowledge and diversity of the Board, will be reviewed
annually as part of the Board evaluation process

Sir Richard Lapthorne, CBE
Chalrman, Nomination Committee
19 May 2015
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Directors’ remuneration report

Simon Ball
Remuneration Committee Chairman

Annual Statement by the Chairman of the

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commuttee (the ‘Committee’) has been busy this
year on many fronts reflecting the significant level of change in the
orgamisation In the following questtons and answers format, we
highlight some of the topics considered by the Committee during
the 2014/15 financial year and the facus of activity for the year
ahead By way of summary, we confirm that we have operated pay
arrangements for the three executive directors fully inine with the
policy appreoved by shareholders at the July 2014 AGM

What are the key issues that we have dealt with this year?
2014/15 has been a year of significant corporate and management
change We completed the acquisition of Columbus International Inc
in March 2015 n the run up to which we formulated potental
retention arrangements for key Columbus executives joining the
Group post acquisition We also considered and reviewed our overall
reward framework to ensure that it remains fit for purpose for the
enlarged Group A sertes of Corporate acquisiions and disposals,
including the disposat of our Monaco operation and the acquisition of
Sonitel In Panama, required the Commuttee to revisit the validity of the
Annual Incentive Plan (AlS) targets for 2014/15, and a similar process
of review and adjustment took place with regard to the EPS targets
for the January 2013 LTIPs given the disposal of our operations in
Macau and Monaco & Islands during the performance pernod
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“We have operated pay arrangements
fully in ine with the policy approved
by shareholders, and our remuneration
strategy over the medium and long
term remains fully aligned with the
Company'’s strategic objectives”

On an operational front, we reviewed and approved the remuneration
package for Perley McBride prior to his appointment as CFO on

26 June 2014, conducted a risk review of our remuneration
arrangements and reviewed and approved the pay arrangements

for the wider senior executive tearmn

How 1s remuneration aligned with delivering Group strategy?

A primary objective of the Committee s to operate a remuneration
framework which successfully promotes the long-term success of the
Company The Group strategy put in place last year focuses on four
strategic objectives of growing top line revenue, mantaining cost
efficiency, increasing returns on capital and delivering unparalleled
customer service Our remuneration strategy over the medium and
long term rernains fully aligned with these strategic objectwes The
acquisition of Columbus has accelerated, but not fundamentally
changed, our strategy and the initial view of the Committee s that
our reward strategy remans appropriate We will, of course, keep this
under review in the coming months

What 1s the remuneration package for our new CFO?

Onjoining the company Perley McBride's package was set at a base
salary of US$600,000 per annum a pension allowance of 25% of
salary, annual bonus oppartunity of 150% of base salary, annual LTIP
award of 200% of salary, an accommodation allowance of US$78,000
per annum for a maximum of two years and benefits broadly in line
with other US based employees




What bonus/LTIP awards have been earned for financial year
2014/15?

2014/15 saw the Group deliver revenue growth of 4% year on year
(2% on a tke-for-like basis) EBITDA grew more strongly by 7% against
the prior year This has resufted in bonuses accruing below target for
revenue achieved and above target for EBITDA achieved When
combined with performance against personal and Net Promoter Score
{NPS) targets, this has resulted in bonus payments for the Executive
Directors of between 104 5% and 110% of salary, set against the
rmaximum benus opportunity of 150% of salary Full details of

2014/15 performance against annual bonus targets are set out on
pages 80to 81

Hawving seen zero LTIP vesting in each of the last three years,
exceptionally, this year, two LTIP awards granted for financial years
2011/12 and 2012/13 have vested The performance condition for the
awards made on 2 June 2011 (the award for financial year 2011/12}
was based on absolute TSR performance to the end of May 2014 The
performance conditions for the awards made on 14 January 2013
were relative TSR and EPS measured to the end of March 2015

The LTIP awards granted on 2 June 2011 achieved the maximum
performance target of 14% per annum TSR and therefere 100%
of the shares subject to that award vested

The LTIP awards granted on 14 January 2013 with performance
measured over the three years to 31 March 2015 achieved a TSR
performance greater than the highest ranked company in the
comparator group and an adjusted EPS CAGR of greater than 10%,
and consequently 100% of the shares attributed to the award will vest

Further details on LTIPs are provided on page 82

What are we changing for the year ahead?
Wae are making no changes to the salanes, bonus opportunities or level
of LTIP award for the Executive Directors

The Committee's Terms of Reference have been reviewed to ensure
that they remain appropriate for the new organisation post the
acquisition of Columbus and we have incorporated robust withholding
and recovery pravisions into our LTIP and AlS plans to ensure
consistency with the best practice expectations of investors The
acquisition of Columbus will necessitate adjustments to some of the
existing LTIP targets to ensure that they reflect the enlarged business
and so that the same degree of stretch s maintained

How have we engaged with shareholders?

The Committee actively seeks to engage with shareholders and values
highly the contribution their views can make in the process of
formulating remuneration policy decisions During the year, the
Committee engaged with the Company's major shareholders on a
number of remuneration 1ssues, including the remuneration packages
for Phil Bentley and Perley McBride, and the operation of our ncentive
arrangements in the context of the move to Miami The shareholders
who replted were supportive of our approach and we also
incorporated some of the suggestions received The Directors’
remuneration report clearly demonstrates that we are committed to
fostering an environment where remuneration s strongly hinked to
perfarmance and where our Executive Directors’ remuneration
arrangements are directly aligned with our shareholders

As always, we continue as a Committee to welcome any feedback
you may have

What 1s 1n the rest of this report?
The report 1s split into two sections

+ Key parts of our Directors’ Remuneration Policy, which was
approved by sharehalders at the 2014 AGM, and which summarises
the framework for remuneration and each of its elements, have
been ncluded again in this repoert for information only As there
are no changes proposed to the policy, it will continue in force as
previously approved and not be subject to a vote at this year's AGM,
but will be put to shareholders again for approval no later than the
AGM to be held In 2017

An annual report on remuneration, which provides details on the
following

- Implementation of remuneration policy for financial year
2015/16

- The remuneration earned in respect of performance during the
financial year 2014/15, along with details of any share awards
made during the year

The annual report on re
will be put to shareholdeds fgrja
21 July 2015

neration along with the annual statement
dvisory vote at the AGM on

Simon Ball
Remuneration Commit

Policy

This part of the Directors’ remuneration report sets out an abnidged
version of the Reruneration Policy (the ‘Policy’) which was approved
by shareholders at the AGM on 25 July 2014 The Policy tock formal
effect from the date of approval and is intended to apply for the three
years begtnning on the date of approval

Where references were made in the Policy last year to specific

levels of pay in 2014/15 (e g the reward scenartos charts which
incorporated salary levels effective 1 April 2014), these have been
updated so that the report can be read in the context of the 2015/16
financial year

A full version of the Policy can be found in the 2013/14 Annual Report
and Accounts {pages 58 to 67) on the Company’s website
WWW CWC Com

The overall aum 1s to establish remuneration structures which
encourage, reinforce and reward the delivery of outstanding business
performance measured against a basket of operational KPIs Thisis
underpinned by the following guiding principles

« The nisk and reward structure must mamntain an overall algnment
with the interests of shareholders

+ Executive Directars are encouraged to maintain a very significant
personal investment in the shares of the Company

« Theres a strong fecus on performance-related pay

+ Targets should be appropnately stretching and adequately reward
the Directors if they meet or exceed the targets set under the
variable components of their remuneration packages
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Summary Remuneration Policy table for Executive Directors that tock effect from the AGM on 25 July 2014

Element

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Base salary

Recruit and retain high-calbre individuals
to execute the Group’s business strategy

Reflect the value of the ndvidual and role
Reflect experience and expertise

Provide an approprate level of fixed basic
Income

Reviewed annually, effective 1 April

Set imtially at a level required to recrt suitable Executive Directors
reflecting ther expenience and expertise or to reflect up to, but not
above, mid-market levels If promoted internally

Any increase determined by

— Role experience and personal performance
— Average change in total workforce salary

— Total organisational salary budgets

— Company performance

— External economic conditions

Pay of other employees in relevant geographies (particularly the
UK and US) taken into account periodically

Annual bonus

To incentivise the annual delivery of
objectives relating to the business strategy

Rewards the achievement of stretching
annual financial, strategic and personal goals

Compulsary deferral of part of bonus into
shares provides further continuing alignment
with shareholders

All bonus payments are at the discretion of the Committee

+ Not pensionable

« Targets are reviewed annually

« Half of gross bonus paid m shares deferred for 12 months

During the deferral pertod the shares carry dividend nghts and any
dividends awarded are also deferred during the deferral penod

Remainder of bonus paid in cash

Claw back provisions apply to the deferred bonus such that it can
be reduced in the event of restatement of the Company’s accounts
resulting from fraud, error or misrepresentation or any 1ssues of

a nature which have a significant effect on the performance of

the business

Long Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP)

Intended to ahgn Executive Directors
performance closely with shareholders and
with key strategic objectives over the longer
term

The LTIP was approved by shareholders in 2011

+ Awards of free performance shares are normally granted annually

in the form of restricted share awards or nil cost options

Vesting s dependent on performance targets being met during the
performance period and the continued service of the Executive
Directors

A dividend equivalent provision exists which allows the Committee
to pay dividends accrued duning performance period on vested
shares at the time of vesting in the form of additional shares

Pension

Provide long-term savings through
retrement benefits

Contribute to the provision of an appropriate
balance in the overall package between fixed
and variable income

Executive Directors may choose to receive an employer’s pension
contribution or pension cash alfowance
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Maximum cpportunity

Framework used to assess performance

« Annual increases generally in line (in percentage of salary terms)
with those of the wider workforce

« Increases beyond those granted to the wider workforce (in
percentage of salary terms) may be awarded in certan
orcumstances such as where there 15 a change in responsibility,
experience or a ssgnificant increase in the scale of the role and/or
size, value and/or complexity of the Group

« Where new joiners or recent promations have been given a
starting salary at a discount to the mid-market level, a series of
increases above those granted to the wider workforce (in
percentage of salary terms) may be awarded over the proceeding
few years, subject to satisfactory individual performance and
development in the role

» Salary levels at 1 April 2015 are set out onpage 77

+ The Commuttee considers (but not necessarily alters) the salanies of

Executive Directors each year taking due account of all the factors
described in how the salary policy operates

» Upto 150% of salary for all Executive Directors dependent on
performance

« Seeannual bonus — arrangements for Corporate Services Director
for finanoal year 2014/15 on page 81

Details of the performance targets set for the year under review
and performance against them s provided in the annual report on
rermuneration atong with cutline details of the metrics for the next
financial year

Banus 1s based on the achievement of a range of strategic and
personal objectives and targets relating to our key performance
indicators

Financial measures derived from the operating plan will represent
at least 50% of bonus with other measures representing the
remainder Measures and weightings may change each year to
reflect any year on year changes to business priorities

25% of each element of the bonus vests for a threshold level of
performance nising to 50% vesting for ‘on target” performance and
100% vesting for maximum performance Performance between
threshold, on target and maximum will be calculated on a straight
line basis

« Maximum of 400% of salary per annum

« Normal award policy currently set at up to 200% of salary
although higher awards may be made in exceptional circumnstances
such as recruitment

» See annual bonus — arrangements for Corporate Services Director
for inancial year 2014/15 on page 81

Awards will vest based on a range of challenging targets relating
primarily to financtal measures and total shareholder return based
performance measured over athree year period

Targets relating to other key non-financial objectives (e g net
promoter score) may also be included for a minonity of an award

At least 50% of an award will be based on financial measures, at
least 25% based on total shareholder return, and the remaining
25% based on either financial total shareholder return or other
non-financial measures

25% of each element of the LTIP vests for a threshold level of
performance rising to 100% vesting for maximum performance

« Employer's defined contribution and/or pension cash supplement
up to a total of 25% of salary

N/A
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Summary Remuneration Policy table for Executive Directors that took effect from the AGM on 25 July 2014 continued

Element Purpese and link to strategy

Operation

QOther benefits « Provide competitive employee benefit
programme to help recruit and retain

employees

« Directors are entitled to benefits including health insurance, long-term
disability insurance, life assurance personal accident msurance
holiday pay and other group-wide benefits offered by the Company

« Inaddition, travel related expenses and overseas accommodation
will be provided where necessary

« Car/driver provision provided as applicable

« Qther benefits including relocation expense, benefits relating to
working In Miami and expenses relating to financial planning may be
offered, as appropriate

Annual bonus — + With specific regard to providing executive

arrangements for continuity and retaining/incentivising Nick
Corporate Services Cooper over the financial year 2014/15
Director for financial

year 2014/15

« This arrangement is for financial year 2014/15 only

« 50% of the annual bonus will be in accordance with the annual
bonus operation detailed above The remaining half will be subject
to the key strategic objective of the development of the new
regional Miami hub and the reshaped operating model

Explanatory notes to the Remuneration Policy table

What i1s our annual bonus plan and LTIP policy?

The annual bonus plan and LTIP will be operated according to the rules
of each respective plan and consistent with normal market practice
and the Listing Rules The quantum and performance targets
applicable to awards will be within the parameters described above
Subject to that, the Committee has certain flexbility and the ability to
exercise judgement in a number of areas

Choice of performance measures and approach to target setting

The performance metrics and targets that are set for the Executve
Directors via the annual bonus plan and LTIP are carefully selected to
provide a clear link between our incentive arrangerments and our
strategic objectives of Top Line Growth, Profitability, Customer
Satisfaction and Returns The precise metrics chosen, along with the
weightings of each, may vary in line with the Company’s evolving
strategy The Committee will review the performance measures and
targets each year and vary them as appropnate to reflect the priorities
for the business in the year ahead

Share ownership requirement

The Committee s policy is to have shareholding requirements for the
Executive Directors which create greater alignment between their
interests and those of shareholders and reduce the potential for
behaviours and actions which are not beneficial for the long-term
health of the organisation

The required level 1s set at up to 400% of salary Where the holding 1s
not already attained it 1s required to be achieved through retention of
shares or the vesting of awards (on a net of tax basis) from share plans

Reward scenarios

The Company s Policy results in a sigmificant propertion of
remuneration received by Executive Directors being dependent on the
Company's performance The chart below illustrates how the total pay
opportunities for the Executive Directors vary under three different
performance scenanes minimum, on-target and maximum for
2015/16 The chart is indicative only as no assumed share price
movement or dividend accrual has beenincluded
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Executive Director total remuneration at different levels of performance (Emy}
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Maximum opportunity

Framework used to assess performance

« The value of benefits may vary from year to year depending on the
cost to the Company

N/A

« Upto 300% of salary {1e notin addition to the normal 150% of
salary bonus) for Nick Cooper The enhanced bonus 1s1n hieu of him
receiving an LTIP grant for financial year 2014/15 of 150% of
salary, so overall in net terms his pay potential will remain
unchanged from the pnor year

+ Detalls covering metrics for the financial year 2014/15 bonus are
provided in the annual report on remuneration

» Further bonus I1s based on the achievement of key strategic
cbjectives

Approach to recruitment and promotions

The remuneration package for a new Executive Director would be
set in accordance with the terms of the Company's Policy in force at
the tme of appointment as detalled on pages 70 to 73 This Palicy
limits LTIP awards to 4 x salary in exceptional circumstances such

as recruitment The Committee may offer additional cash and/or
share-based elements when it considers these to be in the best
interests of the Company and shareholders Any such payments would
be based solely on remuneration relinquished when leaving a former
employer and would reflect (as far as possible} the nature and time
horizons attaching to that reruneration and the impact of any
perfarmance conditions Replacement share awards If used will be
granted using the Company s LTIP (up to the overall it of 400% of
salary) to the extent possible Awards may also be granted outstde of
the Company’s existing LTIP if necessary and as permitted under the
tisting Rules Shareholders will be informed of any such payments at
the time of appointment

The annual bonus would operate in accordance with the terms of the
approved Policy, but with the opportunity for the year of joining
pro-rated for the period of employment Depending on the timing and
responsibilities of the appointment 1t may be necessary to set
different performance measures and targets in the year of joining

For an internal Executive Director appomtment, any vanable pay
element awarded in respect of the prior role would be allowed to pay
out according to its terms, adjusted as appropriate to take into
account the appointment Inaddition any other ongoing remuneration
obligations existing prior to appointment would continue

For external and internal appointments the Cormmittee may agree
that the Company will meet certain retocation and living expenses
as appropriate

For the appointment of a new Chairman or Non-executive Director
the fee arrangement would be set In accordance with the approved
pohcy in force at that time

Service contracts and loss of office payments

Service contracts normally continue until the Executive Director’s
agreed retirernent date or such other date as the parties agree
The Company's policy 1s that Executive Directors will be employed
on a contract that can be terminated by the Company on giving no
more than 12 months’ notice with the Executive Director required
to give 12 months’ notice of termination

An Executive Director’s service contract may be terminated without
notice and without any further payment or compensation except for
sums earned up to the date of termination, on the occurrence of
certain events such as gross misconduct The circumstances of the
termnation (taking mto account the indwidual’s performance) and
an indwidual's duty and opportunity to mitigate losses are taken into
account by the Committee when determining amounts payable on
or fallowing termination The Committee’s normal policy is to reduce
compensatory payments to former Executive Directors where

they receive remuneration from other employment during the
compensation pertod The Committee will cansider the particular
crcumstances of each leaver on a case by case basis and retain
flexibility as to at what point, and to what extent payments would
be reduced
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Any share-based entitlements granted under the Cornpany's share
plans will be determined on the basis of the relevant plan rules

The default treatment 1s that any outstanding awards would lapse
on cessation of employment However, under the rules of the LTIP

In certain prescribed circumstances, such as death, redundancy
disability, retirement, the company business umit employing the
individual ceasing to be part of the Group or other circumstances at
the discretion of the Committee (taking into account the individual’s
performance and the reasons for their departure), good leaver” status
can be applied In these circumstances a participant’s awards vest on
a time pro-rated basis and further are subject to the satisfaction of
the relevant performance critena aver the onginat performance
period with the balance of the awards lapsing

The Committee retains discretion to decide not to pro-rate, to

alter the basis of time pro-rating and to alter the date on which
performance is calculated if it feels such decisions are appropriate

in the particular crcurmnstances If, however, the terrmination of
employment is not for one of the specified good leaver reasons, and

if the Committee does not exercise its discretion to allow an award to
vest, a participant’s awards will lapse in full In determining whether an
Executive Director shoufd be treated as a good leaver, the Commuittee
will take into account the performance of the individual and the
reasons for their departure QOther than for US participants, shares
deferred through the annual bonus plan will vest immediately on
cessation of employment other than on cessation of employment

for cause inwhich case they will lapse For US tax reasons, shares
deferred through the annual bonus plan for US participants will vest
on the earlier of the date that Is six months following the cessation

of employment and the date of death of the participant

In the event of a takeover of the Company, a scheme of arrangement
or similar other major corporate event, LTIP awards will only vest to
the extent that any performance conditions have been met at the
date of the event, as determined by the Committee [nsuch an event
LTIP awards wili only vest pro-rata to the length of time that has
elapsed between the date of award and the date of the relevant event,
unless, in appropriate circumstances the Committee determines
otherwise Other than for US participants any deferred bonus share
awards will vest m full and cease to be capable of forfeiture in the
event of any such major corporate event during the 12 month deferral
period For US tax reasons notwithstanding a major corporate event
occurring during the 12 month deferral period, the deferred bonus
share award for US participants will remain autstanding and will only
vest on the earlier of the expiry of the 12 month deferral period and
the date of death of the participant However, the early vesting of
awards following a change of control will not apply where a company
acqurres control of the Company and following that acquisition the
shareholders of the Company immedately prior to the acquisition
between them hold more than 50% of the issued share capital of the
acquiring company, unless the Committee decides that the foregoing
vesting rules should apply

The Company retains the ability to pay what it feels 1s an Executive
Director s reasonable legal fees associated with agreeing hus/her
termination and In relevant circumstances cutplacement services and
related costs
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In summary, the contractual provisions are as follows

Provision Detailed terms

Notice period Maximum of 12 months

Termination payment  Payment in lieu of notice of base salary,
normally subject to mitigation and paid
monthly?

In addition, any statutory entitlements
would be paid as necessary

Remuneration
entitlements

A pro-rata bonus may also become payable
for the period of active service along with
vesting for outstanding share awards
(incertain carcumstances — see above)

In all cases performance targets would apply

Change of control Payments on a change of control, where a
Director’s employment 1s adversely changed,
will be as on termination There will be no

enhanced provisions on a change of control?

1 Notwithstanding the Company s normal policy the Committee retains the flexibility
in exceptional circumstances to make lump sum termination payments (up toa
maximum of 12 months base salary and contractual benefits) as part of an Executive
Durector s terminatkion arrangements where it considers it apprepnate to do so

2 The service contracts provide that in the event of terrmimation without cause and/for
2 change of control of the Company and an Executive Director s employment being
adversely changed then a payment equal to base salary for the notice period and a
time pro-rated annual bonus will be payable For Phil Bentley all benefits will cease
with the exceptionof life cover and medical insurance which will continue for a peniod
of up to six months or earher if anew job 1s commenced and the Company will pay any
casts associated wath the early termination of housing and <ar provisionin the US




Summary Remuneration Policy table for Non-executive Directors

Element

Purpose and ink to strategy

Qperation

Maximum appoertunity

Base Fees

To provide competitive
fees in order to attract
and retain high-calibre
individuals with the
relevant skills and
experience to enhance
the Board

-

The Chairman'’s pay is determined by the
Committee and the pay of the other Non-
executive Directors 1s determined by the Board,
within the limits set out in the Company’s
Articles of Association, with the Chairman and
Non-executive Directors abstaiming from any
discussion or decision on their fees

The Chairman and Non-executive Directors are
pard an annual fee and do not participate in any
of the Company’s Incentive arrangements or
receive any pension prowvision

The fee levels are reviewed on a periodic basis,
with reference to the time commitment of the
role and market levels in companies of
comparable size and complexity

In respect of the Charrman in particular, the
Company also considers the indwidual s profile
and experience

Fees for 2015/16 are
Chairman £386 000 per annum

Non-executive Director £65,000 per annum

Additional Fees

Toreflect the
additional time
required when an
indmdual chairs 2
committee oris
apponted as Sermor
Independent Director

Fees are reviewed annually

The Chairman 1s not eligible to receive
additional fees

Fees are benchmarked and set in a manner
conststent with the base fees (see above)

Additional fees may be payable for additional
responsibilities such as chairing commttees or for
the Senior Independent Director role The fees for
the forthcoming year are set out in the annual
report on remuneration

Both the base and additional fee levels will be
elgible for increase during the three year period
that the Remuneration Policy operates to ensure
they continue to appropriately recognise the tme
commitment of the role, Increases to fee levels for
Non-executive Directors in generat and fee levels
In companies of a similar size and complexity

Benefits

Contractual
arrangements and
rembursement of
reasonable expenses

Reimbursement of business expenses on
production of receipts

« Limited benefits relating to travel,

accommodation and meals for Non-executive
Directors will also be payable in certain
arcumstances

The Chairman may be provided with car-related
benefits

The value of benefits/expenses may vary from
year to year depending on the cost to the
Company
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual report on remuneration

The annual report on remuneration s spht nto two sections The first
section provides detalls on the implementation of the Remuneration
Polcy for financial year 2015/16 and the second section from page
79 onwards prowvides details on the remuneration earned in respect
of performance during the financial year 2014715, along with details
of any share awards made during the year

Implementation of Remuneration Policy for financial year

2015/16

Executive Directors’ service contracts

Effective date of
service contract

Notice pericd

The Company allows Executive Directors to hold external
directorships subject to agreement by the Chairman on a case by case
basis and allows the Executive Directors to retain fees receved from
theseroles

Charrman’s service contract

The Charman has a service contract with 12 months’ notice of
termination on either side There are no other contractual
entitlements on early terrmnation or following a change of control

Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment

The Non-executive Directars do not have service contracts with the
Company, but instead have letters of appointment Non-executive
Directors are permitted to have other external appomntments, but
these should not adversely affect the ability of the Non-executive

Phil Bentley 1 January 2014 Notice canbeserved  practor to perform his/her duties Non-executive Directors are
by either party on NOt  appointed for an initial three year term with the expectation that a
less than 12 months”  ¢rther three year term wall follow After two three year terms, the
notice continued appointment of any Non-executive Director may be

Perley McBride 23 June 2014 Notice can be servad  €xtended on an annual basis on recommendation of the Nomination
by either party cnnot Committee Termination of the appointment may be earlier at the
less than 12 months  discretion of either party on one month’s written notice Non-
notice executive Directors are not entitled to any compensation +f their

appointment s terminated Appointments will be subject to annual
re-election at the AGM 1n accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

Effective date of Last extension of Unexpired term of appointment at

iitial appontment appontment letter 31 March 2015 Notice period

Sir Richard Lapthorne’ 25 January 2010 N/A® N/AS 12 months

Simon BalP?? 25 January 2010 1 May 2014 1 month 1 month

Mark Hamlin 1 January 2012 1 January 2015 2 years, 9 months 1 month

Brendan Paddick 31 March 2015 - 3 years 1 month

Alison Platt! 1 June 2012 - 2 months 1 month

John Risley 31 March 2015 - 3 years 1 month

Barbara Thoralfsson 7 January 2015 - 2 years, 9 months 1 month

lan Tyler 1 January 2011 1 January 2014 1 year, 9 months 1 month

Thad York 31 March 2015 - 3 years 1 month

1 Appointment date shown from date of demerger in 2010 Originally appointed as Chawman to the former Cable and Wireless plc on 10 January 2003

2 Appointment date shown from date of demerger 1n 2010 Oniginally appointed as a Non-executive Director to the former Cable and Wireless plc on 1 May 2006
3 Appointment has been extended from 1 May 2015 unti the 2016 AGM
4 Appointment will be extended for a further three years from 1 June 2015
5 The Chairman has a service contract with 12 menths notice
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Salary
No salary increases will be granted to Executive Directors in financial
year 2015/16

The current salanes as at 1 Aprit 2015 are as follows

Salary at

1 April 2014 or

on appointment Salary at

to the Board' 1 Apnl 2015 % Increase
Phil Bentley £800,000 £800,000 No Increase

Perley McBride' US$600,000  US$600,000  Noincrease

1 Perley McBnde joined the Company on 23 june 2014 and was appointed to the Board
©n 26 June 2014

Pension and other benefits

Executive Directors may choose to receive either a cash allowance of
25% of their base salary an employer's pension contribution at the
rate of 25% of base salary or a combination of a cash allowance and
employer’s pension contribution with a combmed value of 25% of base
salary An Executive Director is not required to pay any pension
contributions

The Executive Directors participate in employee benefit programmes
including life cover, income protection and health insurance plans For
Phil Bentley an annual accommodation/car allowance in Miarm 1s
provided to recognise the time periods spent between the UK and US
For Pertey McBride an annual accommodation allowance 1s provided
for a pertod of up to two years or until such time as he relocates to
Miami on a permanent basis whichever I1s the earler, and he Is tax
equalised on any of lis CWC income which is taxable in the UK

Annual bonus

The operation of the benus plan for financial year 2015/16 will be
consistent with the framework detailed in the Policy The measures
have been selected tc support the key strategic objectives of the
Company alongside a number of personal objectives

The maximum bonus opportunity will continue to be 150% of salary
for the Executive Directors

What are the measures for the annual bonus for financial year
2015/167

For the financial year 2015/16 the measures adopted and thew
respective weighting for the annual bonus are detailed below

Weighting of
measure

Measure Ratwonale out of 100%

This measure reflects our 25%
ability to delier sustainable
long-term growth and will
encourage innovation and
investment to gain a greater

share of customers’ telecoms
wallet

Revenue growth

EBITDA (US$m)} This measure seeks to 25%
incentivise our business

operating effectiveness,
encouraging cost control and

operational gearing

Net Promoter Score This measure tracks custormer 25%
(NPSY service and advocacy,
improvements n which
deliver an increase in the
lifetime value of our customer
relationships

Personal performance Targets specific deliverables  25%
and behaviours by each
indmiduat This will be a basket
of measures, encompassing
the how’ as well as the ‘what’

1 There will continue to be a mimmum EBITDA underpin to the NPS element of the
annual bonus whereby the NPS element of the annual bonus will only pay out provided
that the minimum EBITDA AlS target has been achieved

Given the commercial sensitivity of the financial and personal
performance targets we will not at this stage be providing details on
the specific targets for the financial year 2015/16 1t s our intention
to report the targets and performance achieved in next year's annual
report on remuneration except to the extent that they remain
cemmercially sensitive However we can confirm that the bonus plan
will have three data points minimum target and maximurn A range
will be set based on the annual operating plan, whereby 25% of each
of the financial measures will be paid for threshold performance 50%
for target performance and 100% for stretch performance

Bonus will accrue on a straight ine basis between the threshold, target
and stretch levels

For bonuses awarded from 2015/16 we have introduced recovery
provisions for a period of two years on the cash element of the bonus
and a further period of one year’s recovery on the portion of the
bonus deferred into shares for a year These prowvisions will take effect
in the event of restatement of the Company’s accounts resulting from
fraud error or misrepresentation or any ssues of a nature which have
a significant effect on the performance of the business
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

LTIP
The LTIP award levels for Phil Bentley and Pertey McBride in the
2015/16 financial year will be 200% of salary

What are the measures for the LTIP for the financial year 2015/16?
For the LTIP for financial year 2015/16, the measures to be appled
and their respective weightings are as follows

Weighting of
measure
Measure Rationale out of 100%
CWC Revenue Same as for annual bonus 18 75%
CWCEBITDA 18 75%
Net Promoter Score' 18 75%
CWC Economic Profit This measure indicates 1875%
whether we are creating
value in excess of our cost of
capital and ensures that our
capital programme 15 targeted
on delivering sustainable
profitable growth
Relative TSR This measure recognises 25%

that while our operational
measures will deliver business
progress, shareholders are
only remunerated through
improvement in share price
and dividends paid

1 There will continue te be a minimum EBITDA underpin to the NPS element of the LTIP
whereby the NPS element of the LTIP will anly pay out prowided that the minimum
EBITDA LTIP target has been achieved

Similar to the annual bonus, at threshold, interim and maximum,

25%, 50% and 100% of each portion of the LTIP award vests The
Committee will exercise (ts discretion on any adjustments which may
be required as a result of disposals and/or acquisitions during the
performance perniod For the improvement in NPS measure there will
be an EBITDA underpin whereby this element of the LTIP will not pay
out for the Executive Directors if the munimum three year EBITDA LTIP
target s not achieved Agamn due to the commercial sensitivity of the
targets we will not be disclosing them at the outset but will do so after
they cease to be commercially sensitive

25% of the LTIP will be based on relative TSR measured against
the FTSE 250 with 25% of the award vesting at threshold (median
ranking) nsing on a straight ine basis to full vesting at upper
quartile ranking

For awards to Executive Directors from 2015/16 we have introduced
recovery pravisions for a period of two years after vesting such that
awards can be clawed back in certain aircumstances inciuding the
restatement of the Company’s accounts including as a result of fraud
error or misrepresentation or any 1ssues of a nature which have a
significant effect on the performance of the business

78 Cable & Wireless Communications

Share ownership requirements
The required share ownership levels to be achieved will continue to be
as follows

CEO 400% of salary

CFO 300% of salary

Chairman’s fee

The Charman’s annual fee of £386,000, effective from his
appointment as Chairman of Cable and Wireless plc in January 2003
was reviewed by the Committee in March 2015 and will remain
unchanged for financial year 2015/16 The Chairman recewves a cash
allowance of £5 500 per month in lieu of the prowvision of a car

Non-executive Director fees
The fee levels of the Non-executive Directors were also reviewed in
March 2015 and no increases were approved for the coming year

The annual fees (which are based in sterling) payable to each
Non-executive Director for financial year 2015/16 are shown inthe
table below

Base feein sterling Additional fees insterling

Simon Ball 65,000 20,000
Mark Hamlin 65,000 20,0007
Brendan Paddick 65,000 -
Alison Platt 65,000 -
John Ristey 65,000 -
Barbara Thoralfsson 65,000 -
lan Tyler 65000 20,0007
Thad York 65,000 -

1 Additional fee for role of Senor Independent Director Deputy Charman and
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

2 Addiuienal fee for membership of the Integration Committee and acting as Alternative
Charman of the Integration Committee which oversees the integration CWC and
Columbus Further information on the Integration Cornmittee I1s available on page 51

3 Additonal fee for role as Charman of the Audit Commuttee




Directors’ total remuneration table
The table below shows the aggregate emoluments earned by the Directors of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc during the period 1 April
2014 to 31 March 2015

Value of Value of Pension Other
Salaries Benehts in LTP for LTIP for cash cash
and fees kind' Banus? 20112 2012/13*  allowance®  allowances® Tota!
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Chairman
Sir Richard Lapthorne 2014/15 386,000 46,262 - - - - 93,074 525,336
2013/14 386,000 44125 - - - - 85912 516037
Executive Directors
Phil Bentley” 2014/15 800,000 126,018 880,000 - - 200,000 410,582 2,416,600
2013/14 200,000 46653 284,055 - - 50000 117078 697,786
Nick Cooper® 2014/15 375,000 8,891 954,375 1,100,388 1,107,311 93,750 2,814 3,642,529
2013714 375,000 18,097 521,250 - - 93,750 11,908 1,020,005
Perley McBride®* 2014/15 291,766 56,756 304,847 - - 72,942 37,632 763,943
2013/14 - - - - - - - -
Non-executive Directors
Simon Ball 2014/15 85,000 771 - - - - - 85,771
2013714 85,000 447 - - - - - 85,447
Mark Hamlin 2014/15 85,000 1,268 - - - - - 86,268
2013714 65 000 1,235 - - - - - 66,235
Brendan Paddick™ 2014/15 250 - - - - - - 250
2013/14 - - - - - - - -
Alison Platt 2014/15 65,000 376 - - - - - 65,376
2013714 65 000 491 - - - - - 65,491
John Risley™ 2014/15 250 - - - - - - 250
2013/14 - - - - - - - -
Barbara Thoralfsson'® 2014715 15,333 880 - - - - - 16,213
2013714 - - - - - - - -
lan Tyler 2014/15 85,000 275 - - - - - 85,275
2013/14 85,000 1433 - - - - - 86433
Thad York™ 2014/15 250 - - - - - - 250
2013/14 - - - - - - - -
Total 2014/15 2,188,849 241,497 2,139,222 1,100,388 1,107,311 366,692 544,102 7,688,061
Total 2013/14 1,261,000 112,481 805 305 - - 143,750 214898 2537434

1 Benefits in kind include car and fuel benefits chauffeur proviston benefits associated with travel accommodaticn and relocation the cost of medical insurance and income
protectioninsurance and the tax settled by the Company in relation to those benefits

2 With the exception of Mick Cogper half of the bonus 1s patd in cash and the other half 1s deferredinto shares for one year and subject to claw back at the discretion of the

Commuttee These shares will count towards each Executive Director s shareholding requirement For Perley McBnde bonus pard is calculated on annual salary and s pro-rated for

the period 23 June 2014 to 31 March 2015 For Nick Cooper his bonus oppertunity for financial year 2014/15 was 300% of salary as detated in the policy report on pages 70 to

73 with half the bonus (up to 150% of salary) in accordance with the ordinary annual bonus arrangements for 2014/15 and the remaining 50% {up 10 150% of salary) awarded in

lieu of an LTIP grant and subject to the key strategic objective of the development of the new regional Miarmi operatronal hub and the reshaped operating model

This column represents the cash equivalent value of the LTIP award granted 2 tune 2011 (for the financial year 2011/12) with performance measured over 3 period of three years

from the date of grant and which vested in full on 2 June 2014 as detailed on page 82 Based ona closing share price of £0 52125 on 5 June 2014 {the date of vesting)

4 This column denctes the cash equivalent value of the LTIP award granted on 14 January 2013 (for the financial year 2012/13) wath performance measured over the peried 1 April

2042 to 31 March 2015 The performance conditions of relative TSR and EPS have both been achieved at the maximum level as detaled on page 82 As the shares have not vested

at the date of thisreport the average share price for the three month penod to 31 March 2015 of £0 55104 has been used to calculate the cash equivalent value The amount

mchides renvested davidends accrued to 31 March 2015

Company pension contributions i financial year 2014/15 and finangial year 2013714 have been paid to the Executive Duectors as either an annual cash allowance and/or employer s

pension contributions An amount of £21 million (2013/14 = £20 million) 1s included in the net pensions deficit fgure In note 3 10 to cover the cost of former Executive Directors

pension entitlernents

Phil Bentley was prowided with expatriate allowances relating to a car and accornmodation (£358 188) and the tax hability for expatnate benefits ncurred while vingfwarkmg

n Miarmi Nick Cooper also receved a cash allowance tosettle the tax labilities on benefits relating to lving/warking in Miamu For Richard Lapthorne the cashallowance 1s.in part i

leu of a company car {£66 000) and the remainder refates to the settlement of the tax hability on benefits For Perley McBride the £37 632 relates to an accommodation allowance

7 Phil Bentley was apponted as Director effective 1 January 2014

8 Nick Cooper stood down from the Board en 31 March 2015

9 Perley McBride joined the Company oo 23 June 2014 and was appointed to the Board on 26 Jung 2014

10Barbara Thoralfsson was appainted to the Board on 7 January 2015

11 Brendan Paddick John Risley and Thad York were appointed to the Board on 31 March 2015

12 The Dwrectors total remuneration table is presented in sterling and the US amounts paid to Perley McBride have been converted to sterling using the average exchange rate of $1
£0 6293 for the tax year 2014/15

w

v

[+)]
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Payments to past directors/Loss of office 2015, he recewved his normal salary pensicn cash contnibution/

Tony Rice stood down from the Board on 31 December 2013 Under allowance, healthcare (£547) to his leave date and a cash allowance to
the terms of his exit he remaimed an employee on garden leave until settle the tax labiity in respect of healthcare benefits for the period
30 June 2014 During the penod to 31 March 2015 he continued to On 2 June 2014 the financial year 2011/12 LTIP award vested in full
recewe healthcare (£456) and life cover up until 30 June 2014 Cn and the cash equivalent value of the LTIP attributable to Tim

2 June 2014 the LTIP award attnibutable to Tony Rice for the financial  Penmington on vesting was £2 200 779

year 2011/12 vested in full and the cash equivalent value of the LTIP

on vesting was £3,081,092 In addition the LTIP award granted on Details of variable pay earnedn financial year 2014/15

14 January 2013 for the financial year 2012/13 whose performance s Annual banus payments

measured over the period 1 Aprit 2012 to 31 March 2015 will vestin 2014715 saw the Company deliver revenue growth of 4% year on
full As the shares have not vested at the date of this report the year (2% on a like-for-like basis) EBITDA grew more strongly by 7%
average share price for the three month period to 31 March 2015 has  against the prior year

been used to calculate the cash equivalent value of £2 755 977

twhich includes reinvested dvidends accrued to 31 March 2015) The tables below detall the bonus composition, bonus target ranges

and how the Executive Directors have performed against each of

Tim Pennington stood down from the Board on 11 February 2014 and  these targets The targets and actual performance are measured at a
left the Company on 2 June 2014 During the period to 31 March fixed exchange rate to avoid currency fluctuations having a bearing on
the financial performance

Bonus composition for financial year 2014/15

Bonus measwres Revenue EBITDA Net Promoter Score (NPS) Personal performance
% of bonus opportunity Up to 25% of bonus Up to 25% of bonus Up to 25% of bonus Up to 25% of bonus
{out of 100%) opportunity opportunity opportunity opportunity
% of salary Up to 37 5% of salary Up to 37 5% of salary Up to 37 5% of salary Up to 37 5% of salary
{out of 150% of salary)

Financial benus targets and performance for financial year 2014/15

financial year 2014/15

Bonus targets Threshold Target Stretch performance

Revenue Target (US$m) 17397 17935 1,8204 1,759 8'
% of salary payable  938% 18 75% 375% 12 9%

EBITDA Target (US$m) 5675 5850 5838 586 &'
% of salary payable  938% 18 75% 375% 221%

NPS? Target +2 NPS points on CWC  +4 NPS points on CWC 45 NPS points on CWC NPS score of 22 which s

NPS baseline of 16 NPS baseline of 16, NPS baseline of 16 +6 NPS paints on CWC
NPS basehne of 16

% of salary payable 9 38% 1875% 375% 375%

1 Financial year 2014/15 performance revenue and EBITDA has been calculated at a fixed exchange rate
2 The NPS underpin of EBITDA being tugher in 2014/15 than the prior year s performance has been achieved with EBITDA at US$581min 2014/15 versus US$546m in 2013/14 on
alike-for-like basis
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Personal performance targets and performance for financial year 2014/15

Performance against personal targets Personal performance achieved

Phil Bentley Phil has completed what has been a transformational year for CWC Aside 375% out of 375%
from the acquisition of Columbus International Inc, he has delivered top line
growth for the first time in five years and achieved the US$100 million cost
reduction plan we committed to achieve by end of 2014/15 He embedded
NPS within the business with visible improvements in customer engagement
across all our markets and grew our B2B capabilities through the creation of
anew B2B function, the acquisition of Sonitel and secured new business in
Peru and El Salvador The Executive Team has been strengthened with the
appointment of the new CFO and the key hires from the Columbus
management team

Perley McBride Perley was instrumental in obtaining the necessary financing for the 32% out of 37 5%
acquisitton of Columbus International Inc He delivered the US$100 million
cost reduction plan and supported Phil in delivering top line growth Onan
operational front, he has identified additicnal Opex savings from the
acquisstion, and during the transition activities to Miarmi ensured that key
personnel in London were retained with dual running for defined periods in
order to mintmise operational nsk

Nick Cooper Nick managed the transfer of operations to the Miami office by establishing ~ 32% out of 37 5%
the Miami HR team and ensuring that key personnel were retained in London
to support with the transfer of knowledge He embedded the Pic
governance systems and processes into the Miami office, ensuring the
smooth running of the Board in a year where an unprecedented number of
1ssues were dealt with He also played a key role tn the legal and regulatory
negotiations on the acquisitton of Columbus

Bonus payments for financial year 2014/15

% of salary % of salary % of salary % of salary
payable for payable for payablefor  payablefor  Totalbonus  Totalbonus

Revenue EBITDA NPS personal  payableasa paid out

performance performance performance performance % of salary of 100%

Phil Bentley 129% 221% 375% 375% 110% 733%
Nick Cooper 129% 221% 37 5% 320% 104 5% 69 7%
Perley McBride' 129% 221% 375% 320% 104 5% 69 7%

1 Bonus paid s pro-rated for the penied 23 June 2014 to 31 March 2015

For financial year 2014/15, Nick Cooper was eligible for a bonus opportunity of up to 300% of salary as outlined in the Policy table on pages 70
to 73 50% of the bonus (up to 150% of salary) was based on the normal bonus performance for financial year 2014/15 as shown above with
the remaining 50% of bonus {up to 150% of salary) subject to the key strategic objective of the development of the new Miami operational hub
and the reshaped operating model and was n lieu of him receiving an LTIP grant for financial year 2014/15 The Committee considered the role
which Nick played in the delivery of this key strategic objective as follows

« The bullding of management capability in the new Miami operational hub including the recruitment of key senior executives including the new
CFQ, Perley McBride

« The provision of executive support and continuity for Phul Bentley duning Phil's first full year in the CEQ role

« Ensuning continuity for the Charman and the Non-executive Directors during the transition, and acting as a key adviser to the Charman
throughout the process

Downsizing the London Head Office from in excess of 120 peaple to less than 25 people at year end ‘

Transferning certain London Head Office actiities to Miarmi whilst ensuring that all corporate and governance routines were
maintained throughout

The Committee concluded that this portion of the bonus would be paid in full
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Long-term incentive awards earned in financial year 2014/15

On 2 June 2011, performance share awards equal to 1 5 times base
salary were granted to Nick Cooper (under the previous performance
share plan) which were capable of vesting on the third anniversary of
grant on 2 lune 2014 subject to achieverent of the performance
conditions

The performance targets and vesting schedule for this award were

Total Shareholder Return (TSR} over

performance period % of award vesting
14% compound p a or higher 100%
Between 8% compound p a and Straight line between
14% compound p a 0% and 100%
8% compound p a or lower 0%

The Company s TSR over the performance period at 16 7% compound
per annum exceeded the maximum performance target therefore the
shares vested in full duning the financial year 2014/15

On 14 January 2013, a performance share award equalto 1 5 times
base salary was granted to Nick Cooper and other Executives at that
tme This award was based 50% on relative TSR against a comparator
group camprising companies predominantly from the European
Telecoms sector and 50% on compound annual growth in EPS This
award was the LTIP award for 2012 which would ordinarily have been
granted in June 2012 after the announcerment of our full year results
for 2011/12 However because of the disposals of our Monaco &
Islands operations we were In an extended closed period and the next
available opportunity to grant this award was in January 2013 The
performance period for this award was 1 Apnil 2012 to 31 March
2015 The performance targets and vesting schedule for this award
are detailed below

TSR performance targets

Company s TSR ranking within the

Comparator Company List! Percantaga of the TSR element to vest

Upper quartile or above 100%

Between median and upper 25%-100%

quartile on a straight Iine basis
Median 25%

Below median 0%

1 The comparator group for the award 1s France Telecom BT Group Telecom Italia KPN
Kan Deutsche Telekom Telefonica Belgacomn Swisscom R Telekormn Austria AT&T
Partugal Telecom
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EPS performance targets

Company s CAGR over the
performance period Percentage of the EPS elernent to vest
10% or above 100%
Between 5% and 10% 25%-100%
ona straight line basis
AL S% 25%
Below 5% 0%

As aresult of the disposal of our Macau, and Manaco & Islands
businesses and the proceeds recerved from those businesses not
being reinvested into new businesses during the performance period,
the Committee considered how to assess EPS performance given the
significant proportion of EPS attrnibuted to the disposed businesses at
the time the targets were set The Committee concluded that
adjusting both the EPS performance vesting range and actual EPS
performance to recognise the divestments during the performance
period was the farest approach to adopt in that we were maintaining
the principle of applying the 5-10% CAGR per annum to the baseline
EPS but only for the period during which we owned the respective
businesses Simitarly in applying the same adjustment methodology
to the actual EPS performance, we have ensured that the degree of
chaltenge is no greater or smaller than was intended in the onginal
targets This was more challenging than simply measuring
perfarmance for the continuing business against the 2011/12 starting
point Against the adjusted EPS targets, the adjusted EPS performance
was In excess of 10% CAGR dunng the performance period The
Company’s relative TSR ranking has also exceeded upper quartde
during the performance period, and therefore 100% of the shares
will vest

Detarls of historic awards granted to Executive Directors under the
LTIP are summarised in the table on page 85, and the cash equivalent
value of the LTIPs detailed above are included in Directors’ total
remuneration table on page 79




Long-term incentive awards granted in the year

Details of awards made to Executive Directors under the Performance Share Plan in the year ended 31 March 2015 are as follows

Scheme Award level Award date Face value Vesting period Performance conditions
Chief Executive PSP 201 200% of 29 May £1,600,000 Three year Performance against five measures,
Offcer — salary 2014 performance EBITDA, Revenue Net Promoter Score
Phil Bentley penod (NPS), Econornic profit and relative TSR
Chief Financal 200%of  30June  US$1,200000  °ERISOY  Relative TSR will account for 25% of the
Officer - salary 2014 {which at the pr LTIP (out of 100%) with the remaining
Perley McBride time of grant four targets representing 18 75% each of

was asterling
equivalent of
£707046)

the LTIP (out of 100%)

There will be a minimum EBITDA underpin
to the NPS element of the LTIP, whereby
the NPS element of the LTIP will only pay
out provided that the minimum EBITDA
LTIP target has been achieved

Given the commercial sensitivity of the
three year financial targets we will not be
disclosing the EBITDA Revenue and
Economic profit targets until the end of
the performance period For NPS the
range for vesting between threshold and
maximums an NPS improvement of
between +6 to +12 from the baselne For
TSR below median ranking against the
comparator group no shares will vest,
with vesting nsing from 25% to 100% for
a TSR ranking of between median and
upper quartile The comparator group of
companies comprises France Telecom, BT
Group Telecom ltalia, KPN Kon, Geutsche
Telekom Teleforwca Belgacom

Swisscom ‘R, Telekom Austria, AT&T

and Portugal Telecom

For the purposes of the awards TSR will be calculated using a one month average share price at the beginuing and end of the performance
period in order to moderate the effect of short-term volatiity The share price for the award to Phil Bentley was £0 5457, being the average
closing share price of the Company for the five business days commencing on 21 May 2014 The share price for the award to Perley McBnde
was £0 4868, being the average closing share price of the Company for the five business days commencing on 23 June 2014 Both
Performance Share Awards were granted in the form of restricted share awards and a dividend award supplement will apply to awards that
vest in accordance with the rules of the plan
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Share ownership

As at 31 March 2015, the Executive Directors’ shareholding requirements had been exceeded by Phil Bentley and Nick Cooper but had not yet
been met by Perley McBride Where the holding is not already attained it 1s required to be achieved through retention of shares or the vesting of
awards (on a net of tax basis) from share plans

As a result of the acquisition of Columbus, the Takeover Panel considers that the Directors from time to time (and their close relatives) will be
deemed to be acting in concert with the Principal Vendors and the Ultimate Controllers (as defined and further described in the circular

to shareholders dated 19 November 2014) (together, the ‘Concert Party ) Consequently, there are restrictions on the acquisition of shares in
the Company by any Director Further information regarding the Concert Party can be found on page 55 of the Corporate Governance Report

There has not been any change in the Directors’ interests in shares from 31 March 2015 to 19 May 2015

Directors’ interests in shares as at 31 March 2015

Benefcially owned

shares as at % shareholding Performance Share

31 March 2075 or  Unvested deferred requirement Share Purchase Planshares Tota! Interest in

date of resignation bonus plan shares! achieved? Plan (unvested) (unvested)? share plans
Chairman
Sir Richard Lapthorne 9,000,000 - - - - -
Executive Directors?
Phil Bentley 5 265968 265,968 421% - 7,750,176 7,750,176
Nick Cooper 2,558,646 488 061 495% - 3,459,515 3,459,515
Perley McBride* 700,000 - 105% - 1,546,570 1,546,570
Non-executive Directors
Simon Ball 504,348 - - - - -
Mark Hamlin 122 222 - - - - -
Brendan Paddick® 136 077,710 - - - - -
Alison Platt 23,764 - - - - -
John Ristey®? 846,355,136 - - - - -
Barbara Thoralfsson® - - - - - -
lan Tyler 4 000 - - - - -
Thad Yorkéé 575,096 759 - - - - -

1 Phil Bentley and Nick Cooper recerved S0% of their total gross bonus payment for the financial year ended 2013714 in the form of bonus plan shares deferred for one year and
subject toclaw back at the discretion of the Committee These shares count towards each Director s shareholding requirements and are due to vest at the end of May 2015
Aproportion of these deferred shares may be sold at the end of the deferral perniod to meet tax obligations relating to thew acquisiion/vesting

2 Shares counting towards achievemnent of the requirement included beneficially owned shares Share price as at the close of business on 31 March 2015 (£0 6095} Perley

McBride s salary of US$600 000 has been converted nto sterling using the closing exchange rate of $1 4816 £10n 31 March 2015

As potential beneficianies from cutstanding awards which may be satisfied by shares held by the Trust the Executive Directors are deemed to have an interest in all of the ordinary

shares held by the Trust which at 31 March 2015 amounted to 8 386 941 shares

Perley McBride was appointed to the Board on 26 June 2014

Barbara Thoralfsson was appointed to the Board on 7 January 2015

Brendan Paddick John Risley and Thad York were appointed to the Board on 31 March 2015

CVBI Holdings (Barbados) Inc and Clearwater Holdings (Barbados) Liruted are both ultimately controfled by John Risley CV3I Holdings (Barbados) inc owns 788 549 081 shares

(18 2 %) Clearwater Holdings (Barbados} Limited owns 57 806 055 shares {1 3%) Further detais in respect of this can be found in the Directors and corporate governance

repart

8 Columbus Holding LLC owns the 575 096 759 shares listed above Thad York has no direct interest in these shares but has been nominated to the Board by Columbus Helding LLC
andrepresents the private office of John Matone who ulbmately contrels Columbus Holding LLC

w
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Directors’ share awards

Market price
on date of
award of
Cable &
Wireless
Cormnmuni-  Shares under Shares lapsed Sharesunder
cations Plc award at Shares Shares cancelled or award at
Name 2nd scheme Award date Vesting date  shares {pence) 1 Aprl 2014 awarded vested forfeted 31 March 2015
Executive Directors
Nick Cooper
Performance Shares 02/06/2011  02/06/2014 4329 1,592,718 - 1,582,718 - -
Performance Shares™ 12/08/2011 02/06/2014 3388 154,260 - 154,260 - -
Performance Shares® 12/01/2012 02/06/2014 3799 71,984 - 71,884 - -
Performance Shares? 10/08/2012 02/06/2014 3254 166,075 - 1686075 - -
Performance Shares® 11/01/2013  02/06/2014 3940 33,192 - 33192 - -
Performance Shares™ 09/08/2013 02/06/2014 4008 69,840 - 69,840 - -
Performance Shares™ 10/01/2014  02/06/2014 56 50 22988 - 22988 - -
Performance Shares® 14/01/2013  14/01/2016 3772 1,812,761 - - - 1,812,761
Performance SharesPs 11/08/2013 14/01/2016 4008 79,489 - - - 79,489
Performance Shares 11/01/2014  14/01/2016 5650 26,164 - - - 26,164
Performance SharesPs 08/08/2014  14/01/2016 47 37 - 59,751 - - 59,751
Performance SharesP 09/01/2015  14/01/2016 4912 - 31,328 - - 31,328
Performance $Shares 30/05/2013  30/05/2016 4389 1267462 - - - 1,267,462
Performance Shares™ 11/08/2013 30/05/2016 4008 55577 - - - 55,577
Performance Shares™ 11/01/2014  30/05/2016 5650 18,294 - - - 18,294
Performance Shares?s 08/08/2014  30/05/2016 4737 - 41777 - - 41,777
Performance Shares™ 09/01/2015  30/05/2016 4912 - 21,904 - - 21,904
5,370,804 154,760 2,111,057 - 3,414,507
Phil Bentley
Performance Shares? 02/01/2014 02/06/2017 5740 4288011 - - - 4,288,011
Performance Shares™ 11/01/2014 02/06/2017 5650 61,891 - - - 61,891
Performance Shares® 08/08/2014  02/06/2017 47 37 - 141,340 - - 141,340
Performance SharesPs 09/01/2015 02/06/2017 4912 - 74,106 - - 74,106
Performance Shares 29/05/2014  29/05/2017 5300 - 2932,013 - - 2,932,013
Performance Shares® 08/08/2014  29/05/2017 47 37 - 96 644 - - 96,644
Performance Shares™ 09/01/2015  29/05/2017 4912 - 50,671 - - 50,671
4349902 3,294,774 - - 7,644,676
Perley McBride
Performance Shares 30/06/2014  30/06/2017 4925 - 1,452376 - - 1,452,376
Performance Shares®s 08/08/2014  30/06/2017 47 37 - 47872 - - 47,872
Performance Shares®® 09/01/2015 30/06/2017 4912 - 25100 - - 25,100
- 1,525,348 - - 1,525,348

DS Dividend shares

1 The number of shares awarded under the PSP 2011 was calculated based on the average share price for the period 24 to 20 May 2012 (inclusve) which is the period immediately
after the 2011412 full year resuvlts and would ordinardy have been used to calculate the award price had the Company not beeninan extended close penod until January 2013

2 Share award of 4,288 011 CWC shares were granted to Phil Bentley on 2 January 2014 in order to secure his appointment as Chief Executive Officer The PSP award based on
300% of base satary 1s subject to performance measured over three years and continued service and the award of which was cantingent on Phil purchasing shares with a value of
atleast 200% of salary This requirement has been met by the acquisition of 4 300 000 shares on 2 January 2074 (over 300% of s salary at the date of purchase)

Annual Repart 2014/15 a5




Directors’ remuneration report continued

Crlution

The Committee ensures that at all tmes the number of new shares
which may be 1ssued under any share option or share-based plans,
including all employee plans, does not exceed the dilution imit of 10%
of the Company’s 1ssued share capital over any ten year rolling pertod
As at 31 March 2015, 6% of the issued share capital was available
for 1ssue under our share-based plans In caleutating this figure, the
Committee has taken into account historic awards of the former
Cable and Wireless ple shares made to current or former employees
of the CWC business and the adjustments to the awards as aresult of
the demerger

Awards under the various share plans are funded by a mix of
purchased and newly-issued shares, as determined by the Commuttee
Newly issued shares are subject to the dilution imit outhned above
Purchased shares are held by the Trust which is subject to a holding
limit of no more than 5% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of

the Company

Percentage change in remuneration levels

The table below shows the movement in the salary, benefits and
annual bonus for the Chief Executive Officer between the current and
previous financial year compared to that for the average UK/US
employee The Committee has chosen this comparator as it feels
that it provides a mere appropriate reflection of the earmings of the
average worker than the movement m the Group’s total wage bill,
which s distorted by movements in the number of employees and
variations in wage practices in our overseas markets For the benefits
and bonus per employee, this is based on those employees eligible to
participate In such schemes

% Chief Executive Officer Average per employee
Salary' 10% 3%

Benehts? 141% 26%

Annual bonus paid® 64% 50%

1 The 2013/14 salary for the Chiel Executive Officer has been based on the salary paid
to Tony Rice for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2013 plus the salary pad to
Phil Bentley from 1 January 2014 to 31 March 2014

2 Benefits for the Chief Executive Officer include travel benefits accommodation
allowance and reimbursement of other necessary expenses incurred in the financial
year 2014715 whilst ving/warking in Miarmi

3 Annua! bonus paid relates to bonus pard in financial year 2042/13 and financial year
2013/14 nrespect of the prior year performance period to enable comparison
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Performance graph and pay table

The chart below shows the Company’s TSR performance against the
performance of the FTSE Europe Telecoms sector from 22 March
2010 to 31 March 2015 This index was chosen as it represents a
broad equity market index, which includes companies of a comparable
or larger size and complexity operating in the same sector, but not the
same geographies

Total shareholder return {TSR)

Value in £ from 22 March 2010 to 31 March 2015
Value (£}
180

\ / 80
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40
31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar 31 Mar
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Ommmm Cable 8 Wireless Communications
o= [TSE Europe Telecoms Sector

This graph shows the total shareholder return by 31 March 2015 for a

£100 holding 1n the Company's shares for the period from 22 March 2010
{the date shares in the Company were admitted to the Official List) compared
with £100 invested in the FTSE Europe Telecomns Sector




The table below shows the total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive Officer for the six financial years to 31 March 2015 The total
remuneration figure includes the annual bonus and LTIP awards which vested based on performance in those years The annual bonus and LTIP
percentages show the payout for each year as a percentage of the maximum

Chief Executive Officer s five year pay table 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 20134147 2014715
Total remuneration? £2641465 £2336597 £1,306,651 £1,703341 £2,093,065 £2,416,600
Annual bonus 0% 77% 76% 56% 89% 73%
LTIP vesting N/AZ N/AZ 0% 0% 0% 0%

1 Theinformation for financial year 2013/14 refates to the total remuneration annual bonus and LTIP vesting for Tony Rice from 1 Apnl 2013 to 31 December 2013 and total
remuneration annual bonus and LTIP vesting for Phil Bentley from 1 January 2014 to 31 March 2014 It 2lsoincludes travel benefits accommodation allowance and
reimbursement of ather necessary expenses incurred for the Chief Executive Officer in the financial year 2013/14 while working in London and Miami

2 The total remuneration in this table has been adjusted to nclude half of the bonus which 1s deferred into shares for one year

w

For the 2009/10 financial year and 2010711 financial year the LTIP payrment relates to the cash LTIP plan which had no fermal award hmit 1t was structured to vest at the end

of its five year cycle with staged payments between years four and five 85% vested at the end of year four (2009/10 financial year) of which 50% (£1 090 000) was paid
immediately and 35% deferred for a further year with the balance vesting and payable at the end of the 2010/11 financial year At the end of 2010711 financial year the cashLTIP
units were revalued and a further payment of E1 660 000 was made {which included the 35% deferred from 2009/10) The total payment from the cash LTIP during the five year

perigd was £2 750 000

Relative importance of the spend on pay
The table below shows the movement in spend en staff costs versus
that in dividends

201314 2014/15 % change
Staff costs’ £266 milion £203 milion (237)%
Dividends? £63 milbon £64 million 16%

1 Staff casts include exceptional employee and other staff expenses and deferred bonus
shares 1ssued as disclosed i the prior year single figure amount

2 Dividends hsted above include final didend inrespect of the prior year and intenm
dividend in respect of the actual year

External Non-executive Director positions
Phil Bentley received and retained the following fees for external
directorships during the year

Annual fees
In sterlng

Phil Bentley
Non-executive Director of IMI Pic? 56,250

1 Phil Bentley resigned from the board effecuve 31 December 2014

Statement of shareholder voting
At last year s AGM, the Directors remuneration report received the
following votes from shareholders

2014 AGM
Votes cast in favour 1,678,887,185 89 90%
Votes cast against 188,595,985 1010%
Total votes cast 1,867,483170
Abstentions 22249829

Shareholder engagement

During the year, the Committee engaged with the Company’s major
shareholders on the packages and incentive arrangemnents for the
Executive Directors

Most shareholders who engaged were understanding of the
Committee's reasoning on these matters and were broadly supportive

Committee governance
The principal duties of the Committee are detaited below

« To recommend to the Board the policy for the remuneration of the
Chairman, Executive Directors and other senior executive
management

+ Toreview the Remuneration Policy and consider its alignment with
strategy on an ongoing basis

To review the design of all new share incentive plans, policy on share
Incentive awards and performance conditions

» To determine whether performance measures for incentive plans
have been satisfied

» To approve any amendments to the service contracts of the
Chairman and Executive Directors

In forming its recommendations the Comimittee receives input and
advice from the Executve Directors, the HR Director and New Bnidge
Street who are the Committee's independent adviser The outcomes
of Committee meetings are reported to the Board
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Terms of reference

The terms of reference set out the authority of the Comnuttee to
carry out 1ts duties and the full terms of reference can be found on our
website at www cwe com

Advisers to the Committee

New Bridge Street (NBS) provide advice on remuneration and share
plans both for Executive Directors and the wider senior management
population and were appointed by the Commuttee In addition, NBS
provide measurement of the Company’s relative and absolute TSR
performance and benchmark Non-executive Directors’and the
Chairman'’s fee levels

The Committee regularly reviews the external adviser relationship and
15 comfortable that NBS s advice remains objective and independent
The Committee reviewed the performance of the adviser during the
year Based on the quality of the advice receved, their objectrvity,
independence and their familianity with the Company s existing
structures and share plans during this period of significant change the
Commuttee reappointed NBS unti! the time of the next review

NBS are signatories to the Remuneration Consultants Group Code
of Conduct and any advice provided by them is governed by that
code NBS's terms of engagement are available on request from the
Company Secretary NBS s a trading name of Aon Hewitt Limited
(an Acn plc company) which, other than acting as independent
consultant to the Committee, provided no further services to the
Company during the year and has no other connection with the
Company For the year under review NBS's total fees charged

were £116 497 (exclusive of VAT) and the fees were charged on
atimed basis
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Remuneration Committee membership

Membership and attendance at meetings

Simoen Ball (Chairman) 0000 5/5
Mark Hamlin o000 00 5/5
Alison Platt 20000 5/5
lan Tyler o080 0S 5/5
Barbara Thoralfsson' ®O0 1/2

1 Barbara Theralfsson was appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from
7 January 2015 Barbara was unable to attend the scheduled March 2015 Committee
meeting due to a prior engagement which she had before joining the Company

The Committee held five scheduled meetings during the year ended
31 March 2015 Details of Committee membership and individual
attendance at the meetings by members are given 1n the table above

No person s present during any discussion relating to their own
remuneration

Audited information

The sections of the annual report on remuneration that have been
audited by KPMG LLP are from Directors’ total remuneration table on
page 79 up to and incfuding long-term mcentive awards granted in the
year and Directors’ interests inshares as at 31 March 2015 on pages
84to 85

This report has heen apgroved by the Board and signed onits
behalf by

Simon Ball .
Chairman, Remifnera ommittee
19 May 2015




Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible far preparing the Annual Report and
the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Company
financial statements for each financial year Under that law, they are
required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reportng Standards (IFRS}) as adopted by the
European WUnion (EU) and applicable law Further, they have elected

to prepare the Company financial statements in accordance with

UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (UK GAAP))

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr view
of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of their profit
or loss for that period

In prepaning each of the Group and Company financial statements,
the Directors are required to

« Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently

« Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent

« For the Group financial statements, state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU

« For the Company financial statements, state whether apphcable
UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
matenal departures disclosed and explained in the Company
financial statements

« Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless
it I1s nappropriate to presume that the Group and Coempany will
continue n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s and the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any tme the financial position of the Group and the Company and
enable them to ensure that their financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006 and, with regard to the Group financial
statements Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They have general
respons/bility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them

to safequard the assets of the Group and the Company and for taking
reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other rregularities

Under applicable law and regulations the Directors are also
responsible for preparing a Strategic report, Directors report
Directors’ remuneration report and Corporate governance statement
that complies with that law and those regulations

The Directors are also required by the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules to Include a report containing a fair review of the business and
a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and the Company

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the Group and
Company s website www cwc com Information published on the
Company’s website is accessible In many countries with different
legal requirements Legislation in the UK governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions

Directors’ statement pursuant to the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are hsted on pages
45 to 47 confirm that, to the best of each person’s knowledge and
belief

« The Group financial statements, prepared in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group

» The Strategic report and Directors’ report contained on pages
2 to 41 and pages 48 to 58, respectively, include a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of
the Group and Company, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face

Directors’ staternent pursuant to the UK Corporate
Governance Code

The Directors consider the Annual Report and Accounts, taken

as a whole, 1s farr, balanced and understandable and provides the
informatton necessary for shareholders to assess the Company s and
the Group’s position and performance, business model and strategy

Disclosure of information to auditors

So far as the Directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information {as defined in Section 418(3) of the Comparies Act
20086) of which the auditor 1s unaware, and the Directors have taken
all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to
make themnselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the auditor is aware of that information

£ VoS0

By order of the Board

Clare Underwood
Company Secretary
19 May 2015
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Financial statements

The contents below clearly show where you can
find information relevant to you We have presented
the financial Information in five sections to provide
readers with a clearer understanding of what drives
the financial performance of the Group

Plain English explanations are provided throughout
these financial statements

92-99

100-102
103-113
114-131
132-142
143-158
159-161
162-168

Primary financial
statements and narrative

Basts of preparation

Results for the year

Operating assets and habilities
Capital structure and financing
Other

Independent auditor’s report
Company financial statements
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We are the leading landline
service providerin 17 out
of 18 markets.
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Restated*
2014/15 2013/14
Pre- Pre~
exceptional Exceptional exceptional Exceptional
1tems items’ Total items 1items’ Total
Continuing operations Note Us$m Ussm UsSm ussm Us$m Us$m
Revenue 21 1,753 - 1,753 1,689 - 1,689
Operating costs before depreciation, amortisation and
imparrment 231235 (1,168) (104) (1,272) (1143) (174} (1317)
Depreciation and impairment 34,36 (209) (127) {336) (204) - (204)
Amortisation 35 47) - 47) 3N - (31}
Other operating iIncome 234 42 - 42 - - -
Other operating expense 234 (62) - (62) {15) - (15}
Group operating profit/(loss) 309 (231) 78 296 (174} 122
Share of profit/{loss} of joint ventures and associates 37 12 - 12 5 (67) (62}
Total operating profit/(loss) 321 (231) 20 301 (241} 60
Gawn on sale of businesses 24 4 - 4 - - -
Finance income 41 26 - 26 6 - 6
Finance expense 41 (84) (37) {121) {139) (25} (164)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 267 (268) 1 168 (266} (98)
Income tax {expense)/credit 26 (65) 33 (32) (51} 19 (32)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 202 (235) (33) 17 (247} (130)
Discontinued operations
Profit after tax for the year from discontinued
operations 285 354 - 354 1,081 - 1,081
Profit/(loss) for the year 556 {235) EFA 1,198 (247) 951
Profit/(loss) attributable to
Owners of the Parent Company 458 (205) 253 1,088 (229) 859
Non-controlling mnterests 98 (30) 68 110 (18} 92
Profit/(loss) for the year 556 (235) 321 1,198 (247} 951
Earnings per share attributable to the owners of the
Parent Company during the year {cents per share)’ 25
- basic 97 343
— diluted 97 343
Loss per share from continuing operations attributable
to the owners of the Parent Company during the year
(cents per share} 25
— basic (38) (84)
— diluted 18) (84}
Earnings per share from discontinued operations
attributable to the owners of the Parent Company
during the year (cents per share) 25
- basic 135 427
— diluted 135 427

*The results have been restated for the classification of Monace in disconunued eperations (note 2 8} and for Seychelles within continuing operations {note 2 2)
1 Further detail on exceptional items is set out innote 2 3 5 and in the relevant note for each item
2 Includes discontinued operations {note 2 8)

The notes on pages 100 to 158 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Commentary on the income statement

The consohdated income statement includes the majority of our income and expenses
for the year with the remainder recorded 1n the statement of comprehensive income

The commentary below 1s unaudited As Columbus was acquired on the last day of the
financial year no results are included 1n the income statement

Revenue

Group revenue increased by 4% to U5$1,753 million (2% increase
excluding the impact of the Sonitel acquisition and currency
movements) Growth was achieved across mobile, broadband,
video and managed services More infermation 1s provided inour
segmental results innote 2 2

EBITDA

The Group uses EBITDA as a key perfermance measure as it reflects
the underlying operational performance of the businesses EBITDA s
not a measure defined under IFRS Itis calculated as earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, net other operating and
non-operating iIncome and expense and exceptional items

Qverall Group EBITDA, at US$585 million, was 7% ahead of the prior
year driven particularly by strong performance in LIME which grew 40%

Restated
2014715 2013714
Reconciliation to total operating profit ussm ussm
Total operating profit 90 60
Oepreciation and amortisation 256 235
Net other operating expense 20 15
Share of profit after tax of joint ventures
and associates pre-exceptional {12) (5)
Share of profit after tax of joint ventures
and associates exceptional - 67
Exceptional tems operating 104 174
Exceptional items impairment 127 -
EBITDA 585 546

Exceptional items

Exceptional totalled US$231 million in the year The charges included
imparment of assets identified as redundant, primarily, copper plant
and facilities in markets where CWC and Columbus overlap and legacy
voice switches replaced as part of Project Marlin as well as
restructuring changes to yield synergies related to the Columbus
transaction and a voluntary separation agreement in The Bahamas
USs$241 milhon of expense in the prior period included charges for the
Group cost reduction initiative and a charge of US$67 millon in TSTF

Pre-exceptional depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation at US$256 million was 9% higher
than prior year due to investments made to upgrade networks for
Project Marfin

Net other operating expense/income

The U5$20 million net other operating expense for the year comprised
US$55 million of transaction fees in relation to the Columbus and
Sonitel acquisitions, US$25 million of income inrelation to the subsea
cable partnership with Columbus and a foreign exchange translation
gain related to the UK pension schermes [n the prior year the

US$15 million expense was the result of a foreign exchange translation
loss on the UK pension schemes

Joint ventures and associates

Our share of profit after tax from joint ventures and associates was
US$12 milhon, US$74 million lngher than the prior period due to a
US$67 millon charge recorded for TSTT share of associate for therr
voluntary separation scheme that was recorded in 2013/14

As at 31 March 2015, TSTT was reclassified as a held for sale asset
due to conditions mcluded in the requlatory approval obtained from
the Telecommunications Authonity of Tnmidad and Tobago relating to
the acquisition of Columbus

Gain on sale of business
The US$4 mihon gain on sale of business arose on the disposal of
Solomon Telekom in October 2014

Net finance expense

The US$58 midhon net finance expense for the Group excluding
exceptional items includes finance income of US$26 milhon
(US$6 mithon in 2013/14) and finance expense of US$84 milkon
(US$139 millon in 2013/14) The decrease in finance expernise
predominantly related to the redemption of the secured
US$500 million 2017 bond n February 2014

Income tax expense

The income tax charge for the continung Group of US$65 million
{US$51 milion in 2013/14) was inrespect of overseas taxes This
charge represented an effectwe tax rate of 25% pre-exceptional
items Removing the impact of non-deductible interest charged on
the Group's central borrowing faciities this charge represented an
effective tax rate of 20% pre-exceptional items

Discontinued operations and gains on disposal

Monaco Telecom has been classified as a discontinued operation for
the year ended 31 March 2015 and the comparative consoldated
income statement has been restated The results of Monaco Telecom
were previously recorded In the Monaco operating segment

During the perniod we recognised an accounting gain of US$346 million
following the completed disposal of Monaco Telecom For more
information see note 2 8

Reconcihiation of basic earnings per share (EPS) to adjusted EPS
Adjusted EPS 1s a non-GAAP measure and s used by the Group as 1t
provides a measure of underlying earnings attributable to each share
We exclude one-off non-recurning items and also certain non-cash
charges such as amortisation of acquired intangibles

Adjusted EPS has increased from 2 2c to 4 7c due to improved
performance and reduced finance expense

Restated
2014715 2013/14
Reconciliatron of adjusted EPS to loss per share US cents U5 cents
Loss per share attributable to owners
of the Parent Company (38) 84)
Exceptional items' 79 az
Acquisition related transaction costs’ 21 -
Amortisation of acquired intangibles’ 02 01
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses on financing
activities (15) 13
Gain on disposal of businesses (0 2) -
Adjusted EPS attributable to owners
of the Parent Company 47 22
Weighted average number of shares {mullion) 2,615 2502

1 Excluding amounts attributable to non-controlling interests
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2015

2014/15 2013714
Note us$m ussm
Profit for the year 3 a51
Other comprehensive {(expense}/income for the year comprised
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Actuanallosses in the value of defined benefit retirement plans 310 77 (8)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Net other comprehensive loss not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 77) 8)
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent pertods
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (11} (3)
Foreign currency translation reserves recycled on disposal of operations (94) @
Foreign currency translation reserves recycled on held for sale associate 3g (303 -
Fair value gain/{loss) on avallable-for-sale financial assets 44 3 3)
Income tax relating to stems that may be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Net other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (132) (13}
Other comprehensive expense for the year, net of tax (209) (21)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 112 930
Total comprehensive income attributable to
Owners of the Parent Company 42 836
Non-controling interests 70 94
112 930

The notes on pages 100 to 158 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Attributable to the owners of the Parent Company

Foreign
currency
translation Capital and Non-
Share  andhedging other Retaned contralling
Share capital premium reserve reserves earnings Total interests Total equity
Ussm ussm ussm ustm UStm ussm ussm ussm

Balance at 1 Apnil 2013 133 97 32 3321 (3.832) (249) 501 252
Profit for the year - - - - 859 859 92 951
Actuarial losses recognised (net of tax} - - - - (6) () @ (8)
Foreign currency translation reserves
recycied on disposal of operations - - 7 - - 7 - 7)
Exchange differences an translation of
foreign operations - - (7} - - 6)) 4 3)
Farr value movements in available-for-sale
financial assets - - - (3} - (3) - 3)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income - - (14) (3) 853 836 94 930
for the year
Equity share-based payments - - - - 6 6 - 6
Dividends - - - - (100) (100) - {(100)
Total dividends and other transactions - - - - (94) (94) - (94)
with Cable & Wireless Communications
Plc shareholders
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - (76) (76)
Transfers on sale of subsidiaries - - - (30 26 (4} {(169) (173)
Total dividends and other transactions - - - (30) 26 (4) (245) (249)
with non-controlling interests
Balance at 31 March 2014 133 97 18 3,288 (3047) 489 350 839
Profit for the year - - - - 253 253 68 321
Actuanal losses recogrised (net of tax) - - - - (76) (76) (1) 77
Foreign currency translation reserves
recycled on disposal of operations - - (s4) - - (94) - (94
Foreign currency translation reserves
recycled an held for sale associate - - (30) - - (30) - (30)
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - (14) - - (14} 3 an
Fair value movements in available-for-sale
financial assets - - - 3 - 3 - 3
Total comprehensive (expense)/income - - (138) 3 177 42 70 112
for the year
Put option arrangements’ - - - (879) - (879) - (879)
Issuance of ordinary shares 91 163 - 1312 - 1,566 - 1,566
Equity share-based payments - - - - 28 28 - 28
Dmidends - - - - (104) (104) - (104)
Total dividends and other transactions 91 163 - 433 (76) 611 - 611
with Cable & Wireless
Communications Plc shareholders
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests - - - - - - (86} (86)
Transfer of BTC non-controlling interests - - - - (8) (6) 6 -
Total dividends and other transactions - - - - {6) (6} (80) (86)
with non-controlling interests
Balance at 31 March 2015 224 260 (120) 3,724 (2,952) 1,136 340 1,476

1 Refer to note 4 8 for lock-up and put option arrangements
The notes on pages 100 to 158 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 March 2015
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
Note us$m Ussm
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 35 2,954 526
Property, plant and equipment 36 2,523 1,418
Investments n joint ventures and associates 37 1 188
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 44 59 58
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 45 14 -
Other recevables 31 158 170
Deferred tax assets 27 51 34
Retirement benefit assets 310 17 20
5,777 2,414
Current assets
Trade and other recervables 31 587 433
Inventories 32 50 36
Loans to related parties 31 56 -
Cash and cash equivalents 42 402 205
1,095 674
Assets held for sale 38 165 70
1,260 744
Total assets 7,037 3,158
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 33 771 612
Borrowings 43 82 58
Financial habihties at fair value through profit or loss 46 - 274
Provisions 39 119 140
Current tax habilities 118 121
1,090 1,205
Liabiliies held for sale - 23
1,090 1,228
Net current assets/(habilities) 170 (484)
Non-current labilities
Trade and other payables 33 373 26
Borrowings 43 2,686 797
Financial habelities at amortised cost 48 879 -
Deferred tax habilities 27 225 27
Provisions 39 99 42
Retirement benefit obligations 310 209 199
4,471 1.091
Net assets 1,476 839
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners of the Parent Company
Share capital 410 224 133
Share premium 260 97
Reserves 652 259
1,136 489
Non-controlling interests 340 350
Total equity 1,476 839

The notes on pages 100 to 158 are an integral part of these financial statements These financial statements on pages 92 to 158 were

approved by the Board of Directors on 19 May 2015 and signed on its behalf by
Phil Benttey Chief Executive Officer
Cable & Wireless Commumicattons Plc Registered number — 07130199 )-\\
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Commentary on the statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows all of our assets and hiabilities at
31 March 2015. The commentary below 1s unaudited As Columbus was acquired on the last
day of the inancial year the preliminary acquisition accounting amounts are included in the

statement of financial position.

Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

The net book value of property, plant and equipment has increased by
U5$1,105 milhon due to the acquisition of Columbus and capital
investments in HSPA+ mobile data networks across all markets and
LTE upgrades in Panama The Bahamas and Cayman Intangible assets
increased by US$2,428 million primarily due to recogmtion of goodwilt
and intangibles assets as part of the acquisition of Columbus

Retirement benefit assets and obligations

In May 2014, the Company reached agreement with the Trustees of
the Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund (CWSF) on the actuarial
funding valuation as at 31 March 2013 This showed a funding deficit
of £109 million Cash contnbutions to the CWSF for 2014 to 2016 will
remain in hne with the agreement following the March 2013 triennial
review In addition to a payment of £30 millien made in July 2014,
future payments will be April 2015 — £31 mullion and April 2016 —
£33 millon Paymentsn 2017, 2018 and 2019 will be based on the
outcome of the triennial valuation as at 371 March 2016 and will be in
the range of £0 — £23 milon each year as necessary to fund the
scheme by April 2019

As at 31 March 2015, the defined benefit section of the CWSF had an
1AS 19 accounting deficit of £166 milion (US$158 mitlon), compared
to a deficit of £90 milion (US$148 milion} as at 31 March 2014 This
dehcit funding agreed as part of the 2013 actuanal funding valuation
constitutes a minimurn funding agreement and in accordance with
accounting standards we are required to account for this within the
defiet The IAS 19 deficit recorded at 31 March 2015 therefore
represents the present value of the amounts committed under the
mimimum funding agreement

There are other unfunded pension habilities in the UK of £32 million
(£29 million at 31 March 2014) The Group holds investments in gilts
of £24 million to partialty back the UK unfunded pension labilities
Other schemes in Cable & Wireless Communications have a net IAS 19
surplus of US$14 milhon (US$17 milhion surplus at 31 March 2014)

Cash and cash equivalents and borrowings

Asat As at

31 March 31 March

2015 2014

ussm Us$m

Cashand cash equivalents 402 205
Sterling unsecured bonds repayable in 2019 (219) (242)
US$400 million secured bonds due 2020 (394) (393)

US$390 million secured loan due 2017 (374) -

US$300 million unsecured loan due 2017 (288) -

Us%$1,250 million unsecured bond due 2021 (1,234)

Other regional debt facilities (259) (220}

Total debt (2,768) (855)

Total reported net (debt) (2,366) (650)

Duning the year, the Group obtained additional financing for the
acquisition of Columbus in the form of two year term loans totailing
US$690 million As at 31 March 2015, the aggregate commitment
available under the new US$$570 million RCF was US$421 millson, with
US$149 million drawn for letters of credit in favour of the CWSF
pension trustees

Consolidated net debt as at 31 March 2015 was US$2,366 million
with proportionate net debt of U5$2 263 million representing 3 6x
proportionate EBITDA, pro forma the Columbus business for the
year ended 31 March 2015

In order to provide better insight into our net funds position we
provide a reconciliation on page 134 of the year on year movement

Financial labilities at amortised cost

On 31 March 2015 as a result of the acquisition of Columbus, a
financial hiability was recogrused for the put option arrangements
entered into with the three Columbus vendors The present value of
the financiat hability 15 US$879 milion (note 4 8 details the accounting
for these options)

A put option related to Monaco Telecom was cancelled as a result of
the disposal of our stake in the business

Provisions

Provisions have increased by US$36 millien primanly due to
increases In exceptional items relating to restructuring and onerous
contract costs

Equity

On 7 November 2014 a cash box placement was completed for
252 812 284 new ordinary shares with gross proceeds of
US$180 million (excluding equity issuance costs of US$4 million)

©On 31 March 2015, 1,557,529,605 shares were 1ssued to the
principal Columbus vendors as part of the acquisition of Columbus
This resulted in an increase in share capital of US$78 million and
the formation of a merger reserve of US$1 209 million
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Restated*
2014/15 2013714
Note Ussm US$m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated ~ continuing operations (page 99) 431 421
Cash generated ~ discontinued operations 1 116
Income taxes pad — continuing operations (52) (54)
Income taxes paid — discontinued operations - (3
Net cash from operating activitres 380 480
Cash flows from investing activities
Finance income 4 &
Dividends recewved - 4
Purchase of available-for-sale assets nm -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1 5
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (399) (234)
Purchase of Intangible assets 57} (132}
Proceeds on disposal of subsidianies (net of cash disposed) 16 -
Loans to related parties 31 {56) -
Acquisition of subsidianies (net of cash acquired) 311 (677) -
Net cash used (n continuing operattons (1,169) {(351)
Disposal proceeds (net of cash disposed and transaction costs} for discontinued operations 403 1127
Qther discontinued operations 1 (53)
Discontinued operations 28 402 1,074
Net cash (used in)/received from investing activities (767) 723
Net cash flow before financing activities (387) 1203
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to the owners of the Parent Company (104) (100)
Dividends paid to non-controllng interests (86) (72)
Repayments of borrowngs {178) (1.138)
Finance Costs (128) (1471}
Proceeds from borrowings 200 162
Proceeds onissuance of shares 176 -
Proceeds on sale of CMC shares - 100
Unwind of sale of CMC shares - (100)
Net cash received/(used in) continuing operations 582 {1,289)
Discontinued operations - @
Net cash used in financing actwities 582 (1,293)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents — continuing operations (208) (1273)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents — discontinued operations 403 1,183
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 42 208 297
Exchange movements on cash and cash equivalents 1 1
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 42 402 208

*The results have been restated for the classification of Monaco in discontinued eperations (note 2 B) and for Seychelles withia continuing operations {note 2 2)

The notes on pages 100 1o 158 are an integral part of these financial statements
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The reconciliation of loss for the year to net cash generated was as follows

Restated”
2014/15 2013114
Note UsSm us$m
Loss for the year (33) (130)
Adjustments for
Tax expense 26 32 32
Depreciation before exceptional tems 36 210 204
Amortisation 35 47 31
Impairment 36 127 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 36 1 -
Gain on sale of businesses 24 (4) -
Finance ncome 41 (26) ()]
Finance expense after exceptional itemns 41 121 164
Other income and expenses (16) 15
Increase In exceptional provisions 38 52
Employee benefits 13 11
Defined benefit pension scheme contributions (6) (6)
Defined benefit pension scheme other contributions (52) -
Share of profit after tax of joint ventures and associates 37 (12) 62
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 440 429
Changes in working capital (excluding effects of acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries}
Increase in Inventories 4) (6)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other recevables (39) 38
Increase/(decrease) in payables 34 (40)
Cash generated from continuing operations 431 421
*The results have been restated for the classification of Menace in discontinued aperations (note 2 8) and for Seychelles within cantinying operations {note 2 2)
The notes on pages 100 to 158 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section one - Basis of preparation

11 General information

Cable & Wireless Communications Plc (the Company or the Parent Company) and its

o subsidianes (together Cable & Wireless Communications Group or the Group) is an
international telecommunications company incorporated and domiciled 1in the United
Kingdom Following the disposal of Monaco and the reclassification of Seychelles, the Group
has modified its operating segments. Accordingly, the Group operated under four segments !
being Panama, LIME, BTC and Seychelles for the year ended 31 March 2015 (see note 2.2 for
further detail) On 31 March 2015 the Group acquired control of Columbus International Inc.
(see note 3 11.1 for further detail) which 1s expected to further modify the Group’s segmental
analysis 1n future periods.

111 The Company
The Company 15 a public imited company which 1s hsted on the London Stock Exchange and 1s incorporated and dormiciled inthe UK
The address of its registered office 1s 2nd Floor, 63-65 Chandos Place, London WC2N 4HG

1 2 Basis of preparatton and recent accounting changes
1 2 1 Basis of preparation

The consohdated financial statements of the Cable & Wireless Communications Group have been prepared in accordance with
Internat:ional Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted by the Eurcpean Union {EU} as they apply to the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015

These consoldated financial statements are presented 10 US dollars (US$) and rounded to the nearest million

They have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certan financial Instruments held at far value Non-current assets and disposal
groups are stated at the lower of therr carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

The Directors have prepared the accounts on a going concern basis (see page 58 of the Directors and corporate governance report for
further detail}

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires management to make judgements estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of pohicies and reported amounts of assets, habihties, income and expenses These estimates and
assoclated assumptions are based on histarical experience and vartous other factors that are considered to be reasonable under the
creumstances They form the basis of jJudgements about the carrying values of assets and habiities that are not readily avallable from other
sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a continuing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recogmsed in the year in
which the estimate 1s revised and in any future penods affected Cnitical judgements and areas where the use of estimates is significant are
discussedinnote 5 2

The accounting policies have been applied consistently by Group entities

Basis of consohdation

The consaldated financial statements comprise a consohdation of the accounts of the Company and its subsidianes and include the Group's
share of the results and net assets of its joint ventures and associates The results of the Group s main trading subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates have been prepared to align with the Group’s reporting date

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities contrelled by and forming part of the Group The Group controls an entity when the Group 1s exposed to, or has nghts
to vanable returns from its investment with the entity and has the ability to affect these returns through its power over the entity Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group effectively takes control unti the date that control ceases Accounting palicies of
subsidiaries are ahgned with the policies adopted by the Group to ensure consistency

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations The consideration transferred for an acquisition is the fair value
of the assets transferred and habilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests 1ssued by the Group Identifiable
assets acquired and habilities and contingent liabilties assumed in a business combination are measured initially at therr farr values at the
acquisition date Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred over the fair value
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of net identsfiable assets acquired and liabilives assumed The determination of the fair values of acquired assets and habilities 1s based on
judgement and the Directors have 12 months from the date of the business combination to finalise the allocation of the purchase pnice The
allocation of the purchase price between finite ived assets and indefinite ived assets affects the results of the Group as finite lved intangible
assets are amortised, whereas indefinite lived intangible assets including goodwill, are not amortised Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred

Intercompany transactions balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated on consohdation
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

Joint ventures and associates

A joint venture Is a type of jaint arrangement whereby the parties that have jont control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
Jjaint venture Jomnt controlis the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parbies sharing control Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence
Investments in joint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost

The Group's share of Its joint ventures' and associates’ post-acquisition profits or fosses is recognised through profit or loss tts share of
post-acquisition movemnents in reserves i1s recogmsed in equity The cumulative post-acquisition movernents are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment

When the Group's share of losses in ajoint venture and/or associate exceeds its investment (including any other unsecured long-term
receivables), the Group does not recogmise further losses unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee

1 2 2 Apphcation of recently issued International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
The Group apphed for the first tme the following new standards and amendments to IFRS during the year ended 31 March 2015 The nature
and impact of each new standard and amendment is described below

Title Effective date Description and impact on the Group
IFRS 10 Consohdated Annual penods beginning on or after IFRS 10 Builds on existing principles of control and provides
financial staterments, 1 January 2014 further guidance where control may be difficult to assess
IFRS 11 foint arrangements IFRS 11 expands on the assessment of joint arrangements to
and IFRS 12 Disclosures of consider alk facts and crcumstances surrounding the
interests in other entities arrangements in addition to the structure of the

arrangement as previously required

There was no impact on the Group from adopting IFRS 10
and 1FRS 11

IFRS 12 requires disclosures for all forms of interests in other
entities Disclosures required by IFRS 12 are included in notes

37and58
Amendments to IAS 27 Annual penods beginming on or after Covers all disclosure requirements for financial statements
Separate financial 1 January 2014 prepared by a parent, or an Investor in a joint venture or
statements associate where those investments are accounted for at

cost or In accordance with 1AS 39 Financial instruments
Recognrtion and Measurement or IFRS 9 Financial

Instruments
Amendments to 1AS 32 Annual periods beginring on or after Prowides clanfications on the application of offsetting of
Financial statements 1 January 2014 assets and habvlities
presentation This does not have animpact on the Group
Amendments to AS 36 Annual periods beginming on or after Reverses the unintended requirement in IFRS 13 Fair Value
Recoverable amount 1 January 2014 Measurements to disclose the recoverable amount of
disclosures for every cash-generating unit to which sigmificant goodwill or
non-fnancial assets indefinite-lived intangble assets have been allocated The
recoverable amount is required to be disclosed only when
animpairment loss has been recogmsed or reversed
Amendments to fAS 39 Annual periods beginning on ar after Allows hedge accounting to continue in a situation where
Financial instruments 1 January 2014 adervative s novated
recogritron and This does not have an impact on the Group
measurement

There was no material impact on the Group upon adoption of any of these new IFRS standards and amendments
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section one - Basis of preparation

1 2 Basis of preparation and recent accounting changes continued
New and amended standards and interpretations not endorsed by the EU, to be adopted by the Group in subsequent periods

Title

Effective date

Description and impact on the Group

Amendment to IFRS 8
Operating
segments

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014 and EU endorsed

Requires an entity to disclose the judgements made by
management in applying the aggregation criteria to
operating segments

Thws does not have an impact on the Group as there are no
operating segments aggregated

Amendment to IAS 16
Property, plant

and equipment and |1AS 38
Intangible Assets

Annual penods beginning on or after
1 July 2014

Clanifies when an item of property, plant and equipment
or intangible asset requires restatement of accumulated
depreciation or amortisation on revaluation

This does not have animpact on the Group as the Group
does not have a revaluation policy

Amendment to 1AS 19
Defined Benefit

Plans Employee
Contributions

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2014 and EU endorsed

Amended the requirements for contributions from
employees or third parties that are linked to services

This should not have an impact on the Group as there are
no contributions from employees or thard parties linked
to services

Clarhcation of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisatron —
Amendments to |IAS 16
and |AS 38

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016

The amendments introduce a rebuttable presumption that
the use of revenue-based amortisation methods for
mtangible assets 1s nappropriate This presumption can be
overcome only when revenue and the consumption of the
ecanomic benehits of the intangible asset are highly
correlated’, or when the intangible asset 1s expressed as a
measure of revenue While this 1s not an outrnight ban 1t
creates a high hurdle for when these methods may be used
for intangtble assets

The amendments also ban the use of revenue-based
amortisation for property plant and equipment

This does not have ansmpact on the Group as the Group
does not use revenue-based amortisation or depreciation

IFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers

Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted

Establishes a comprehensive framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenue 1s recognised

It replaces IAS 18 Revenue IAS 11 Construction Controcts
and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

The Group 1s stifl assessing the impact of IFRS 15 but the
new standard could have significant iImpact on customer
acquisition costs and Jarge Managed Services contracts

IFRS 9 Financtal
Instrurments

Annual pertods beginnung on or after
1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted

Rewvises the existing accounting concerning classification and
measurement impairment (introducing an expected-loss
method) hedge accounting, and on the treatment of gains
ansing from the impact of credit nisk on the measurement of
liabiities held at fair value

This 1s not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group's net results or net assets, although the full impact
will be subject to further assessment

There are no other new or amended standards that are considered to have a material impact on the Group
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Section two - Results for the year

This section focuses on the results and performance of the Group. On the following pages
you will find disclosures explaining the Group’s results for the year, segmental information,
exceptional items, taxation and earnings per share

21 Revenue

Accounting policy detarled in note 5114

Restated

2014/15 2013/14

Continuing operations Ussm USEm
Sales of telecommunications services and related operations 1,680 1,623
Sales of telecommunications equipment and accessories 73 66
Total revenue 1,753 1689

2 2 Segment information

This section analyses our performance for the year by reference to our businesses in Panama, LIME, BTC (The Bahamas) and Seychelles

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation and before exceptional items (EBITDA) remains the Group's key
performance indicator This reflects the way the business 1s managed and how the Directors assess the performance of the Group
See page 93 for a reconciiation of EBITDA to total eperating profit

Cable & Wireless Commurnications Group 15 an international telecommunications service provider It operates integrated telecommunications
compames offering mobile, broadband, video fixed Iine and Managed Services and other to residential and business customers The Group has
modified its operating segments fallowing the disposal of Monaco which has been classified as discontinued operations {note 2 8 1) and the
reclassiication of Seychelles to continuing operations From 1 April 2014, the Board {the chief operating decision marker} considers the
performance of BTC separately from that of LIME (rest of Caribbean) During the year the Group had four principal operations which have been
identified as the Group's reportable segments, being Panama, LIME, BTC and Seychelles Our Business-te-Business and Businass-to-
Government operations are included i the results of the region to which they relate

The Group also has another operating segment which 1s compnised of the corporate centre, operational hub, results of our subsea cable
partnership and wholesale solutions business and eliminations for inter-segment transactions This segment does not meet the definition of
a reporting segment as it earns revenue from its activities that are tess than 10% of overall Group revenue This function primariy acts as an
operational support provider for the reportable segments

The Board considers the perfarmance of each of these operations in assessing the performance of the Group and making decisions about the
allocation of resources Accordingly, these are the operating segments disclosed There are no other operating segments idenufied by the
Board The operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Board
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section two - Results for the year

2 2 Segment information continued

Other and

Continuing operations Panama LIME BTC  Seychelles elmnations’ Total

Year ended 31 March 2015 Ussm us$m ussm ussm ussm UsSsm
Revenue 636 709 348 52 8 1,753
Cost of sales (223) (154) 67) 8 (6) (458)
Gross margin 113 555 281 44 2 1,285
Pre-exceptional operabing costs (172 (317) {(159) (25) (37) (710)
EBITDA? 241 238 122 19 (35) 585
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (101) (88) (43) (10) 14) (256)
Net other operating iIncome/{expense) 21 (10) - ~ (3N (20)
Exceptional costs (9) (175) (25) - {22) (231)
Group operating profit/(loss) 152 (35) 54 9 (102) 78
Share of (loss)/profit after tax of joint ventures and associates - - - (1) 13 12
Total operating profit/{loss) 152 (35) 54 8 (89) 80
Gain on sale of businesses - - — - 4 4
Net finance (expense)/income (8) 24 - 1 (112) (95)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 144 (11) 54 g (197) 1)
Income tax {expense)/credit (36) (9) 1) (8) 22 (32)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 108 (20) 53 1 (175) (33)
Income taxes paid® (24) (16) (1 {6) (5) (52)

1 Other and eliminations includes the corporate centre and operational hub expenses results of our subsea cable partnership wholesale solutions business and efiminations for
nter-segment transactions the resufts of pur joint ventures and associates and inter-segment management charges of Us$44 mithon

2 EBITDA s used in managemnent reporting as it 1s considered by management to be a key financial metric It is defined as earnings before interest tax depreciation and amortisation
net other operating and non-operating income/expense and exceptional items (see page 93)

3 Income taxes paid represents cash tax paid during the year by consolidated subsidiares

Other and

Continuing operations (restated) Panama LIME BTC Seychelles  ehminations’ Total

Year ended 31 March 2014 us$m Ussm Ussm US$m ussm ussm
Revenue 576 691 354 53 15 1689
Cost of sales (182} (153) (65) (7 (11} (418)
Gross margin 394 538 289 46 4 1,271
Pre-exceptional operating costs (155} (368) (161) (26) (15} (725)
EBITDA? 239 170 128 20 1) 546
Depreciation and amortisation (94) (89) (44) - (8} (235)
Net other operating expense - - - - (15} (15)
Exceptional operating costs (3) (120) (12) - (39) (174)
Group operating profit/{loss) 142 (39) 72 20 (73) 122
Share of loss after tax of joint ventures and associates - - - (2) (60) (62)
Total operating profit/{loss) 142 (39) 72 18 (133) 60
Net finance {expense)/income (11} 14 1 1 63 {(158)
Profit before iIncome tax 13 (25) 73 19 (296} (98)
income tax (expense)/credit (28) {5) (1 {5) 7 (32)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations 103 (30) 72 14 (289) (130}
Income taxes pard® (27) (7 (2) {4) 4 (54)

1 Other and elminations mcludes the corporate centre and operational hub expenses wholesale solutions business and eliminations for inter-segment transactions and the results
of our joint ventures and associates

2 EBITDAIs used in management reporting as it 1s considered by management to be a key financial metric Itis defined as earnings before interest tax depreciation and amortisation
net other operating and non-operating income/expense and exceptional items {see page 93}

3 Income taxes paid represents cash tax pad during the year by consolidated subsidiaries
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There are no differences in the measurement of the reportable segments’ results and the Group s results

There is no significant trading between the segments Transactions between the segments are on commercial terms similar to those offered to
external customers

There are no differences in the measurement of the reportable segments’ assets and habiities and the Group s assets and habilities
Furthermore, there are no asymmetncal allocations to reportable segments

Entity-wide disclosures for continuing operations
The revenue from external customers are analysed by product below Qur Business-to-Business and Business-to-Government operations and
the results of our subsea cable partnership are included in the resuits of the product category to which they relate

Restated

2014/15 2013714

ussm ussm

Mobile 929 898

Broadband and video 198 194

Fixed voice 359 374

Managed Services and other 267 223

Total 1,753 1,689
Revenue for continuing operations from external customers can be classified by country as follows

Restated

2014/15 2013/14

ussm ussm

Unrted Kingdom (country of domicile} - -

The Bahamas 348 354

Barbados 149 157

Jamaica 182 181

Panama 636 576

Seychelles 51 53

All other countries and eliminations 387 368

Total 1,753 1,689

Revenue has been allocated to a country based on the location in which the telecommunicattons services were provided The Group does not
have any external customers from which revenue exceeds 10% of consolidated Group revenue

Non-current assets (other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets and defined benefit pension assets) are classified by country and
include the prefminary allocation of non-current assets of Columbus as at 31 March 2015

At 31 March At 31 March

2015 2014

ussm Ussm
United Kingdem (country of domicile) 13 17
The Bahamas 405 380
Barbados 933 157
British Virgin Islands 82 72
Colombia 567 -
Curacac 213 -
Jamaica 685 130
Monaco - 456
Panama 935 662
Seychelles’ a7 -
Trinidad & Tobago 835 159
United States of America 36 7
All other countries and eliminations {includes non-operating assets and habilities) 885 262
Total 5,636 2,302

1 Seychelles was included within discontmued operauans in 2013/14 and has been reclassified to cantinuing operations in 2014/15
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section two - Results for the year

2 3 Operating costs and other operating income and expenses
2 31 Operating costs

Detailed below are the key expense items charged or (credited) 1n arriving at cur operating profit Qutpayments are amounts paid to
other operators when our custorers call customers connected to a different network

An analysis of the operating costs from continuing operations incurred by the Group 1s presented below, classified by the nature of the cost

Restated
2014/15 2013/14
Pre- Exceptional Pre-  Exceptional
exceptional itemns Total  exceptional items Total
Continuing operations ussm ussm ussm ussm Uskm ussm
Outpayments and direct costs 457 - 457 417 - 417
Employee and other staff expenses 246 77 323 274 128 402
Operating lease rentals
— Networks 17 - 17 18 - 18
— Property 22 - 22 22 7 29
Other admtnistrative expenses 231 7 238 209 25 238
Network costs 116 20 136 122 - 122
Property and utility costs 79 - 79 81 10 N
Operating costs before depreciation and amortisation 1,168 104 1,272 1,143 174 1317
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 209 127 336 204 - 204
Amortisation of intangible assets 47 - 47 N - 31
Operating costs 1,424 231 1,655 1.378 174 1552
Operating costs are stated net of credits or charges arising from the release or establishment of accruals
2 3 2 Auditor’s remuneration
2014/15 2013714
ussm ussm
Audit services
Statutory audit services — in respect of the Group’s accounts 23 22
Audit of the Group’s annual accounts 23 22
Amounts receivable by auditors and their associates
Statutory audit services — in respect of other statutory accounts 12 14
Audit related regulatory reporting 04 05
39 41
Tax services — compliance 02 -
Tax services — advisory 03 06
Services related to corporate finance activities 03 06
Other services {including other assurance services) 01 01
48 54

Auditor’s remuneration for audit and other services in respect of discontinued operations was US$nilin both 2014/15 and 2013/14

All amounts in 2014715 and 2013/14 relate to KPMG LLP Fees paid to KPMG LLP for audit and other services to the Company are included in
the table above and are not disclosed imits individual accounts as the Group accounts are required to disclose such fees on a consolidated basis
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2 3 3 Employee and other staff expenses

This note shows the average number of people employed by the Group during the year and where they are based It also shows total
employment costs

Accounting policy detailed innote 5171

The pre-exceptional employee and other staff expenses for continuing operations are set out below

Restated
2014/15 2013/14
ussm ussm
Wages and salaries 229 247
Soaial security costs 13 15
Share-based payments 5 6
Pension costs
- defined benefit plans g9 12
- defined contribution plans 6 7
Temporary labour and recruitment 19 17
281 304
Less Staff costs capitalised (35) (30}
Staff costs 246 274
Exceptional employee and other staff expenses (note 2 3 5) 77 128
Total staff costs for continuing operations 323 402
Total staff costs inrespect of discontinued operations in 2014/15 was US$4 million (2013/14 — US$42 miflon)
The average number of persons excluding Columbus and including Executive Directors, employed by the Group during the year was
Restated
2014/15 201314
Corporate centre and operational hub 232 144
Panama 1,547 1,434
LIME 1,392 2045
BTC 787 824
Seychelles 207 242
Total 4,165 4,689

The average number of employees in discontinued operations up untll disposal was 269 (2013/14 — 548}
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section two ~ Results for the year

2 3 Operating costs and other operating income and expenses continued
Directors’ and key managerment remuneration

Key management are represented by Directors only as those that have authority and responsibility for managenial decisions affecting
the future development and business prospects of the Cable & Wireless Communications Group Further details can also be found in

the Directors remuneratron report on pages 68 to 88

Inciuded within employee costs Is key management remuneration relating to continuing operations as follows

2014/15 201314

Ussm ussm

Salaries and other short-term employment benefits 119 77
Post-employment benefits 06 06
Total Directors’ remuneration’ 125 83
Share-based payments 15 35
Total key management remuneration 140 118

1 Please refer to the Directors remuneration report on pages 66 to 88 for further information on aggregate Directors emoluments of US$12 5 milion (E£7 7 millien) {(2013/14 -

US$8 3 milkon (£5 2 million)} The Directors remuneration report is presented in sterling as salaries benefits and bonuses are paid in sterling

2 3 4 Other operating income and expense

In 2014/15, other operating income of U5$42 mihon included US$25 million of income relating to the subsea cable partnership with Columbus
which existed pre-acquisiion US$16 million of foreign exchange translation gamns on our UK defined benefit pension schemes and US$1 million
of gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment Cther operating expense of US$62 milhon included US$55 rmifhon of acquisition costs
relating to Columbus and Sonitel, US$3 million of integration costs relating to Columbus, US$2 million of transaction costs for the transfer of

2% of our shares to the BTC Foundation and US$2 million of loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

In 2013/14, other operating expense of US$15 million related to foreign exchange translation losses on our UK defined benefit pension schemes

2 35 Exceptionalitems

Exceptional items are materal items within profit or loss that derive from individual events that fall within the ordinary activities of the

Group They are identified as exceptional items by virtue of their size, nature or Incidence

Accounting policy detailed in note 5115

Exceptional operating losses totalled US$104 milion (2013714 - US$174 mullion)

The exceptional costs consist of Columbus integration costs of US$68 million Panama restructuring costs of US$9 mudlion, BTC restructuring

costs of US$24 million and restructurng and legal costs at the corporate centre of US$3 million

In the prior year, the exceptional costs consisted of Caribbean restructuring costs of U5$132 million Panama restructuring costs of

US$3 million and restructuring and legal costs at the corporate centre of US$39 mullion Further information on impairment chargesis in

note 3 4
2014/15 2013114
UssSm ussm
Exceptional items within operating costs befare depreciation and amortisation
Staff costs 77 128
Legal and property costs 27 46
Total exceptional operating costs before depreciation and amortisation 104 174

Exceptional items relating to impairment charges can be found in note 3 4
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2 4 Garins on sale of businesses

This represents the profit or loss recorded on the sale of smaller businesses as we simphfy our portfolio

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group divested its 32 577% shareholding in Solomon Telekom Company Limited (‘Soltel ) to the
Solomon Islands National Provident Fund Board for total cash proceeds of US$16 5 millon The transaction resulted in a gain on disposal of
US$4 milhon This divestment marks the Group's exit from the South Pacific region as interests in Vanuatu and Fijp have previously been sold

The business disposed does not constitute a discontinued operation in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations due to its size

2 5 Earnings per share

Earnmngs per share (EPS) 1s the amount of profit after tax attributable to each share

Basic EPS 15 calculated on the Group profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of US$253 millon (2013714 - US$859 million)
divided by 2,615 milhon (2013/14 - 2,502 million) betng the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year

Diluted EPS takes inte account the dilutive effect of all share options being exercised

Basic EPS 1s adjusted in order to more accurately show the business performance of the Group in a consistent manner and reflect how
the business i1s managed and measured on a day-to-day basis See page 93 for areconaliation

Restated

2014/15 2013/14

ussm ussm

Profit for the financial year attnibutable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company 253 859

Weighted average number of ordinary shares inissue {millions) 2,615 2,502

Dilutive effect of share options (millions) 12 -

Total weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue used to

calculate diluted earnings per share (millions) 2,627 2502

Basic earmings per share (cents per share) 97 343

Ciluted earmings per share (cents per share) 97 343
Basic loss per share (cents per share) for continuing operations (38) (8 4)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) for continuing operations (38) (8 4)

Basic earnings per share (cents per share) for discontinued operations 135 427

Diluted earnings per share {cents per share) for discontinued operations 135 427
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section two - Results for the year

2 6 Income tax expense

This section explains how our Group tax charge anises The current and deferred tax charges or credits in the year together make up
the total tax charge in the income statement The deferred tax section also provides information on our expected future tax charges
A reconcliation of profit or loss before tax to the tax charge is also provided

Accounting policy detailed innote 5112

Restated
2014/15 2013/14
ussm ussm
Current tax charge for continuing operations
UK tax at 21% (2013/14 - 23%) - -
Double tax relief - -
Overseas tax 27 49
Adjustments relating to prior years 10 i
Total current tax charge for continuing operations 37 38
Deferred tax credit for continuing operations
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences 4 (5}
Adjustments relating to prior years n (1}
Total deferred tax credit for continuing operations (5) (6)
Total tax charge for continuing operations 32 32
Income tax charge relating to discontinued operations (note 2 8 5) 1 6
Total income tax charge 33 38
The Group's effective tax rate differs from the UK statutory tax rate as follows
Restated
2014/15 2013/14
Continuing Discontinued Total Continuing  Dhscontinued Total
usSm ussm ussm ussm uss$m uUs$m
Profit before income tax before exceptional items 267 355 622 168 1,087 1,255
Exceptional charges (268) - (268) (266} - (266)
Profit/(loss) before income tax 1) 355 354 (28} 1,087 289
Income tax (credit)/charge at UK statutory tax rate 21%
(2013/14 - 23%) - 75 75 (22} 250 228
Effect of overseas tax rates (17) 1 (16} (27) 2 (29)
Effect of accounting for joint ventures and associates (2) - (2) 15 - 15
Effect of withholding tax and intra-Group dwvidends 16 - 16 6 - 6
Net effect of expenses not deductible/{income not taxable) 8 (75) (67} 18 (240) (222)
Effect of changes in unrecognised deferred tax assets 17 - 17 53 2) 51
Adjustments relating to prior years 10 - 10 (11 - (1)
Total income tax charge 32 1 33 32 6 38
Income tax credit on exceptional items (33) - {33} {19) - (19)
Pre-exceptional Income tax charge 65 1 66 51 6 57
Pre-exceptional effective tax rate on profit 24 3% 10 6% 304% 45%
Effective tax rate on profit nm 93% (327)% 38%

A change in tax legislation from 1 January 2015 meant that Cable & Wireless Dominica s corporate tax rate will be reduced from 30% to 28%

For the analysis of the Group's deferred tax assets and habilities at the reporting date, including factors affecting the future tax rates, see

note 27
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2 7 Deferred tax

Accounting policy detalled innote 5112

The moverments in deferred tax assets and rabiities during the year are as follows

Camital
allowances on Financial
non-current posmon
assets Tax losses Pensions Other offset Total
Ustm UsSsm ussm ussm us$m ussm
Deferred tax assets 15 19 3 10 17) 30
Deferred tax liabilities 37) - (9 - 17 29
At 1 April 2013 22 19 {6) 10 - 1
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss! (2) 5 - 1 - 4
Exchange differences - - 1 1 - 2
At 31 March 2014 (24) 24 (5) 12 - 7
Deferred tax assets 12 24 1 12 (15) 34
Deferred tax liabilities (36) - (6) - 15 27)
At 1 Apnil 2014 (24) 24 (5) 12 - 7
Acquisittons (157) 9 - (26) - (174}
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss' 6 1 - (3) - 4
Disposals - 7 - (3) - (10)
Exchange differences () - - - - (1)
At 31 March 2015 (176) 27 (5} 20) - (174)
Deferred tax assets 13 27 - 15 4) 51
Deferred tax labilities {189) - (5) (35) 4 (225)
At 31 March 2015 (176) 27 (5) {20} - (174)
1 Including US$1 million in relation te discontinued operations (2013714 — US$nil)
Deferred tax assets have not been recogrised in respect of the following temporary differences
Capital
altowances
avatlable on
non-current
assets Tax losses Pensions Other Total
Us$m ustm ussm UsS$m ussm
At 31 March 2015 156 7,339 205 70 7.770
At 31 March 2014 144 6,643 196 37 7020
Tax losses (recognised and unrecogrised) which exclude Columbus expire as follows
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
ussm Us$m
Within 1 year 13 3
Within 3 years 89 -
Within 5 years 124 2
Within 10 years 505 58
After more than 10 years 1,136 -
Other tax losses are not subject to expiry
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section two - Results for the year

2 7 Deferred tax continued
The US$7,339 milhon (31 March 2014 - US$6 643 million) tax losses include UK capital tosses of US$5,507 milhon (31 March 2014 -
US$5,421 million) Tax losses have not beenrecognised as there are insufficient taxable profits to utibse those losses in future penods

Deferred tax 1s not provided on unremitted earnings of subsidiaries joint ventures and associates where the Group controls the timing of
remittance and it 15 probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future The aggregate amount of temporary
differences assocated with investments in subsidiaries, branches, joint ventures and associates for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recogrised is US$47 million (31 March 2014 —US$136 million} These temporary differences relate to unremitted earnings

2 8 Discontinued operations

The following section outhnes what the Group 1s either holding for sale or has disposed of in the year When the Group has assets and
liabilitses that are ltkely to be so'd rather than being held for continuing use and when accounting standards require, these assets and
liabilitres are included in current assets and liabilittes and denoted as held for sale, rather than in their usual categories

If they represent a significant enough portion of the Group, they are also treated as discontinued operations This means that their
trading performance 15 no longer reported in the iIncome statement and are instead reported in a separate line, net of tax, called
‘discontinued operations These amounts no lenger form part of continumg earnings per share

Our former Monaco Telecom business, disposed of during the year, 1s included in discontinued operations

Accounting policy detarled in note 5110

281 Monaco

At a General Meeting on 15 May 2014, shareholders of the Company approved the sale of Compagnie Monégasque de Commumication SAM
{CMC), the holding company for the Group’s 55% stake in Monaco Telecom SAM to a private investment vehicle controlled by Xavier Nief
Monaco Telecom also owned 36 75% of Telecom Development Company Afghanistan Limited (Roshan} The sale of the business was
completed on 20 May 2014 for a total consideration of US$445 millon In addition, the Group received US$8 6 million relating to the estimated
cash, debt and working capital at completion The disposalis a further step n CWC's strategy to focus on the Canbbean and Latin America
region and after completion of the disposal, as the Group now generates all of its revenue from the Canbbean and Latin America region, with
the exception of the Seychelles

At 31 March 2014 Monaco did not meet the definition of a disposal group held for sale nor the cnitenia to be classified as discontinued
operations as there was insufficient certainty regarding the completion of a sale process The results of Monaco Telecom were disclosed
separately in thew own operating segment At 31 March 2015 the Monaco business has been classified as a discontinued operation as the sale
had been completed The comparative consolidated income statement and cash flow statement have been restated

282 lslands
The significant aspects of the Islands transaction are described below

« We completed the sale of the Islands sub-group (including the Group s interests i operations in the Maldives the Channel Islands and Isle of
Man, South Atlantic Diego Garcia) for US$470 million on 3 April 2013 The Group received cash proceeds of US$5071 millon representing
consideration of US$470 million plus US$31 million of proportionate net cash in the businesses attributable to Cable & Wireless
Communications,

« We also agreed to sell a 25% interest in Compagnie Monégasque de Communication SAM (CMC) the holding company of the Group's
interests in Monaco Telecom for U5%100 million which was completed on 3 Apnl 2013, and

+ We also granted to Batelco a put option over the 25% of CMC shares transferred to Batelco (the CMC put option, refer to note 4 6) which
was recogmised as a financial habiity and the Group unwound the put option and repurchased the 25% CMC shareholding for US$100 rrullion
on 30 December 2013

2 8 3 Macau

At a General Meeting on 28 February 2013, the shareholders of the Group approved the sale of the Macau operating segment for

US$750 mulion to CITIC Telecorn International Haldings Limited This sale took place on 20 June 2013 The Group receved cash proceeds of
US$$807 milkon comprising consideration of US$750 million plus US$57 mullion of proportionate net cash in the business attributable to
Cable & Wireless Communications

The Macau operating segment has been classified as a discontinued operation The results of Macau were previously recorded in the Macau
operating segment
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2 8 4 Seychelles

The Seychelles was disclosed as a discontinued operation and as a disposal group held for sale in the statement of financial position At
31 March 2014 net assets were US$47 millon This included cash and cash equivalents of US$3 milion At 31 March 2015 the Seychelles are
presented In continuing operations as they no longer meet the definition of held for sale The comparative consolidated income statement and

cash flow statement have been restated and reported within the Seychelles operating segment

2 8 5 Results
The results of all discontinued operations are shown below
Total
discontinued
Monaco operatlons
Year ended 31 March 2015 ussm ussm
Revenue 29 29
Expenses (20) 20)
Profit before tax 9 9
Tax m (4]
Profit after tax 8 8
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations 346 346
Profit for the year 354 354
Disposal costs (8) (8)
346 346
Total
Islands discontinued
sub-group Macau Monaco aperations
Year ended 31 March 2014 (Restated) ussm ussm us$m US§m
Revenue - 121 237 358
Expenses - (92) (184) (276)
Profit before tax - 29 53 82
Tax - 4 2) (8)
Profit after tax - 25 51 76
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations 274 737 (6) 1,005
Profit for the year 274 762 45 1,081
Disposal costs 3} (4 (1) (8)
271 758 44 1,073
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section three - Operating assets and habilities

This section shows the assets used to generate the Group'’s trading performance and the
liabilities incurred as a result Assets and liabilities relating to the Group’s financing activities
are addressed 1n section four. Deferred tax assets and hiabihities are shown 1n section two.

31 Trade and other receivables

Our trade and other receivables mainly consist of amounts owed to us by customers and amounts that we pay to our suppliers in
advance Trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for bad or doubtful debts

Accounting policy detarledin 51 4

31 March 31 March

2015 2014

ussm ussm
Gross trade receivables 400 276
Imparrment allowance (70) (77)
Net trade receivables 330 199
Other recevables 88 71
Prepayments and accrued income 153 146
Taxation and social security receivables 15 15
Loans to related parties 56 -
Amounts receivable from joint ventures and associates 1 2
Trade and other recewvables - current 643 433
Other recevables . 31 46
Prepayments and accrued income 127 124
Other receivables - non-current 158 170
Total trade and other receivables 801 603

The maximum expesure to credit nisk for recevables 1s equal to their carrying value There 1s no material difference between the carrying value
and fair value of trade and other receivables presented

Concentrations of credit risks with respect to trade recevables are small as the Group customer base is large and unrelated Receivables
predominantly relate to retail customers, governments and corporate entities as well as other telecommunications operators

Credit nisk procedures vary depending on the size or type of customer These procedures include such activities as credit checks, payment history
analysis and credit approval imits Based on these procedures, managernent assessed the credit quality of those recervables that are neither past
due nor imparred as low risk There have been no significant changes to the composition of receivables counterparties within the Group that
indicate this would change in the future During the periods presented there was a continued economic weakness in some of the markets in which
the Group operated This would indicate an increased credit risk on receivables that are neither past due nor imparred However, management
assessed this risk and, after providing vatuation allowance where necessary, continued to support the assessment of credit quality as low risk

An ageing analysis of the current "trade recewvables’ and current ‘other receivables’ that are not impaired is as follows {excludes prepayments
and accrued income, taxation and secia! secunty and amounts receivable from joint ventures and associates)

31 Mareh 31 March

2015 2014

ussm usim
Not yet due 68 20
Overdue 30 days or less 141 124
Overdue 31 to 60 days 48 39
Overdue 61 to 90 days 32 19
Qverdue 91 days to 180 days 44 30
Overdue 181 days or more 85 38
Current ‘trade receivables’ and current ‘other receivables’ 418 270
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Based on historic default rates, the Group believes that no impairment aliowance is necessary in respect of trade and other receivables not
past due or past due by up to 30 days Due to the nature of the telecommunications industry balances relating to interconnection with other
carriers often have lengthy settlement periods Generally interconnection agreements with major carriers result in both recewvables and
payables balances with the same counterparty Industry practice I1s that receivable and payable amounts relating to interconnection revenue

and costs for a defined period are agreed between counterparties and settled cn anet basis

An analysis of movernents in the trade receivables impairment allowance during the year is as follows

2014/15 2013/14
ussm us$m
At 1 Apnil 77 78
Reclassification from held for sale 2 -
Business disposals (6) -
Bad debts wnitten off (22) (30)
Increase in allowance 20 29
Exchange differences 1) -
At 31 March 70 77

In a small number of the Group's operations it 1s customary and practice to collect security deposits from customers as collateral These are

recorded as liabilities within other payables

3 2 Inventories

Our inventory primarily consists of mobile handsets equipment and consumables and 1s presented net of anallowance for obsolete products

Accounting policy detaled innote 516

Inventories of US$50 milhon (31 March 2014 — US$36 million) are presented net, after recording an allowance of US$7 milhan (31 March 2014

— US$8 million) made against slow moving or obsolete items

The cost of inventories held for sale that were expensed within operating costs in 2014/15 was U5$148 million (2013/14 — US$140 million)

Inventories of the Group are not pledged as security or collateral against any of the Group's borrowings

3 3 Trade and other payables

Our trade and other payables mainly consist of amaunts we owe to our suppliers that have been invoiced or are accrued They also include
deferred income which 1s amounts we have billed to our customers where we have yet to provide the service Taxes and social security

amounts are due in relation to our role as an employer

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
ussm us$m
Trade payables 199 141
Other tax and social security costs 17 6
Accruals 429 339
Deferred income 52 58
Other payabies 74 68
Trade and other payables — current 771 612
Accruals 13 -
Deferred income’ 333 23
Other payables 27 3
Trade and other payables — non-current 373 26
Total trade and other payables 1,144 638
1 Deferred income of US$333 million pnimarily relates to long-term capacity sales contracts that were acquired through a business combination (note 311)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section three - Operating assets and habilities

3 3 Trade and other payables continued

There 1s no material difference between the carrying value and far value of trade and other payables presented For liquidity risk exposure
analysis purposes, the carrying amount of trade and other payables 5 the same as the contractual cash flows, with the contractual matunities
of these financialliabilities all due in less than one year

3 4 Impairment review

Impairment occurs when the carrying value of an asset or group of assets Is greater than the present value of the cash they are
expected to generate

We perform annual impairment reviews of the carrying value of goodwill We consider the carrying value of other assets at least
annually If there are triggers that indicate an impairment of other assets 1s possible, we then perform a full imparment review
Us$78 million impairment charges were recorded in 2014715 (2013/14 - US$ni)

Accounting policy detailled innote 515

Goodwill

Areview of the carrying value of goodwill has been performed as at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 In performing this review, the
recoverable amotint has been determined by reference to the higher of the farr value less costs to sell and the value tn use of related businesses
The key assumptions used by the Group in the calculation of value in use for its goodwill balances are the discount rate, revenue growth
operating cost margin and the level of capital expenditure required te mantain the network at its current level

The Group s significant goodwill balances which are nol imparred are discussed below

Carrymng value at Terminal
Continuing operations Reporting 31 March 2015 growth Pre-tax
Year ended 31 March 2015 segment ussm rate discount rate
The Bahamas Telecormmunications Company'  BTC 63 0% 100%
Carrying value at Terminal
Continuing operations Reporting 31 March 2014 growth Pre-tax
Year ended 31 March 2014 segment ussm rate discount rate
The Bahamas Telecommunicahions Company'  BTC 63 0% 101%
Monaco Telecom group? Monaco 292 Between 0% and 1 5% Between 80%and 27 0%

1 The Bahamas Telecommunications Campany (BTC)
One relevant cash-generating unit {CGU) has been identified for the purpose of assessing the carrying value of the BTC business

2 Monaco Telecom group
Three relevant CGUs were identified for the purpose of assessing the carrying value of Manaco Telecom {domestic Including the cabte television business international business
and other serviges)

The value in use was determined for each CGU by discounting management forecasts of future cash flows (based on the approved three-year
bustness plan extrapolated at long-term growth rates) at pre-tax discount rates dependent on the risk-adjusted cost of capital of the different
parts of the business Management forecasts take account of the historical trading experience of the relevant business

Sensitivity

The value In use is sensitive to a number of Input assumptions, in particular relating to net cash flow and the discount rates While the Group
does not consider these scenarnos to be reasonably possible the value in use of the various CGUSs in aggregate would not support the carrying
value of the goodwillif

+ The Bahamas Telecommunications Company — net cash flows decreased by more than US$15 millon per year or the discount rate increased
by more than 4% above the pre-tax discount rate

Acquisitions

On 31 March 2015 goodwill of US$2 034 million was recognised on the acquisition of Colummbus As the acquisition was completed on the last
day of the financial year, the goodwill has not been allocated to indwidual cash-generating units This allocation will be performed in 2015/16
with a corresponding iImpairment review

During 2014/15, Cable & Wiretess Panama acquired Somitel which generated goodwill of US$13 million Sonitel was reviewed as part of the
Panama CGU
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Property, plant and equipment, indefinite lived intangible assets and other intangibles

The indefimite ived intangibles acquired durning 2014/15 of US$6 million relate to the Sonitel and Senset brands from the Sonitel acquisition

These brands are long-established in the Panama/Central American IT marketplace

As at 31 March 2015 no events or arcumstances were identified during the year to indicate that the carrying value of property, plant and

equipment had been impaired

However, as a result of the acquisition of Columbus and also technological upgrades as part of Project Marlin, certain specific assets in the
Columbus overlapping markets and also 1slands which were upgraded as part of Project Marlin were reviewed for the impact on the carrying

value of property, plant and equipment following those events As a result of the review, a write-off of US$49 milhon and impairment of
US$78 milion was recorded across the Caribbean islands noted below

Asset

Pre-tax write-offs  Impairment

Continuing operattons Reporting discount 2014/15 2014/15 Total

Year ended 31 March 2015 segment rate ussm Ussm Ussm
Barbados LIME 158%

Plant and equipment 25 23 48
Cayman LIME 87%

Plont and equipment 12 - 12
Grenada LIME 15 8%

Plont and equipment 2 8 10
Jamaica LiME 11 8%

Plant and equipment 2 30 32
St Lucia LIME 200%

Land and burldings - 8 8

Plant and equipment 1 6 7
St Vincent LIME 21 2%

Plant and equipment 3 3 6
Turks & Caicos LIME 126%

Plant and equiprment 3 - 3
Other LIME LIME 14 3%

Plant and equipment 1 - 1
Total 49 78 127
The value In use after impairment was not considered significant
Associates
Refer to note 3 7 for discussion on impairment considerations
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for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section three - Operating assets and liabilities

35 Intangible assets

The following section shows the non-physical assets used by the Group to generate revenues and profits

These assets include goodwill, software hicences and operating agreements and customer contracts Within hcence and operating

agreements we include the cost of any acquired spectrum we use for cur mobile services The cost of intangible assets 15 the amount
that the Group has paid or, where there has been an acquisition of a business, the fair value of the specific intangible assets that could
be sold separately or which arise from legal rights Goodwill anises when we acquire a business and pay a higher amount than the fair
value of the net assets of that business Goodwillis not amortised but subject to annual impairment tests The value of goodwillis an
‘Intangible’ value that comes from for example, synergies we expect to gain and the value of its employees

The value of other intangible assets reduces over the number of years the Group expects to use the asset via an annual amortisation
charge Should an asset’s value fall below its carrying value an additional one-off impairment charge 1s made against profit

Accountmg policy detailed innote 51 3

Licences and Customer
operating contracts and
Goodwill Software  agreements  relationships Brands Other Total
Ussm UsSym us$m us$m us$m ussm usém

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2013 309 237 160 31 - 61 798
Additions 31 10 7 - - 8 56
Transfer from tangible assets - 19 1 - - - 20
Disposals - m - (4) - {2) (7)
Exchange differences 15 5 8 - - 3 21
At 31 March 2014 355 260 176 27 - 70 888
Acquisitions 2050 19 15 567 112 1 2,764
Additions - 19 39 - - 1 59
Transfer from tangible assets - 28 - - - - 28
Reclassification from held for sale - 5 - - - - 5
Business disposals (292) (3) (135) - - (70) (500)
Disposals - -~ - (6) - - (®)
Exchange differences - (4) (1) - - - 5)
At 31 March 2015 2,113 324 94 588 112 2 3,233
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 April 2013 - 182 75 7 - 49 313
Charge for the year’ - 35 10 4 - 6 55
Disposals - (1) - 4) - (2) (7)
Exchange differences - (5) 4 - - 2 1
At 31 March 2014 - 211 89 7 - 55 362
Charge for the year’ - 33 8 7 - 1 49
Reclassification from held for sale - 3 - - - - 3
Business disposals - (2) (68) - - 56 (126}
Disposals - - - (6} - - (6)
Exchange differences - (3) - - - - (3)
At 31 March 2015 - 242 29 8 - - 279
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 2,113 82 65 580 112 2,954
At 31 March 2014 355 49 87 20 - 15 526

1 The charge for the year includes US$2 milion {2013/14 - US$24 million) in relation to discontinued operations Refer to note 2 8 for more information
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Goodwill balances are allocated to the following cash-generating units

Monaco Grupo Dekal
Telecom' BTC? Columbus® Sonitel? Wireless*® Total
UsS$m Ussm ussm ussm Us$m us$m

At 1 April 2013 246 63 - - - 309
Acquisition of non-controlling interest (note 4 8) 1 - - - - 31 ‘
Exchange differences 15 - - - - 15
At 31 March 2014 202 63 - - - 355
Acquisitions - - 2,034 13 3 2,050
Business disposal (291) - - - - (291)
Exchange differences (1 - - - - ')
At 31 March 2015 - 63 2,034 13 3 2,113

1 Reporting segment Discontinued operations {note 2 B}
2 Reporting segment BTC

3 Reportingsegment Columbus

4 Reporting segment Panama

5 Reporting segment LIME

3 6 Property, plant and equipment

The following section shows the physical assets used by the Group to generate revenues and profits We make significant investments
in network plant and equipment - the technology and base stations required to operate our networks — that form the majonity of our

tangible assets

Depreciation 1s calculated by estimating the number of years the Group expects the asset to be used (useful economic life} If there has
been a technological change or dechne in business performance the Directors review the value of the assets to ensure they have not

fallen below their depreciated value If an asset s value falls below its depreciated value an additional ane-off imparment charge is

made against profit

Accounting policy detaled nnote 51 2
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Section three - Operating assets and hiabilities

36 Property, plant and equipment continued

2014715 2013/14
Assets Assets
Land and Plant and under Land and Plant and under
buldings  equipment constructien Total buitdings equipment  construction Total
UssSm USSm us$m ussm uUssm Usim ussm ussm
Cost
At 1 April 423 4,001 220 4,644 427 3,852 188 4,467
Acquisitions 43 941 107 1,091 - - - -
Additions 1 12 403 416 - 10 279 289
Business disposals - (109) (2) (111) - - - -
Write-offs - (49) - (49) - - - -
Disposals (2) (94) - (96) - {18) - (18)
Reclassification from assets held for sale 8 55 9 72 ~ - - -
Transfers to intangible assets - - (28) (28) - - (20) (20)
Transfers between categories 21 334 (355) - 12 213 {225) -
Transfers to assets held for sale - (42) -~ (42) - - - -
Exchange differences (7N (33) (2) (42) (16) (56) 2) (74)
At 31 March 487 5,016 352 5.855 423 4,001 220 4,644
Depreciation
At 1 April 204 3,022 - 3,226 203 2897 - 3100
Charge for the year 15 195 - 210 12 195 - 207
Write-offs - 49 - 49 - - - -
{mpairments 8 70 - 78 - - - -
Business disposals - (71} - 71} - - - -
Disposals M (137) - {138) - (15) - (15)
Rectassification from assets held for sale 2 25 - 27 - - - -
Transfers to assets held for sale - (14) - (14) - - - -
Exchange differences (6) (29) - (35 (11} (55) - (66)
At 31 March 222 3,110 - 3,332 204 3,022 - 3226
Net book value at 31 March 265 1,906 352 2,523 219 979 220 1,418

1 The charge includes US$1 million relating to discontinued operations {2073/14 - US$3 milkon) Refer to note 2 8 1 for mere information

The Group held no assets under finance leases at 31 March 2015 or 31 March 2014

Additions during the year include interest and own work capitalised duning the construction of certain assets of US$12 million
(2013714 - US$3 milkon) and US$35 million (2013714 — US$30 million) respectively Of these amounts US$nil (2013/14 - US$mil) and US$nil
{2013/14 - US$nil) respectively relate to discontinued operations (note 2 8)

120 Cabte & Wireless Communications




3 7 lnvestmentn joint ventures and associates

We own interests in a number of associate operations, with a matenal interest in Telecommunications Services of Tnnidad and Tobago
Lirmited (TSTT) These are companies where we either share control with one or more other parties or have a degree of ownership
which gives us significant influence TSTT was equity accounted for up until 31 March 2015 when it was reclassified as held for sale

due to the acquisition of Columbus

Our share of joint venture and associates’ profit and net assets is recorded as a single line item i the consohdated income statement

and the consolidated staterment of financial position, respectively The principal investments in joint ventures and associates at
31 March 2015 are shown innote S 8

Accounting policy detalled innote 12 1

The following 1s unaudited summansed financial information for TSTT based on its financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS

Restated

31 March 317 March

2015 2014

ussm uUssm

Revenue 467 450
Proft/(loss) 26 (69)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - (10)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 26 (79)
Attributable to investee's shareholders 22 (79)

Non-current assets 621 624

Current assets 222 184
Non-current habiiities (98) (119)
Current habilities (350) (311)

Net assets 395 378

Attributable to investee’s shareholders 395 378

Group’s interest in net assets of investee at 1 Apnil 154 216
Total comprehensive income attributable to the Group 13 (60)
Dividends received during the year - (2)

Transfer to held for sale (167} —

Carrying value of interest in Investee at 31 March - 154

Group carrying value in net assets of investee at 31 March ~ 185

Exceptional costs of US$nil (2013/14 — US$67 million) were incurred during the year ended 31 March 2015

The following 1s summarised financial information for the Group’s interest in immaterial associates, based on the amounts reported in the

Group's consolidated financia! statements

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
usSm ussm
Carrying amount of interests i immaterial associates
Group's share of
Loss from continutng operations ) -
Other comprehensive foss - -
Total comprehensive loss (1) -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section three — Operating assets and habilities

3 8 Assets held for sale

Assets held for sale relate to the reclassification of TSTT from investments in joint ventures and associates due to the conditions
included in the regulatory approval from the Telecommunications Authority of Trinidad and Tobago which requires the Group to
dispose of our Investment in TSTT within a prescribed timeframe Property, plant and equipment was also transferred to held for sale
and pnimanily relates to the Barbados fibre network which s being divested as part of the regulatory approval from the Barbados Fair
Trading Commission

Accounting policy detarled in note 519

31 March 31 March

TSTT 2015 2014

Ussm UsSm Ussm

Transferred from property plant and equipment 28 -

Reclassification from investments i joint ventures and associates 167 -
Recycled foreign currency translation reserve for held for sale associate (30) 137

165 -

The investment m TSTT has been measured at fair value at US$137 mitlion and was calculated using an earnings multiple technique, using inputs
that are not based on publicly observable data The investment represents 49% of the equity of TSTT The key assumptions used in determuning
the market value of 100% of the equity of TSTT were the maintainable earnings for TSTT (based on actual 2015 results) and comparable
transaction multiples for the telecom industry A 10% variance in earnings would result in an increase or decrease in the valuation of

Us$13 milion

3 9 Provisions

A provision 1s recognised by the Group where a liability exists, relating to events in the past and it 1s probable that cash will be paid to
settle it A feature of provisions I1s uncertainty aver the timing or amount to be paid and therefore the amounts are estimated

The matn provisions we hold are for redundancies, asset retirement obligations and claims for legal matters

Accounting policy detailed in note 57113

Netwark
and asset
Redundancy retrement Legal and
Property costs obligations other Total
ussm ustm us$m Us$m ussm
At 1 April 2014 20 43 30 89 182
Acquisitions - - - 11 11
Business disposals - m (2) " (14)
Additional provistons - 80 25 18 123
Amounts used (5) 37 - (29) (71}
Unused amounts released - (3) - ()] (12)
Effect of discounting - - - - -
Exchange differences - - m - nm
At 31 March 2015 15 82 52 69 218
Provisions - current 12 51 2 54 119
Provisions — non-current 3 31 50 15 99
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Network

and asset
Redundancy retirement Legaland

Property costs  obligations ather Total

ussm Ussm ussm ussm UsSSm

At 1 Apnil 2013 2 34 28 53 117

Additional provisions 19 128 1 46 194
Amounts used 1 (119} - 12) (130)
Unused amounts released (2) - m - (3)

Effect of discounting - - 3 1 4

Exchange differences - - ) 1 -

At 31 March 2014 20 43 30 89 182

Provisions — current 15 43 2 80 140

Provisions — non-current 5 - 28 9 42

The net expense recognised through profit or loss from movements in provisions relating to discontinued operations at 31 March 2015 was
US$7 million (31 March 2014 - US$7 milkon)

Property

Prowvision has been made for dilapidation costs and for the lower of the best estimate of the unavoidable lease payments or cost of ext in
respect of vacant properties Unavoidable lease payments represent the difference between the rentals due and any income expected to be
derived from the vacant properties being sublet The provision is expected to be used over the shorter of the period to exit and the lease
contract hfe

Redundancy

Provision has been made for the total employee related costs of redundancies announced prior to the reporting date Amounts provided for
during the year presented primarily relate to integration costs for merging the operations of the new combined group The provision is expected
to be used In the next two years Amounts used relate to the regional transformation activities n the Canibbean

Network and asset retirement obligations
Provision has been made for the best estimate of the unavoidable costs asseciated with redundant leased network capacity The provisignis
expected to be used over the shorter of the period to exit and the lease contract life

Provision has also been made for the best estimate of the asset retirement obligation associated with office sites, technical sites, mobile cell sites,
domestic and subsea cabling This provision 1s expected to be used at the end of the life of the related asset on which the obligation arises

Legal and other

Legal and other provisions include amounts relating to specific legal claims against the Group together with amounts in respect of certain
employee benefits and sales taxes The timing of the utilisabion of the prowision 1s uncertain and s largely outside the Group’s control, for
example, where matters are contingent upon hitigation Legal proceedings are further discussed innote 55
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section three - Operating assets and habilities

310 Retirement benefits obhigations

We operate a number of defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans for our employees The Group's largest defined benefit
scheme 1s the Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund (CWSF) in the UK We agreed a new funding agreement with the Trustees of the
CWSFIn May 2014

Accounting policy detaifed in note 51 17

The Group operates pension schemes for its current and former UK and overseas employees These schemes include both defined benefit
schemes, where retirement benefits are based on employees’ remuneration and length of service, and defined contribution schemes, where
retirement benefits reflect the accumulated value of agreed contributions paid by, and in respect of, employees Contributions to the defined
beneht schemes are made in accordance with the recommendations of independent actuaries who value the schemes

Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund

Cable & Wireless Commumications operates the Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund (CWSF) This plan provides defined benefit and
defined contribution arrangerments for current and former employees of the Group The CWSF has been closed to new defined benefit
members since 1998

Regulatory framework and governance

The assets of the CWSF are held in trustee-administered funds governed by UK regulations, as 1s the nature of the relationship between the
Group and the Trustees Responsibility for the governance of the CWSF, including investment decisions and contribution schedules lies with
the Board of Trustees who must consult with the Group on such matters The Board of Trustees must be composed of representatives of the
Group, plan participants and an independent Trustee in accordance with the CWSF s governing documents

The weighted average duration of the total expected benefit payments from the CWSF 1s 16 years, and the weighted average duration of the
expected unnsured beneft payments from the CWSF s 22 years

Funding arrangements
The latest triennial actuarial valuation of the CWSF was carned out by independent actuaries Towers Watson Limited as at 31 March 2013

The March 2013 actuanal valuation showed that based on long-term financial assumptions the contribution rate required to meet the fuiure
benefit accrual was 43 5% of pensionable earnings (38 5% employer s and 5 0% employee s) This cantribution rate will be reviewed at the next
tnenmal valuation The terms of the CWSF Trust Deed also allow the Trustees or the Company to call for a valuation at any time

fn May 2014, the Group reached agreement with the Trustees on the valuation which showed a funding deficit of £109 million as at

31 March 2013 Cash contributions to the CWSF for 2014 to 2016 will remain as agreed following the 2010 triennial review The first two
payments of US$52 million and US$47 million were made in July 2014 and April 2015, respectively Paymentsin 2017 2018 and 2019 will
be based on the outcome of the actuanal funding valuation as at 31 March 2016 and will be in the range of £0 to £23 rmullion (US$0 to
US$35 million) each year necessary to fund the scheme by April 2019

As at 31 March 2015, the CWSF defined benefit scheme had an |1AS 18 Employee Benefits defiait of US$158 milhion compared with
adeficit of US$148 million at 31 March 2014 Cable & Wireless Communications paid a total contribution of US$52 million in 2014/15
(2013/14 - US$2 million) to the CWSF

The best estimate of contributions to the CWSF for 2015/161s US$49 millron for employer contributions and US$30 million for employee !
contributions

Miimurm funding requirement

The dehcit recovery funding plan agreed with the Trustees of the CWSF as part of the March 2013 actuanal valuation, which was applicable
at 31 March 2015, constitutes a mimimal funding requirement An adjustment to the defict in the CWSF to account for the minmum funding
requirement has been calculated in accordance with iFRIC 14 The limits on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their
mnteraction The adjustment to the deficit which s recorded in other comprehensive income was US$41 millionas at 31 March 2015
(2013714 - US$22 million}
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Asset-liability matching

During 2008, the CWSF Trustees agreed an insurance buy-in of the UK pensioner habilities with Prudential Insurance The buy-in involved the
purchase of a bulk annuity policy by the CWSF under which Prudential Insurance assumed responsibility for the benefits payable to the CWSF’s
UK pensioners In December 2011, a further 233 pensioners, having commenced with pensions in payment since the original annuity, were
brought within the bulk annuity policy These pensioner liabilities and the matching annuity policy reman within the CWSF Approximately 63%
of the habilities (2013/14 — 71%) in the CWSF are matched by the annuity policy asset which reduces the funding risk far the Group

UK unfunded pension arrangements
The Group operates unfunded defined benefit arrangements in the UK These pnimarily relate to pension provisions for former Directors and
other senior employees in respect of their earmings in excess of the previous Inland Revenue salary cap

The arrangements are governed by indmidual trust deeds One arrangement incorperates a covenant requiring the Group te hold security against
the value of the habilities The security is in the form of UK Government gilts which are held separately as avalable for sale assets (note 4 4)

The weighted average duration of the expected benefit payments from the unfunded arrangements 15 16 years

Cverseas schemes
The Group operates other defined benefit pensicn schemes in Jamatca and Barbados The schemes are closed to new entrants and the Jamaican
scheme Is also closed to future accrual The schemes are governed by local pension laws and regulations

The Jamaican scheme owns an insurance pohcy which matches in full the value of the defined benefit habilities

When defined benefit funds have an IAS 19 surplus, they are recorded at the lower of that surplus and the future economic benefits available in
the form of a cash refund or a reduction in future contnbutions Any adjustment to the surplus (net of interest) 1s recorded in other comprehensive
income The effect of these adjustments, described as asset ceiling adjustments, were US$26 million as at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014

— US$22 million) and relate to the Group’s defined benefit arrangements in Jamaica The maximum economic benefit was determined by
reference to the reductions in future contrnibutions available to the Group

The best estimate of contributions to the overseas schemes for 2015/16 15 US$2 million for employer contributions and US$nil for
empleyee contributions

IAS 18 Employee benefits valuation — Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund and other schemes

The IAS 19 valuations of the major defined benefit pension schemes cperated by the Group have been updated to 31 March 2015 by qualified
independent actuaries Lane, Clark & Peacock LLP prepared the vatuation for the CWSF and the UK unfunded arrangements and reviewed the
IAS 19 valuations prepared for Jamaica overseas scheme Eckler Ltd prepared the valuation for the Barbados overseas schemes

The main financial assumptions applied in the valuations and an analysis of schermes’ assets are as follows

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Overseas QOverseas
CWSF UK unfunded schemes CWSF UK unfunded schemes
assumption  assumptien  assumption  assumption assumpuion assurnption
% % % % % %
Significant actuarial assumptions

RPI inflatron assumption 28 28 41 33 33 44
Discount rate 31 31 92 43 43 87
Discount rate — CWSF uninsured lability 32 - - 44 - -

Other related actuarial assumptions
CPlinflation assumption 18 18 - 23 23 -
Salary increases 34 - 59 38 - 54
Pension increases 17-27 - 28 21-32 - 27

Increases to pensions are primartdy inked to RPlinflation before and after retirement
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Section three - Operating assets and habilities

3 10 Retirement benefits obhgations continued

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

Overseas Qverseas
CWSF scheme CWSF scheme
assets assets assets assets
ussm ussm ussm ussm

Plan assets
- Annuity policies 1,235 88 1,288 75
- Equities — quoted 338 37 339 38
- Bonds and gilts - quoted 238 39 174 54
- Property 1 41 3 41
- Cash and swaps 18 23 13 16
1,830 228 1,817 224

Assumptions used are best estimates from a range of possible actuarial assumptions, which may not necessarily be borne out in practice
The assumptions shown above for other schemes represent a weighted average of the assumptions used for the individual schemes

The assumptions regarding current mortality rates in retirement for the CWSF and UK unfunded schemnes were set having regard to the actual

experience of the CWSF s pensioners and dependants over the six years ended 31 December 2012 in addition, allowance was made for future

mortality improvements in line with the 2012 CMI core projections, subject to a long-term rate of improvement of 1 5% pa These are the
mortahty rates used for calculating the statement of financial position for the year ended 31 March 2015

The mortality rates used for the figure in the income statement for the year ended 31 March 2015 are updated from those which were used

for calculating the statement of inancial position for the year ended 31 March 2014

Based on these assumptions, the ife expectancies of pensioners aged 60 are as follows

On Oon Cn
31 March 31 March 31 March
2015 2025 2035
(years) (years) {years)

CWSF and UK unfunded
Male pensioners and dependants 288 300 312
Female pensioners 282 295 308
Fernale dependants 313 325 336

Risks
Through its defined benefit pension plans, the Group 1s exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below
The balance sheet net pension liability 15 a snapshot view which can be sigmficantly influenced by short-term market factors

The calculation of the surplus or defhicit depends, therefore, on factors which are beyond the control of the Group principally the value at the
balance sheet date of equity shares in which the scheme has invested and long-term interest rates which are used to discount future labilities
The funding of the scheme s based on long-term trends and assumptions relating to market growth, as advised by qualified actuaries and
Investment advisers

« Investment returns The Group's net balance sheet and contribution requirements are heavily dependent upon the return on the assets
invested in by the schemes

« Longevity The cost to the Group of the pensions prormised to members 1s dependent upen the expected term of these payments To the
extent that members live longer than expected this will increase the cost of these arrangements and

« Inflatronrate sk In the UK the pension promises are, 1n the main, inked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to hugher llabilities

The above risks have been mitigated for a large proportion of the CWSF's population and all of the Jarmaican scheme s liabilities through the
purchase of nsurance policies, the payments from which exactly match the promises made to employees Remaining investment risks in the
CWSF have also been mitigated to some extent by diversification of the return-seeking assets

In addition, the defined benefit obligation as measured under 1AS 19 1s inked to yields on AA rated corporate bonds, however, the majority of
the Group's arrangements invest In a number of other assets which will move i a different manner from these bonds Therefore, changes in
market conditions may lead to volatiity i the net pension liability on the Group's balance sheet and in other comprehensive Income, and to a
lesser extent in the JAS 19 pension expense in the Group’s incomne statement
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Increase in

Decrease in

assumption assumptian

Sensitivity analysis ussm ussm
CWSF and UK unfunded
Discount rate

Effect on total defined benefit obligation of a 0 25% change 77 77

Effect an defined benefit obhgation net of bulk annuity of a 0 25% change (40) 40
RPi inflation {and related ncreases)

Effect on total defined benefit obligation of a 0 25% change 54 {54)

Effect on defined benefit obligation net of bulk annuity of a O 25% change N (31)
Life expectancy

Effect on total defined benefit obligation of a one year change 59 (59)

Effect on defined benefit obligation net of bulk annuity of a one year change 21 21)
Overseas schemes
Discount rate

Effect on total defined benefit obligation of a 0 25% change (2) 2
Inflation assumption

Effect on total defined benefit obhgation of a 0 25% change 2 (2)

Methods and assumptions for sensitivity analysis

The above analysis Is based on a standalone change 1n each assumption while holding all cther assumptions constant The impact onthe net
liability 15 significantly reduced for the CWSF scheme as a result of the annuity policies held In the absence of such policies, the impact on the
net liability would be much closer to the significantly higher impact on the defined benefit obligation

The methods used i preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior periad

Using the projected unit method for the valuation of liabilittes, the current service cost is expected to increase when expressed as a percentage

of pensionable payroll as the members of the scheme approach retirement

Assets and habilities

The assets and labilities of the defined benefit pension schemes operated by the Group were as follows

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

UK Overseas UK Overseas

CWSF unfunded schemes Total CwWSF unfunded schemes Total

ussm ussm usSm us$m ustm Ustm ustm ustm
Total far value of plan assets 1,830 - 228 2,058 1817 - 224 204
Present value of funded obligations (1.947) - (185) (2,132) (1,943) - (182} (2,125)
Excess of (habiities)/assets of funded
obhgations 17 - 43 (74) (126) - 42 (84)
Present value of unfunded obligations - (48) 3) (51) - {48) 3) 51)
Impact of the mnimum funding
requirement (a1) - - (41) (22) - - (22)
Effect of asset celing - - (26) (26) - - 22) (22)
Net (deficit)/surplus (158) (48) 14 {(192) {148) (48) 17 (179)
Defined beneht pension plans in deficit (158) (48) 3) (209) (148) (48) (3} (199)
Defined beneht pension plans in surplus - - 17 17 - - 20 20
Net (deficit)/surplus (158) (48) 14 {192) {148) (48) 17 (179)

Included within these habilities 1s an amount of US$32 mulion (2013714 - US$33 muliron) to cover the cost of former Directors’ pension entitlenents
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310 Retirement benefits obligations continued
The amounts recognised in the tncome statement were as follows

2014/15 2013/14
UK Overseas UK Overseas
CWSF unfunded schemes Total CWSF unfunded schemes Totat
Ussm UsSm Ussm ussm usSsm ussm Ussm Ussm
Current service cost - - ) 2) m - (3 (4)
Interest (charge)/credit on net
habiliies/assets (5) 2) 2 (5) (6) (2) 2 (6)
Adrministration expenses 2) - - (2) (2) - - (2)
Gains on curtallment - - - - - - 8
Total net (charge)/credit N 2) - (9) (9 (2) {4
Changes i the net liability recogrised in the statement of financial position {after application of asset imit)
2014715 2013/14
UK Overseas UK Qverseas
CWSF unfunded schemes Total CWSF unfunded schermes Total
USSm ussm usSm UsSm ustm ussm Ussm UsSsm
Net (habihty)/asset at 1 April (148) (48) 17 (179) (130) {46) 19 (57
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 11 5 (N 15 (11) (4) 2) (17}
Net {expense)/credit recognised in the
INcome statement 0)) )] - (@ &) (2) 7 (4)
Net credit /(expense)} recogmsed cutside
the income statement (68) ) 4 a7 - 2 (9 (7)
Contributions paid by the employer 54 2 2 58 2 2 2 6
Net (hability)/asset at 31 March (158) (48) 14 (192) (148) (48) 17 (179)
Changes inthe present value of the defined benefit pension obligations are as follows
2014/15 2013/14
UK Overseas UK Overseas
CWSF unfunded schemes Tota! CWSF unfunded schemes Total
ussm ussm ussém Us$m Ussm ussm ussm us$m
At 1 April (1,943) (48) (185) (2,176) (1.872) (46) (188) (2,106}
Current service cost - - (2) (2) 1) - (3) 4)
Interest on cbligations (80) (2) (13) (95) (80) (2) {(14) (96)
Remeasuremernts
Actuanal gain/(loss) from changes in
demographic assumptions - - - - 55 1 - 56
Actuanal gain/(loss) fram changes in
financial assumptions (242) - (11) (253) 20 1 - 21
Actuarial loss from experience on
obhgations 21 (4) (2) 15 - - (9) Q@)
Employee contributions - - - - - - 3) (3)
Gains on curtallment - - - - - - 8 8
Benefits pad 94 2 20 116 87 2 13 102
Exchange differences 203 4 S 212 (152) {4) 11 (145)
At 31 March (1,947) (48) (188) (2,183) (1,943) (48) (185) (2176)
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Changes in the fair value of defined benefit assets are as follows

2014715 2013714
UK Overseas UK Overseas
CWSF unfunded schemes Total CWSF unfunded schemes Tetal
Ussm usSm ussm usSm Us$m UStm US$m us$m
At 1 April 1,817 - 224 2,041 1,771 - 222 1,993
Interest on plan assets 76 - 17 93 75 - 17 92
Remeasurements
Return on Invested plan assets,
excluding amount in interest income 69 - (CY) 65 7 - (1) 6
Actuanial loss from changes in
demographic assumptions on
insured asset - - - - (47) - - 47
Actuarial gain/(loss)from changes in
financial assumptions on INsured asset 115 - 11 126 (32) - - (32)
Actuanal (loss)/gain from experience
on insured asset (10) - 4 (6) 12) - 9 (3}
Emptoyer contributions 52 2 2 56 2 2 2 6
Employee contributions - - - - - - 3 3
Benefits pad (94) (2) (20} (1186} 87 (2} (13) (102}
Administration expenses (2) - - (2) 2) - - (2}
Exchange differences (193) - (6) (199) 142 - 13 127
At 31 March 1,830 - 228 2,058 1817 - 224 2,041
Changes in the fair value of minimum funding requirement /asset ceding are as follows
2014715 2013/14
UK Overseas UK Owverseas
CWSF unfunded schemes Total CWSF unfunded schemes Total
UsSm usSm us$m ussSm UStm ussm LsHm ustm
At 1 Apnil (22) - (22) (44) (29) - (15) (44)
Interest on minimum funding/asset celling
requirement (1) - (2) (3) 1) - {1} (2)
Change in effect of minimum funding/
asset celling — (loss)/gain @cn - (3) (24) 9 - (8 1
Exchange differences 3 - 1 4 (1) - 2 1
At 31 March 41 - (26) (67) (22) - (22) {44)

311 Acquisitions
3111 Columbus International Inc

On 6 November 2014, the Company agreed to acquire 100% of the equity of Columbus International Inc (Columbus) a leading privately-
owned fibre-based telecommunications and technology services providar operating in the Caribbean, Central America and the Andean region
with approximately 700,000 restdenttal customers

In the Canbbean, Columbus 1s one of the leading providers of triple-play cable TV and broadband enabled services over its proprietary fibre
optic network infrastructure Throughits wholly owned subsidiary Columbus Netwarks, Columbus provides backhaul connectwity to

42 countries in the region, as well as capacity and IT services corparate data solutions and data centre services throughout the Caribbean,
Central American and the Andean region Columbus also provides next generation connectivity and IT solutions, managed netwaorking and
cloud-based services under the brand Columbus Business Solutions This transaction is In line with the strategy outlined in May 2014 to drive
mabile leadership, accelerate fixed-mobile convergence, reinforce TV offer and grow B2B/B2G business

On 31 March 2015, the acquisition was completed for consideration of US$2,121 millon comprising a mixture of cash, the Company’s shares,
capitalised share option amounts and the fair value of put options granted to the Cotumbus Principal Vendors

Annual Report 2014/15 129




Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section three - Operating assets and liabilities

311 Acquisitions continued

As part of the acqusition of Calumbus, Columbus’ existing US$1,250 million 7 375% Senior Notes due 2021 were assumed by the combined
group and two year term loans were obtained US$390 million secured and US$300 million unsecured term loan agreements which are
repayable two years from the date of the close of the acquisition of Columbus Additionally, a new revolving credit facility (RCF) of

US$570 milion was put in place for a term of five years The Columbus Senior Notes, term loans and drawn RCF amounts are reflected

in Borrowings (note 4 3)

The fair value of the consideration for the acqussition of Columbus is compnised as follows

US$m

Cash 708
Shares tn CWC 1287
Fair value of put options 103
Replacement share option awards 23
2121

Total consideration

« The Company issued 1,557,529,605 consideration shares in the capital of the Company to the Principal Vendors As aresult, the Principal
Vendors in aggregate hotd 36% of the ordinary shares in the Company The share consideration includes a lack of marketability discount

« Each Principal Vendor agreed at completion to enter into lock-up and put option arrangements in respect of its consideration shares Under
the put option arrangements each Principal Vendor can require the Company ta reacquire certain of the consideration shares in four tranches
between 2016 and 2019 at a strike price of US$0 7349 per share The fair value of this put option of US$103 million has been recognised as
anequity Instrument wathin ather reserves As this put option meets the definition of an equity mstrument, it will not be revalued to fair value
at subsequent year ends The financial hability attaching to the put option was valued using the present value techrigue at Us$879 million

(refer to note 4 8 which detalls the accounting for the repurchase option)

As part of the acquisition agreement Columbus existing Employee Incentive Plan share option plan was cancelled, with certain employees of

Columbus rolling over their options Into an equivalent CWC share option plan As set outinIFRS 3, the fair value of these replacement awards

attributable to the pre-acquisition penod of service by these employees 15 taken as part of consideration

The Group has made a provisional assessment of the farr values of the assets and habilities as at the acquisition date based on estimated total

consideration of US$2,121 milkon

Farr value Provisional
Baok value  adstments fair value
Us$m usim USsm
Intangible assets 174 513 687
Goodwill - 2034 2,034
Property, plant and equipment 1,041 36 1077
Assets held for sale 7 - 7
Assets held at farr value 14 - 14
QOther recevables 9 - 9
Deferred tax assets 23 - 23
Trade and other receivables 144 - 144
Inventories 5 - 5
Cash and cash equivalents 80 - 80
Trade and other payables (168) (3) (171)
Borrowings (1.234) - (1,234)
Current tax liabilities (16) - (16)
Deferred tax liabilities (85) (112) (197)
Other non-current payables (341) - (341)
Total (347) 2,468 2121

Due to the timing of the acquisition, on the last day of the financial year, the assessment of the fair value of assets and habilities at the acquisition
date will be subject to finalisation and the accounting for the acquisition will be revised in accordance with the prescribed 12 month period
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The goodwill recognised of US$2 034 mullion on acquisition was based on the provistonal assessment of the farr values of assets acquired and
habihties assumed Goodwill arising on the acquisition represents the value of the workforce and expected synerges resulting from the
Integration into the existing business that did not meet the recognition criteria set out I 1AS 38 Intangible Assets as they were unable to be
separately identified Goodwillis not expected to be tax deductible

Acquisition-related costs of US$54 milhon were recorded in these financial statements as other operating expenses Exceptronal financing costs
of US$37 million were recorded in the iIncome statement {note 4 1) These costs relate to requinng backstop facilities for both 2020

US$400 million and Columbus bonds, 2020 US$400 millon bondholder consent, Columbus backstop ticking fees and accelerated amortisation
of existing RCF capitalised transaction costs Additionally, fees of US$57 mullion were capitalised in the balance sheet, relating to debt 1ssuance
costs incurred from the acquisition

Had the acquisition occurred on 1 April 2014, management estimates that the attributable income statement would show pro forma revenue
of US$627 million and loss of US$40 million during the period

The preliminary acquisition accounting includes the payment of US$3 mullion by Columbus Communications Inc to Brendan Paddick as
required under the terms of Brendan Paddick s employment contract with Columbus Communications Inc which was terminated with effect
from completion

3 11 2 Grupo Sonitel

On 12 September 2014, the Group through its subsidiary Cable & Wireless Panama, S A (CWP), agreed to acquire Panama-based Grupo
Sonitel for US$36 million plus contingent consideration of up to an additional US$5 millon Grupo Sonitel operates SSA Sistemas, a provider of
end-to-end managed IT solutions and telecoms services to business and government customers in Panama, as well as in El Salvador, Nicaragua
and Peru, and Sonset, a provider of IT solutions and services to Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) customers in Panama

This transaction s in kne with the strategy outlined in May 2014 to grow business (B2B) and government (B2G) capabilities

The Group has made a provisional assessment of the fair values of the assets and liabilities as at the acquisition date based on estimated tota!
consideration (including contingent consideration) of US$39 milion

Fair value

Book value  adjustments Fair value

UsStm Ussm us$m

Property plant and equipment 2 - 2
Goodwill - 13 13
Custorner contracts and relationships - 17 17
Brands - 6 &
Other net assets 5 (4) 1
Total 7 32 39

The goodwill recogrused of US$13 million on acquisition was based on the provisional assessment of the far values of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed Goodwill arising on the acquisittan included the value of the workforce and expected synergies resulting from the integration
Into the existing business that did not meet the recogmtion criteria set out 10 IAS 38 Intangible Assets as they were unable to be separately
identified

Acquisition-related costs of US$1 milkon were recorded in these financial statements as other operating expenses !
Sonitel contributed revenue of US$44 million and profit of US$2 million to the Group's results If the acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2014,

management estimates that revenue would have been US$75 million and profit of US$4 million during the period

3 11 3 Other acquisitions

Dekal Wireless (Holdings) Liruted
On 16 December 2014, a subsidiary acquired 100% share capitat of Dekal Wireless (Holdings) Limited for a purchase price of US$6 3 million
The preliminary fair vaiue accounting has recognised goodwill of US$3 millien

{slandcom Lirmuted

On 23 March 2015 a subsidiary acquired the trading assets of Islandcom Telecommunications Lirited for a purchase price of US$6 million
No goodwill was recognised as part of the acquisition
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015 :

Secuion four - Capital structure and financing

This section outlines how the Group manages its capital and related financing costs The
o Directors determine the appropriate capital structure for the Group, specifically, how much

cash 1s raised from shareholders (equity) and how much s borrowed from financial

mstitutions (debt) 1in order to finance the Group's activities both now and 1n the future

The Directors consider the Group’s capital structure and dividend policy at least twice a year
ahead of announcing results and do so 1n the context of its ability to continue as a going
concern, to execute the strategy and to deliver its business plan.

During the year the Group entered into two year secured and unsecured term loans for
US$390 mullion and US$300 million, respectively The Group also refinanced its revolving
credit facihity arrangements with a new five year US$570 m:llion revolving credit facility

41 Finance income and expense

Finance income I1s mainly comprised of interest received from short-term mvestments 1n money market funds, external bank deposits
and government bonds Financing costs manly arise from interest due on bonds, external bank foans and foreign exchange losses
primanlfy due to the translation of foreign currency borrowings

Accounting policy detadled innote 51 4

The pre-exceptional finance income and expense are set out below

Restated

2014715 2013/14
Continuing operations ussm ussm
Finance iIncome
Interest on cash and deposits 2 4
Investment income 2 2
Foreign exchange gains 13 -
Gains on derivative contracts 9 -
Total finance Income 26 6
Finance expense
Interest on bank loans 37 29
Interest on bonds 56 ac
Unwinding of discounts on provisions 3 3
Foreign exchange losses - 19
Losses on derivative contracts - 1
a6 142
Less Interest capitalised (12) (3)
Finance expense 84 139
Exceptional finance expense 37 25
Total finance expense 121 164

2014/15 exceptional hnance costs of US337 million relate to backstop facilities for both 2020 US$400 million and Columbus bonds (bonds
assumed in the acquisition of Columbus), 2020 US$400 milion bendholder consent, Columbus backstop ticking fees and accelerated
amortisation of the US$487 million RCF fees (note 4 3) These costs are treated as exceptional due to the nature of these costs which were
necessary as bondholder approval and consents were required as part of the acquisition of Columbus

2013/14 exceptional finance costs of US$25 million relate to additional interest, early redemption charges and capitalised finance transaction
costs written off in respect of the 2017 bond which was redeemed on 28 February 2014

Tax relief of US$4 million 1s avallable on interest capitalised in the year ended 31 March 2015 (2013714 - US$1 milion) Interest has been
capitalised within property, plant and equipment at arate of 3 1% (2013/14 - 3 8%) on qualifying capital expenditure
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4 2 Cash and cash equivalents

The majority of the Group’s cash 1s held in bank deposits or in money market funds which have a matunty of three months or less to enable
us 1o meet our short-term liquidity requirements

Accounting policy detarled innote 51 4

31 March 31 March

2015 2014
Ussm ussm
Cash at bank and in hand 396 89
Short-term bank deposits 6 116
Cash and cash equivalents 402 205

Short-term bank depasits consist primarily of money market deposits, which can be readily converted to cash at short notice The effective
interest rate on short-term bank deposits at 31 March 2015 was 2 21% (31 March 2014 — 018%) At 371 March 2015, these deposits had an
average maturity of 17 days (31 March 2014 — five days}

The maximum exposure to credit risk for cash and cash equivalents 1s equal to the carrying value of those financial instruments

4 3 Borrowings

The Group’s sources of borrowing for funding and hquidity purposes come from a range of secured and unsecured bonds and facifities
Our key borrowings at 31 March 2015 consist of bonds and bank loans During the 12 months ended 31 March 2015, we entered into a
two year US$390 milion secured term loan and a two year US$ 300 million unsecured term loan and refinanced cur US$487 million
revolving credit facilities with a new five year US$570 million revolving credit facility Through the acquisition of Columbus the Group
assumed Columbus 7 375% Senior Notes due 2021 with a face value of US$1,250 million

Accounting policy detailed in note 51 4

31 March 2015 31 March 2014
Interest Carrying Interest Carrying
rate value Farr value rate value Fair value
Type Sequrity % USSm ussm % Ussm Ussm
2016 US%487 million facility’ Floating Unsecured - - - 2550 - -
2017 US$390 million loan Floating Secured 5500 374 374} - - -
2017 U5%$300 milkon loan Floating Unsecured 6500 288 288} - - -
2019 £200 millon bond Fixed Unsecured 8625 219 2512 8625 242 2812
2020 US$570 milion facility* Floating Secured 4000 - - - - -
2020 US$400 milion securedbond  Fixed Secured 8750 394 4312 8750 393 4527
2021 US%1,250 million bond Fixed Unsecured 7375 1,234 1,309 - - -
US dollar and currencies linked to Fixedand  Unsecured
the US dollar loans and facilities floating
(various dates to 2038) 3778 258 258° 3970 213 n3
Qverdrafts Floating Unsecured - 1 13 - 7 7
Total borrowings 2,768 855
Borrowings — current 82 58
Borrowings ~ non-current 2,686 797

1 ©On 19 October 2011 the Group entered into a five-year borrowing arrangement for LIS360C mdlion of revolving credit faciities with a maturity date of Octaber 2016

During 2013/14 the facility was reduced to US$487 miflon On 31 March 2015 this faclity was cancelled and replaced (As at 31 March 2014 the Group had US$487 milkon
of undrawn facilities available )

This value was determined by reference to market values obtained from third parties and are within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy

The carrying amount approximates to far value net of debt 1ssuance costs based on discounted cash flows and are within level 2 of the fau value hierarchy

On 31 December 2014 the Group entered into a five-year borrowing arrangement for US$570 mdlion of revolving credit faciiies with a maturity date of 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2015 the Group had US$421 million undrawn faclities available due to US$149 million letters of credit in favour of the Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund
These facilities incur commitment fees at market rates prevailing when the facdities were arranged

bW
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section four - Capital structure and financing

4 3 Borrowings continued

The agreements for the faciities entered into during the year contain financial and other covenants which are standard to these types

of arrangements

For hiquidity nsk exposure analysis purposes, the following are the contractual maturities of loans (including the expected interest payable

at rates prevailing at the reporting date but net of debt 1ssuance costs)

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
ussm us$m
Borrowings
Due mi less than one year 275 120
Due i more than one year but not more than two years 910 110
Due in more than two years but not more than five years 1,146 521
Due in more than five years 1,347 445
3,678 1,196
Less future finance charges on loans (910} (341)
Total borrowings 2,768 855
Interest was payable on borrowings falling due after more than five years at rates of between 0 0% and 7 4% (2013/14 - 0 0% and
8 B%, respectively)
Reconcihation of net funds
Funds are defined as cash at bank and in hand and shori-term deposits Debt 1s defined as bonds, loans and overdrafts
Analysis of changes in net funds
Capitahsed Net cash from At
At 1Apnl feesand Exchange discontinued 31 March
2014 Cashflow  amartsation Transfers  Acquisiions differences operations 2015
ustm ussm USsm ussm Us$m ussm us$m UsSm
Cash at bank and in hand 89 (176) - - 81 m 403 396
Short-term deposits 116 {(112) - - 2 - - 6
Total funds 205 (288) - - 83 (1) 403 402
Debt due within one year (58) 26 - (47) (4) 1 - (82)
Debt due after more than one year (797) (750) 26 47 (1,234) 22 - (2,686)
Total debt (855) (724) 26 - (1,238) 23 - (2,768)
Total net {debt)/funds (650) (1.012) 26 - (1,155) 22 403 (2,366)
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4 4 Avalable-for-sale financial assets

Accounting policy detailled innote 51 4

2014715 2013/14

ussm ussm

At 1 April 58 58

Additons 2 -

Disposals (1) -
Fair value gain recorded in other comprehensive income 3 (3)

Exchange differences (3) 3

At 31 March 59 58

Avallable-for-sale financial assets consist of UK and Baharmian government bonds These assets were measured at far value based on

observable market data and are within level 1 of the far value hierarchy (note 4 7) The maximum exposure to credit nsk for available-for-sale

financial assets 1s equal to their carrying value

4 5 Fnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This relates to the Columbus US$1,250 milkon senior notes for which the redemption option associated with the niotes represent an

embedded derivative

Accounting policy detailed innote 51 4

2014715 2013/14

Derivative

financial
Instrument Total Total
UsSm ussm Us$m
At 1 Apnil - - -
Acquisitions 14 14 -
Movement in far value of derivative financial assets - - -
At 31 March 14 14 -

Embedded derivative

As part of the acquisition of Columbus, the Group assumed the existing net debt held by Columbus at the acquisition date Columbus held
senior notes of US$1,250 millon at 31 March 2015 The Group assumed all terms agreed by Columbus under the debt agreement These
terms enable the Group to redeem the notes under various scenarios The redemption terms associated with the notes represent an embedded

denvative which required tifurcation where the bifurcated amount is carried at fair value with charges going through profit or loss The

embedded dernvative 1s held at fair value and 1s valued using a valuation technique classed as level 2 in the fair value measurement hierarchy
The lowest level Inputs to the valuation are directly or ndrectly observable Based on the unique features of the notes, the derivative was
valued using a binomial tree/lattice approach based on the Hull-White single factor interest rate term structure model Under this approach,
aninterest rate lattice 1s constructed according to a given short rate volatiity and mean reversion constant as implied by the market as at each
valuation date Key inputs to the valuation included Percentages of swaption volatiity selected as at 31 March 2015 between 34% and

74 20% and the credit spread as at 31 March 2015 was imphed to be approximately 4 51%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section four - Capital structure and financing

4 6 Financial habilities at fair value

In the prior year, a hiability was held for the 45% share of Monaco Telecom owned by the Principality of Monaco In the event that the
Principality decided to exercise their contractual nght to sell this stake we would have been ob'iged to purchase it from them Monaco
was sold in May 2014 and this liability was cancelled as part of the sale

Accounting policy detalled innote 51 4

At 31 March At 31 March

2015 2014
usS$m ustm
Monaco Telecom put option (note 4 6 1) - 274
Total financial habilities at fair value - 274

4 61 Monaco Telecom put option

A put option was held by the non-contrelling shareholder of Monaco Telecom, the Principahity of Monaco (the Principality) as at 31 March 2014
The put option was measured at fair value and was calculated using discounted cash flow techriques, using inputs that were not based on
publicly observable market data The habulity for the put option represents 45% of the market value of Monaco Telecom The key assumptions
used in valuing the put option hability were the Monaco Telecom three-year operating plan (in particular revenue performance) and discount
rates of between 8% and 27% for the distinct operating businesses within Monaco Telecom A movement in the discount rate of 1% would
resutt in an increase or decrease In the hability of US$33 million

On 20 May 2014 the Group sold Monaco Telecom The put option liability was cancelled as a result of the sale (note 2 8 1)
46 2 CMC put option

As part of the transaction to sell Monaco & Isiands to Batelco (note 2 8 2), we granted them a put option over the 25% of CMC shares
transferred The CMC put option was both 1ssued and unwound during the year ended 31 March 2014

4 6 3 Reconcihation
Areconaliatbon of the movements in the value of level 2 and 3 financial habilities is as follows

Monaco Monaco
Telecom <mc Telecom
put option Total put option put option Total
2014/15 2014/15 2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
ussm usSm Ussm UsStm ussm
At 1 April 274 274 - 258 258
Issue of the CMC put option (note 2 8 2) - - 100 - 100
Decrease as a resuit of dividends paid to the Principality - - - 30) 30y
Changes n farr value recognised as an adjustment to goodwill - - - 31 N
Foreign exchange movements recognised in the foreign currency reserve
In equity - - - 15 15
Cancellation of Monaco put option (note 4 6 1} (274) (274) - - -
Unwind of the CMC put option {note 2 8 2) - - (100) - (100)
At 31 March - - - 274 274
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4 7 Financial instruments at fair value

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at faw value by valuation method Accounting standards require us to disclose

them into different levels as follows

Level 1 - Farr values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabiites

Level 2 — Fair values measured using Inputs, other than quoted prices included wathin level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability either dwectly (from prices) or indirectly (derived from prices)

Level 3 — Fair values measured using Inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable market data

At 31 March 2015

Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Note ussm us$m usSsm ussm

Financial assets measured at fair value
UK and Baharmian government bonds 44 59 - - 59
Held for sale equity investment 38 - - 137 137
Embedded denvative 45 - 14 - 14
Total financial assets at far value 59 14 137 210
At 31 March 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Note Usstm ussm ussm UsEm

Financial assets measured at fair value
UK and Bahamian government bonds 44 58 - - 58
Total financial assets at fair value 58 - - 58

Financial habilities measured at fair value

Monace Telecom put option 46 - - 274 274
Total financial habilities at fair value - - 274 274

There were no transfers between levels during the year (2013/14 - no transfers) For a reconabiation of movements in level 3 instruments see

note46 3
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Nates to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section four - Capital structure and financing

4 8 Financial habihties at amortised cost

As part of the acquisition of Columbus the Company entered into lock-up and put option agreements (‘Put Option Deeds’) with the
Principal Vendors in respect of the consideration shares issued on completion which (amongst other matters)

« enable each Principal Vendor to either (1) require the Company to purchase for cash up to a certain number of its consideration shares
each year from 2016 to 2019 inclusive for the notionalissue price of US$0 734917 per share or (i) sell up to that number of
consideration shares each year from 2016 to 201910 the market {subject to orderly market arrangements with CWC) Specific
shareholder authonty for such purchases was obtained at the general meeting held on 5 December 2014

« grant aright to the Principal Vendors to nominate one Director each to the Board, subject to recommendation by the Nomination
Commuttee The imual three nominations were agreed at completion, being tohn Ristey Thad York and Brendan Paddick, and

« restrict the ability of the Principal Vendors to otherwise sell the consideration shares during the period covered by the options

A lock-up and put option agreement was entered into between the Company and each of the three Principal Vendors for the 1ssued
share capital as part of the acquisition of Columbus

Accounting policy detaled in note 514

2014/15 2013/14

Calumbus

repurchase
hability Tota! Total
Us5m ussm ussm
At 1 April - - -
Repurchase liability (note 4 8 1) 879 879 -
At 31 March 879 879 -

4 81 Columbus put option and repurchase hability

As part of the transaction to acquire Columbus International Inc, the Company 1ssued 1 557 529 605 consideration shares of LSS cents each to
the Principal Vendors in proportion to their Columbus shareholding As a result the Principal Vendors (CVBI Holdings (Barbados) Inc, Clearwater
Holdings (Barbados} Limited Columbus Holding LLC and Brendan Paddick) in aggregate hold approximately 36% of the ordinary shares in the
Company Each Principal Vendor agreed at completion to enter into lock-up and put option arrangements (n respect of its 1ssued consideration
shares until 2019 An exception to the lock-up arrangements will enable each Prnincipal Vendor ta require the Company to purchase for cash

up to a certan number of (ts shares each year from 2016 to 2018 inclusive for the notional issue price of US$0 7348 per share If a Principal
Vendor sells some or all of ther shareholding (subject to orderly market conditions) then some or all of its future options to require the
Company to purchase up to a certain number of shares (as described above) willimmediately cease to have effect and will not be capable

of exercise

The liability for the repurchase under the terms of 1AS 32 have been valued on initial recognition using the present value technique of the future
habifity was US$879 millien (2014715 — US$nIl)

4 9 Acquisitions of non-controlling interests

We made no business acquisittons with non-controlling interests during the year, however, accounting standards (note 51 3) require us
to make an adjustment to goadwill attributable to Monaco Telecom On 20 May 2014 we sold Monaco Telecom (note 2 8 1}

Accounting policy detaledinnote 1 21

Monaco Telecom
Goodwill in connection with the Group s investment in Monaco Telecom SAM increased by US$46 million during the year ended 31 March 2014
The goodwill balance increased as a result of exchange differences and changes in the fair value of the Monaco Telecom put option

As part of the acquisitton of Monace Telecom a put option was 1ssued (note 4 61} Changes in the fair value of this put option are treated as
contngent consideration and adjusted against goodwill The cash outfiow inrespect of contingent consideration being the dividend paid to the
Principality as the non-controlling shareholder of Monaco Telecom, was US$30 million for the year ended 31 March 2014

Monaco Telecom was sold on 20 May 2014 The put option was cancelled subseguent to the sale
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2014/15 201314

Goodwill ussm ussm
AL 1 April 292 246
Increase as a result of changes in the fair value of Monaco put option - 31
Disposals (292) -
Exchange differences - 15
At 31 March - 292
410 Equity

Called up share capital 1s the number of shares in 1ssue at therr par value of US5 cents each There were 1,810 341 889 new ordinary
shares issued during the year in this note we also explain how we manage capital which we define as equity, berrowings and cash and
cash equivalents

Accounting policy detailed mnote 517

Share capital

Number of

shares
Issued called-up and fully paid shares of US5 cents each (000) Us$m
31 March 2015 4,475,954 224
At 1 Apnil 2013 and 31 March 2014 2,665,612 133

The aggregate nominal value of the shares allotted m the year was U$$91 million (2013/14 - US$nil)

On 7 Novernber 2014, a total of 252,812 284 new ordinary shares of USS cents each in the capital of the Company were placed by Deutsche
Bank AG (cash box placement) at a price of 45 pence per placing share, raising gross proceeds of US$180 million (excluding equity transaction
costs of US$4 million} The placing shares being issued represented 10% less one share of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company
prior to Placing

On 31 March 2015 a total of 1,557,529,605 new ordinary shares of US5 cents each in the capital of the Company were 1ssued to the Principal
Vendors (as defined and further described in the circular to shareholders dated 19 November 2014} These shares represent approximately
36% of the ordinary shares m CWC (excluding treasury shares)

included within the number of shares disclosed m the table above are treasury shares and shares held by The Cable & Wireless Communications
Share Ownership Trust (the Trust)

No treasury shares of Cable & Wireless Coramunications Plc were cancelled during the periods presented

At 31 March 2015, a total of 137,488 873 shares were classified as treasury shares (31 March 2014 ~ 137,488,873) This represented 3% of
called-up share capital at the end of the year (2013/14 — 5%)

The nominal value and market value of treasury shares held at 31 March 2015 was US$7 million (2013714 - US$7 milkion) and US$125 million
(2013714 — US$119 million) respectively Disclosures in respect of the shares held by the Trust are included innote 57

tn accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, each share (other than those held intreasury) entitles the holder to one vote

at General Meetings of Cable & Wireless Communications Pic The Company’s shareholders can declare dmvidends by passing an ordinary
resolution but the payment cannot exceed the amount recommended by the Directors There are ne restrictions on the repayment of capital
other than those imposed by law For further information refer to pages 56 to 58 of the Directors’ and corporate governance report

As detalled above, there were share allotments of 252 812,284 ordinary shares an 7 November 2014 and 1,557,529 605 ordinary shares on
31 March 2015, totalling 1,810 341 889 ordinary shares of US5 cents allotted during the peniod under review (2013/14 - no allotments)

Capital management
The Group defines capital as equity, borrowings {note 4 3) and cash and cash equivalents {note 4 2) The Group does not have any externally
imposed requirements for managing capital other than those imposed by Company Law
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

Section four - Capital structure and financing

410 Equity continued
The Board's objective 15 to maintain a capttal structure that supports the Group's strategic objectives, including, but not imited to, reshaping
the portfolio through mergers and acquisitions Indoing so the Board seeks to

» Manage funding and iquidity risk

« Optimise shareholder return, and

« Masntain credit ratings

This strategy 1s unchanged from the prior year

Funding and liquidity nisk are reviewed regularly by the Board and managed in accordance with the policies described in note 4 11

The Articles of Association of the Company permit aggregate borrowtng up to the higher of three times the adjusted capital and reserves of
the Group or US$3 billion

The Group ensures that sufficient funds and distributable reserves are held to allow payments of projected dividends to shareholders and it
intends to target a sustainable and progressive dvidend that reflects the underlying cash generation and growth outlook of the business
This process 1s managed through the Group’s budget and longer-term forecasting process

In May 2014, the Group received total cash proceeds of US$445 million for the Monaco Telecom disposal (note 28 1) In addition the Group
received US$8 6 millkon relating to the estimated cash, debt and working capital at completion In hne with the Board's objectives, these
proceeds were used towards the acquisition of Columbus (note 311 1)

{n April 2013, the Group received total cash proceeds of US$501 mullion in respect of the Islands sub-group disposal (note 2 8 2), excluding
the Seychelles for which regulatory approval was not obtained, representing consideration of US$470 million plus US$37 mullion of the
proportionate share of net cash in the disposed businesses attributable to Cable & Wireless Communications The Group also recewved
US$100 million for the sale of a 25% interest in Compagnie Monégasque de Communication SAM, the holding company of Monaco Telecom
to Batelco Proceeds were used to repay drawn bank facilities including the revolving credit facility of US$360 millon (note 4 3) and other
facilities of U5$38 million In December 20113, the Group returned US$100 million to Batelco to unwind a pre-agreed option on the sale of
Monaco Telecom not gaining the regulatory consents required

In June 2013, the Group received total cash proceeds of US$807 millionin respect of the Macau disposal (note 2 8 3) representing
consideration of US$750 million plus US$57 million of the proportionate share of net cashin the disposed business attributable to

Cable & Wireless Communications Inline with the Board's objectives, these proceeds will be used for investment opportunities Inthe
absence of suitable investment opportunities proceeds have been used to de-leverage the balance sheet (note 4 3) On 28 February 2014,
the 2017 US$500 milkon secured bond was redeemed in full (note 4 3)

The US dollar secured bonds of US$400 mullion maturing in 2020 has a credit rating of Ba2 with Moody's and BB- with Standard and Poor's
The unsecured sterling bond repayable in 2019 has a credit rating with Standard and Poor’s of B+ As part of the acquisition of Columbus we
assumed unsecured bonds of US$1 250 millon maturing in 2021 with a credit rating of Ba3 with Moody's and BB with Standard & Poor s

Foreign currency transtation and hedging reserve
The foreign currency translation and hedging reserve contains exchange differences on the translation of subsidiaries with a functional currency
different to the presentation currency of the Group It also includes cumulative exchange differences ansing on the translation of hedging instruments

Cap#nal and other reserves

At 31 March 2015 other reserves included a capital redemption reserve of US$152 million (2013/14 - US$152 million), a revaluation

reserve of US$mil {2013/14 — US$nil), a farr value reserve of US$20 million (2013/14 - US$17 million), a special reserve of US$2,137 million
(2013/14 - US$2,137 million) and a capital reserve of US$987 million (2013714 - US$987 million), less a reserve relating to transactions with
non-controlling nterests of US$5 million (2013/14 - US$5 million) and a reserve for the repurchase of shares and put option of US$776 million
(2013/14 - US$nl)

A merger reserve is a statutory rehef from recognising share premium when 1ssuing equity shares in order to acquire the legal entity shares of
another company where specified conditions are met The merger reserve was formed at 31 March 2015 as the Company acquired 100% of
the 1ssued share capital of Columbus and the consideration for Columbus included the tssuance of shares The put option reserve was also
formed at 31 March 2015 with the acquisition of Columbus (note 4 8)

The specal reserve relates to the cancellation of the share premium account of Cable & Wireless Limited (formerly Cable and Wireless Plc)
in February 2004 It will reduce from time 1o time by the amount of any increase in the paid-up share capital and share premium account of
Cable & Wireless Limited after 20 February 2004 resulting from the issue of new shares for cash or other new consideration or upena
capitalisation of distributable reserves

Cn 26 March 2010, a court-approved capital reduction became effective which had the effect of creating a capital reserve of US$1,931 muflion
which may be released in whole or in part, to distributable reserves of the Company at the discretion (and upon the resolution) of the Board of
Directors or a duly constituted committee of the Board of Directors

140 Cable & Wireless Communications




4 11 Financial risk management

This nete details our treasury management and financial risk management objectives and policies We discuss the exposure and
sensitivity of the Group to credit iquidity, interest and foreign exchange risk and the policies in place to monitor and manage these risks

Treasury pohcies have been approved by the Board for managing each of these nisks including levels of authonty on the type and use of
financial nstruments

Treasury policy

The Group's activities expose It to a variety of financial nisks market nsk (including currency risk and interest rate nsk), credit risk, and hquidity
risk The Group's overall nsk management programme seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financeal performance Day to
day management of treasury activities is delegated to the Group’s treasury function (Treasury), within specthed financial imits for each type of
transaction and counterparty

To the extent that substdiaries undertake treasury transactions, these are governed by Group policies and delegated authorities Material
subsidiary positions are monitored by Treasury Where appropriate, transactions are reported to the Board All subsidianes are required to
report details of their cash and debt positions to Treasury on a monthly basis

The key responsibilities of Treasury include funding, investment of surplus cash and the management of interest rate and foreign currency nisk
The majority of the Group's cash resources (including facihities) and borrowings are managed centrally by Treasury

From time to time, the Group may use denvatives including forward foreign exchange contracts, interest rate swaps €ross-currency swaps and
options, where appropriate, in the management of its foreign currency and interest rate exposures The use of these nstruments s in
accordance with strategies agreed from time to time by Treasury and subject to policies approved by the Board Derivatives are not used for
trading or speculative purposes and denvative transactions and posttions are monstored and reported by Treasury on a regular basis and are
subject to policies adopted by the Board

Exchange rate risk

The Group trades in many countries and a proportion of its revenue 1s generated in currencies other than US dollars The Group 1s exposed to
movements in exchange rates in relation to non-dollar currency payments (including external dividends, the corporate centre costs and
pensions), dividend income from foreign currency denominated subsidiaries, reported profits of foreign currency denormnated subsidiaries and
the net asset carrying value of non-US dollar investments Exchange risk s managed centrally by the corporate centre on a matching cash flow
basis Including forecast foreign currency cash repatriation infiows from subsidiaries and forecast foreign currency payments See note 511 for
key exchange rates used

Where appropriate, the Group manages Its exposure to movements in exchange rates on a net basis and from time to time may use forward
foreign exchange contracts and other derivatve and financial instruments to reduce the exposures created where currencies do not naturally
offsetn the short term The Group will undertake hedges to minimise the exposure to individual transactions that create significant foreign
exchange exposures for the Group where appropriate Where cost-effective and possible, foreign subsidianes are inanced in thew domestic
currency to minimise the impact of translation of foreign currency denominated borrowings

As part of the overall palicy of managing the exposure arising from foreign exchange movements relating to the net carrying value of overseas
investments, the Group may, from time to time elect to match certain foreign currency habilities against the carrying value of foreign investments

The reported profits of the Group are translated at average rates of exchange prevalling during the year Overseas earnings are predominatety
in US dollars or currencies linked to the US dollar However the Group also has overseas earnings in other currencies

The Group 1s exposed to foreign currency risk in relation to monetary assets and habilities that are not in the functional currency of the entity
that holds them In broad terms, based an monetary assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2015 the impact of a unilateral 10% weakening of the
US dollar would have been to decrease prafit from continuing cperations by approximately US$34 mullion (at 31 March 2014 — U5342 million)

Interest rate risk

The Group 15 expased to movernents in interest rates on its surplus cash balances and variable rate loans although there i1s adegree of offset
between the two Treasury may seek to reduce volatility by fixing a proportion of this interest rate exposure while taking account of prevailing
market conditions as appropriate

At 31 March 2015, 69% (31 March 2014 — 79%) of the Group’s loans were at a fixed rate A reduction ininterest rates would have an
unfavourable impact upon the farr value of the Group's fixed rate loans However, no debt is held for trading purposes and it is intended that it
will be kept In place untl maturity As a result, there 1s ne exposure to fair value loss on fixed rate borrowings and, as such its effect has not
been modelled

A one percentage point Increase in interest rates will have a US$4 million (2013/14 — US$2 million} impact on the income received from the
surplus cash balances of the Group and a US$(9) million (2013/14 - US$2 mithien) impact on the floating rate loans of the Group The impact on
equity is [imited to the impact on profit or loss
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411 Financizl risk management continued

Credit risk

Cash deposits and simiar financial instruments give rise to credit risk, which represents the loss that would be recogrised if a counterparty
faled to perform as contracted The carrying amount of the financial assets of the Group represents the maximum credit exposure of the
Group Management seeks to reduce this credit nsk by ensuring the counterparties to all but a small proportion of the Group’s financial
Instruments are the core relationship banks These banks are awarded a maximum credit imit based on ratings by Standard & Poor's and
Moady's, the level of the banks’ credit default swap (CDS) and its associated level of tier one capital The credit lmit assigned to counterparties
15 monitored on a continuing basis

The Group Treasury policy approved by the Board contain limits on exposure and prescribes the types of instrument used for investment of
funds Credit risk on receivables 1s discussed in note 31

tiquidity risk

The Group ensures that the operating urits manage their own operational hquidity supported by the corporate centre, which manages 1ts

own liguidity to meet its financial obligations of servicing and repaying external debt, external dividends corporate centre costs and strategic
initiatives The principal source of iquidity for the corporate centre 1s repatniation cash inflows from the operating units supported by financing
arrangements, bond 1ssuances and asset disposals

At 31 March 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of U$$402 milhion These amounts are highly iquid and are a significant
component of the Group’s overall hquidity and capital resources, which also includes the available undrawn revolving credit faciities of
US$421 milion

Liquidity forecasts are produced on a regular basis to ensure the utilisation of current facilities 1s optimised, to ensure covenant complance and
that medium-term liquidity 1s mantained and for the purpose of identifying long-term strategic funding requirements The Directors also
regularly assess the balance of capital and debt funding of the Group

At 31 March 2015, approximately 1% of the Group's cash was invested in short-term bank deposits and money market funds (2013/14 -57%)

412 Diwvidends declared and paid

Dividends are one type of shareholder return histonically paid to our shareholders twice a year i January and August

2014/15 2013/14

ussm ussm

Final dvidend in respect of the prior year 67 67
Interim dividend in respect of the current year 37 33
Total dividend paid 104 100

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group declared and paid a fina!l dvidend of US2 67 cents per share in respect of the year ended
31 March 2014 (2013/14 - US2 67 cents per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2013) The Group declared and paid an interim
dividend of US1 33 cents per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 (2013/14 — US1 33 cents per share in respect of the

year ended 31 March 2014)

In respect of the year ended 31 March 20715, the Directors have proposed a final dividend of US2 67 cents per share (US$116 million)
(2013/14 - US2 67 cents per share), for approval by shareholders at the AGM to be held on 21 July 2015 These financial statements do not
reflact the proposed dividend, which wiil be accounted for in sharehaolders’ equity as an appropriation of retained earnings in the year ended
31 March 2016

The Cable & Wireless Communications Share Ownership Trust (the Trust) waived its right to dividends on the shares held in the Trust with the
exception of those shares held for Directors under the deferred bonus plan
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Section five - Other

This section includes all other notes including accounting policies and critical judgements,
commitments and guarantees, licences and operating agreements, legal proceedings, related
party transactions, share-based payments, subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and
events after the reporting period

51 Significant accounting policies

This section sets out the Group's accounting pehicies that relate to the financial statements as a whole

511 Foreign currencies

a) Functional currency

Amounts included in the financial statements of each of the Group s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
envirgnment in which the entity operates (the functional currency)

b) Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transaction
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translatton of monetary assets and habilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised through profit or loss

¢) Foreign operations
The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the Group's presentation currency of

US dollars are translated as follows

1) Assets and habilities are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date,

n) Income and expenses are translated at rates closely approximating the rate at the date of the transactions, and
m) Resulting exchange differences are recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign enuity and
translated at the closing rate On disposal of a foreign entity, accumulated exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss i the same
period in which the gain or loss on disposal 1s recognised

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment an foreign entitres are taken to shareholders equity Where investments
are matched in whaole or in part by foreign currency loans, the exchange differences anising on the retranslation of such loans are also recorded
as movemnents tn the Group s translation reserves and any excess taken to profit or loss

There are no Group entities cperating in a hyperinflationary economy
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51 Significant accounting policies continued
The principal exchange rates used in the preparation of these accounts are as follows

2014/15 2013/14
£ USS
Average 06206 06313
Year end 06705 06059
€ Us$
Average 07895 07461
Year end 09101 07258
Jamaican$ US$
Average 1126438 1027058
Year end 1148900 1091550
Seychelles Rupee US$
Average 131440 119863
Year end 137550 121713
Colombian Peso US$S
Average N/A N/A
Year end 2,544 9250 NfA
Trimidad and Tobago$ US$
Average 63687 64117
Year end 63418 63803

51 2 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at hustorical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses The cast of property, plant and
equipment includes labour and overhead costs arising directly from the construction or acquisition of an item of property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment represents the Group's network infrastructure assets

The estimated costs of dismanthng and removing assets, typically cell sites and network equipment and restorning land on which they are
located are included in the cost of property, plant and equipment The corresponding obligation is recognised as a provisien in accordance with
IAS 37 Provisions contingent habilities and contingent assets

Subsequent costs are included in the asset s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it s probable that the
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and the cost can be measured reliably All other subsequent costs (primarily repairs and
maintenance) are charged to profit or loss as ncurred

Depreciation is net recognised on freshold land or assets under construction Depreciation s provided to write-off the cost of property, plant
and equipment on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows

Lives
Cables up to 20 years
Network equipment 3 to 25 years
Ducting 40 years
Freehold buldings 40 years
Leasehold buildings up to 40 years or term of lease I less

Asset useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date An asset's carrying amount 1s writter down to its
recoverable amount if the carrying amount 1s greater than its recoverable amount through sale or use
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51 3 Intangible assets

a) Goodwill

Goodwilt represents the future econoric benefits that anse from acquired assets that are not capable of being indiwidually identified and
separately recognised

The goodwill recorded in the Group's statement of financial position is calculated using two different methods depending on the acquisition
date, as a result of changes in accounting standards

All business combinations that occurred since 31 March 2010 are accounted for using the acquisitton method in accordance with IFRS 3
Business combmations revised Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired All transaction costs are expensed as incurred

All other business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method in accordance with IFRS 3 Business combinations (2004)
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired
Costs attributable to these combinations are included in the cost of acquisition

Goodwill 1s not amortised and 1s tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses Goodwill s allocated
ta cash-generating units for the purpose of imparrment testing

b) Otherintangible assets

Costs that are directly assotiated with the purchase and implementation of identifiable and unique software products by the Group are
recognised as intangible assets Expenditures that enhance and extend the benefits of computer software programs beyond therr original
specifications and lives are recogmised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software

Intangible assets relating to customer contracts, customer relationships and licences obtained as part of the Group’s business combinations
are recorded intially at their fair values Following nitial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite

Other intangible assets that do not have indefinite useful lives are amortised on a straight line basis over ther respective ives which are
usually based on cantractual terms The assessment of mdefinite hife 1s reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues
to be supportable

Lives
Software 310 S years
Licences Up to 25 years or the licence termf less
Customer contracts and relationships, brands and licences 4 to 10 years

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or
loss for the period in which the expenditure 1s incurred

51 4 Financialinstruments

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables financial assets
at far value through profit or loss, avalable-fer-sale financial assets, and held-to-matunity investments The classification depends on the
purpose for which the assets are held The Group does not currently classify any assets as held-to-matunity investments

Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date
for financial assets other than those held at fair value through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bank, money market funds and short-term deposits with a matunty of three months or
less They are hughly hquid monetary mvestments that are readiy conver tible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insigruficant risk
of changes in value The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position 1s considered to approximate fair
value Bank overdrafts are included within borrowings and classified in current iiabilities on the statement of financial position

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
They anse when the Group provides money goods or services directly to a third party with no intention of trading the recevable Trade and
other recevables are presented in current assets in the statement of financia! position, except for those with matunities greater than one year
after the reporting date

Receivables are recognised imitially at fair value, and subsequently at amortised cost less provision for imparment
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51 Significant accounting policies continued

Financial assets at fair volue through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are either held for trading or those designated upon inhal recognition
A financial asset 1s classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated by
management These financial assets are recogrised initially at fair value Subsequent changes in fair value are recogmsed through profit or less

Dervatrve financial instruments

Denwative financial Instruments are nitially recogrised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their farr value at each reporting date The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the dervative is
designated as a hedging instrument and 1f 50, the nature of the item being hedged Gains and losses on derivative instruments that are not
designated as hedge mstruments are recognised immediately through profit or loss

The Interest Rate Option Pnicing Method was used to determine the farr value of the embedded derivative associated with the unsecured seruor
notes of US$1 250 million assumed in the acquisition of Columbus (note 4 5} Dervatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not held for trading or designated as far value through profit or loss

These embedded derivatives are measured at far value with changes in far value recogrised in profit or loss

Avarlable-for-sale financiol assets

Avalable-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in this category upon nitial recogmition or not
classified Inany of the other categories They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the Investment within
one year of the reporting date and such assets recognised i this category by the Group include UK and Baharan government gits Purchases and
disposals of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised at farr value Subsequent changes in far value, cther than impairment fosses and
foreign currency differences, are recogrused in other comprehensive ncome and presented in the fair value reserve (within Capital and Other
reserves) inequity When an asset 1s derecognised the gain or loss accumulated in equity 1s reclassified through profit or loss

Due to the conditions attaching to the regulatory approval from the Telecommunications Authornity of Tnnidad and Tobago, the Group was required
to divest of its shareholding In TSTT as at 31 March 2015 As significant influence was lost TSTT was reclassified as a held for sale equity
investment (note 3 8)

Financial iabiities
The Group classifies its financial iabilities into the following categories trade and other payables borrowings financial habilities at amartised
cost, and financial hablities at fair value

Management determunes the classification of its financial habilities at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting
date for financial labilities other than those held at fair value

Borrowmngs

Borrowings are recognised imitially at fair value net of directly attnbutable transaction costs incurred and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost Any difference between the praceeds received (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 1s recognised through profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective Interest method The financial habilities recogrised in this category include secured
and unsecured bonds and facilittes and other loans held by the Group and are presented in borrowings in current labilities in the statement of
financial position unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the habibity for at least one year after the reporting date

Financial hebilities at fair value

This category includes a puttable instrument on non-controlling interests relating to the acquisition of Monaco Telecorn (the Monaco Telecom
put option) and derivative financial instruments The CMC put option, more fully described in note 4 6, was ssued and redeemed during the
year with no impact on profit or loss These financial iabilities are recogrused inibially at fair value Subsequent changes in farr value are
recogrised through profit or loss except for changes in the fair value of the Monaco Telecom put option

The fair value of the Monaco Telecom put option is based on the present value of the redemption amount, calculated using discounted cash
flow techniques, as if the puttable instrument had been exercised at the reporting date Movements in the fair value of the hability are
recognised as adjustments to goodwill In accordance with IFRS 3 Business combinations (2004) The Monaco put option more fully described
mnote 4 6, was cancelled n the year ended 31 March 2015 with no impact on profit or loss

Financral habihties at armortised cost
This category includes the redermption opticn relating to shares 1ssued as part of the acquisition of Columbus The redemption options were
mitially recogmsed at the present value of the future abligations and will be amortised on & straight line basts over the redemptien option period

515 Imparrment of assets

Financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s objective evidence that a inancial asset not carried at fair value through profit or
lass or a group of those financial assets 15 impaired
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Anmparrment allowance i1s established for trade receivables when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the onginal terms of the recervables

Non-financial assets

Assets that have mdefinite useful lives are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment All other non-current assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in arcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be fully recoverable For the
purposes of assessing iImpairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows {cash-
generating units)

The Group determines any impairment by comparing the carrying values of each of the Group’s assets (or the cash-generating umit to which it
belongs) to their recoverable amounts, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use Fair value represents
market value in an active market Value in use 1s determined by discounting future cash flows ansing from the asset Future cash flows are
determined with reference to the Group’s own projections using pre-tax discount rates

Imparment reviews involve management making assumptions and estimates which are highly jJudgemental and susceptible ta change

516 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost 1s the price paid less any rebates, trade discounts or subsidies It also
includes delivery charges and import duties but does not include value added taxes or advertising and administration costs Cost s based on
the first~n, first-out (FIFQ) principle Forinventenes held for resale, net realisable value 1s determined as the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less costs to sell Provision 1s made for obsolete and slow-moving inventories as required

517 Share capstal
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, standalone options or the repurchase of shares are recognised i equity
against share premsum

Instruments aver own shares that conveys the nght to the option holder to require the Company to pay # fixed amount of cash for a fixed
number of shares are classified as equity instruments and recorded in other reserves Suchinstruments are not remeasured subsequently

The present value of the redemption amount of the option 1s recognised as a financial iabiisty with the corresponding debit recognised in other
reserves In equity

518 Leases
All Group leases are operating leases Payments made under operating leases net of lease incentives or premiums received, are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight ine basis over the period of the lease

519 Non-current assets and dispasal groups held for sale

When the value of non-current assets 1s expected to be recovered princpally through sale rather than through continuing usage they are
available for rmmediate sale in their present condition and a sale1s highly probable they are classified as assets held for sale With the exception
of deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits and financial instruments, the assets held for sale are stated at the lower of their
carrying amount and far value less costs to sell

Disposal groups are groups of assets and hiabilities to be disposed of together as a group In a single transaction They are recogrised as held for
sale at the reporting date and are separately disclosed as current assets and hiabilities on the statement of financial positien Any amortisation
and depreciation ceases when classified as held for sale

Measurement differences arising between the carrying amount and fair value less cost of disposal are treated as impairment charges and
separately disclosed

Due to the conditions attaching to the regulatory approval from Telecemmunications Authority of Trinidad and Tobago, the Group were
regurred to divest of its shareholding n TSTT as at 31 March 2015 This required a reclassification from mvestments in associates to a held for
sale equity investment {note 3 B)

5110 Discontinued operations
A discontinued operation 1s a component of the Group where the operations and cash flows are clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group
and which

+ Represents a separate major ine of business or geographical area of cperations,

+ Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or

» Is asubsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs on disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale

When an operation 1s ¢lassified as a discontinued operation, the comparative Income statement and ¢ash flow statement are restated as if the
operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative year
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51 Significant accounting policies continued
The Monaco business was disposed of on 20 May 2014 and s classified as a discontinued operation at 31 March 2015 The comparative
income statement and cash flow statement are restated for the year ended 31 March 2014 See note 2 8 for details

5111 Employee benefits

Defined contribution pensions

A defined contnibution plan 1s a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions to a third party The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid The contributions are recognised as operating costs as they are incurred through profit or loss

Defined benefit obligations

A defined beneft plan s a pension plan that defines an amount of penston benefit that an employee will receve on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation These schemes are generally funded through payments to
Insurance companies or Trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuanal caleulations

The asset or lability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of each defined benefit pension plan represents the far value
of plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit obligations at the reporting date Assets are only recognised to the extent that the
present value of the economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan exceed
the fair value of the plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit obhigations Defined benefit abligations for each scheme are
calculated annually by independent actuaries

The Group recognises actuanal gains and losses, arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, in the period n
which they occur in the statement of other comprehensive income Past service costs are recognised tmmediately through profit or loss

Current service costs and any past service costs, together with the unwinding of the discount on net plan assets or habilities, are included within
operating costs through profit or loss

Share-based compensation

The Group operates various equity-settled, share-based compensatton plans The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of options over shares i the Company 1s recogmised as an operating cost through profit or loss over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase In other reserves in equity The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period Is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, which excludes the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example service, profitability and cash
flow targets) Non-market vesting conditions are included in estimates about the number of options that are expected to vest At each
reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terrminated before the normal retirement date or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Group recognises termination benefits within other provisions when it 15
demonstrably committed to the action leading to the employee’s termination

Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability in the statement of financial position in relation to bonuses payable to employees where contractually obhged
or where there 1s a past practice that has created a constructive obligation

5112 Tax

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax Tax s recogntsed through profit or loss except to the extent that i
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income and equity, n which case it 1s recogmised in other comprehensive income or
equity respectively

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years

Deferred taxis provided in full, using the habiity method on temporary differences anising between the tax bases of assets and habihities and
their carrying amounts in the consohdated financial staterments except where the difference anses from

« Themtial recognition of goodwill or
« The nitial recognition of an asset or liability In a transaction other than 2 business combination, affecting neither accounting nor taxable profit

Deferred tax 15 calculated using tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the temporary differences reverse based onrates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s prabable that future taxable profit will be avallable against which the temporary
differences can be utilised
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Deferred tax 15 provided on temporary differences anising on investnents in subsidiaries and interests 0 joint ventures and associates, except
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference 15 controlled by the Group and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future

5113 Provisions

Provisions are habilities of uncertain tuming or amount They are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obhigation as
aresult of past events, it 1s more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligatron and the amount can be
reliably estimated

Provisions are presented in the statement of financial position at the present value of the estimated future outflows expected to be required to
settle the obhgation Provision charges and reversals are recognised through profit or loss Discount unwinding s recognised as a finance expense

5114 Revenuerecognition

Group revenue, which excludes discounts, value added tax and similar sales taxes, represents the amount receivable in respect of services and
goods provided to customers |t mcludes sales to Joint ventures and associates but does not include sales by joint ventures and associates or
sales between Group companies Revenue 1s recognised only when payment is probable

Revenue from services 1s recognised as the services are provided In respect of services invoiced in advance, amounts are deferred until
provision of the service

Amounts payable by and to other telecommunications operators are recognised as the services are provided Charges are negotiated separately
and are subject to continual review Revenue generated through the provision of these services 1s accounted for gross of any amounts payable
to other telecommunications operators for interconnect fees

Revenue from maobile, broadband, video and fixed line products comprises amounts charged to customers inrespect of monthly access charges,
artime and usage messaging and other telecommunications services This ncludes data services and information provision and revenue from
the sale of equipment, including handsets

Monthly access charges from mobile broadband, video and fixed line products are invoiced and recorded as part of a periodic billing cycle Artime
either from contract customers as part of the invoiced amount or from prepaid customers through the sale of prepaid credit, 1s recorded in the
period in which the customer uses the service Unbilled revenue resulting from services provided to contract customers from the biling cycle
date to the end of each period 1s accrued Unearned monthly access charges relating to periods after each accounting penod are deferred

The Group earns revenue from the transmission of content and traffic onits network originated by third-party providers Third-party dealers
and partners are also used to facilitate the sale and provision of some services and equipment sold by the Group We assess whether revenue
should be recorded gross as principal or net as agent, based on the features of such arrangements including the following factors

« Whether the Group holds itself out as an agent,

« Whether the Group has latitude for establishing the price, either directly or indirectly for example by providing additional services,
« Provision of customer remedies,

+ Whether the Group has the primary responsibility for providing the services to the customer or for fulfiling the order, and

« Assumption of credit sk

Revenue from sales of telecormmunications equipment is recogrmised upon delivery to the customer

The total consideration on arrangements with mulbiple revenue generating activities {generally the sale of telecoms equipment and ongoing
service) 1s allocated to those components that are capable of operating independently, based on the estimated fair value of the components
The fair value of each component is deterrmined by amounts charged when sold separately and by reference to sales of equivalent products

and services by third parties

Revenue ansing from the provision of other services incduding maintenance contracts, 1s recognised over the periods in which the service
1s provided

Customer acquisttion costs Including dealer commussions and similar payments are expensed as incurred

5115 Exceptional items
Exceptional items are matenalitems within profit or loss that derive from individual events that fall within the ordinary actwities of the Group
that are identified as exceptional items by virtue of therr size, nature or incidence

S 116 Transactions with holders of non-controlling interests

Transactions to acquire or dispose of ownership interests in the Group’s subsidiaries that do net result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions In these cases, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
the Group’s relative interest in the subsidiary Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideratton paid or received I1s recognised directly in equity attributable to the owners of the Parent Company
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5 2 Cnitical accounting estimates and judgements

Anumber of estimates and assumptions have been made relating to the reporting of results of operations and the finanaal condition
of the Group Results may differ sigmificantly from those estimates under different assumptions and canditions The Directors consider
that the following discussion addresses the Group's most cntical accounting estimates These particular policies require subjective and
complex assessments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are uncertain

521 imparment

The Directors assess property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (excluding goodwill) for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value 15 less than its recoverable amount Factors that are considered important and that could trigger
animpalrment review include the following

« Obsolescence or physical damage

» Sigmificant changes i technology and requlatory environments,

« Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results,
« Significant changes in the use of the assets or the strategy of the overall business,

« Significant negative Industry or economig trends, and

« Significant decline in the market capitalisation relative to net book value for a sustained penad

The Directors also assess the carrying value of the Group's interests in joint ventures and associate undertakings to identify whether there s
any objective evidence of Imparrment

The identification of impairment triggers 15 a key jJudgement Where animparrment review 1s required, the Group generally determines
recoverable amount based on value in use The key estimates used in calculating value in use are the discount rate, revenue growth, operating
cost margin and capital expenditure Estimates are based on extrapolated approved three-year business plans

In addition, the Directors test goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite bfe at least annually for imparrment

Note 3 4 sets out the assumptions and estimates used during these assessments

52 2 Receivables allowance

The impairment aflowance for trade recevables reflects the Group's estimates of losses anising from the failure or inabiity of the Group's
customers to make required payments The allowance is based on the ageing of customer accounts customer creditworthiness and the Group’s
historical write-off experience Changes to the allowance may be required if the financial condition of the Group's customers improves or
deteriorates Animprovement in financial condition may result in lower actual wnite-offs Historically, changes to the estimate of losses have

not been matenal to the Group's financial position and results

5 2 3 Revenuerecogmtion

Judgement s requrred 1n assessing the application of revenue recogmition principles and the specific guidance inrespect of Group revenue This
includes the allocation of revenue between multiple deliverables, such as the sale value of telecommunications equipment and ongoing service
where suchitems are sold as part of a bundled package Seenote 5114

5 2 4 Exceptional items
Judgement is requred in assessing the classification of items as exceptional and assessing the timing of recogmising exceptional provisions
The Group has established critena for assessing the classification and a consistent approach i1s applied each period

525 Tax

The calculation of the Groups total tax charge involves a degree of estimation in respect of certan items where the tax treatment cannot be
finally determined untl a resolution has been reached wath the relevant tax authornity or If necessary, through a formal legal process The final
resolution of some of these stems may give rise to material income statement and/or cash flow vanances

The resolution of issues 1s not always within the control of the Group and 1s often dependent on the efficiency of the adrministrative and legal
processes in the relevant tax junisdictions in which the Group operates Issues can, and often do take many years to resclve Payments in
respect of tax habiibes for an accounting penod result from payments on account and on the final resolution of open items As a result, there
can be substantial differences between the tax charge through profit or foss and tax payments made
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5 2 6 Pensions

The Group provides several defined benefit pension schemes for its employees The asset or liabiity recognised m the staternent of financial
positien in respect of defined benefit pension plans represents the fair value of plan assets less the present value of the defined benefit obhigations
at the reporting date The expected cost of prowiding these defined benefit pensions will depend on an assessment of such factors as

« Thelife expectancy of the members,

» Thelength of service,

» Therate of salary progression,

» Therate used to discount future net pension assets or habilitres, and
» Future inflation rates

The assumptions used by the Group are set out In note 3 10 and are estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which may
not necessarily be borne out in practice but are comparable to the median estimates in this regard used by FTSE 250 companies Changes to
these assumptions could matenally affect the defined benefit schemes’ liabilities and assets

5 2 7 Business combinations

The recogrution of business combmations requires the excess of the purchase price of acquisitions over the net book value of assets acquired to
be allocated to the assets and liabilities of the acquired entity The Group makes judgements and estimates in relation to the fair value allocation
of the purchase price If any unallocated portion is positive, it 1s recognised as goodwill and if negative 1t is recognised in the income statement

5 3 Commitments, guarantees and contingent habilities
5 31 Commitments

A commitment 1s a contractual obligation to make a payment in the future These amounts are not recorded in the consohdated statement
of financial position since we have not yet received the goods or services frormn the suppker We have a number of commitments, mainty in
relation to leases and agreements to buy fixed assets The amounts below are the minimum we are committed to pay

Capital commitments at the end of the financial year for the continuing Group relating to the purchase of plant and equipment was
US$45 million (2013/14 — US$92 million) No provision has been made for these commitments US$nil (31 March 2014 — US$10 million)
of these commitments relate to the Group’s share of the capital commitments of its joint ventures and assoclates

In addition, the Group has a number of operating cormmitments artsing in the ordinary course of the Group's busmess The most significant
of these relate to network operating and maintenance costs In the event of default of another party, the Group may be liable to additional
contributions under the terms of the agreements

The Group leases land and buildings and networks under various lease agreements The leases have varying terms escalations clauses and
renewal rights

The operating lease expenditure related to the year ended 31 March 201515 disclosed innote 2 3 1 The aggregate future rminvimum lease
payments under operating leases are

31 March 31 March

2015 2014

ussm us$m
No later than one year 49 35
Later than one year but not later than five years 107 76
Later than five years 30 20
Total mimmum operating lease payments 186 131

In 2012, Columbus Networks entered tnto an agreernent with one of its customers, (‘the Customer’) whereby the Customer has transferred
ownership to Columbus Networks of a subsea link it had constructed to connect Haiti to Columbus Network (the HaitiLink ) 1n exchange for
transferring ownership, the Custormer received capacity on the Haitt Link and other consideration which is recorded as deferred revenue Also
as part of the agreement, Columbus Networks and the Customer are entitled to 50% of the revenue collected from the sale or lease of capacity
on the Haiti Link until such time as the Customer has recovered the US$12 million cost it incurred to construct the Haiti Link Once the Custorner
recovers Its construction costs Columbus Networks is entitled to all revenues generated from the Hariti Link into perpetuity thereafter
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5 3 Commitments, guarantees and contingent habilities continued

On 22 October 2004, a subsidiary of the Group became a party to the Atlantic Cable Maintenance and Repair Agreement (ACMA) ACMA

15 a consor tium of submarine cable systemns that collectively share the standing costs of submarine cable system maintenance based on the
number of kilometres of cable that comprises their respective cable system The costs of repainng individual cable faults are in excess of the
standing charges and are borne by the respective cable system The original ACMA contract was twice renewed and recently extended for an
additional period expinng on 31 December 2017 The subsidiary s estimated annual minimum payments related to standing charges net of any
credits per contractual terms are approximately US$3 million

5 3 2 Guarantees
Guarantees at the end of the year for which no provision has been made m the financial statements are as follows

31 March 31 March

2015 2014

us$m ussm

Trading guarantees 44 50
Other guarantees 473 329
Total guarantees 517 379

Trading guarantees

Trading guarantees principally comprise performance bonds for contracts concluded in the normal course of business, guaranteeing that the
Group will meet its obligations to complete projects in accordance with the contractual terms and conditions The nature of contracts includes
projects, service level agreements installation of equipment, surveys purchase of equipment and transportation of materials The guarantees
contain a clause that they will be terminated on final acceptance of work to be done under the contract

Other guarantees

Other guarantees include guarantees for financial obligations principally in respect of business disposals, letters of credit, property and other
leases The Group is party to a contingent funding agreement with the Cable & Wireless Superannuation Fund (CWSF) Trustees, under which
the Trustees can call for a letter of credit or cash escrow in certain circumstances, such as the breach by the Group of certan financial
covenants the incurrence by the Group of secured debt above an agreed level or the fallure ta maintain available commitments under the
revolving credit facilities of at least US$150 million

Following the Group’s issue of the 2020 bonds in January 2012 and the consequential increase in the Group's available secured barrowings,
letters of credit totalling £10C million had been issued in favour of the CWSF Trustee under the Contingent Funding Agreement These letters
of credit expired in February 2014 following the Group's redemption of the 2017 US$500 millon bonds and consequential decrease in the
Group’s avallable secured borrowings New letters of credit totalling £100 miltion (U5$149 mullion) were put in place in connection with the
acquisition of Columbus international Inc pursuant to the terms of the Contingent Funding Agreement

In addition, the Group, as 1s considered standard practice in such agreements has given guarantees and indemnities tn relation to a number of
business disposals Generally, hability has been capped at no more than the value of the sales proceeds although some uncapped indemnities
have been given In relation to the Islands disposal to Batelco International Group Holding Limited (note 2 8 2) the Group has provided a
guarantee for up to US$300 million in respect of tax-related claims (until April 2020) and all other indemnity clams (until Apnil 2015) The
Group has also provided indemnities in respect of the Monaco Telecom SAM disposal to a private Investment vehicle owned by Xavier Niel
(note 2 8 1) The Group also gives warranties and indemnities 1n relation to certain agreements including facility sharing agreements Some of
these agreements do not contan liability caps

The Group may be required to provide performance and payment guarantees in respect of its contractual obligations under key suppher or
customer arrangements The provision of these guarantees is made on an exceptional basis and such guarantees terminate upon full
satisfaction of the relevant performance and or payment obligations

The Group no longer provides guarantees to third parties in respect of trading contracts between third parties and the Cable & Wireless
Worldwide Group

5 3 3 Contingent labiities

Contingent habihties are potential future cash outflows where the Iikelihood of payment is considered more than remote but 15 not
considered probable or cannot be measured reliably

Under the Separation Agreement Cable & Wireless Communications and Cable & Wireless Worldwide (now wholly owned by Vodafone Group
PIc) agree to provide each other with certain customary indemnities on a reciprocal basis in respect of liabiliies which the Group may incur but
which relate exclusively to the Cable & Wireless Worldwide Group and vice versa and in respect of an agreed proportion of liabiliies which do
not relate exclusively to one Group or the other
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While Pender, the Group’s former insurance operation, ceased to underwnte new business from Aprit 2003, 1t has in the past written policies in

favour of the Group and third parties Potentially significant insurance claims have been made against Pender under certain of these third-party
policies, which have also given rise ta uncertainties and potential disputes with reinsurers Significant progress has been made in resolving these
clams Details of these insurance claims and potential claims are not disclosed as such disclosure may be prejudicial to the outcome of such clams

While the Group has ceased participation in the Merchant Navy Officers Pension Fund (MNOPF) it may be hable for contributions to fund a
portion of any funding deficits which may occur inthe future At 31 March 2015, the Group has scheduled payments to the MNOPF through
September 2020 totalling £1 7 million relating to the actuanal valuations made by the MNOPF Trustee as at 31 March 2006, 2009 and 2012
ft 1s possible that the MNOPF Trustee may invoice us in the future for additional amounts to the extent that there 1s an actuanially determined
funding deficit It 1s not possible to quantify the amount of any potential additional funding liabdity at this time

Legal proceedings are discussed nnote 5 5

S 4 Licences and operating agreements

In 2ll countries in which it operates, the Group holds licences to operate or operating agreements These licences and operating
agreements take a variety of forms and thewr terms, nghts and obligations vary significantly The Group assumes that it will renew these
licences and operating agreements as they expire Previous history indicates this 1s the most lkely outcome

The Group 1s currently in the process of renewing its mobile licences in Antigua and Barbuda

In December 2014, the Group s Anguilla telecommunications icence was renewed for a term of 10 years expiring in December 2024 1t was
also confirmed that the icence in Montserrat has been renewed for a term expiring in September 2022

The Columbus subsidiaries operate their local businesses under the applicable telecommunications licences for each jurisdiction As part of the
regulatory clearance process connected with the acquisition, the Group Is well advanced in the process of obtaining consents from regulators,
where required, for the indirect change of contral in the Columbus subsidiaries arising from the acquisition of Columbus

The Group does not have any concession agreements with governments that falf within the scope of IFRIC 12 Service concession arrangements

On demerger of the Cable & Wireless Worldwide business, the Cable & Wireless brand was transferred to ajoint venture entity owned by,

and for the continuing use of, the Cable & Wireless Communications and Cable & Wireless Worldwide Groups As part of this transfer,

Cable & Wireless Communications recelved a royalty-free licence, granting rights 1o use the Cable 8 Wireless brand in all of the Group’s current
gperating junisdictions and the wider Caribbean and Scuth American regions These licence arrangernents remain in force despite Vodafone
Group Plc s acquisition of Cable & Wireless Worldwide Group in July 2012

There were no other significant changes to the terms of the licences held by the Group’s subsidiaries or operating agreements with
governments during the periods presented

5 5 Legal proceedings

inthe ordinary course of business, the Group 1s nvolved in itigation proceedings, regulatory claims investigations and reviews The facts and
crcumstances relating to particular cases are evaluated in determining whether it 1s more likely than not that there will be a future outflow of
funds and, once established, whether a provision relating to a specific case 1s necessary or sufficient Accordingly, significant management
judgement relating to prowisions and contingent habilities 1s required since the autcome of itigation 1s difficult to predict

Cable & Wireless Jamaica Limited was the defendant to legal proceedings brought against it by Digicel Jamaica The dispute related to certan
amounts clamed by Digicel as due to them for intercennection Group management believed that all deductions made by Cable & Wireless
Jamaica Limited from amounits paid to Digicel were validly made in accordance with determinations and orders issued by the relevant local
regulator Cable & Wireless Jamaica Limited and Digicel Jamaica entered into a conditional settlement agreement n relation to Interconnection
charges bringing this dispute to a conclusion

In 2006, a subsidhary Columbus Communications Trinidad Limited ( Colurnbus Trimdad ), acquired physical and intangible assets from Trinidad
and Tobago Trans-Cable Company Unlimited (' T&T Trans-Cable ) in September 2012, T&T Trans-Cable (which 1s an ultimately wholly owned
subsidiary of Columbus International tnc ) recerved vanous notices of assessment from the Board of inland Revenue ('BIR") of the Government
of the Republic of Trimdad and Tobago with respect to Columbus Trinidad's acquisition of these assets, raising a tax assessment for the sale of
fixed and intangible assets on the grounds that the purchase price for the fixed and intangible assets represented income to T&T Trans-Cable,
that the purchase price was a distribution to the T&T Trans-Cable sharehalders, and that Value Added Tax was payable on the proceeds from
the sale of the T&T Trans-Cable fixed assets Columbus Trimidad objected to the BIR assessments in October 2012 On 3 November 2014,
Columbus Trinidad recewed notice that BIR has rejected this objection, Columbus Trimidad objected to the BIR notice on 26 Novernber 2014
Management believes that the BIR assessments are not in accordance with Trinidad and Tobago tax law, consequently they consider no
provision for any hability 1s required
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5 6 Related party transactions

The refated parties identified by the Directors include joint ventures, associated undertakings, investments and key management personnel

To enable users of our financial statements to form a view about the effects of related party relationships on the Group we disclose the
related party relationship when control exists, irrespective of whether there have been transactions between the related parties

Transactions with joint ventures and associates

All trade transactions with joint ventures and associates arise in the normal course of business and primarily relate to fees for use of the
Group's products and services network and access charges Group subsidianies had transactions with Telecommumcations Services of
Trimdad and Tobago Ltd and Seychelles Cable System Limited during the year The transactions were in relation to the sale and purchase of
telecommunication services In respect of these transactions, U5$3 million has been reported within revenue and US$2 million in cost of sales
(2013714 - U5%3 milkon and US$2 million respectively)

The Group received dividends of US$ni! from joint ventures and associates (2013/14 — US$4 million) At 31 March 2015, joint ventures and
assoclates owed US$nil (31 March 2014 — US$2 million) in respect of trading balances

There were no other material trade transactions with joint ventures and associates during the year

Transactions with key management personnel
There have been no transactions with key management personnel of the Group other than the Director and key management remuneration

Director and key management remuneration is disclosed mnnote 2 3 3

Transactions with other related parties
There are no controlling shareholders of the Group as defined by IFRS There have been no material transactions with the shareholders of
the Group

Pensions contributions to Group schemes are disclosed in note 310

The Group has US$56 miliion of loans recevable and US$20 milion of other receivables with legal entities controlled by Brendan Paddick,
CVBI Holdings (Barbados) Inc and Clearwater Holdings (Barbados) Limited as of 31 March 2015

The loan receivable of US$56 million relates to the two year term facility agreement for US$74 million that was entered inte on 27 March 2015
The interest rate on the term loan facility 1s based on the Group's cost of barrowing and payable in arrears

Other than the parties disclosed above, the Group has no other matenal related parties

5 7 Share-based payments

We have a number of share plans used to award shares to Directors and employees as part of their remuneration package A charge s
recognised (n the conschidated Income statement to record the cost of these, based on the fair value of the award on the grant date
For further information on how this 1s calculated refer to share-based compensation under significant accounting policies on page 148
Additional Information on options and shares granted to Directors can be found n the Directors remuneration report on pages 68 to 88

Accounting policy detailed in note 5111

Share option schemes

The Group does not currently have outstanding share option awards over 1ts own shares {2013/14 — nil) other than awards of performance
shares granted as nil-cost options There are no outstanding share option awards relating to options granted by Cable and Wireless plc to senior
employees (2013714 - no options outstanding) These options were originally granted over Cable and Wireless plc shares at exercise prices
between 101 to 154 pence All options have vested in full Subsequent to the demerger these options were redesignated as an option over
astapted unit of one share In Cable & Wireless Communications Plc and one share in Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc {an unrelated company)
The share price of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc at 31 March 2013 and the finat share price of Cable & Wireless Werldwide plc prior

ta its takeover by Vodafone Group Plc were such that the obligation for these stapled unit options was US$nil

During the year 17,049,197 options were exercised (2013/14 — no options were exercised) No options lapsed during the year
(2013/14 - 1,246 303)
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Other equity iInstrument awards
Performance shares
Executive Directors and other senior executives can receive awards of performance shares at nil cost

The vesting of outstanding performance shares granted in June 2010 and 2017 are subject to Cable & Wireless Communications Pic absolute
TSR performance conditions (see performance conditions for share-based award on page 83) For the performance shares granted in January
2013, performance Is based on a combination of relative TSR against a bespoke comparator group and earnings per share (EPS) performance
measures For the performance shares granted in May 2013 performance 1s based on relative TSR against a bespoke comparator group

For the performance shares granted in December 2013, January 2014, May 2014 and July 2014 performance 1s based on non-market
performance measures

A dwidend award supplement operates on all these awards Dividends that would have been paid on the performance shares which vest will be
regarded as having been reinvested in additional shares at the notional date of distribution

Restricted Share Plan
Restricted shares are awarded to senior management and selected other employees, primarily as a retention or a recruitment tool Generally,
restricted shares vest over periods of one to three years from grant date

Cable & Wireless Communications Share Purchase Plan

The Company also offered its employees, who are chargeable to incame tax under Section 15 Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) Act 2003,
the opportunity to participate in the Cable & Wireless Communications Share Purchase Plan which s a HMRC-approved share incentive plan
Under the share purchase plan employees could contribute up to £1,500 or 10% of salary each tax year (whichever 1s the lower)} to buy
partnership shares in the Company, and the Company offered a matching award of one share for each partnership share purchased From

13 April 2012, the share purchase plan is no longer offered The existing shares will remain in the plan until such time as they weuld ordinanly
vest i accordance with plan rules

The Cable & Wireless Communications Share Ownership Trust
The Cable & Wireless Communications Share Ownership Trust {the Trust) 1s a discretionary trust which was funded by loans from Cable &
Wireless Limited a wholly owned Group company, to acquire and hold shares in Cable & Wireless Communications Plc

At 31 March 2015, the Trust held 9,140 970 shares in Cable & Wireless Communications Ple {of which 754,029 are shares awarded to the
Executive Directors under the Deferred Bonus Plan and which carry dividend rights) with a market value of US$92 million

Share awards
The equity Instruments granted during the year can be summansed as follows

Awards of Awards of
Cable & Wireless Commumcations Ple Cable & Wireless Communications Ple
shares granted during 2014/15 shares granted during 2013/14
Weighted Weighted
average Features average Features
fair value incorporated farrvalue incorporated
Award Shares  (pence/share) in schemes Shares {pence/share) n schemes
Restricted shares 12,990,348 60 - 1,472,110 43 -
Share purchase ptan scheme (matching shares) - - - - - -
Performance shares — May 2013 - - - 9327338 28  T3Rcondtions
TSR conditions
and nen-market
Performance shares — May 2014, June 2014 performance
and July 2014 15,209,991 53 measures - - -
Non-market
Performance shares — December 2013 and performance
January 2014 - - - 14,110,468 55 measres

Only the performance share grants made during 202/13 and 2011/12 have performance critena attached A fair value exercise was
completed for grants made during 2014/15 and 2013/14 using the Mante Carlo method
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57 Share-based payments continued

The Monte Carlo pricing model assumpticns used in the pricing of the performance share grants in 2014/15 and 2013/14 were

2014/15 2013/74

Weighted average share price (pence per share)
Dividend yield

Expected volatility

Risk-free interest rates

Expected life in years

5280 43920
00% 00%

28 0%-303% 321%
102%-125% 048%

30-339 30

The total expense during the year related to equity settled share-based payments was US$5 million (2013/14 - US$6 million) A summary of

the outstanding share awards at 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 are as follows

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of remaining hife Number of remaining life

shares (rounded to shares (rounded to

Award outstanding nearest year) QOutstanding nearest year)
Restricted shares 13,350,706 3 585 685 1
Restricted shares (LTiP) - - 2,198 490 -
Share purchase plan scheme (matching shares) 120,556 - 220,496 -
Performance shares 43,766,442 2 45,754,681 2

5 8 Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

The Group compnses a large number of companies and it 1s not practicat to include all of them n this list The hist therefore only includes
those companies whose results or financial position, in the opimon of the Directors, principally affect the igures shown in the Group’s

financial statements
Refer to note 3 7 for Joint ventures and assoqates

Accounting policy detalled innate 1 21

Ownership of

Contmnuing operations ordinary shares Country of Area of
2s at 31 March 2015 % ncorporation operation
Subsidiaries
The Bahamas Telecommunications Company Ltd 49 The Bahamas The Bahamas
Cable & Wireless Jamaica Ltd 82 Jamaica Jamaica
Cable & Wireless Panama, SA 49 Panama Panama
Cable & Wireless (Barbados) Lid 81 Barbados Barbados
Cable and Wireless (West Indies) Ltd 100 England Canbbean
Cable & Wireless Ltd 100 England England
Sable International Finance Ltd 100 Cayman England
Cable and Wireless International Finance BV 100 Netherlands England
Caribbean/
Columbus International Inc 100 Barbados L.atin America
Columbus Communications (Trimidad) Limited 100 Trinidad and Tobago  Trimidad and Tabago
Columbus Communications Jamaica Limited 100 Jamaica Jamaica
Canbbean/
Columbus Networks Limited 100 Barbados Latin America
Joint ventures and associates
Cable & Wireless Trade Mark Management Ltd 50 England N/A
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Full details of all subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and associates will be attached to the Cornpany's next annual return, to be filed with the

Regqistrar of Companies in England and Wales

The following table summarises the information relating to each of the Group's subsidianes that has material non-controlling interests (NC1), before

any intra-group elimnations

Other
Continuing operations Panama’ The Bahamas® Jamaica Barbados  subsidiaries® Totat
as at 31 March 2015 ussm usSm ussm ussm ussm ussm
Ownership interests held by NCI 51% 51% 18% 19% 20-30%
Revenue 636 348 190 154 85
Profit/(loss) 108 53 (66} (20} 7
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 1 - 9 (2} -
Total comprehensive income/{loss) 109 53 (57) (22) 7
Profit/(loss) attributable to NCI 55 27 {(12) (4) 2 68
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to NCI 55 27 )] (4) 2 70
Non-current assets 714 364 189 138 101
Current assets 212 120 73 48 29
Non-current habtlities (310} &) (443) (38) {5)
Current liabiliies (258) (129 (94) (115) (25)
Net assets/(habilities) 358 349 (275) 33 100
Net assets/(liabilities) attributable to NCI 183 178 (50) 6 23 340
Cash flows from operating activities 223 107 18 64 16
Cash flows from investing actwities (124) (74) ®nN (64) (7)
Cash flows from financing activities (101) (46} 9 M (3)
Net (decrease/increase) in cash and cash equivalents (2} (13} (40) (M 3]
Dwidends paid to NCl during the year 63 22 - - 1 86

1 The Company holds 49% of the share capital but regards CWP as a subsidiary because it controls the majarity of the Board of Directors through a shareholders agreement

2 The Bahamas Government holds 49% non-controling interests in BTC On 24 July 2014 the Company completed the transfer of share capital from our holding representing

2% of the totalssued share capital in 8TC to The BTC Foundation a charitable trust dedicated to investing in prajects far the benefit of Bahamians The Company currently

holds 49% of the share capital but regards BTC s a subsidiary because it controls the majority of the Board of Directors through a shareholders agreement
3 Other subsidiaries includes Dominica Grenada and St Kitts as the NC) for these subsidianes i1s not material individually butis mateniat in the aggregate
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5 8 Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates continued

Contnuing Discontinued
Other
Panama’ The Bahamas Jamaica Barbados subsudiaries? Macay? Total
as a1 31 March 2014 us$m Ussm Ussm us$m Ussm Ussm ussm
Ownership interests held by NC 51% 49% 18% 19%  20-30%
Revenue 576 354 181 157 84 21
Profit/(loss) 103 72 (34) (25) 6 25
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - 3 17 (1) (3) -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 103 75 an (26) 3 25
Profit/(loss) attnbutable to NCi 53 35 (6) (5) 2 13 92
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to NCI 53 36 3) (5) 1 12 94
Non-current assets 662 339 159 159 a5
Current assets 221 123 67 40 25
Non-current habilities (288) (5) (364) (44) (5)
Current habikties (222) (116) (80) (102) (22)
Net assets/(liabilities) 373 31 (218) 53 a3
Net assets/(habilities) attributable to NCl 190 167 (39) 10 22 350
Cash flows from operating activities 226 104 27 15 22
Cash flows from investing activities (179) (50 (34) (32} (5)
Cash flows from financing activities (56) (58) 59 25 17
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 9) {4) (2) 8 34
Dividends paid to NCi during the year 44 30 - - 2 76

1 The Company currently holds 49% of the share capital but regards CWP as a subsidiary because it controls the majonity of the Board of Directors through

a shareholders agreement

2 Other subsidianes inciudes Dominica Grenada and 5t Kitts as the NCI for these substdianies is not material indwidually but s material in the aggregate

3 Macau was disposed of on 20 June 2013

5 9 Events after the reporting peniod

Where the Group receives information in the period between 31 March 2015 and the date of this report about conditions related to
certain events that existed at the year end, we update our disclosures that relate to these conditions in ight of the new information
Such events can be categorised as adjusted or non-adjusting depending on whether the conditions existed at 31 March 2015

i non-adjusting events after the year end are matenal non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions that users make

on the basis of the financial statements

Accordingly, for each matenial category of non-adjusting event after the reporting pernod we disclose in this section the nature of the
event and an estimate of its financial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made

The acquisition of Columbus by the Company constituted a change of control of Columbus for the purposes of the US$1,250 million 7 375%
Notes (the Columbus Notes) The Columbus Notes indenture includes a change of control provision requiring Columbus to make an offer to the
holders of the Columbus Notes to purchase the Columbus Notes at 101% of their pnincipal amaount, plus accrued and unpaid mterest and related
fees This offer was launched on 31 March 2015 and expired on 28 April 2015 None of the Columbus Notes were tendered

5 91 Accounts approval
There have been no events affecting the Group since 31 March 2015 which need to be reflected in the 2014/15 financal statements

These accounts were appraved by the Board of Directors on 19 May 2015 and autherised for 1ssue
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Independent auditor's report to the members
of Cable & Wireless Communications Plc only

Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

1 Our opinion on the financial statements 1s unmodified

We have audited the financial staternents of Cable & Wireless
Communications Plc for the year ended 31 March 2015 set cut on
pages 92 to 170 excluding pages 93 and 97 In our opimon

« The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group’s and of the Parent Company s affairs as at 31 March 2015
and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

« The Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adepted by the European Union,

« The parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and

+ The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

2 Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

In arrwing at our audit opinion above on the financial statements the
risks of material misstatement that had the greatest effect on our
audit are set out below

The Audit Committee’s consideration of these significant risks 1s set
out inthe Aucit Committee report on pages 62 to 63

Acquisition accounting

Acquisition accounting (see note 311 and note 51 3 for accounting
policy and note 5 2 7 for critical accounting estimates and
Judgements)

Risk
The acquisition of Columbus on 31 March 2015 for a consideration of
$2 121 million was a significant acquisition for the Group

Accounting for the acquisition requires the Group to determine the
preliminary farr value of consideration transferred and the net assets
acquired as part of the acquisition

This requires the Group to make a number of judgements, which focus
on but are not imited to

« Valuation of the sharesissued and options granted as part
consideration for the acquisition,

« Identification of intangible assets acquired, and
« Determiningthe 31 March 2015 Columbus balance sheet

In determining the fair value of the acquired intangible assets, medium
term cash flow forecasts have been prepared by the Group The
inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting future cash flows and the
Judgement involved in the selection of the appropriate discount rate
makes this a key area of focus

Due to the timing of the Group’s acquisition of Columbus the Groups
acquisition accounting information is prelirminary and 1s based on the
most recently available Columbus information, adjusted for significant
transactions to the acquisition date |dentifying and measuring these
adjustments i1s complex and can require the Directors to use
estimates As a result this was one of the focus areas of our audit

Qur response

Our audit procedures over preliminary acquisition accounting Included,
among others

Using our own valuation specialists to assist us in critically assessing

« the methodology for and inputs used in the valuation of shares
1ssued and options granted and

« the appropriateness of the identified intangibles, against the critena
of the relevant accounting standards, and the appropriateness of
the discount rates and comparing the inputs used in determining
the discount rate to externally derived data

Testing the principles and integrity of the Group’s cash flow maodel
used in determining fair value of acquired intangible assets We
compared the Groups forecast revenue growth and margins
assumpttons to our own assessments in relation to key inputs such as
market performance and economic conditions in each of the regions

We gained an understanding of the principles applied by the Directors
in determming their acquisition date fair value information  Inrespect
of significant adjustments we challenged the Group's assumptions
based on our knowledge and experience of the industry in which
Columbus operates We agreed significant transactions to supporting
documentation, such as underlying contracts third party
confirmations and valuation reports discussed above

We also considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in respect
of the acquisition and the related judgements in note 3 11

Valuation of trade receivables and accrued income

Net trade receivables US$330 million and accrued income US$84
million (see note 31 and 5 1 4 for accounting palicy and notes 5 2 2
and 5 2 3 for critical accounting estimates and judgements)

Risk
The Group has significant trade receivables and accrued income with
customers in Panama and the Canbbean

Given the age profile and high debt levels in these regions and the level
of judgement required in determining the provision levels on these
balances, this is considered a significant risk

Our response
Our audit procedures on the existing businesses included among
others

Testing of controls over the Group's collection procedures and the
Group s assessment of the provision required at every period end,

Testing the receipt of cash after the year end for enterprise and
government customers, and

We have cnitically assessed the Group s provision levels by considering
the historical cash collection trends and the local econornic
environment in each of the regions

On Columbus trade recevables, we critically assessed the provision |
levels by considering the historical cash collection trends in the in
scope businesses

On all receivables, we have also considered the adequacy of the
Group’s disclosures about the degree of estimation involved In arriving
at the prowvision
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Independent auditor s report
continued

2 Our assessment of rnisks of maternial misstatement continued

Carrying value of PPE and assets held for sale

PPE U55%2,523 mdlion and assets held for sale US$137 million (see
note36 37and 3 8, notes 514 and5 15 for accounting policies and
note 5 2 1 for critical accounting estimates and jJudgements}

Risk

There 1s a risk of impairment of the Group's PPE assets particularly in
the Caribbean region in ight of recent iImpairments in that region,
together with technological change, challenging economic conditions
and changing competitive and regulatory landscapes

During the year the Group recorded assets write offs and impairment
charges in LIME as a result of technologica! change and the acquisition
of Columbus expected to render parts of the existing network
redundant The Group has determined the impacted assets from the
integration plans and the value in use 1s determined based on
estimates for the following average revenue rates, engineering
estimates of timing of migration to acquired networks and an
estimated alfocation of costs for the total business  Also judgement s
invalved in the selection of the appropnate discount rate which makes
this a key area of focus for our audit

As part of obtaining regulatory approvals for the Columbus acquisttion
in Trimnidad & Tobago (T&T), the Group agreed to divest its 49%
shareholding in Telecornmunication Services of Trinidad and Tobago
(TSTT) Assuch, the investment in TSTT has been classified as an
asset held for sale as at 31 March 2015 In determimng fair value of
TSTT, the Group 1s required to make a number of jJudgements which
focus on, but are not imited to recent trading performance, economic
and market conditions and data frorn comparable market transactions
inthe telecom industry

Our response
Our audit procedures included among others

PPE Assessing the appropriateness of the assets impacted by
technological change based on capital expenditure plans and
discussing the key changes with the Group s technology teams We
agreed the value of the assets writlen off to the underlying fixed asset
registers

Inspecting the integration plans and discussing the key terms with the
engineering teams to critically assess the appropriateness of the
Group’s determination of assets impacted by the acquisition and the
assumptions used in the value in use models

We challenged the assumptions used In the value in use models by
forming an expectation of the assumptions in light of our knowledge
of the client and expenence of the telecom industry in each of the
markets the Group operates in

TSTT Using our own valuation specialists to assist us in cntically
assessing the appropriateness of the jJudgements made and companing
the inputs used in determining fair values to internally and externally
derived data

We considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures and assessed
whether disclosures for PPE and assets held for sale about the
sensitivity of the outcome of the assessment to changes inkey
assumptions properly reflected the risks inherent inthe key
assumptions and the requirements of accounting standards
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Revenue recognition
Revenue US$1,753 million (see note 21, note 5114 for accounting
policy and note 5 2 3 for critical accounting estimates and judgements)

Risk
The Group s revenue consists primarily of mobile, broadband TV fixed
Iine and managed services contracts

Revenue from mobile, broadband and fixed line products is considered
a significant risk due to both the bundling of these services and the
complexity of the Group's systems and processes used to record
revenue

Our response
Our audit procedures over revenue included, among others

Testing of controls assisted by our IT specialists including those over
set-up of customer accounts, pricing data, segregation of duties, and
the finkage to usage data that drives revenue recogrition
Compensating manual controls were tested for certan legacy system
1ssues in LIME and BTC,

To assess the relative fair value of each separable component within a
price plan, we tested the controls over the Group s estimate of
standalone value This included comparng the standalone farr values
to published information an the standalone price for each component,
and

Performing an analysis of revenue and deferred revenue based on our
industry knowtedge, forming an expectation of revenue based on key
perfaormance indicators taking into consideration disconnections,
installations, changes in rates and trends in deferred income days

We also assessed the adequacy of the group’s disclosures in respect of
the accounting pelicies on revenue recognition set out in 5114

3 Our apphcation of materiality and an overview of the scope of
our audit

The materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole was set
at U$$12 millkon, determined with reference to a benchmark of Group
profit before taxattan for continuing operations normahsed to exclude
exceptional costs as disclosed in the Group Consolidated Income
Statement of which it represents 4 5%

We report to the audit committee any corrected or uncorrected
identified misstatements exceeding US$0 6 rillion 1n addition to
other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds

Qur Group audit scope focused on the key operating locations —
Panama The Bahamas and the four principal operating locations
within LIME together with the Group's Associate in Tnidad & Tobago
which were all subject to a full scope audit for the year ended 31
March 2015 and were performed by component auditors in these
regions Following the acquisttion of Columbus at year end, opening
balance sheet audits were performed at Columbus Jamaica and
Columbus Trimidad by component auditors in these countries and at
Columbus Networks by the group audit team

In addition, the Group audit team performed specified audit
procedures on the Group Functions using a matenality of US $10
millon These locations represent the principal business units of the




Group and account for 95% of the Group s total assets, 88% of the
Group's revenue and 91% of the total profits and losses that made up
the Group's profit before tax from continuing operations  For the
remaining compaonents, we performed analysis at an aggregated
group level to re-examine our assessment that there were no
significant risks of material misstatement within these

The Group audit team instructed component auditors as to the
significant areas to be covered, including the relevant nisks detailed
above and the information to be reported back The Group audit team
approved the component materialities which ranged from US$4
million to US$6 mullion having regards to the mix of size and risk profile
of the Group across the companents

The Group audit team visited five out of the mine full scope locations
not audited by the Group audit team Telephone meettngs and video
conferences were also held with the auditors at all locations
throughout the audit At these meetings the findings reporting to the
Group audit team were discussed in more detall, and any further work
required by the Group audit team was then performed by the
component auditor

4 Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act
2006 1s unmodified
Inour opinion

« The part of the Directors’ rernuneration report to be audited has
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006, and

« Theinformation given in the Strategic report and Directors’ report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the financial statements

5 We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which
we are required to report by exception

Under I1SAs {UK and treland) we are required to report to you if, based
on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have identified
other information in the annual report that contains a matenal
inconsistency with either that knowledge or the financial statements
amaterial musstatement of fact or that i1s otherwise misleading

in particular, we are required to report ta you if

« We have identified matenal inconststencies between the knowledge
we acquired duning our audit and the Directors” statement that they
consider that the annual report and financial staterments taken as a
whole 1s fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for sharehalders to assess the Group's
performance business model and strategy or

« The Audit Comimittee report does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If in
our opinion

+ Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us or

+ The Parent Company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ remuneratton report to be audited are not 1n agreement
with the accounting records and returns or

« Certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are
not made or

« We have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« The Durectors statement, set out on page 58, in relation to going
concern, and

« The part of the corporate governance statement on pages 48 to 58
relating to the company’s compliance with the ten provisions of the
2012 UK Corporate Governance Code specified far our review

We have nothing ta repart in respect of the above responsibilities

Scope of report and responsibilities

As explained more fully m the Directors responsibilities statement set
out on page 89 the Drectors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair vew A description of the scope of an audit of accounts s
provided on the Financial Reporting Council's website at www frc org
uk/auditscopeukprivate This report 1s made solely to the Company s
members as a body and subject to important explanations and
disclaimers regarding our responsibilities, published on our website at
www kpmg com/uk/auditscopeukco2014a, which are incorporated
into this report as if set out in full and should be read to provide an
understanding of the purpose of this report the work we have
undertaken and the basis of our opinions

J &

John Edwards (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

19 May 2015
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Company balance sheet
as at 31 March 2015

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
Note UsSm ussm
Fixed assets investments
Investments in subsidiaries 6 6,131 6,103
Current assets
Debtors 7 100 100
Current habilities
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 8 3,199 4669
Financial liability 9 879 -
Net current liabilities 3,978 4,569
Net assets 2,153 1534
Capital andreserves
Called-up share capital 10 224 133
Share premium 11 260 97
Reserves 11 1,669 1,304
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,153 1,534

The notes on pages 164 to 168 are an integral part of the financial statements of the Company

The financial statements of the Company on pages 162 to 168 were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 May 2015 and signed onits

behalf by

Phil Bentley Chief Executive Officer
Cable & Wireless Communtcations Ple Registered number - 07130199
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Reconciliation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds for the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2015

2014/15 2013714
ussm Ussm
Profit for the year 8 1
Equity share-based payments 28 )
Dividends (104) (100)
Issuance of share capital 1,463 -
Put and repurchase option acquired (776) -
Increase/(decrease) in equity shareholders” funds 619 (93)
Opening equity shareholders’ funds 1,534 1627
Closing equity shareholders’ funds 2,153 1,534

The notes on pages 164 to 168 are an integral part of the financial statements of the Company
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

1 Statement of accounting policies

11 Basis of preparation

The Company’s inancial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards applicable under generally accepted
accounting principles in the United Kingdom and the provisions of the Comparwes Act 2006 They have been prepared on the historical cost
basis where appropriate

These financial statements set out the position of the Company and not the Cable & Wireless Communications Group (the Group) which it
heads The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in relation to the
Company s financial statements

The Company I1s exempt under FRS 29 Financial instruments Disclosures from the requirement to provide its own financial instruments
disclosures on the grounds that they are included in pubhcly available consoldated financiat statements which include disclosures that comply
with the IFRS equivalent standard

The financial statements are presented in US dolfars (US$), as this is the functional currency of the Company at 31 March 2015, and rounded
to the nearest million

The preparation of financial statemenits in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from these estimates

FRS 18 Accounting policies requires that a description of the impact of any change in estimation techniques should be provided where the
change has a material impact on the reported results for the year

12 Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidraries are included in the balance sheet at historical cost less any tmpairments recognised Impairment reviews are

carried out whenever events or changes in circumstances mdicate that the carrying amount of the investment may not be fully recoverable
Impairments are determined by comparing the carrying value of the investment in the subsidiary to its recoverable amount, being the higher of
the subsidiary’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use Farr value represents market value in an active market Value inuse is determined
by discounting future cash flows anising from the subsidrary with reference to the Group’s own projections using pre-tax discount rates which
represent the estimated weighted average cost of capital for the Company Impairments are recogrised in profit or foss

1 3 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities

The Company classifies 1ts financial assets into the followirg categones financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and recevables
held-to-matunty investments and available-for-sale financial assets The classification depends on the purpose for which the assets are held
The Company currently does not hold or classify any financial assets under these categones The basis of determining fair values 1s set out in
note 14

Management determines the classification of its financial assets at inttial recogrition in accordance with FRS 26 Financigl instruments
Recognition and measurement and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date for financial assets other than those held at fair value
through profit or loss

Recognition and measurerment
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Company has transferred substantially all nisks and rewards of ownership

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there 15 objective ewdence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
15 Impaired

1 4 Fair value estimation

The nominal value (less estimated imparrments) of receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their far values The farr value
of financial habilities is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash fiows at the current market interest rate that 1s available to
the Company for similar inanaal iInstruments Discounted cash flows are used to determine the farr value for the majonity of remaining
financial instruments
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15 Tax
The charge for tax s based on the result for the year and takes into account tax deferred due to trming differences between the treatment of
certainitems for tax and accounting purposes

Deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent that they are regarded as recoverable Deferred tax assets are regarded as recoverable to the
extent that on the basis of all avallable evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which
the future reversal of the underiying tming differences can be deducted

Except where otherwise required by accounting standards, full provision without discounting 1s made for all tirming differences that have arisen
but not reversed at the balance sheet date

16 Dividends
Dividends are recogmsed through equity on the earlier of therr approval by the Company’s shareholders or their payment

17 Share-based compensation

The Group operates various equity-settled share-based compensation plans The far value of the employee services recerved in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense In the subsidiary companies over the vesting period The total amount to be expensed over
the vesting period is determined by reference to the farr value of the options granted, which excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, service, profitability and sales growth targets) Non-market vesting conditions are included in estimates about the
number of options that are expected to vest At each reporting date, the Group revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected Lo vest It recogruses the impact of the revision of original non-market estimates, if any, in the profit and loss, and a correspending
adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting pericd

The proceeds receved net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital and share prermium when the options are
exercised The Company recognises an additional investment in subsidiaries equivalent to the equity instruments granted, being a capital
contribution to those subsidiaries

1 8 Financial hability at amortised cost
This category includes the redemption option relating to shares issued as part of the acquisition of Columbus The redemption options were
initially recognised at the present value of the future obligations and will be amortised on a straight ine basis over the redemption option penod

2 Company's profit and loss account
The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained in section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 and has not presented its own
profit and loss account The profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 amounted te US$8 million {(2613/14 - US$1 million)

3 Remuneration of Directors
Information covering Directors’ remuneration is disclosed in note 2 3 3 to the consolidated financial statements Interests inshares share
options and pension benefits are set out in the Directors' remunerat:on report on pages 68 to 88 and have been borne by a subsidiary company

4 Staff numbers and costs
The average monthly number of persons employed by the Company (including Directors) during the year was nil (2013/14 — nil) Therr costs
for the year ended 31 March 2015 were US$ndl (2013/14 = US3Snil)

5 Share-based payments
Accounting policy detarled innote 17

The details of share option schemes and other share-based plans are disclosed in note 5 7 to the consolidated financial statements

The total additional Investment in subsidianies relating to equity settled share-based payments was U$$28 million (2013/14 — US$6 milhon)
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

6 Fixed asset investments

Accounting policy detatled in note 1 2

Subsidiary
undertakings
ussm
Cost
At 1 April 2013 6,097
Capital contnibution (note 5) 6
At 1 Apnl 2014 6103
Capttal contnbution (note 5) 28
At 31 March 2015 6,131
Net book value
At 31 March 2015 6,131
At 31 March 2014 6103
7 Debtors
31 March 31 March
2015 2014
ussSm UsS$m
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 100 100
Total debtors 100 100

8 Creditors

31 March 31 March
2015 2014
ussm USsm

Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings

3,199 4669

Total creditors

3,199 4669

There is no matenal difference between the carrying amount and far value of creditors at 31 March 2015

9 Financial hability at amortised cost

Accounting policy detarded innote 1 8

Financial habiity at amortised cost 1s detalled in note 4 8 to the consolidated financial statements
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10 Called-up share capital

Number of

shares
Issued called-up and fully paid shares of US5 cents each {000) Ussm
At 1 Apnl 2013 and 31 March 2014 2,665,612 133
At 31 March 2015 4,475,954 224

On 7 November 2014, a total of 252,812 284 new ordinary shares of USS cents each in the capital of the Company were placed by Deutsche
Bank AG {cash box placement) at a pnice of 45 pence per placing share raising gross proceeds of US$180 milhon {excluding equity transaction
costs of US$4 millon) The placing shares beng 1ssued represented 10% less one share of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company
prior to Placing

On 31 March 2015, 1 557 529,605 new ordinary shares were 1ssued as consideration in connection with the acquisition of Columbus

11 Share capital and reserves

Prafit
Share Share Merger Other andloss
capital premium reserve reserve account Total
ussm US$m ussm usim USsm USSm
At 1 Apnl 2014 133 a7 - ag7 317 1,534
Profit for the year - - - - 8 8
Equity share-based payments - - - - 28 28
Dndends - - - - {(104) {104}
Issuance of share capital a1 163 1209 - - 1463
Put option acquired - - - {(776) - (776}
At 31 March 2015 224 260 1,209 211 249 2,153

The other reserve relates to the cancellation of the B shares the capital reduction occurring on the demerger of the Cable & Wireless
Worldwide business and the lock-up and put option arrangements with the Principal Vendors as part of the acquisition of Columbus As part
of the transaction to acquire Columbus International Inc  the Cormnpany 1ssued 1,557,529,605 consideration shares of USS cents each to the
Principal Vendors in proportion to their Columbus shareholding As a result, the Principal Vendors (CVBI Holdings (Barbados) Inc, Clearwater
Holdings (Barbados) Limited, Columbus Holdings LLC and Brendan Paddick) in aggregate hold approximately 36% of the ordinary shares in the
Company Each Principal Vendor agreed at completion to enter into lock-up and put option arrangements inrespect of its 1ssued consideration
sharesuntl 2019 An exception to the lock-up arrangements will enable each Principal Vendor to require the Company to purchase for cash up
to a certain number of its shares each year from 2016 to 2019 inclusive for the notional 1ssue price of US$0 7349 per share If a Principal
Vendor sells some or all of their shareholding {subject to orderly market conditions) then some or all of its future options to require the
Company to purchase up te a certain number of shares willimmediately cease to have effect and will not be capable of exercise The farr value
of this put option has been recognised as an equity investment within other reserves As this put option meets the definition of an equity
instrument, it will be revalued to fair value at subsequent year ends

The other reserve may be treated as realised profit, subject to the resolution of the Directors

At 31 March 2015, a total of 137,488,873 shares were classified as treasury shares (31 March 2014 — 137,488 873) This represented 3%
of called-up share capital at the end of the year (2013/14 — 5%)

12 Related party transactions

Under FRS 8 Related party disclosures, the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to disclose transactions with entities that are part of the
Cable & Wiretess Communications Group, or investees of the Group qualifying as related parties, as all of the Company’s voting nights are
controlled within the Group

Related party transactions are detaled in note S 6 to the consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2015

13 Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
Principal subsidianies, joint ventures and associates are detailed in note 5 8 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group comprises a large number of companies and 1t 1s not practical to inctude all of them The list therefore only includes those companies
whose results or financial position, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affects the figures shown in the financial statements

The Company does not have any direct investment in the subsidiaries joint ventures and associates listed in note 5 8 to the consolidated
financial statements, with the exception of Cable & Wireless Limited

Full details of all subsidianies, joint ventures and asseciates will be attached to the Company’s annual return, to be filed with the Registrar of
Companies in England and Wales

14 Dividends
Accounting policy detailed m note 16

Dividend information is detalled i note 4 12 to the consolidated financial statements

15 Commitments
The Company had no capital commitments at 31 March 2015 (31 March 2014 - no capital commitments)

16 Guarantees and contingent liabilities

Under the Separation Agreement Cable & Wireless Communications Plc and Cable & Wireless Worldwide plc (now wholly owned by Vodafone
Group Pic) agree to provide each other with certain customary indemnities on a reciprocal basis in respect of liabilities which Cable & Wreless
Communucations may mncur but which relate excluswely to the Cable & Wireless Worldwide Group and vice versa and in respect of an agreed
proportion of habtities which do not relate exclusively to one Group or the other

While Pender, the Group's former insurance operation, ceased to underwrite new business from April 2003, it has in the past wnitten policies in

favour of the Group and third parties Potentially significant insurance claims have been made against Pender under certan of these third-party
policies which have also given rise to uncertainties and potential disputes with reinsurers Sigmificant progress has been made in resolving these
clairns Details of these insurance claims and potential ctaims are not disclosed as such disclosure may be prejudicial to the outcome of such claims

In addition, the Company, as Is considered standard practice in such agreements has given guarantees and indemnities in relation to a number
of business disposals tn prior years Generally, liability has been capped at no more than the value of the sales proceeds although some
uncapped indemnities have been given The Company alsa gives warranties and indemmities in relation to certain agreements including facility
sharing agreements Some of these agreements do not contain liability caps
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Shareholder information

Registrar
If you have any queries regarding your shareholding in Cable & Wireless
Communications Plc, please contact

Equiniti

Aspect House Spencer Road

Lancing West Sussex BN99 GDA

Telephone 0871 384 2104 (UK shareholders)
+44 (0)121 415 7052 (overseas shareholders)

Shareholders can view up-to-date information about thewr
shareholding at www shareview co uk and answers to frequently
asked questions can be found at www help shareview co uk

ShareGift

If you have a small number of shares whose value makes them
uneconomic to sell, you may wish to constder donating them to
chanty ShareGift i1s a registered chanty (no 1052686) which collects
and sells unwanted shares and uses the proceeds to support a wide
range of UK charities Further information about ShareGift and the
chartties it supports s available at www shareg)ft org or by contacting
them at

17 Carlton House Terrace
London SW1Y 5AH
Telephone +44 (0)20 7930 3737

Registered Office and Company Secretary
The Company's Reqistered Office 1s

2nd Floor, 62-65 Chandos Place
London WC2N 4HG
Tetephone +44 (0)20 7315 4000

Emaill companysecretary@cwc com

Clare Underwaod 1s the Company Secretary

Investor Relations
Enquiries may be directed to

Head of Investor Relations

2nd Floor, 82-65 Chandos Place
London WC2N 4HG

Telephone +44 {0)20 7315 4000
Email investor relations@cwec com

Financial calendar

Ex-dividend date 28 May 2015
Record date 29 May 2015
Last date for election to jomn dividend

reinvestment plan for August 2015 dwidend 10 July 2015
Last date for election to receive dividend

in US dollars 10 July 2015
Notification of sterling dividend

payment amount 16 July 2015
AGM 21 July 2015
Payment of final dividend 7 August 2015

Announcerment of intenm results 2015/16 5 Novernber 2015

Updates to the financial calendar will be available on the Company s
website www cwe com when they become available

Dividends

Dividends are declared by the Company in US dollars The default
payment currency for dividends is sterling and shareholders may elect
to receive payment in US dollars The actual sterling amount of any
dividend payable by the Cormpany from tume to time will be based on
the sterling/US dallar exchange rate in effect on a date chosen by the
Directors nearer tc the relevant payment date

A Currency Mandate Form to receive dividends 1n US dollars may be
requested from Equiniti or can be found on the Company’s website
www cwe com Any election to receive dividends in US dollars will
rematn in force until cancelled

The table below sets out the US dollar amounts of the interim, iinal
and total gross dividends paid or proposed per ordinary share

Cents per ordinary share

Year ended Interim Final Total
31 March 2013 133 267 400
31 March 2014 133 267 400
31 March 2015 133 267 400

If your dividend 1s paid directly into your bank or building scciety
account, you will receive one cansolidated tax voucher each year,
which 1s sent to you in January at the time that the interm dividend 1s
paid If you would prefer to receive a tax voucher with each dividend,
please contact our shareholder helpline on 0871 384 2104!

If your dividend 1s not currently paid direct to your bank or building
society account and you would like to benefit from this service, please
contact our shareholder helpline on 0871 384 2104" By receiving
your dividends in this way you can avoid the nisk of cheques getting
lost inthe post It s also now possible for shareholders in over

90 countries worldwide to benefit from a similar service Further
information can be obtained from www shareview co uk or by calling
+44 (0)121 415 7052

1 Calls to this number are charged at 8p per minute ptus network extras Lines are open
from B 30am to 5 30pm Monday to Friday excluding Ux public holidays
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Shareholder information continued

Cable & Wireless Communications Plc offers a dividend reinvestment
plan Shareholders wishing to join the dividend reinvestment plan
should return a completed mandate form to the Registrar, Equiniti
Copies of the dvidend reinvestrment plan brochure can be obtained
either from Equiniti or from our website www cwe com

Cable & Wireless Communications Plc trading market

The Company's shares are traded on the London Stock Exchange
The Company had a market capitalisation of approximately

£2 728 million on 31 March 2015

The diagram below details the position in the FTSE All Share Index and
the high and low middle market quotations for the ordinary shares on
the London Stock Exchange as reported onits Dally Official List

31 March 2015

Pasition in the
FTSE All Share Index
at the year end High Low

Pence per ordinary share

LSE ticker CWC
ISIN GBOOBSKKT968

Electronic communication

Together with Equiniti Cable & Wireless Communications Picis able to
offer shareholders the option to manage their shareholding online To
make use of this faclity please register at www shareview co uk
following the onscreen instructions

The Company also offers shareholders the option to receive
communications from the Company electronically as an alternative to
recewving documents through the post

Warning to shareholders ("botler room’ scams)

Over recent years we have become aware of investors who have
received unsolicited calls or correspondence in some cases purporting
to have been issued by us, concerming investrment matters These
typically make claims of highly profitable opportunities in UK or US
investments which turn out to be worthtess or simply do not exist
These approaches are usually made by unauthonsed comparues and
indmniduals and are commonly known as boller room’ scams Investors
are adwvised to be wary of any unsolicited advice or offers to buy
shares If it sounds too good to be true, it oftenis See the Financial
Conduct Authority’s website www fca org uk/scams for more detailed
inforrmation about this or similar activity
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Documents on display

Shareholders can view the service contracts of Executive Directors
and the letters of appointment of Non-executive Directors at the
Company's Registered Office Shareholders may also obtain copies of
the Company s Articles of Association at the Company's Registered
Office or on the website www cwe com

Distribution and classification of Cable & Wireless
Communications Plc shareholdings

Total Total % af

Number of % of Number of Issued

Shares at 31 March 2015 Holdings  Holders shares Capital
Upte 1000 49773 6732 20,571,907 046
1,001-10,000 21,771 2944 58,002 310 130
10 001-100,000 1952 264 46,164,602 103
100 001-1 000,000 259 035 87,465,934 195
1,000,001 and over 186 025 4,263748863 9526
Total 73941 10000 4475953616 10000

At 19 May 2015, the Company had 73,457 shareholders on record




Definitions

The Annual Report and Accounts of Cable & Wireless Communications
Plc have been prepared in accordance with English legal and UK Listing
Rutes requirements

Unless otherwise stated in this report, the terms ‘Cable & Wireless
Cormrunications’, the "‘Group, CWC, Cable & Wireless
Comrunications Group’, 1t, we, us and ‘our’ refer to Cable &
Wireless Communications Pfc and its subsidiaries collectively The
terms 'Company’ and ‘Parent Company refer to Cable & Wireless
Communicatiens Plc The terms Cable & Wireless’ and ‘Cable &
Wireless Group’ refer to the previous Cable & Wireless plc and its
subsidiaries collectively The term Cable & Wireless Worldwide Group
refers to Cable & Wrreless Worldwide plc and 1ts subsidiaries
collectwvely, which was demerged from the former Cable & Wireless
plc on 26 March 2010, and since July 2012 has been a wholly owned
subsidiary of Vodafone Group Plc

Unless otherwise indicated, any reference in this report to financial
statements 1s to the consolidated financial statements of Cable &
Wireless Communtcations on pages 92 to 158 References to a year
in this report are, unless otherwise indicated, references to the year
ended 371 March 2015 (the financal year)

Cable & Wireless Communications prepares its financial nfermation
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
applicable for use in the European Unton (EU) The Company prepares
its financial information 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (UK GAAP)

In this report, inancial and non-fnancial information 1s, unless
otherwise indicated stated on the basis of the Group’s financial year
EBITDA 1s defined as earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation, net other operating and non-operating income and
expense Unless otherwise stated EBITDA excludes exceptional items

Exceptional items are matenial items which derive from individual
events that fall within the erdinary activities of the Group that are
identified as exceptional items by virtue of their size, nature or
ncidence Cash capital expenditure is adjusted for the movements in
capital expenditure payables and accruals Operating cash flow is
defined as pre-exceptional EBITDA less balance sheet capital
expenditure Adjusted earnings per share (adjusted EPS) 1s before
exceptional ttems, transaction costs, gain/(loss) on disposal of
businesses, foreign exchange gains/(losses) on financing activities
and amortisation of acquired intangibles A reconciiation aof GAAP
to non-GAAP measures is provided on page 93

Where appropniate, to aid understanding of our results compared

to the pror year, we refer to financial performance on a constant
currency basis Constant currency figures are calculated by
retranslating prior year figures at the exchange rates used during
2014415 to elminate the impact of movements in exchange rates
Where percentages are shown to iHustrate year-on-year movements
the abbreviation ‘'nm’ means that the percentage change 1s

not meaningful

Information has been updated to the most practical date prior to the
approval date of the document, being 19 May 2015
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Team Talk Live!

Engaging Interactive Sessions

Addressees of the Annual Report

This Annual Report s addressed solefy to the members of Cable & Wireless
Communications Plc as a body to assist them in assessing the strategies adopted by the
Company and the potential for those strategies to succeed Neither the Company nor s
Directors accept or assume responsibility to any person for thes Annual Repart or any
responsibifity to update any statements in this Annual Report save asrequired by
applicable laws or requlation

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements that are based on current
expectations or befiefs as well as assumptions about future events These forward-
locking statements can be tdentified by the fact that they do not relate only to historical
ar current facts Forwargd-looking statements ofien use words such as antigipate
target expect estmate intend plan goal believe will may should would
could or other words of similar meaning Undue reliance shoutd not be placed onany
such statements because by their very natuse they are subject to known and unknown

Left
CEO PhilBentley, shares the Company s strategy
at one of the many Team Talk Live! sessions

Above
Phil captured in a light moment interacting with
team members

As part of our employee engagement
initiatives to build a high performance
culture and a customer-centric
organisation, we launched a series of
face-to-face company-wide interactive
sessions called, Team Talk Live!

We shared our strategy and visicn, got
great ideas on how to better serve our
customers from our front-hne team

members, and talked about our values

nsks and uncertainties and can be affected by other factors that coutd cause actual
results and Cable & Wireless Commurucabons plans and objectives o differ matenally
from those expressed or implted in the forward-looking statements Furthermore
nothing in this Annual Report shou!d be construed as a profit forecast There are several
factors which coud cause actual results to differ materislly from those expressed or
impled in forward-looking statements Among the factors are changes in the global
political economic business competitive market and regulatory forces future exchange
and interest rates changes in tax rates and future business combinations or disposals
Summaries of the potential rnisks faced by Cable & Wireless Communications are set out
onpages 1816 21

Cable & Wireless Communications cannot guarantee future results levels of actvity
performance or achievements Cable & Wiretess Communications undertakes no
obligation to revise or update any forward-looking statement contaned within this
Annual Report regardless of whether those statements are affected as a result of new
information future events or otherwise save as required by applicable laws or regulation
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